
 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
PACKET 

 

FOR 
 

Tuesday, June 21, 2016 
 

Sherwood City Hall 
22560 SW Pine Street 

Sherwood, Oregon 
    
 
 

5:30 pm City Council Work Session 
 

7:00 pm City Council Regular Meeting 
 
 





 

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
June 21, 2016 
Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
5:30 PM WORK SESSION 
 
1. City Property Report (Tom Pessemier) 

2. City Attorney Evaluation Criteria (Tom Pessemier) 

 

 

REGULAR SESSION 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

  

3. ROLL CALL 

 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

A. Approval of June 7, 2016 City Council Meeting Minutes 

B. Resolution 2016-033 Approving the City Recorder’s canvassing of the election returns of the 

May 17, 2016 Washington County election and directing the City Recorder to enter the results 

into the record (Sylvia Murphy) 

C. Resolution 2016-034 Authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract with Blackline, Inc. for 

the 2016 Slurry Seal Program (Craig Sheldon) 

D. Resolution 2016-035 Certifying the provision of certain municipal services in order to qualify the 

City to receive state revenues (Cathy Brucker) 

E. Resolution 2016-036 Authorizing the City Manager to execute a construction contract for the 

Woodhaven Park construction (Julia Hajduk) 

 

6. PRESENTATIONS 

 

A. Recognition of Eagle Scout Award Recipient 

 

7. CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 

8. NEW BUSINESS 

 
A. Resolution 2016-037 Adopting the Capital Improvement Project Plan for Fiscal Year 2016-17 

(Cathy Brucker, Interim Finance Director) 

 
 

 

AGENDA 
 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL 
June 21, 2016 

 
 

5:30 pm Work Session 
 

7:00 pm Regular Meeting 
 

URA Board of Directors Meeting 
(following the City Council meeting) 

 
Sherwood City Hall 

22560 SW Pine Street 

Sherwood, OR  97140 

1



 

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
June 21, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 

9. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

A. Ordinance 2016-008 Amendment to Chapter 16.31 (Industrial Uses) of the Sherwood Zoning and 
Community Development Code (Julia Hajduk, Community Development Director) (Second Reading) 
 

B. Ordinance 2016-010 Amending Section 16.162.040 to allow public and private parking lots on a 

residentially zoned lot within the Old Town Overlay (Brad Kilby, Planning Manager) (Second 

Reading) 

 

C. Resolution 2016-038 declaring the City of Sherwood’s election to receive State Revenues 

(Cathy Brucker, Interim Finance Director) 

 

D. Resolution 2016-039 Adopting a Schedule of Fees as authorized by the City Zoning and 

Community Development Code, establishing fees for miscellaneous City services and 

establishing an effective date (Cathy Brucker, Interim Finance Director) 

 

E. Resolution 2016-040 Adopting the FY2016-17 Budget of the City of Sherwood, making 
appropriations, imposing and categorizing taxes, and authorizing the City Manager to take such 
action necessary to carry out the adopted budget (Cathy Brucker, Interim Finance Director) 

 

 

10. CITY MANAGER REPORT 

 

11. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

12. ADJOURN 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
How to Find Out What's on the Council Schedule: 
City Council meeting materials and agenda are posted to the City web page at www.sherwoodoregon.gov, by the Thursday prior to a Council meeting. Council agendas are 
also posted at the Sherwood Library/City Hall, the Sherwood YMCA, the Senior Center, and the Sherwood Post Office. Council meeting materials are available at the 
Sherwood Public Library. To Schedule a Presentation before Council: If you would like to schedule a presentation before the City Council, please submit your name, phone 
number, the subject of your presentation and the date you wish to appear to the City Recorder, 503-625-4246 or murphys@sherwoodoregon.gov 

2

http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/
mailto:murphys@sherwoodoregon.gov


DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
June 7, 2016 
Page 1 of 10 

 
 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

22560 SW Pine St., Sherwood, Or 

June 7, 2016 

 

 

WORK SESSION 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER:   Mayor Krisanna Clark called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 

 

2. COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Krisanna Clark, Council President Jennifer Harris, Councilors Dan King, 

Renee Brouse, Jennifer Kuiper, Linda Henderson and Sally Robinson. 

 

3. STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Joe Gall, Assistant City Manager Tom Pessemier, City Attorney Josh 

Soper, Police Chief Jeff Groth, Administrative Assistant Colleen Resch and City Recorder Sylvia Murphy.  

 

4. TOPICS: 

 

A. Charter Amendments 

 

City Attorney Josh Soper provided the Council with a document (see record, Exhibit A) explaining five 

possible Charter amendments to consider. He recommended that the Council consider the 

recommendations separately. He said the first proposed amendment would amend the ordinance 

adoption section. He commented that the current language is confusing and he is proposing to change it 

to the statutory process used by counties to adopt ordinances. He said instead of voting on the ordinance 

twice you have two readings and only vote once. He clarified that the vote would take place after the 

public comment period. He said the Council can still approve an ordinance at a single meeting by 

unanimous vote upon being read by title twice. He said the language also clarifies where the ordinance 

will be posted. City Recorder Sylvia Murphy reminded Mr. Soper that the council meeting agendas are 

currently posted on the City website and in four locations in the City.  

 

Mr. Soper said the second possible Charter amendment would amend the City Recorder reporting 

structure section. He said this proposed amendment would require the City Recorder to report to the City 

Manager as opposed to the City Council. He noted most cities that have a City Recorder that reports to 

the City Manager do not have a City Recorder provision in the Charter (see record, Exhibit A). He said he 

has proposed to change the language within the section as opposed to striking the City Recorder section 

entirely as it could be perceived that the City is eliminating the City Recorder position. He noted that by 

amending the section the City will be required to have a City Recorder position.  

 

Mr. Soper discussed the third possible Charter amendment regarding stipends for Council. He 

commented on government ethics rules regarding conflict of interest and said the way a stipend roll out is 

3



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
June 7, 2016 
Page 2 of 10 

structured will affect which ethics issues are triggered. He is proposing that anyone currently on Council 

and voting to place this Charter amendment before the voters will never be eligible to receive 

compensation. He said that allows Council to completely avoid conflicts of interest. He said it could also 

state that for each position after the next election for that position would become eligible for compensation 

and then there would be a potential conflict of interest. He said if the Council decides to have 

compensation prior to reelection then there would be an actual conflict of interest. He said Council could 

declare a conflict of interest and abstain from any discussion of the subject. He stated with a potential 

conflict of interest the Council would declare a conflict of interest and then they can discuss the subject. 

He provided the Council with information from other cities regarding compensation (see record, Exhibit A) 

and said $150 was in the middle and he tied that to inflation. He said another approach would be to have 

the Charter state that Councilors shall be eligible for compensation and the Council could then set the 

amount.  

 

Mayor Clark said it is her understanding that other cities have different compensation for Mayors and 

Councilors because of the amount of meetings the Mayor is required to attend. Mr. Soper said that is 

correct. Discussed followed.  

 

Councilor Robinson said if referred to the voters the explanatory statement could mention that this is 

consistent with other cities. 

 

Mayor Clark stated that to be consistent with other cities the Mayor’s compensation has to be different 

than the other Councilors. 

 

Councilor King suggested a monthly compensation of $500 for the Mayor and $250 for the Councilors 

with the CIP clause.  

 

Councilor Harris said she was informed that babysitting is not a reimbursable expense. She asked how 

reimbursable expenses are defined. Mr. Soper said he presumes the definitions are based on IRS rules.   

 

Mayor Clark clarified that if this proposed Charter amendment is approved would the newly elected 

officials be eligible for compensation. Mr. Soper said yes. Council continued to discuss actual and 

reasonable expenses.  

 

Mr. Soper clarified that if approved the Mayor and Councilors would be eligible for compensation after 

there next reelection.  

 

Councilor Brouse asked where the extra $27,000 will come from if this amendment passes. Mr. Soper 

commented on the gradual phase-in of the expense. Mr. Gall said he is not concerned by the additional 

expense considering the City’s current budget being in the millions.  

 

Councilor Henderson asked if the Council wanted to consider other forms of compensation. Mr. Soper 

said the Council will still be able to be reimbursed for actual and reasonable expenses.  

 

Mr. Soper discussed the fourth possible Charter amendment regarding term of office for the Mayor. He 

said the proposal is to convert the Mayor to a 4 year term of office. He provided the Council with a 

comparison of other cities (see record, Exhibit A). He stated if this is approved the newly elected Mayor 

4



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
June 7, 2016 
Page 3 of 10 

will serve a 4 year term. Discussion followed regarding term limits. Mr. Soper noted that most cities similar 

to Sherwood do not have term limits for the Mayor.  

 

Councilor Henderson and Councilor Robinson stated that they are in favor of term limits for the Mayor. 

Discussion followed. Councilor King suggested imposing language for two consecutive 4 year terms. 

Mayor Clark said changing the length of term and imposing term limits would be confusing to the voters 

and increases the chance of a no vote. She would support waiting and doing term limits later.  

 

Mr. Soper said in order to place these proposed Charter amendment on the November ballot the Council 

will need to approve and provide them to the City Recorder before August 19, 2016.  

 

Councilor Robinson suggest that with a tight deadline that the Council hold off on the term limit issue and 

address that later with the Council term limits clarification language. She recommended putting that on a 

later election where there are other issues on the ballot.  

 

Mr. Soper discussed the fifth possible Charter amendment to the City Budget section which would strike 

the word “annual” city budget so the City can move to a biannual budget process. Council agreed.  

   

5. ADJOURN: 

 

Mayor Clark adjourned the work session at 6:45 pm and convened to a regular session. 

 

 

REGULAR SESSION 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER:   Mayor Clark called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm. 

 

2.  COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Krisanna Clark, Council President Jennifer Harris, Councilors Dan King, 

Renee Brouse, Jennifer Kuiper, Linda Henderson and Sally Robinson. 

  

3.  STAFF AND LEGAL COUNSEL PRESENT: City Manager Joe Gall, Assistant City Manager Tom 

Pessemier, City Attorney Josh Soper, Police Chief Jeff Groth, Community Development Director Julia 

Hajduk, Planning Manager Brad Kilby, Community Services Director Kristen Switzer, Volunteer 

Coordinator Tammy Steffens, Administrative Assistant Colleen Resch and City Recorder Sylvia Murphy. 

 

 Mayor Clark addressed the next agenda item and asked for a motion. 

 

4.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

 

MOTION TO AMEND: FROM MAYOR CLARK TO REMOVE RESOLUTION 2016-031 AND 

RESOLUTION 2016-032 FROM NEW BUSINESS AS PAYMENT AS BEEN RECEIVED, SECONDED 

BY COUNCILOR KUIPER. MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 

 

MOTION AS AMENDED: FROM COUNCILOR HENDERSON TO APPROVE THE AMENDED 

AGENDA, SECONDED BY COUNCIL PRESIDENT HARRIS. MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL MEMBERS 

VOTED IN FAVOR.  

 

5



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
June 7, 2016 
Page 4 of 10 

Mayor Clark addressed the next item on the agenda. 

 

5.  CONSENT AGENDA: 

 

A. Approval of May 3, 2016 City Council Meeting Minutes 

B. Resolution 2016-025 Appointing Sarah Hagen to the Parks and Recreation Board  

C. Resolution 2016-026 Appointing Adam Best to the Parks and Recreation Board  

D. Resolution 2016-027 Appointing Mike Bowcut to the Parks and Recreation Board 

E. Resolution 2016-028 Appointing Mike Jackson to the Parks and Recreation Board 

F. Resolution 2016-029 Appointing Nicole Burgess to the Cultural Arts Commission  

G. Resolution 2016-030 Authorizing the City Manager to sign Intergovernmental Agreements with 
Washington County on behalf of Washington County Cooperative Library Services (WCCLS) 

 

MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR KUIPER TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA, SECONDED BY 

COUNCILOR KING. MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR.  

 

Mayor Clark addressed the next item on the agenda. 

 

6.  PRESENTATIONS: 

 

A. Recognition of Eagle Scout Award Recipient 

 

Mayor Clark called forward Andrew Jensen and asked him to describe his Eagle Scout project. He said 

the Sherwood Friends Church which is where the Sherwood Charter School is located recently cut down 

a few pine trees and he made arrangements so the students could jump between the stumps as use as a 

play structure. The Council congratulated Andrew and Mayor Clark presented him with a certificate of 

achievement. 

 

B. Recognition of 2016 Robin Hood Festival Maid Marian Court Members 

 

Mayor Clark welcomed Kristine Mulkey the 2016 Robin Hood Festival Maid Marian Court Chaperone and 

welcomed the Junior and Senior Court members. Ms. Mulkey came forward and read a brief biography for 

each member of the court. The City Council presented the court members with a Certificate of 

Recognition. Senior Court members; Maid Marian Jessica Mulkey, Senior Court members Whitney 

Groeger, Madeleine LeCorre and Joanna Mallari. Junior Court members; Audrey McKinney, Sophia 

Mulkey, Megan Ramos and Marina Yoshinaka.  

 

C. Washington County Visitors Association Presentation  

 

Carolyn McCormick with the Washington County Visitors Association (WCVA) gave a presentation 

regarding the role of the association (see record, Exhibit B). She discussed the importance and the power 

of tourism and the role that the association plays in helping to grow and market tourism throughout the 

county. She said they are a destination marketing organization and a 501c6 funded by a dedicated tax 

which was voted on by the voters of Washington County. She said their job is to develop, market and 

promote Washington County and all of her cities as a place for people to visit. She said they focus on 

getting people to stay in overnight paid accommodations. She stated they recently rebranded the 

destination as The Tualatin Valley.  She said tourism was a $10.8 billion industry in Oregon last year. She 

6



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
June 7, 2016 
Page 5 of 10 

stated in 2016 in Washington County the economic impact of travelers was $680 million, 7000 full time 

jobs, and $11 million local tax receipts. She referred to the transient lodging tax which is a hotel tax base 

and said there are 4882 hotel rooms in the County and 1100 are being built. She said in 2015 there was 

$147 million spent on lodging with a 73.4% occupancy rate in Washington County. She explained the 

breakdown of the transient lodging tax and the WCVA distribution of funding. She provided examples of 

recently funded capitol project grants. She explained marketing in the Tualatin Valley and said that WCVA 

spends $1.5 million annually on marketing and provided examples.  

 

Councilor Henderson asked how they partner with the business travelers and encourage them to return 

with their families. Ms. McCormick said that is the purpose of the kiosks in the hotel lobbies to introduce 

the destination.  She said that is what they try to encourage. Brief comments were received regarding an 

employee of the WCVA who is a Sherwood resident. 

 

Mayor Clark noted that WCVA is an asset to Sherwood and thanked them for their support.  

 

D. Employee Spotlight 

 

City Manager Joe Gall stated that once a month the City will highlight an employee. He recognized 

Volunteer Coordinator Tammy Steffens for her work on the Community Garden Project. He said Ms. 

Steffens joined the City in September 2014 and previously she was a Regional Development Director for 

E-script where she recruited and trained over 1500 volunteers for nonprofit school groups throughout 

Oregon and SW Washington. She also worked 15 plus years and an escrow officer and attended Mt. 

Hood and Clackamas Community College. She is also an avid volunteer in the community. He stated that 

Ms. Steffens has brought a lot of energy and enthusiasm to the Volunteer Coordinator position. He 

spotlighted her work on the Community Garden Project which has been challenging and outside of her 

job description. He thanked her for all of her hard work. 

  

Mayor Clark addressed the next agenda item. 

 

7.   CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 

Rob Watson, Sherwood resident and Board member with Just Compassion of East Washington County 

came forward with Darla Samuelson a Tigard resident and the Chair of Just Compassion. Ms. Samuelson 

stated they were here to communicate resources that are available to Sherwood and East Washington 

County for individuals who are living outside. She shared a story about the formation of Just Compassion 

and encountering individuals waiting at Labor Ready and asking if there was one thing that could be done 

for them what would that be. She said they indicated they needed showers and laundry so they could be 

clean to get a job.  She explained this was in in 2007 and started by meeting once a month at a privately 

owned laundry mat where they provided lunch and laundry services. She said they were then shuttled to 

a nearby church for showers. She said at this same time in the winter of 2007 churches were noticing 

people were outdoors and they started severe weather shelters. She explained by realizing the need for 

resources they met on a monthly bases and resourced each other and as a result they formed a coalition, 

Just Compassion. She mentioned St. Francis, St. Anthony’s, Resonate, Symposium, Love Inc., Tigard 

United Methodist, Unity Laundry Mat are all part of the coalition. She stated as they met monthly they 

realized a need for a day center that can service the homeless population during severe weather and 

once a month with showers and laundry. She said what they would really like is to have a place where 

7



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
June 7, 2016 
Page 6 of 10 

people can go. She said this January they started a once a week day shelter that is held at Tigard Four 

Square that operates from 10am-2pm.  

 

Councilor Kuiper referred to the handout provided by Just Compassion noting times services are 

available. She asked regarding when they were formed and Ms. Samuelson stated the day shelter started 

in January and their 501c3 was formed last summer.  

 

Councilor Brouse thanked them for their service and the resources they are providing. Mayor Clark 

thanked them for their service.  

 

Michelle Boyle, Sherwood resident approached the Council and discussed the need for tiny houses being 

an option in Sherwood. She said she built a 204 square foot tiny home on a trailer in the driveway of her 

rental home and would like to consider moving into her tiny house. She asked permission from Sherwood 

to acknowledge that tiny houses are not RVs. She asked Council to adopt the new Fresno, California 

zoning code which allows tiny houses to be legally occupied full time in the back yard of existing houses. 

She suggested leasing unused City land to private parties and allowing variances to use them as tiny 

house occupancy lots. She suggested planning and building pocket neighborhoods like in Langley, 

Washington. She listed cities that have adjusted their planning code to allow for tiny houses and 

suggested Sherwood do the same. She said this is an opportunity for Sherwood to set them apart and 

consider sustainable options.  

 

Steve Holthouse, Sherwood resident came forward and expressed concerns with the student parking on 

Villa Road south of the High School stadium. He stated with parking on both sides of the street it is very 

crowded and fire trucks, UPS trucks nor Pride Disposal can get through. He said he emailed the City 

Council, the Police Department and the school. He said Police Officer Asla responded and said their 

hands were tied by the City Council. He said he knows the City budget is set for the coming year and 

heard today that his wife was driving and was nearly hit by another car, he stated he considers this a 

dangerous situation. He asked if the Council has discussed this or if they are aware.  

 

Mayor Clark informed Mr. Holthouse that under Citizen Comments this was an opportunity to address the 

Council, and the Council does not answer questions or have a dialog. Mr. Holthouse asked if the Council 

will consider limiting parking next fall for the future on Villa Road south of the stadium as they have done 

on Woodhaven and Saunders with permit signs. He stated he got to know Officer Asla after the trestle fire 

and understands there was a desire to control access in that area by the City. He said he worked with 

Officer Asla on placing a motion camera on his fence and said he has notice lately that enforcement is 

nonexistent. He said after all this, what else will happen.  

 

Valery Koyfman, Sherwood resident approached the Council and expressed concerns with speeding on 

Langer Drive and Century Drive and explained the dangers of the situation. He said there is excessive 

noise pollution and they have discussed the issue with the Police Department and a letter has been sent 

to City Hall. He commented on the three pedestrian crossings with no stop signs. He referred to 

interactions with the Police and they have acknowledged there is a speeding problem on Langer Drive. 

He asked for help in stopping the problem.  

 

Mayor Clark addressed the next item on the agenda and the City Recorder read the public hearing 

statement. 

 

8



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
June 7, 2016 
Page 7 of 10 

8.   PUBLIC HEARING 

 

A. Ordinance 2016-007 Amending Title 9 of the Municipal Code relating to public peace, morals 

and welfare, Chapter 9.52 Prohibiting of Noise  

 

City Attorney Josh Soper recapped the staff report and noted this is the second reading for the second 

round of updates to the noise ordinance. He said previously the Council approved an ordinance fixing 

some urgent issues with the noise ordinance and then held a work session on more comprehensive 

updates. He said the Council had the first hearing on this ordinance on May 3, 2016. He stated the 

ordinance is proposing to change definition of day hours which were previously 7 am to 10 pm on 

weekdays and 8 am to 7 pm on weekends to 7 am to 9 pm on weekdays and 8 am to 9 pm on weekends. 

He said a number of specific violations and exemptions were added from the League of Oregon Cities 

model noise ordinance and an exemption for certain holiday related noise was added. He stated the 

variance provisions were revamped entirely, eliminating the different categories of variances and 

streamlining the process. He said all initial variance decisions will be made by the City Manager based on 

specified criteria, with an opportunity to appeal to the City Council. He said the fine amounts remain the 

same with a first violation as a Class C, which is a $250 fine and subsequent violations as Class B, which 

are a $500 fine. He said if approved this will take effect in 30 days. He said there are a few scribner’s 

errors specifically related to bulleting and number format identified by the City Recorder which will be 

changed. He referred the Council to pages 99 and 100 of the packet and identified the errors. 

 

Councilor Henderson asked what happens if a citizen is issued a variance for an event in July based on 

the previous code. Mr. Soper said anyone applying for a variance moving forward will go through the new 

process.  

 

Mayor Clark opened the public hearing, with no testimony received the public hearing was closed. 

 

Mayor Clark referred to the scribner’s errors and asked if there needs to be a motion to correct the errors. 

Mr. Soper recommended the Council approve the ordinance with the fix of the scribner’s errors as 

addressed.  

 

MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR HARRIS TO READ CAPTION AND ADOPT WITH THE SCRIBNER’S 

ERROR CHANGES, ORDINANCE 2016-007 AMENDING TITLE 9 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE 

RELATING TO PUBLIC PEACE, MORALS AND WELFARE, CHAPTER 9.52 PROHIBITING OF 

NOISE. SECONDED BY MAYOR CLARK. MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR.  

 

Mayor Clark addressed the next agenda item. 

 

B. Ordinance 2016-010 Amending Section 16.162.040 to allow public and private parking lots on a 

residentially zoned lot within the Old Town Overlay   

 

Planning Manager Brad Kilby recapped the staff report and provided a presentation (see record, Exhibit 

C). He said on occasion the City fields complaints about parking in Old Town. He stated the URA has 

identified parking as a need to address. He stated the Robin Hood lot will be better served as a 

developed piece of property and the URA wanted to make sure that parking could be replaced. He stated 

the two parcels behind City Hall were purchased and they are split zoned with one lot being zoned 

Medium Density Residential Low (MDRL) which currently does not allow non-accessory parking. He said 

9



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
June 7, 2016 
Page 8 of 10 

the URA proposed to amend the Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code to conditionally 

allow non-accessory parking. He said there was an initial Planning Commission hearing and there was 

concern about the City purchasing lots to put in parking lots on residentially zoned properties. He stated 

the URA then came back and amended the language to include a provision that the property would have 

to be vacant as of May 1, 2016 and that narrowed the scope down to the one property. He said the 

proposed language would go into the Old Town overlay which specifically says that parking would be 

allowed as long as it is conditionally approved and adjacent to a collector or arterial and vacant as of May 

1, 2016. He said conditional uses still require a public hearing and any type of development in Old Town 

requires a public hearing. He referred to the general criteria that applies to all conditional uses. He said 

an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan shall be based up the need for such an amendment and be in 

accordance with the Transportation Planning Rule. He said the Planning Commission is recommending 

approval of PA 16-02.  

 

Councilor Harris asked if there is a conflict of interest with being a City Council member and a member of 

the URA Board of Directors. City Attorney Josh Soper said there is no conflict of interest.  

 

Mayor Clark opened the public hearing, with no testimony received the hearing was closed.  

 

With no further Council questions Mayor Clark asked for a motion. 

 

Mayor Clark asked Assistant City Manager Tom Pessemier if there is a necessity for a second hearing. 

Mr. Pessemier said that is a question for the City Attorney and there would have to be an emergency 

clause.  

 

City Attorney Soper stated there would have to be an emergency declared and a unanimous vote. 

 

MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR HARRIS TO APPROVE ORDINANCE 2016-010 AMENDING 

SECTION 16.162.040 TO ALLOW PUBLIC AND PRIVATE PARKING LOTS ON A 

RESIDENTIALLY ZONED LOT WITHIN THE OLD TOWN OVERLAY AND PLACE IT ON THE 

NEXT AVAILABLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA FOR ADDITIONAL PUBLIC 

COMMENT AND CONSIDERATION, SECONDED BY MAYOR CLARK. MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL 

MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR.  

 

9. CITY MANAGER REPORT: 

 

City Manager Joe Gall stated Ordinance 2016-010 will be placed on the July 19, 2016 agenda as the next 

City Council meeting is very busy with budget related items. He informed the Council that the City will be 

participating in Cascadia Rising 2016 which is an emergency exercise simulating a 9.0 earthquake. He 

said staff will be practicing how the City will respond in a disaster. He noted the City will be participating 

again tomorrow and will host an open house for staff and elected officials. He encouraged citizens to be 

prepared as well and invest in a 72 hour emergency kit. 

 

Councilor Robinson asked if the results of the emergency exercise will be posted on the City website. Mr. 

Gall said there will be some internal lessons learned that can be shared with the Council.  

 

10



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
June 7, 2016 
Page 9 of 10 

Councilor Harris asked if there was any information on the City website regarding the 72 hour kit. Chief 

Groth said the information is under emergency management.  

 

Mayor Clark discussed the importance of emergency preparedness. 

 

Councilor Henderson asked if the School District was involved in the exercise. Mr. Gall said the School 

District was not involved in the exercise and said he would discuss this with the County. 

 

Councilor Henderson excused herself from the meeting at 8:20 pm. 

 

Mayor Clark addressed the next item on the agenda. 

 

10. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Mayor Clark said there is a small lane behind the Center for the Arts named Columbia Drive and she 

suggested renaming the street in honor of Odge Gribble as a way to thank her for her many years of 

service. She noted on September 8, 2008 the City declared Odge Gribble day and noted the numerous 

contributions she has made to the community.  

 

The following motion was stated. 

 

MOTION: FROM MAYOR CLARK TO INITIATE A STREET NAME CHANGE PER CHAPTER 12.06 OF 

THE SHERWOOD MUNICIPAL CODE FOR THE PORTION OF THE EXISTING SW COLUMBIA 

STREET ADJACENT TO THE SHERWOOD CENTER OF THE ARTS TO SW ODGE GRIBBLE LANE. 

SECONDED BY COUNCIL PRESIDENT HARRIS. MOTION PASSED 6:0. ALL PRESENT MEMBERS 

VOTED IN FAVOR, (COUNCILOR HENDERSON WAS ABSENT). 

 

City Manager Gall clarified that this motion begins the process and staff will provide the Council with 

future action to change the street name. 

 

Mayor Clark stated she was the keynote speaker at the WEA and spoke about contracting with 

Washington County for police services. She commented regarding upcoming events, Cruisin’ and the 

Portland Rose Festival parade. She thanked Councilor Kuiper, Michelle Burchfield for thir work on the 

float and Baggenstos for providing the workspace. She congratulated the Sherwood High Seniors on 

graduation. She thanked the Public Works staff for their work on the Cannery Plaza water feature. She 

commented on the success of the Sherwood Arts Festival. She said she attended a meeting at Cascade 

Locks and encouraged people to visit www.historichighway.com. She thanked Councilor Harris for 

attending the grand opening of the TriMet Line 97. She announced that Music on the Green will start on 

July 6. 

 

Council President Harris discussed the TriMet event and the asset it will be for the community. She said 

Movies on the Park start in August and Missoula Children’s Theater starts June 20. She said the Center 

for the Arts will have one summer camp per week. She reported on the upcoming Library events.  

 

Councilor Robinson announced the Planning Commission meeting next Tuesday. She said she will miss 

the next two Council meetings and hopes to attend by phone.  

 

11

http://www.historichighway.com/


DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
June 7, 2016 
Page 10 of 10 

Councilor King said Sherwood Main Street will meet next Thursday at 8 am.  

 

Councilor Kuiper referred to the four new Parks and Recreation Board members and welcomed them. 

She thanked outgoing Parks and Recreation Board Chairman Dave Scheirman for his 14 years of 

service. She shared her experience serving with him on the Board. She provided an update on the mini 

float that is being built for the Portland Rose Parade and encouraged people to come help. She thanked 

all of those businesses that have contributed including It’s All Arranged. She commented on the 

Emergency Preparedness training and her experience as a Geologist. She encouraged everyone to 

prepare for two weeks and recommended reading “The Unthinkable” by Amanda Ripley.  

 

Councilor Brouse commented on Emergency Preparedness and said water is the most important thing 

and one gallon of water per individual is needed per day. She announced that May Fair Lady tickets are 

available. She reported attending the Line 97 grand opening. She said the Sherwood Center for the Arts 

hosted Vision Action Network with over 120 in attendance. She reported she attended the Water 

Consortium meeting regarding lead hazards. She announced the School Board is meeting tomorrow at 

Laurel Ridge to discuss the bond measure.  

 

With no further announcements, Mayor Clark adjourned the meeting. 

 

11. ADJOURN: 

 

Meeting adjourned at 8:50 pm. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attest: 

 

               

Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder    Krisanna Clark, Mayor 

12



 

Resolution 2016-033, Staff Report 
June 21, 2016 
Page 1 of 1  

Council Meeting Date: June 21, 2016 
 

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM:       Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 
Through:   Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution 2016-033 Approving the City Recorder’s Canvassing of election 

returns of the May 17, 2016 Washington County election and directing the City 
Recorder to enter the results into the record 

 

 
ISSUE:   
Should the City Council approve the official May 17, 2016 election results as provided by the 
Washington County Elections Division?  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The May 17, 2016 primary ballot contained several initiatives, including an Initiative Petition filed by a 
local resident, Measure 34-244, a proposal to amend the City Charter. 
 
Via this resolution, the City Recorder/City Elections Official is seeking City Council approval of Exhibit 
A, the Abstract of Votes from the May 17, 2016 Washington County election. Upon approval of the 
election results, the City Recorder will take all necessary steps to enter the election results into the 
record. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACTS:  
There are no financial impacts of the adoption of the resolution; however, the City may incur shared 
costs associated with the May 17, 2016 election. Costs were not available at the time of drafting the 
staff report. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff respectfully recommends City Council approval of Resolution 2016-033 approving the City 
Recorder’s Canvassing of election returns of the May 17, 2016 Washington County election and 
directing the City Recorder to enter the results into the record. 
 

13



DRAFT 

Resolution 2016-033 
June 21, 2016 
Page 1 of 1, with Exhibit A (16 pgs) 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2016-033 

 
APPROVING THE CITY RECORDER’S CANVASSING OF THE ELECTION RETURNS OF THE  

MAY 17, 2016 WASHINGTON COUNTY ELECTION AND DIRECTING THE  
CITY RECORDER TO ENTER THE RESULTS INTO THE RECORD 

 

WHEREAS, the Washington County Elections Manager has duly and regularly certified the results of the 
election held in the City of Sherwood on May 17, 2016; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Elections Officer consistent with the duties imposed on that office will canvass the 
votes and enter the results into the record following approval by the City Council; and  
 
WHEREAS, the certified election results are attached as Exhibit A to this resolution, and the City Council 
deems it appropriate to accept the official results and to direct the City Recorder to take all required 
actions relative thereto.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  The City Council hereby accepts and approves the official results of the May 17, 2016 

election as shown in Exhibit A to this Resolution.   
 
Section 2.  The City Recorder is hereby directed to enter a copy of this Resolution into the record of 

the proceedings of this Council and to canvass the votes. 
  
Section 3.  This Resolution is and shall be effective from and after its adoption by the City Council. 
 
Duly passed by the City Council on this 21st day of June, 2016 
 

 

    
              

        Krisanna Clark, Mayor 

 

 

Attest: 

 

____________________________ 

Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 

14



June 6, 2016

WASHINGTON COUNTY
OREGON

City of Sherwood

JUN - I 20ffi

Recorder's Office

City Recorder
City of Shenivood
22560 SW Pine St
Shenryood OR 97140

Enclosed you will find a copy of the Abstract of Votes for City of Sheruvood relating to the
Primary Election held on May 17,2016.

Sincerely,

Mickie Kawai
Elections Manager

Mlltk

a

Department of Assessment & Taxation, Elections Division

3700 SW Murrray Blvd. Suite 101 Beaverton OR 97005 Phone: 503/846-5800 Fax: 503/846-5810
Resolution 2016-033, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 1 of 16

15



Statement of Votes Cast
May 17,2016 Primary Election

All Precincts, Washington, All Contests
Official Final

Tnfal Ballots Cast: 148689 Reoistered Voters: 305326. Overall Turnout: 48.70%

Choice Votes Vote %

All District Cateqories
All Districts

President (DEM) (Vote for 1)
841 47 batlots ll 3 over voted. I I 1 7 blank voted), 128224 registered voters, turnout 65.62%

Hillary Clinton 37636 45.34o/o

Bernie Sanders 44571 53.69%
Write.in 810 0.98%

Total 83017 100.00%

President (lND) (Vote for 1)
4349 ballots l0 over voted. 2035 blank voted), 15191 registered voters, turnoui 28.63%

Write'in 2315 100.00%

Total 2315 100.00%

President (REP) (Vote for 1)
46623 ballots ll5 over voted. 2128 blank voted). 863¿t4 registered voters, tu rnout 54.00o/o

Ted Cruz 7736 17.39o/"

John R Kasich 9746 21.91Yo

Donald J Trump 24916 56.01%
Write-in 2083 4.68%

Total 4r''481 100.00%

US Senator (DEM) (Vote for 1)
84147 62 ovq voted. 6277 blank voted). 128224 registered voters, turnout 65.620/"

Ron Wyden 65564 84.21%
Paul B Weaver 2385 3.067o

Kevin H Stine 9677 12.43%
Writejn 232 0.30%

Total 77858 100.00%

US Senator (lND) (Vote for l)
4349 batlots 11 over voted. 1820 blank voted), 15191 registered voters, turnout 28.63%

Steven C Reynolds 1111 43.930
Marvin Sandnes 449 17.75o/o

Write-in 969 38.32%

Total 2529 100.00%

US Senator (REP) (Vote for l)
46623 ballots ll6 over voted. 9998 blank votedl. 86344 registered voters, turnout 54.00%

Sam Carpenter 'l 1685 31 .92o/o

Mark Callahan 14341 39.17o/o

Faye Stewart 5564 1520%
Dan Laschober 4695 12.821o
Write-in 324 0.89%

Total 36609 100.007o

US Representative, 1st District (DEM) (Vote for 1)

84147 ballots (4 over voted. 11580 blank voted), 128224 reg¡stered voters, turnout 65.620/o

Suzanne Bonamici 64958 89.52%
Shabba Woodley 7383 10.17o/o

Wnle-in 222 0.31o/o

Total 72563 100.00%

US Representative, lst District (lND) (Vote for 1)
4349 ballots (0 ovqr voted. 3489 blank votedl. 15191 registered voters, turnout 28.63%

Write-in B61 100.00o/o

Total 861 100.00%

Page: 1

2016-06-03
09:26:38

City of Shen^rood

JUN - I 20t0

Recorder's Office

Resolution 2016-033, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 2 of 16

16



Statement of Votes Cast
May 17,2016 Primary Election

All Precincts, Washington, All Contests
Official Final

Total Ballots Cast: 148689- Reoistered Voters: 305326. OverallTurnout: 48.70%

Choice Votes Vote %

US Representative, lst District (REP) (Vote for 1)
46623 ballots 14 over voted. 20900 blank votedl. 863¿14 registered voters, turnout 54.00%

Page:2
2016-06-03

09:26:38

Jonathan E Burgess
Brian J Heinrich
Delinda Morgan
Write-in

5568
12923
6723

6fì5

21.65%
50.25%
26.14%

1 9âo/^

Total 25715 100.00%

Governor (DEM) (Vote for 1)
84029 ballots (42 over voted, 8208 blank votedì. 128224 registered voters, turnout 65.53%

Kate Brown 65424 8634Yo
Julian Bell 5022 6.63%
Chet Chance 675 0.89%
Kevin M Forsythe 1049 1.38%
Dave Stauffer 1634 2.16%
Steve Johnson 1469 1.94%
Write-in 506 0.67%

Total 75779 100.00%

Governor (lND) (Vote for 1)
4349 ballots l0 over voted. 1546 blank voted). 1 5191 registered voters, turnout 28.63%

Patrick Barney 711 25.36%
Cliff Thomason 1014 36.16%
Write-in 1079 38.48%

Total 2804 100.00%

Governor (REP) (Vote for 1)
46604 ballots ll7 overvoted. 5879 blank voted),86344 registered voters, turnout 53.97o/o

Bruce Cuff 4O7i 10.00%
Bob Niemeyer 3805 9.35%
Bob Forthan 430 1.06%
Bud Pierce 18406 45.21%
Allen Alley 13685 33.62%
Write-in 31 1 0.76%

Total 40708 100.00%

Secretary of State (DEM) (Vote for f )
84029 ballots (12 over voted. 15356 blank votedì, 128224 registered voters, turnout 65.53%

Richard Devlin 19713 28.71%
Brad Avakiân 31570 45.98o/o

Val Hoyle 17005 24.77%
Write-in 373 0.54%

Total 68661 100.00%

Secretary of State (lND) (Vote for 1)
4349 ballots II over 1 registered voters, turnout 28.63%voted 71O hlank vofedì l510l

Paul Damian Wells 1753 66.93%
Write-in 866 33.07%

Total 2619 100.00%

Secretary of State (REP) (Vote for 1)
46604 ballots 15 over voted. 8102 blank votedì. 86344 registered voters, turnout 53.97%

Dennis Richardson 31089 80.760/o

Sid Leiken 7180 18.65%
Write-in 228 0.59%
Total 38497 100.00%

State Treasurer (DEM) (Vote for l)
84029 ballots (1 over voted, 28563 blank voted), 128224 registered voters, turnout 65.53%

Tobias Read 54700 98.62%

Resolution 2016-033, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 3 of 16

17



Statement of Votes Cast
May 17, 2016 Primary Election

All Precincts, Washington, All Contests
Official Final

Total Ballois Cast: 148689. Reqistered Voters: 305326. OverallTurnout: 48.70%

Choice Votes Vote o/o

Writejn 765 1.38%

Total 55465 100.00%

State Treasurer (lND) (Vote for 1)
4349 ballots (1 over voted. 1776 blank voted). 15191

Page: 3
2016-06-03

09:26:38

registered voters, turnout 28.63%
Chris Telfer 2027 78.78%
V{¡ile-in 546 21.22o/o

Total 2573 100.00%

State Treasurer (REP) (Vote for 1)
46604 ballots (1 overvoted. 18225 blank voted), 86344 reg istered voters, tu rnout 53.97 o/o

Jeff Gudman 28018 98.73%
Write-in 361 1.27%

Total 28379 100.00%

Attorney General (DEM) (Vote for 1)
84029 ballots 12 overvoted.26823 blankvoted), 128224 registered voters, turnout 65.53%

Ellen Rosenblum 56637 99.01%
Write-in 567 0.99%

Total 57204 100.00%

Attorney General (lND) (Vote for 1)
4349 batlots l0 over voted. 3520 blank voted), 15191 registered voters, turnout 28.63%

Write-in 830 100.00%

Total 830 100.00%

Attorney General (REP) (Vote for 1)
46604 ballots (0 over voted. 21631 blank voted), 863¿t4 reg istered voters, tu rnout 53.97 o/o

Daniel Zene Crowe 24639 98.66%
Write-in 335 1.34%

Total 24974 100.00%

State Senator,l2th District (DEM) (Vote for 1)
1817 baltots (l over voted, 661 blank votedl, 2776 registered voters, turnout 65.45%

Ross Swartzendruber 1133 98.10%
Write-in 22 1.90%

Total 1155 100.00%

State Senator,l?th District (lND) (Vote for 1)
104 ballots (0 over voted. 86 blank voted), 399 registered voters, turnout 26.07%

Write-in 't8 100.000/.

Total 18 100.007o

State Senator,l2th District (REP) (Vote for l)
1488 ballots (0 over voted. 603 blank voted), 2672 registered voters, turnout 55.69%

Brian J Boquist 878 99.21o/o

Write-in 7 0.79%

Total 885 100.007o

State Senator, l4th District (DEM) (Vote for 1)
21882 ballots l0 over voted. 6861 blank voted). 33424 registered voters, turnout 65.47o/o

Mark Hass 14881 99.07o/o

Write-in 140 0.93%

Total 15021 100.00%

State Senator, l4th District (lND) (Vote for 1)
962 ballots (0 over voted, 809 blank votedì, 3480 registered voters, turnout 27.64%

Write-in 1g 100.00o/o

Resolution 2016-033, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 4 of 16

18



Statement of Votes Cast
May 17,2016 Primary Election

All Precincts, Washington, All Contests
Official Final

Total Ballots Cast: 148689. istered Voters 305326. Overall Turnout: 48.70%

Chaico Votes Vote o/o

Total 154 100.00%

State Senator,l4th District (REP) (Vote for 1)

9927 ballots (0 over voted. 9471 blank voted). 18765 registered voters, turnout 52.90%

Write-in 456 100.00%

Total 456 100.00%

State Senator, 18th District (DEM) (Vote for 1)

10134 bal lots l0 over voted. 3438 blank votedl. 1501 5 registered voters, turnout 67.49o/o

Ginny Burdick 6622 98.89%

Total 6696 100.00%

State Senator, lSth District (lND) (Vote for 1)

520 baflots (0 over voted, 434 blank votedl, 1778 registered voters, turnout 29.25o/o

Writejn 86 100.00%

Total 86 100.00%

State Senator, lSth District (REP) (Vote for 1)

5369 l0 over voted. 5197 blank voted), 9759 istered voters, turnout 55.02o/o

17) 1rìô nne/^

Total 172 '100.0070

Page:4
201 6-06-03

09:26:38

State
1817

Representative, 24th District (DEM) (Vote for 1)

l0 over voted. 648 blank voted), 2776 istered voters, turnout 65.45%

Ken Moore 1148 98-2ïo/o

Write-in 21 1.80%

Total 1169 100.00%

State Representative, 24th District (lND) (Vote for l)
104 ballots f0 over voted. 84 blank voted). 399 registered voters, turnout 26.07%

Write-in 29 -199ß0%.
Total 20 100.00%

State Representative, 24th District (REP) (Vote for 1)
voters, turnout 55.69%tÁ88 ballots f0 vnta¡l 6'10 hlenk votadì. 2672 reoistered

Ron Noble 859 98.857o

Total 869 100.00%

State Representative, 25th District (DEM) (Vote for 1)

0 ballots over voted. 0 blank voted). 2 reqistered voters , turnout 0.00%

Sharon P Freeman
Write-in

0
o

Total 0

State Representative, 25th District (lND) (Vote for 1)

0 ballots over voted. 0 blank voted)
Write-in

Total 0

State Representat¡ve, 25th District (REP) (Vote for 1)

0 ballots l0 over voted, 0 blank voted)
Bill Post
Write-in

0

0Total

Resolution 2016-033, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 5 of 16

19



Statement of Votes Cast
May 17 ,2016 Primary Election

All Precincts, Washington, All Contests
Official Final

Ballots Cast: 148689. Reoistered Voters: 305326. Overall Turnout: 48.70o/o

Votes Vote %

Page: 5
2016-06-03

09:26:38

Total

Choice

State Representative, 26th District (DEM) (Vote for 1)
6926 ballots l0 overvoted.245l blank votedl. 10675

Total 4475 100.00%

State Representative, 26th District (lND) (Vote for l)
473 ballots t0 voted- 354 blank votedl. 1566 req istered voters, turnout 30.20%over

Write-in 1'19 100.00%

Total 119 100.00%

State Representative, 26th District (REP) (Vote for 1)
6042 ballots 14 over voted. 847 blank voted), f0728 red voters, turnout 56.320/o

State Representative, 28th District (DEM) (Vote for I
9616 ballots l0 over voted. 3406 blank voted), 15426

registered voters, turnout 64.88%

)
registered voters, turnout 62.34%

Patrick J Whewell
Ray M Lister

John M Boylston
Matt Wingard
A Richard Vial

Gary M Carlson
Daniel Martin
Alton R Mozingo ll

1087 24.29%
3343 74.70%

't235
't 376
2559

21

23.790/o

26.510h
49.30%

Total 5191 100.007o

State Representat¡ve, 27th District (DEM) (Vote for 1)
12266 ballots 11 overvoted.3593 blank voted). 17998 registered voters, turnout 68.15%

Darin Campbell 1003 11.57%
Sheri Malstrom 7625 87.93o/s

Write-in 44 0.517o

Total 8672 100.00%

State Representative, 27th District (lND) (Vote for l)
504 f0 over voted 427 blank votedl- 1782¡eøistered voters, turnout 28.28%

Writc-in 7A 100.00o/o

ïotal 78 100.00%

State Representative, 27th District (REP) (Vote for 1)

5288 ballots l0 over'voted. 5136 blank voted), 9672 red voters, turnout 54.67%
Write-in 152 100.00%

Total 152 100.00%

Jeff Barker 61 31 98.73%

Total 6210 100.00%

State Representat¡ve, 28th District (lND) (Vote for 1)

458 ballots lO awar vnfa¡l 3ß2 k rrala¡ll 1 698 raniclara¡f voters, turnout 2637%
Write-in 96 100.00%

Total 96 100.00o/o

State Representat¡ve,28th District (REP) (Vote for 1)
4639 ballots l0 over voted. 1546 blank votedì. 9093

2083
616
362

at

6735%
19.92%
11.70o/o

^20/-
Total 3093 '100.00%

istered voters, turnout 51.02%

Resolution 2016-033, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 6 of 16

20



Statement of Votes Cast
May 17,2016 Primary Election

All Precincts, Washington, All Contests
Official Final

Cast: 148689. Reoistered Voters: 305326. OverallTurnout: 48.70%

State Representative, 32nd District (DEM) (Vote for 1)
l4ßl hallofs lO voted 528 blank vafadì 2131 raaia0ara¡l

Deborah Boone 939 98.53%
Wrile-in 14 1.47o/o

Total 953 100.00%

Page: 6
2016-06-03

09:26:38

allots

Choice Votes Vote %

State Representative, 29th District (DEM) (Vote for 1)
7504 ballots l0 over voted. 2288 blank votedl. 12076 registered voters, lurnout 62.14%

Susan McLain 5147 98.68%
Write-in 69 1.32%

Total 5216 100.00%

State Representative, 29th District (lND) (Vote for l)
470 ballots (0 over voted, 354 blank voted), 1535 registered voters, turnout 30.62%

Write-in 116 100.00%

Total 'l 16 100.00%

State Representative, 29th District (REP) (Vote for l)
4700 ballots (0 overvoted, 1967 blank voted), 8517 registered voters, turnout 55.18%

Juanita Lint 2701 98.83%
1.1

Total 2733 100.00%

State Representative, 30th District (DEM) (Vote for 1)
9206 ballots l0 over voted. 3263 blank votedì. 14527 registered voters, turnout 63.37 olo

Janeen Sollman 5888 99.07%
Write-in 55 0.93%

Total 5943 100.00%

State Representative, 30th District (lND) (Vote for 1)

521 ballots f0 over voted. 417 blank voted). f 893 reqistered voters, turnout 27.52Yo

Write-in 104 100.00%

Total 104 100.0070

State Representat¡ve, 30th District (REP) (Vote for 1)

5176 ballots (0 over voted. f 974 blank voted). 10050 registered voters, turnout 51 .50%

Dan Mason 3169 98.97Yo

Total 3202 100.00%

State Representat¡ve, 31st District (DEM) (Vote for 1)
1392 ballots (0 over voted. 559 blank voted), 21 86 registered voters, turnout 63.68%

Brad Witt 821 98.56%
W¡ite-in 12 1.44o/o

Total 833 100.00%

State Representat¡ve, 3lst District (lND) (Vote for l)
9l balfots (0 over voted, 75 blank voted), 276 registered voters, turnout 32.97%

Write-in '16 100.00%

Total 16 100.00%

State Representat¡ve, 31st District (REP) (Vote for 1)
1061 ballots (0 overvoted. 1002 blank voted), 1944 stered voters, turnout 54.58o/o

Write-in 59 100.o00/"

59 100.00%

Total

Total

R

voters, turnout 69.50%

Resolution 2016-033, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 7 of 16

21



Statement of Votes Cast
May 17,2016 Primary Election

All Precincts, Washington, All Contests
Officíal Final

Total Ballots Cast: 148689. stered Voters: 305326. Overall Turnout: 48.70%

Choiee Votas Vote o/"

State Representative, 32nd District (lND) (Vote for 1)
109 ballots l0 over voted. 92 blank voted). 291 registered voters, turnout 37.46Yo

Write-in 17 100.00%

Total 17 100.00%

State Representative, 32nd District (REP) (Vote for 1)

1487 ballots (0 over voted. 687 blank votedl, 2481 registered voters, turnout 59.94o/o

Bruce L Bobek 793 99.12o/o

Total 800 100.00%

State Representative, 33rd District (DEM) (Vote for 1

8031 bal ll over voted. 2581 blank votedl. 11923

Page: 7
2016-06-03

09:26:38

Mitch Greenlick 5397 99.05%

Total 5/.49 100.00%

State Representative, 33rd District (lND) (Vote for 1)

397 ballots (0 over voted, 330 blank votedì, 1333 reg
Write-in 67 100.00%

Total 67 100.00%

istered voters, turnout 29.78%

State Representative, 33rd District (REP) (Vote for l)
4194 ballots ll over voted. lg89 blank voted), 7765 registered voters, turnout 54'01o/o

John Verbeek 2288 99.26%

Total 2305 100.0070

State Representative, 34th District (DEM) (Vote for 1)

I 1609 ballots (0 over voted. 4305 blank voted), 17243 registered voters, turnout 67.33%

Ken Helm 7240 99.'l2o/o

Write-in 64 0.88%

Total 7304 100.00%

State Representative, 34th District (lND) (Vote for l)
465 ballots l0 voted. l8l blank votedì. 1729 reqistered voters, turnout 26.89%over

Donald E Hershiser 248 87.32%
Write-in 36 12.68%

Total 284 100.00%

State Representative, 34th District (REP) (Vote for 1)

4543 bal l0 over voted. 4282 blank voted). 8606 registered voters, turnout 52.79o/o

Total 261 100.00%

State Representative, 35th District (DEM) (Vote for I
'lOl14 hellnfc fO over wofad hlank vnfo¡lì l SOl3473

Margaret Doherty 6578 98.75o/o

Write-in 83 1.25%

Total 6661 100.00%

State Representative, 35th District (lND) (Vote for l)
520 ballots IO voted- 234blank votedl. 1778 reo¡over

Jessica L Cousineau 254 B8.81Yo

Write'in 32 11.19%

Total 286 100.00%

)

registered voters, turnout 67.36%

)
5 registered votersr turnout 67.49o/o

istered voters, turnout 29.25%

Resolution 2016-033, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 8 of 16

22



Statement of Votes Cast
May 17,2016 Primary Election

All Precincts, Washington, All Contests
Official Final

Tnfal Rallnts Cast' 1 48689 \/nfprc: 305326 Overall rrrnout: 48.70o/oT

Chrlice Vafae Vnfa o/^

State Representat¡ve, 35th District (REP) (Vote for 1)
5369 ballots l0 over voted. 5001 blank voted), 9759 voters, turnout 55.02o/o

Write-in 368 100.00%

Total 368 100.00%

State Representative, 37th District (DEM) (Vote for 1)
AO47 lO nvar voted 1398 blank vofedì- 6246 reo istered voters, turnout 64.79Vo

Paul Southwick 2620 98.91%

Total 2649 100.00%

State Representat¡ve, 37th District (lND) (Vote for 1)
237 ballots l0 over voted. 189 blank votedl. 9l I reqistered voters, turnout 26.02%

Write-in 48 100.007o

Total 48 100.00%

State Representat¡ve, 37th District (REP) (Vote for l)
2617 baliots (0 over voted. 818 blank votedl, 5057 registered voters, turnout 51-75%

Julie Parrish 1785 99.221o
Wrif*in 14 0.78%

Total 1799 100.00%

Judge of th'e Supreme Gourt, Position 4 (Vote for 1)
registered voters, turnout 48.65%148547 ba (2 over voted. 66913 blank voted). 305326

Rives Kistler 80560 98.68%
Write-in 1075 1.32olo

Total 81635 100.00%

Judge of the Supreme Court, Position 5 (Vote for l)
1485=47 ballots (i over voted, 67380 blank votedl, 305326 registered voters, turnout 48.65%

Jack L Landau 80195 98.80%

Total 81167 100.00%

Judge of the Court of Appeals, Fosition 2 (Vote for 1)
registered voters, turnout 48.65%148547 ll over voted. 67335 blank voted). 305326

Rebecca Duncan 80303 98.88%

Write-in 91 1 1.12%

Total 81214 100.00%

Judge of the Court of Appeals, Position 3 (Vote for 1)

148547 ballots 11 over voted. 65240 blank voted), 305326 registered voters, turnout 48.65%

Darleen Ortega 82414 98.937o
Write'in 895 1.07%

Total 83309 100.00%

Judge of the Gourt of Appeals, Position 7 (Vote for 1)

148547 ballots (3 over voted. 65729 blank voted), 305326 registered voters, turnout 48.65%

Meagan A Flynn 81964 98.97%
Write-in 854 1.03%

Total 82818 100.00%

Judge of the Circuit Court, 20th District, Position I (Vote for l)
148547 ballots (19 over voted. 50566 blank votedl, 305326 registered voters, turnout 48.650/o

Page: B
2016-06-03

09:26:38

Ted Sims
Tim Marble
Write-in

62286
351 65

514

63.58%
35.90%

O.52o/"

Resolution 2016-033, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 9 of 16

23



Statement of Votes Cast
May 17,2016 Primary Election

All Precincts, Washington, All Contests
Official Final

Total Ballots Cast: 148689. Reqistered Voters: 305326, OverallTurnout: 4B.70Yo

Choice Votes Vote %

Total 97965 100.00%

Judge of the Circuit Court, 20th District, Position 4 (Vote for 1)
148547 ballots (2 over voted, 68211 blank voted), 305326 registered voters, turnout 48.65%

Eric Butterfield 79387 98.82%
Write-in 950 1.18o/o

Total 80337 100.00%

Judge of the Gircuit Court, 20th District, Position l0 (Vote for 1)
148547 ballots (1 over voted. 65747 blank voted), 305326 registered voters, turnout 48.65%

Suzanne Upton 81835 98.83%
Writein 967 1.17%

Total 82802 100.00%

Washington County Commissioner District I (Vote for 1)
3471 1 ballots (0 over voted. 14672 blank votedì, 74751 registered voters, turnout 46,44%

Dick Schouten '19725 98.43%
Write-in 315 1.57%

Total 20040 100.00%

Washington County Commissioner District 3 (Vote for l)
40357 ballots (6 over voted. 9881 blank votedì. 79744 registered voters, turnout 50.61 %

Roy Rogers 20930 68.69%
Glendora Claybrooks 9412 30.89%
Wrtle-in 129 0.42%

Total 30471 100.007o

Washington County Sheriff (Vote for 1)
148547 ballots (2 over voted. 5795f blank votedl. 305326 registered voters, turnout 48.65%

Pat Ganett 89265 98.537o
Write-in 1332 1.47o/o

Total 90597 100.007o

Justice of the Peace (Vote for l)
126483 ballots (6 over voted. 50420 blank voted), 256875 registered voters, turnout 49.24o/.

Dan Cross 46570 61.230/o

Kevin Kelley 28885 37.98%
Write-in 605 0.80%

Total 76060 100.00%

City of Beaverton Mayor (Vote for 1)
24507 ballots (0 over voted. 8460 blank voted). 49710 registered voters, turnout 49.30%

Denny Doyle 15572 97.030/.
Write-in 476 2.97o/o

Total 16048 100.00%

City of Beaverton Council Pos 3 (Vote for 1)
24507 ballots l0 overvoted. 10467 blank votedl.49710 registered voters, turnout 49.30%

Mark Fagin 13839 98.56%
Write-in 202 1.44o/o

Total 14041 100.00%

City of Beaverton Council Pos 4 (Vote for l)
24507 ballots l0 over voted. 10556 blank voted). 4971O re

Page: 9
2016-06-03

09:26:38

Cate Amold
Write-in

1 3760
192

98.62%
'1.38o/"

Total 13952 't00.00%

gistered voters, turnout 49.30o/o

Resolution 2016-033, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 10 of 16

24



Statement of Votes Cast
May 17,2016 Primary Election

All Precincts, Washington, All Contests
Official Final

Total Ballots Cast: 148689. Reqistered Voters: 305326. OverallTurnout: 48.70%

Choice Votes Vote o/"

City of Portland Mayor (Vote for 1)
/.60 h¡llafe lO nwar walad 76 blank votedl- 890 reoistered voters, turnout 52.70%

Bruce Broussard 18 4.58%
Pafty Burkett 10 2.54o/o

Jules Bailey 59 15.01o/o

Ted Wheeler 245 62.U%
EricACalhoun 1 0.25o/o

Bim Ditson 2 0.51%
Sean Davis I 2.04o/o

David Schor 4 1.02Vo

Jessie Sponberg 4 1.02%
Sarah lannarone 21 5.34o/o

David Ackerman 7 1.78%
Lew Humble 1 0.25Yo
Deborah Hanis 3 0.76o/o

Trevor Manning 3 0.76%
Steven J Entwisle Sr 1 0.25%
Write-in 6 1.53%

Total 393 100.00%

City of Portland Commissioner, Pos I (Vote for 1)
469 ballots (0 over voted. 133 blank votedl, 890 registered voters, turnout 52.70%

Lanita Duke 16 4.760/o

Amanda Fritz 235 69.94%
Ann Sanderson 36 10.71o/o

Tabitha lvan 16 4.76%
Sara Long 14 4.17o/o

David Monison 16 4.760/0

3

Total 336 100.00%

City of Portland Commissioner, Pos 4 (Vote for 1)
469 ballots (0 over voted, 135 btank votedì. 890 registered voters, turnout 52.70%

Michael W Dunow 20 5.99%
Leah Marie Dumas 12 3.59%
Steve Novick '152 45.51o/o

Suzanne Stahl 36 10.78%
Fred Stewart 12 3.59%
Joseph Puckett 4 1.20%
James Bernard Lee 6 1.80%
Chloe Eudaly 28 8.38%
Shannon Estabrook 7 2.10%
Stuart Emmons 55 16.470/o

Write-in 2 0.60%

Total 334 100.00%

Metro Councilor, 3rd District (Vote for 1)
68404 ballots (3 overvoted.2538l blank voted), 137916 registered voters, turnout 49.60%

Genitt Rosenthal 19653 45.68%
Craig Dirksen 23003 53.471o
Write-in 366 0.85%

Total 43022 100.00%

Metro Councilor, 5th District (Vote for l)
3691 ballots l0 over voted. 1662 blank voted). 6662

Page:10
2016-06-03

09:26:38

Colby Clipston
Sam Chase

540
1460

26.61%
71.96%

Total 2029 100.00%

stered voters, turnout 55.40%

Resolution 2016-033, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 11 of 16

25



Statement of Votes Cast
May 17,2016 Primary Election

All Precincts, Washington, All Contests
Official Final

Total Ballots Cast: 148689, Reoistered Voters: 305326. OverallTurnout: 48.70%

Choice Votes Vote o/o

34-243 WA Go 911 GOB (Vote for l)
148547 ballots (8 over voted, 21000 blank voted), 305326 registered voters, turnout 48.65%

Yes 95580 74.94Yo
No 31959 25.067o

Total 127539 100.00%

34-245 Banks City LOT (Vote for 1)
396 ballots (1 over voted, 33 blank voted), 920 registered voters, turnout 43.04Yo

Yes 269 74.31o/o

No 93 25.69%

Total 362 100.00%

34-244 Sherwood City Charter (Vote for 1)
5367 ballots (1 over voted. 486 blank voted). 10739 registered voters, turnout 49.98%

Yes 2973 60.91%
No 1908 39.09%

Total 4881 100.00%

26-173 PDX Fuel Tax (Vote for 1)
469 ballots 11 over voted. 34 blank votedì. 890 reqistered voters, tu rnout 52.7 Oolo

Yes 228 52.53Yo
No 206 47.47o/o

Total 434 100.00%

34-246 Gaston SD GOB (Vote for 1)
805 batlots (0 over voted, 40 blank voted), 1456 registered voters, turnout 55.29o/o

Yes 416
34g

Total 765 100.00%

Page: 1 1

2016-06-03
09:26:38

No
54.38%
45 620/"

do

DitüofAEd
Clott tu
{ú¡oÞr

Date:

Resolution 2016-033, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 12 of 16

26



Statement of Ballots Cast
May 17,2016 Primary Election

All Precincts, Washington, All Contests
Official Final

Page: 1

2016-06-03
08:43:09

Total Ballots Cast: 148689. Voters: 305326, Overall Turnout: 48.70o/o

Precinct Ballots Reg. Turnout
Gast Voters Pct.

Precinct 301 928 1699 54.620/o

Precinct 302 1005 2301 43.68%
Precinct 303 441 972 45.37o/o

Precinct 304 1314 2915 45.08o/o

Precinct 305 396 920 43.04%
Precinct 306 319 663 48.11%
Precinct 307 876 1745 50.20o/o

Precinct 308 76 164 46.340/0

Precinct 309 1575 3244 48.55o/o

Precinct 310 877 1622 54.07%
Precinct 31 1 360 650 55.38%
Precinct3l2 408 760 53.68%
Precinct3l3 3 6 50.00%
Precinct 314 173 31 1 55.63%
Precinct3lS 543 958 56.68%
Precinct 316 424 773 54.851o
Precinct 317 467 977 47.80%
Precinct 318 1429 2896 49.34%
Precinct 319 2878 6720 42.831o
Precinct 320 1194 2854 41.84%
Precinct 321 163 312 52.24%
Precincl322 121 252 48.02o/o

Precinct 323 12 20 60.00%
Precinct 324 273 470 58.09%
Precinct32S 3 3100.00%
Precinct 326 942 1826 51.59o/o

Precinct 327 1610 3715 43.U%
Precinct 328 990 1980 50.00%
Precinct 329 3568 74OS 48.'l8o/o

Precinct 330 609 1409 43.221o

Precinct 331 1002 24Og 41.59%
Precinct 332 1018 27Og 37.58%
Precinct 333 1459 3830 38.09%
Precinct 334 87 148 58.78o/o

Precinct 335 2282 4567 49.97Vo

Precinct 336 1369 2876 47 .600/o

Precinct 337 1779 4219 42.17%
Precinct 338 1908 4804 39.72Yo

Precinct 339 2445 5664 43.17o/o

Precinct 340 3143 6147 51.13o/o

Precinct 341 181 333 54.35%
Precinct 342 34 60 56.67%
Precinct 343 2157 4604 46.85%
Precinct 344 1959 4415 44.37%
Precinct 345 7 25 28.OO%

Precinct 346 164 289 56.75%
Precinct 347 35 64 U.69%
Precinct 348 18 28 64.29Yo

Precinct 349 1167 2760 42.28Vo

Precinct 350 1617 3246 49.82o/o

Precinct 351 1095 2750 39.82%
Precinct 352 388 933 41.59%
Precinct 353 1096 2126 51.55o/o

Precinct 354 2173 3898 55.75%
Precinct355 1543 3226 47.83%
Precinct 356 860 1883 45.670/o

Precinct 357 739 1574 46.950/0

Precinct 358 1328 2753 48.24o/o

Precinct 359 1137 2536 44.83%
Precinct 360 1310 3124 41 .93%
Precinct 361 787 1884 41 .77%
Precinct 362 2016 3694 54.57o/o

Precinct 363 1807 3518 51.36%
Prec¡nct 364 2277 4412 51 .610/0

Precinct 365 1668 2945 56.64%

Resolution 2016-033, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 13 of 16

27



Siatement of Ballots Cast
May 17,2016 Primary Election

All Precincts, Washington, All Contests
Official Final

Page: 2
2016-06-03

08:43:09

Total Ballots Cast: 148689. istered Voters: 305326. Overall Turnout: 48.70%

Precinct Ballots
Cast

Reg. Turnout
Voters Pct.

Precinct 366
Precinct 367
Precinct 368
Precinct 369
Precinct 370
Precinct 371
Precinct 372
Precinct 373
Precinct 374
Precinct 375
Precinct 376
Precinct 377
Precinct 378
Precinct 379
Precinct 380
Precinct 381
Precinct 382
Precinct 383
Precinct 384
Precinct 385
Precinct 386
Precinct 387
Precinct 388
Precinct 389
Precinct 390
Precinct 391
Precinct 392
Precinct 393
Precinct 394
Precinct 395
Precinct 396
Precinct 397
Precinct 398
Precinct 399
Precinct 400
Precinct 401
Precinct 402
Precinct 403
Precinct 404
Precinct 405
Precinct 406
Precinct 407
Precinct 408
Precinct 409
Precinct 410
Precinct 411
Precincf4l2
Precinct 413
Precincf 414
Precinct 415
Precinct 416
Precinct 417
Precinct 418
Precinct 419
Precinct 420
Precincl42l
Precincl422
Precinct 423
Precincl424
Precincl 425
Precincf426
Precincl42T
Precinct 428
Precinct 429
Precinct 430

51.33%
43.56%
45.31%
48.75o/o

51.72%
52.59%
60.13%
57.96%
46.67%
56.41o/o

50.03%
53.50%
53.56%
48.52o/o

53.46%
55.45%
37.31%
58.49o/o

59.28%
57.53Yo
61.75%
42.52o/o
5s.64%
49.22o/o

53.49o/o

47.81o/o
52.94o/o

59.53%
41.46%
44.73o/o

52.37o/o

50.760/0

52.86%
s2.il%
48.15%
60.Mo/o
50.05%
44.160/0

50.08%
55.65%
43.33o/"
59.il%
41.00%
47.35o/o
47jjVo
53.70%
46.22%
39.56%
43.490/o
76.32o/o

47.060/"
51.760/.
49.86"/o
72.13V"
47.82%
40.13%
41.67%
46.06%
50.45%
50.97%
53.74%
34.48%
44.40%
42.14%
56.72%

1 156
1685
1773
933

1 158
'1207

1074
182

7
154
989

1255
993

3372
3568

56
873
651

1869
1433
1771
455
501

2888
1 156

164
108
384
102

2986
508

1299
877

1208
1692
1091
3687

616
2898
4282

19s
1036

41
2224
1427

29
887
413
267
361

16
707

1034
1255
1669

122
10

1524
2234

523
237

10
694

1219
747

2252
3868
391 3
1914
2239
2295
1786
314

15
273

1977
23r',6
18'il
6949
6674

101
2340
1113
31 53
2491
2868
1070
934

5867
2161

343
204
645
246

6676
970

2559
1659
2299
3514
1799
7366
1395
5787
7695

450
1737

100
4697
3030

54
r 919
1044
614
473
34

1 366
2074
1740
3490

304
24

3309
4428
1026
441
29

1 563
2893
1317

Resolution 2016-033, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 14 of 16

28



Statement of Ballots Cast
May 17,2016 Primary Election

All Precincts, Washington, All Contests
Official Final

Total Ballots Cast: 148689. Reqistered Voters: 305326, OverallTurnout: 48.70%

Precinct Ballots Reg. Turnout
ê¡cl Vafarc Þnf

Precinct 43í 753 1379 54.60%
Precinct 432 118 321 36.76%
Precinct 433 1082 2230 48.52%
Precinct434 1738 3768 46.13%
Precinct 435 2059 3962 51.97%
Precinct 436 1026 2206 46.510/"
Precinct 437 37 55 67.27%
Precinct43S 118 270 43.70%
Precinct 439 145 327 44.U%
Precinct44O 522 1318 39.61%
Precinct 441 40 66 60.61%
Precinct 442 1077 2349 45.85o/o

All Precincts 148689 305326 48.70%

Total 305326 48.70%

Dúc:

Page: 3
2016-06-03

0B:43:09

Resolution 2016-033, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 15 of 16

29



Statement of Votes Cast by Contests
May 17,20'16 Primary Election

All Precincts, All Districts, All Contests
Official Final

Total Ballots Cast: 148689. Reoi stered Voters: 305326 Overall Tr rrnnr rf ' 4A 7Oo/^

Page: 189
2016-06-03

10:23:55

Precinct Ballots
Cast

Reg Total
Votes

Yes

34-244 Sherwood Gity Charter (Vote for 1)
No Under

Votes
Over

Voted
Ballots

Voters

Precinct 424
Precinct 435

Total

2232
2059

4428
3962

2027
1 867

1234
1132

60.88%
60.63%

793 39.12%
735 39.37%

0
0

206
192

486

City of Sherwood

JUN - 9 20ffi

Recorder's Office

1

5367 2349 4BB1 2973 60.91% 1908 39.09%

,.-i',

Resolution 2016-033, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 16 of 16

30



 

Resolution 2016-034, Staff Report 
June 21, 2016 
Page 1 of 1 

City Council Meeting Date: June 21, 2016 

 

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 

 

 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 

 

FROM: Craig Sheldon, Public Works Director 

Through: Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager 

 

SUBJECT: Resolution 2016-034, Authorizing the City Manager to Enter Into a Contract 
with Blackline, Inc. for the 2016 Slurry Seal Program 

 

 

Issue: 
Shall the City Council authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Blackline, Inc. for the 
2016 Slurry Seal Program? 
 
Background: 
The City has a responsibility to maintain our public infrastructure and to perform preventative 
maintenance work to prolong the quality of our streets. 
 
The City of Sherwood contacted the City of Hillsboro to combine our efforts for Slurry Seal. The 
City of Hillsboro included language for Sherwood to use their RFP. By allowing the City of 
Sherwood to use their RFP process, the City of Hillsboro enables us to save time and money not 
having to go through the procurement process.  
 
The roads selected are prioritized in our Pavement Management System which was updated in 
January 2014. The system is updated every three years. 
 
Financial Impacts: 
The cost to complete the work is $183,638. Staff recommends adding 10% contingency 
($18,363.80) for a total amount not to exceed $202,001.80. These funds are covered in the 
FY2015-16 street budget. 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff respectfully recommends City Council approval of Resolution 2016-034, authorizing the City 
Manager to enter into a contract with Blackline, Inc. for the 2016 Slurry Seal Program. 

 

 

31



DRAFT 

Resolution 2016-034 
June 21, 2016 
Page 1 of 1, with Exhibit A (3 pgs) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION 2016-034 

 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH BLACKLINE, 

INC. FOR THE 2016 SLURRY SEAL PROGRAM 
 
WHEREAS, the City has a responsibility to maintain the City’s infrastructure; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City partnered with the City of Hillsboro to include Sherwood’s 2016 Slurry Seal 
program in their RFP for the same services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the RFP process identified Blackline, Inc. as the lowest responsible bidder.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Blackline, Inc. 

in an amount not to exceed $202,001.80 for the 2016 Slurry Seal Program. 
 
Section 2. Subject to the limitations of local and state contracting rules, the City Manager is 

hereby authorized to execute contract change orders for a total amount not to 
exceed 10% of the original award ($183,638.00). 

 
Section 3. This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption.  
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 21st of June, 2016. 
 
 
        ______________________ 
        Krisanna Clark, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 

32



Resolution 2016-034, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 1 of 3

33



Resolution 2016-034, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 2 of 3

34



Resolution 2016-034, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 3 of 3

35



 

Resolution 2016-035, Staff Report 
June 21, 2016 
Page 1 of 1 

City Council Meeting Date: June 21, 2016 
 

 Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Cathy Brucker, Interim Finance Director  
Through: Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution 2016-035, Certifying the Provision of Certain Municipal 

Services in Order to Qualify the City to Receive State Revenues 
 

 
Issue: 
Should the City certify to the State of Oregon that the City of Sherwood provides sufficient 

services to be eligible to receive state revenues? 

 
Background: 
The State of Oregon distributes a portion of Cigarette, Liquor taxes and Highway 
Apportionment Fees to eligible municipalities. One of the requirements of state law under 
ORS 221.760 is that our city provides four or more of the following municipal services to be 
eligible to receive these revenues: 

 Police protection 

 Fire protection 

 Street construction, maintenance and lighting 

 Sanitary sewers 

 Storm sewers 

 Planning, zoning and subdivision control 

 One or more utility services 
 
The City of Sherwood does meet this requirement and this resolution provides the required 
certification to the State of Oregon. 
 
Financials: 
The allocation of this revenue is based on population. In Sherwood’s case this amounts to 
$306,700 in FY2016-17 General Fund revenue and $1,070,000 in FY2016-17 Street Fund 
revenue. 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff respectfully recommends City Council adoption of Resolution 2016-035 certifying the 
provision of certain municipal services in order to qualify the City to receive State revenues.  
 
 

36



DRAFT 

Resolution 2016-035 
June 21, 2016 
Page 1 of 1 

      
 

RESOLUTION 2016-035 
 
CERTIFYING THE PROVISION OF CERTAIN MUNICIPAL SERVICES IN ORDER TO 

QUALIFY THE CITY TO RECEIVE STATE REVENUES 
 

WHEREAS, Oregon Revised Statute 221.760, provides for Oregon municipalities to 
receive state revenues from cigarette and liquor taxes and highway apportionment fees 
if they certify that they meet eligibility requirements; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes the desirability of assisting the state officer 
responsible for determining the eligibility of cities to receive such funds in accordance 
with ORS 221.760. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1: It is hereby certified that the City of Sherwood provides the following 

municipal services: 
  

Police Protection 
Street Construction, Maintenance, and Lighting 
Sanitary Sewer 
Storm Sewers 
Planning, Zoning, and Subdivision Control 
Water Utility 
 

Section 2:  This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 21st day of June 2016. 
 

    
        _______________________ 
        Krisanna Clark, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
____________________________ 
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 

37



 

Resolution 2016-036, Staff Report 
June 21, 2016 
Page 1 of 1 

City Council Meeting Date: June 21, 2016 
 

 Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 

FROM: Julia Hajduk, Community Development Director 
 

Through: Josh Soper, City Attorney 
Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager 

 

SUBJECT:     Resolution 2016-036 Authorizing the City Manager to execute a construction 
contract for the Woodhaven Park construction 

 
 

 

Issue:  
Should the City Council authorize the City Manager to execute a construction contract with the lowest 
responsive and responsible bidder from a June 2, 2016 bid opening for the construction of Woodhaven 
Park? 
 
Background:  
The City has been working for over a year on the design of the second phase of Woodhaven Park. A 
Neighborhood/Open House was held in April 2015 and in May 2015 the final design was selected and 
endorsed by the Parks Board.  On September 14, 2015, the development of the park was approved 
through the Planning Department and the consultant proceeded with developing the construction 
drawing in order to bid the project.  The Project went out for bid on May 2, 2016 and the bids were 
opened on June 2, 2016.  The lowest responsive and responsible bidder was Paul Brothers 
Construction.  While this company was the lowest bid, the bids were over the budgeted amount. City staff 
went back through the construction drawings and bid package to identify elements that could be removed 
or modified that would not impact the overall park amenities.  The contract amount to be entered into with 
Paul Brothers will be negotiated so that it does not exceed the budgeted amount. 
 
City staff expects the work to begin around July 5, 2016 and to be completed by the middle of October, 
2016.  Construction will be contained to city property.  City staff will be providing notification to area 
residents in advance of the work. 
 
Staff requests that Sherwood City Council approve a resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute 
a construction contract with Paul Brothers for a total construction amount, not to exceed $746,107 
including contingency. 
 
Financial Impacts:  
The City budgeted for the construction of this project within the FY2015-16 budget with carryover into  
FY2016-17. With modifications to the design as discussed above, the construction project will be within 
the budgeted amount. 
 
Recommendation:  
Staff respectfully recommends adoption of Resolution 2016-036, authorizing the City Manager to execute 
a construction contract for the Woodhaven Park construction. 

38



DRAFT 

Resolution 2016-036   
June 21, 2016 
Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2016-036 
 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT  
FOR THE WOODHAVEN PARK CONSTRUCTION 

 

WHEREAS, the City began the design of Woodhaven Park Phase II in January 2015 and obtained land use 
approval for the project on September 14, 2015; and  
 

WHEREAS, subsequent to the land use approval, the City produced bid documents to solicit contractors for 
construction using a competitive bidding process meeting the requirements of local and state contracting 
statutes and rules (ORS 279C, OAR 137-049); and 
 

WHEREAS, the City opened bids on June 2, 2016 and identified Paul Brothers Construction as the lowest 
responsive and responsible bidder; and 
 
WHEREAS, a Notice of Intent to Award was issued and no protests were received within the seven (7) day 
protest period; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City budgeted for the construction of this project within the FY2015-16 budget with carryover 
into the FY2016-17 budget; and 
 

WHEREAS, all bids came in higher than the budgeted amount, therefore the City is refining the project budget 
and negotiating with Paul Brothers to ensure the project is able to be constructed within the project budget; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, City staff recommends City Council to authorize the City Manager to negotiate and execute a 
construction contract with the lowest responsive and responsible bidder from the June 2, 2016 bid opening 
(Paul Brothers) for a total amount not to exceed $746,107 including contingency. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1:  The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a construction contract with the lowest 
responsive and responsible bidder (Paul Brothers) for a total amount not to exceed $746,107 
including contingency, for the construction of Woodhaven Park. 

 

Section 2:   This Resolution shall be in effect upon its approval and adoption. 
 

Duly passed by the City Council this 21st day of June 2016. 
 
 
         _________________________ 

         Krisanna Clark, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 

      
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 

39





Resolution 2016-037, Staff Report 
June 21, 2016 
Page 1 of 2 

City Council Meeting Date: June 21, 2016 
 

 Agenda Item: New Business 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Cathy Brucker, Interim Finance Director 
Through: Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:     Resolution 2016-037, Adopting the Capital Improvement Plan for FY2016-17 
 

 
Issue: 

Should the City Council adopt the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for FY2016-17? 

 

Background: 

Many funding sources require a Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) to be adopted before funds can be 

spent. Having a CIP is a precursor to the expenditure of System Development Charges and revenue 

from sources outside the City of Sherwood. This staff report presents the FY2016-17 CIP Plan and 

the adopting resolution. 

 

This CIP Plan is only that: a plan. It is not a commitment nor does it obligate funds. It is a vision of 

projects that combines input from City Council, advisory committees and staff into one document. 

Annual revision is required to adjust the plan to changing priorities and circumstances. All of the 

projects planned for the next five years and their proposed timing are as follows. 

 

 
 

 

Transportation  Estimated Cost 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21

Langer Farms Parkway pedestrian crossing (construction) 135,500            89,737       -             -             -              -              

Oregon St. sidewalk infill 225,000            -             225,000      -             -              -              

Meinecke Road/Hwy 99W intersection improvements 5,000                5,000         -             -             -              -              

Edy Road/Borchers Road intersection (pre-design) 50,000              50,000       -             -             -              -              

Edy Road/Borchers Road intersection (construction) 2,000,000         -             -             -             500,000       1,500,000     

Oregon St. improvements (pre-design) 50,000              50,000       -             -             -              -              

Oregon St. improvements (construction) 6,155,000         -             -             500,000      5,655,000     -              

Sunset Boulevard/Pine St. intersection improvements 6,000                6,000         -             -             -              -              

City Transportation SDC and Rate Study 150,000            5,609         -             -             -              -              

Demolition of derelict house on City property 15,000              15,000       

Oregon St/Tonquin Rd intermediate improvements 42,000              42,000       -             -             -              -              

Oregon St @ Tonquin & Murdock improvements 2,624,000         -             500,000      -             2,124,000     -              

11,457,500$      263,346$    725,000$    500,000$    8,279,000$   1,500,000$   

Storm  Estimated Cost 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21

Columbia Street Water Quality Facility Phase II Const. 550,000            228,963      -             -             -              -              

Storm System Master Plan update 160,017            6,000         -             -             -              -              

Oregon St Regional Stormwater Facility (pre-design) 35,000              35,000       -             -             -              -              

2nd & Park St. Stormwater Facility rehab (design) 35,000              35,000       -             -             -              -              

Gleneagle Drive Storm Water Facility 120,000            -             120,000      -             -              -              

Gleneagle Village Storm Water Facility 120,000            -             120,000      -             -              -              

Glencoe Storm Water Facility 500,000            -             -             100,000      -              -              

Edy Road Storm Water Facility 285,000            -             -             -             285,000       -              

Saint Charles (North) Storm Water Facility 85,000              -             -             -             85,000         -              

Saint Charles (south) Storm Water Facility 95,000              -             -             -             95,000         -              

Murdock Road (South) Storm Water Facility 240,000            -             -             -             -              240,000       

West Division Storm Water Facility 150,000            -             -             -             -              150,000       

2,375,017$        304,963$    240,000$    100,000$    465,000$      390,000$      

City of Sherwood Five Year Capital Improvement Plan (FY17 Through FY21) 

40



Resolution 2016-037, Staff Report 
June 21, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Recommendation: 

Staff respectfully recommends City Council approval of Resolution 2016-037 adopting the Capital 

Improvement Plan for FY2016-17. 

Sanitary  Estimated Cost 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21

Sunset Blvd & Pine St. sewer extension 252,260            239,260      -             -             -              -              

Sanitary Sewer Master Plan update and SDC rate study 185,712            14,130       -             -             -              -              

Old Town mid-block sewer point repair 20,000              20,000       -             -             -              -              

Old Town laterals 40,000              -             -             -             -              40,000         

Washington Street sewer rehabilitation 52,750              -             -             52,750       -              -              

Gleneagle Drive sanitary sewer rehabilitation 49,850              -             49,850       -             -              -              

SW Schaumburg Dr/Division sanitary sewer rehabilitation 388,298            -             -             -             388,298       -              

Rock Creek Trunk Capacity upgrade Phase 1 and 2 1,200,000         -             -             -             -              1,200,000     

2,188,870$        273,390$    49,850$      52,750$      388,298$      1,240,000$   

Water  Estimated Cost 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21

Brookman expansion - SW Sherwood to Hwy 99 68,000              -             68,000       -             -              -              

WTP Master Plan with TVWD 70,000              15,000       

Update Resiliency plan 150,000            -             150,000      -             -              -              

Brookman expansion - Segment B 204,000            -             -             204,000      -              -              

Brookman expansion - Segment C 239,000            -             -             239,000      -              -              

TEA expansion-loop with Oregon St/Main - Segment A 154,000            -             -             154,000      -              -              

SW Sherwood PRV 150,000            -             -             150,000      -              -              

Upgrade water management and conservation plan 150,000            -             -             150,000      -              -              

TEA expansion-loop with Oregon St/Main - Segment B&C 702,000            -             -             -             702,000       -              

TEA expansion-loop with Oregon St/Main - Segment D-F 607,000            -             -             -             -              607,000       

2,494,000$        15,000$      218,000$    897,000$    702,000$      607,000$      

General Construction  Estimated Cost 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21

Cedar Creek Trail-Segment 8 & 9 design and construction 1,070,371         165,371      572,162      -             -              -              

Woodhaven Park construction 954,025            766,974      -             -             -              -              

Parks Master Plan and SDC Update 175,000            175,000      -             -             -              -              

Cedar Creek Trail - Segment 11 design and construction 2,738,000         -             -             500,000      -              -              

Cannery Square restroom installation 130,000            130,000      -             -             -              -              

Dog Park design - North of Hwy 99 12,000              12,000       -             -             -              -              

Skate Park design 12,000              12,000       -             -             -              -              

5,091,396$        1,261,345$ 572,162$    500,000$    -$             -$             

Total Annual Expenditures  $     23,606,783  $2,118,044  $1,805,012  $2,049,750  $  9,834,298  $  3,737,000 

41



DRAFT  

Resolution 2016-037 
June 21, 2016 
Page 1 of 1 with Exhibit A (202 pgs) 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2016-037 
 

ADOPTING THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT PLAN  
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016-17 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Sherwood Financial Policy IV-4 states that the City shall adopt a five-
year Capital Improvement Project Plan annually; and 
 
WHEREAS, the attached summary of the FY2016-17 Capital Improvement Project Plan 
represents capital improvement planning based on the current circumstances and priorities of 
the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, this Capital Improvement Project Plan was the basis for projects included in the 
FY2016-17 Approved budget. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.   That it hereby adopts the FY2016-17 Capital Improvement Project Plan attached 

hereto as Exhibit A.  
 
Section 2.   This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
Duly passed by the Sherwood City Council this 21st day of June 2016. 
 
 
            
   Krisanna Clark, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
            
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 

42



         CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

 

 

 

 

SHERWOOD CANNERY SQUARE AND  

SHERWOOD CENTER FOR THE ARTS 

 

FY 2016/17-2021/22 

JULY 1, 2016  

CITY OF SHERWOOD, OREGON 

  

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 1 of 202

43



 

City of Sherwood 
Capital Improvement Plan i 5/31/2016 

 

City of Sherwood, Oregon 
22560 SW Pine Street 
Sherwood, OR 97140 

 

Capital Improvement Plan 
 

Fiscal Year 2016-2017 
 
 
 

City Council 
 
 Mayor        Krisanna Clark 
 Council President      Jennifer Harris 
 Council Member      Renee Brouse 
 Council Member      Linda Henderson 
 Council Member      Dan King 
 Council Member      Jennifer Kuiper 
 Council Member      Sally Robinson 
 
 
 
 

City Senior Leadership 
 
 City Manager       Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM 

 Assistant City Manager     Thomas Pessemier, P.E. 
 Finance Director, Interim     Cathy Brucker  
 Public Works Director      Craig Sheldon 
 Community Development Director    Julia Hajduk 
 Community Services Director     Kristen Switzer 
 City Engineer       Robert Galati, P.E. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 2 of 202

44



 

City of Sherwood 
Capital Improvement Plan ii 5/31/2016 

TABLE OF CONTENTS             ii-viii 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ES1 – ES4 

SECTION A - ONE-YEAR CAPITAL PROJECTS LIST A1 – A4 

SECTION B - FIVE-YEAR CAPITAL PROJECTS LIST B1 – B3 

SECTION C - COMPLETE LISTING OF ALL CAPITAL PROJECTS DESCRIPTIONS 

TRANSPORTATION CAPITAL PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS 

Langer Farms Parkway Pedestrian Crossing 1 

City Property Derelict House Demolition 2 

Sherwood Transportation SDC Rate and Street Fee Study 3 

Tonquin Road Safety Improvements 4 

Oregon Intersection Improvements at Murdock and Tonquin Roads 5 

Elwert Road Improvements 6 

Brookman Road Improvements (3 Lane Arterial) 7 

Edy Road Improvements 8 

Ladd Hill Road Improvements 9 

Oregon Street Improvements 10 

Baler to Herman Connection 11 

Cedar Brook Way Extension – Segment 2 12 

Extension of Langer Farms Parkway at Highway 99W 13 

Highway 99W / Brookman Road Traffic Signal and Realignment 14 

Sunset Boulevard Improvements 15 

Edy Road / Highway 99W Intersection Improvements 16 

Meinecke Road / Highway 99W Intersection Improvements 17 

Langer Drive Improvements 18 

Tonquin Employment Area East/West Collector 19 

 

 

 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 3 of 202

45



 

City of Sherwood 
Capital Improvement Plan iii 5/31/2016 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Herman Road Extension 20 

Kruger / Elwert / Highway 99W Intersection Improvements 21 

Edy Road / Borchers Road – Right-In / Right-Out and Eastbound Lanes 22 

Sherwood Boulevard / Langer Drive Intersection Improvements 23 

Sunset Boulevard / Pine Street Intersection Improvements 24 

Sunset Boulevard / Main Street – Traffic Control Enhancements 25 

Baker Road Improvements 26 

Sunset Boulevard / Timbrel Lane – Traffic Control Improvements 27 

Edy Road to Roy Rogers Road Collector Road 28 

Elwert Road / Edy Road Roundabout 29 

Sunset Boulevard / Highway 99W Improvements 30 

Ladd Hill Road / Brookman Road Intersection Improvements 31 

Sunset Boulevard / Murdock Road Turn Lanes 32 

Brookman Road / Middleton Road Traffic Control Enhancements 33 

Area 59 Neighborhood Route 34 

Sherwood System Monitoring Program 35 

Clifford Court 36 

Lincoln Street (Oregon Street to Willamette Street) 37 

Lincoln Street (Willamette Street to Division Street) 38 

Highland Drive (Willamette Street to Pine Street) 39 

Orcutt Court 40 

Area 54/55 Improvements 41 

Willamette Street ( Pine Street to Division Street) 42 

Villa Road / First Street Connection 43 

Baler Way / Tualatin-Sherwood Road Intersection Improvements 44 

Alexander Lane (Smith Avenue to Terminus) 45 

Sunset Boulevard (Greengate Drive to Redfern Drive) 46 

Oregon Street (Lincoln Street to Murdock Road) 47 

 

 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 4 of 202

46



 

City of Sherwood 
Capital Improvement Plan iv 5/31/2016 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

PEDESTRIAN CAPITAL PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS 

Handley Street Sidewalk Infill 48 

Highway 99W Sidewalk Infill 49 

Highway 99W Crosswalks 50 

Ice Age Tonquin Trail / Highway 99W Connection 51 

10th Street Neighborhood Greenway 52 

Sherwood Boulevard Improvements 53 

Langer Drive to Trumpeter Shared Use Path 54 

Hopkins Elementary School North Shared Use Path 55 

Hopkins Elementary School East Shared Use Path 56 

Sherwood Middle School Shared Use Path 57 

Ice Age Tonquin Trail Segment 6 58 

Ice Age Tonquin Trail Segment 7 59 

Ice Age Tonquin Trail Segment 8 60 

Ice Age Tonquin Trail Segment 9 61 

Ice Age Tonquin Trail Segment 10 62 

Ice Age Tonquin Trail Segment 11 63 

Ice Age Tonquin Trail Segment 12 64 

Cipole Road Sidewalk Infill 65 

12th Street Sidewalk Infill 66 

Division Street Sidewalk Infill 67 

Meinecke Road Sidewalk Infill 68 

Pine Street Sidewalk Infill Segment 1 69 

Pine Street Sidewalk Infill Segment 2 70 

Willamette Street Sidewalk Infill Segment 1 71 

Willamette Street Sidewalk Infill Segment 2 72 

Highway 99W Grade Separated Crossing 73 

Washington Street Sidewalk Infill 74 

 
 
 

 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 5 of 202

47



 

City of Sherwood 
Capital Improvement Plan v 5/31/2016 

TABLE OF CONTENTS  

Pine Street / Division Street Crossing Improvements 75 

Pine Street / Sunset Boulevard Crossing Improvements 76 

Sunset Boulevard / St Charles Way Crossing Improvements 77 

Sunset Boulevard / Redfern Drive Crossing Improvements 78 

Sunset Boulevard / Existing Trail Crossing Improvements 79 

Local Off-Street Trail Segment 1 80 

Local Off-Street Trail Segment 4 81 

Local Off-Street Trail Segment 5 82 

Local Off-Street Trail Segment 6 83 

Local Off-Street Trail Segment 7 84 

Oregon Street Sidewalk Infill 85 

Murdock Road Sidewalk Infill Segment 1 86 

Murdock Road Sidewalk Infill Segment 2 87 

Roy Rogers Road Crossing Improvements 88 

Downtown Streetscapes Master Plan Phase 3 (Old Town Secondary 
Streets) 

89 

Downtown Streetscapes Master Plan Phase 4 (Old Town Residential 
Streets) 

90 

STORMWATER CAPITAL PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS 

Murdock Road (North) Regional Stormwater Facility 91 

Oregon Street Regional Stormwater Facility 92 

Lower Rock Creek (Area 48) Regional Stormwater Facility 93 

Tonquin Road (Area 48 / North) Regional Stormwater Facility 94 

Tonquin Road (Area 48 / South) Regional Stormwater Facility 95 

Murdock Road (South) Regional Stormwater Facility 96 

Ladd Hill Regional Stormwater Facility 97 

South Stella Olsen Park Regional Stormwater Facility 98 

Community Campus Regional Stormwater Facility 99 

 

 

 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 6 of 202

48



 

City of Sherwood 
Capital Improvement Plan vi 5/31/2016 

TABLE OF CONTENTS  

Gleneagle Drive Regional Stormwater Facility 100 

Glencoe Court Regional Stormwater Facility 101 

Gleneagle Village Regional Stormwater Facility 102 

Edy Road Regional Stormwater Facility 103 

Saint Charles (North) Regional Stormwater Facility 104 

Saint Charles (South) Regional Stormwater Facility 105 

Brookman Area/Upper Ladd Hill Regional Stormwater Facility 106 

Brookman Area (Area 54/55 - East) Regional Stormwater Facility 107 

Brookman Area (Area 54/55 - West) Regional Stormwater Facility 108 

Hedges Creek (Area 48) Regional Stormwater Facility 109 

Chicken Creek (Area 59) Regional Stormwater Facility 110 

Coffee Lake Creek (Area 48) Regional Stormwater Facility 111 

Citywide Catchbasin Remediation Program 112 

Gleneagle Regional Stormwater Facility Outfall Remediation 113 

Kay Apartments Regional Stormwater Facility Culvert Remediation 114 

2nd Street / Park Street Regional Stormwater Facility Remediation 115 

Cedar Creek Regional Stormwater Facility Remediation 116 

Stormwater Master Plan & SDC Rate Update 117 

SANITARY CAPITAL PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS 

Brookman Area (Area 54/55) Sanitary Sewer Extension 118 

Area 48 (South) Sanitary Sewer Extension – Phase 1 119 

Area 48 (North) Sewer Conveyance System Extension – Phase 2 120 

Rock Creek Trunk Capacity Upgrade Phase 2 121 

Rock Creek Trunk Capacity Upgrade Phase 1 122 

SW Gleneagle Drive Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 123 

SW Washington Street Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 124 

SW Schamburg Drive Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 125 

Mid-Block Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation (between Railroad Street and 1st 
Street, From Pine Street to Park Street) 

126 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 7 of 202

49



 

City of Sherwood 
Capital Improvement Plan vii 5/31/2016 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Old Town Sanitary Sewer Lateral Rehabilitation 127 

SW Sunset Boulevard Sanitary Sewer Extension 128 

Sanitary Sewer Master Plan Update and SDC Rate Study 129 

WATER CAPITAL PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS 

Existing WRWTP Upgrades 130 

WRWTP Purchase 5 MGD Intake Capacity 131 

WRWTP Treatment Expansion – Sherwood 5 MGD Share 132 

Proposed 1,600 gpm Ladd Hill Pump Station 133 

Proposed 2,400 gpm Kruger Pump Station 134 

Proposed 1,600 gpm Edy Road Pump Station 135 

Fire Flow Capacity – Marjorie Stewart Community/Senior Center 136 

Fire Flow Capacity – Norton Avenue 137 

Fire Flow Capacity – June Court 138 

Expansion to Brookman – Mainline extension from existing stub at 
Crooked River Lane to proposed Sherwood PRV 

139 

Expansion to Brookman – Mainline extension along Old Highway 99W 
from proposed SW Sherwood PRV across Goose Creek 

140 

Expansion to Brookman – Mainline extension from Goose Creek 
extension to Highway 99W existing mainline 

141 

Expansion to TEA – mainline installation from Cipole Road across 
Tualatin-Sherwood Road to Oregon Street 

142 

Expansion to TEA – mainline installation northeast to southwest across 
Oregon Street 

143 

Expansion to TEA – mainline installation northeast to southwest across 
TEA connecting to Oregon Street 

144 

Expansion to TEA – mainline installation across 21600 Oregon Street 
property connecting to TEA mainline 

145 

Expansion to TEA – mainline extension from Cipole Road to SW 124th 
Avenue 

146 

Expansion to TEA – mainline installation along SW 124th Avenue 147 

10-Year (2024) Upgrade Existing Mains 148 

10-Year (2024) Mainline Installations 149 

20-Year (2034) Mainline Installations 150 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 8 of 202

50



 

City of Sherwood 
Capital Improvement Plan viii 5/31/2016 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Beyond 20-Years (2034+) Mainline Installations 151 

Routine Pipe Replacement Program 152 

SW Sherwood PRV 153 

Handley PRV 154 

Haide Road PRV 155 

SW 195th PRV 156 

Upgrade SCADA System 157 

Update Water Management and Conservation Plan 158 

Update Vulnerability Assessment 159 

Update Resiliency Plan 160 

GENERAL CONSTRUCTION PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS 

(None Identified)  

PARKS CAPITAL PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS 

Woodhaven Park Phase 2 – Construction 161 

Parks Master Plan Update 162 

Skatepark 163 

Sherwood West-Side Dog Park 164 

Cannery Square Restroom Installation 165 

URA CAPITAL PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS 

Downtown Parking Lot Paving 166 

Downtown Monument Removal 167 

Old Town Sidewalk Improvements 168 

Old Town Alley Pavement Improvements 169 

 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 9 of 202

51



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(INTENTIONAL BLANK PAGE) 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 10 of 202

52



  

Page | ES-1  City of Sherwood 
  Five Year Capital Improvement Plan 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

SHERWOOD FIVE YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN  

(FISCAL YEARS 2017 TO 2022) 

The City of Sherwood’s Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) establishes, prioritizes, and defines 
funding for capital projects to improve existing systems and develop new infrastructure and 
facilities.  The use of a CIP promotes better use of the City’s limited financial resources, reduces 
costs, focuses priorities, and assists in the coordination of public and private development. 

The City’s CIP is a five year planning document which identifies the major capital improvement 
expenditures and gives a proposed sequence of implementing their construction.  The CIP 
serves as a long range dynamic plan since the plan is reviewed and revised annually to account 
for completed and newly identified projects.  In addition, City priorities may change due to 
funding opportunities or circumstances that have caused a more rapid deterioration of assets or 
greater need identified elsewhere. 

As a basic tool for documenting anticipated capital improvement expenditures, the listing of 
projects includes “unfunded” projects in which needs have been identified, but specific solutions 
and funding resources have not been determined. 

THE CIP PROCESS 

The CIP is the result of an ongoing infrastructure planning process, which provides flexibility and 
takes advantage of opportunities for funding capital improvement expenditures.  The Fiscal 
Years 2017-2022 CIP is developed utilizing adopted policies and current master plans, input 
from the public, professional peer review, and review and approval of the City’s elected officials.  
A draft CIP is made available to the general public and elected officials for review and comment.  
Input from the public occurs at many levels. As Master Plans are developed and adopted, there 
are public input opportunities to ensure that the plans reflect community input and need.  

Throughout the year staff and Council receive comments, suggestions and concerns from the 
public related to needed improvements which are incorporated into the CIP as appropriate.  As 
part of the CIP development and adoption process for the one-year and five-year plans, the 
public is encouraged to provide comments.  The CIP is presented to the City Council for 
adoption.  The projects and project schedules shown in the CIP are part of the basis for 
preparation of the City’s overall budget and staff allocations for that year. 

HOW PROJECTS ARE ADDED TO OR REMOVED FROM THE CIP 

The CIP development and review team consists of City staff and department directors who are 
responsible for development of the CIP project list, reviewing proposed CIP project scopes and 
schedules, and finally submitting recommendations to the City Manager.  The City Manager 
recommendation is then presented to the City Council.   

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 11 of 202

53



  

Page | ES-2  City of Sherwood 
  Five Year Capital Improvement Plan 
 

Typically there are more project requests than can be funded in the five-year CIP period, so the 
CIP Review Team conducts an internal project ranking of each project relative to all others.  The 
criteria used in this internal ranking include, but are not limited to the following; 

 Council Goals – Supports the goals established by the City Council.  Meets the city-wide 
long-term goals and is based upon Master Plan recommendations. 

 Master Plan – Proposed upgrade or expansion of infrastructure systems is identified in 
one of the City’s Master Plans. 

 Health and Safety – Enhances, improves, or protects the overall health, safety and 
welfare of the City’s residents. 

 Regulatory Requirement – Proposed upgrade or expansion satisfies regulatory or 
mandated requirements, standards and specifications. 

 Outside Funding/Partnership – That funding sources other than dedicated City 
resources, are identified, requested, committed, or 

 Upgrade Serviceability – To determine if the project has the potential to coincide with 
other CIP projects to minimize financial costs and development impacts, and to maintain 
and enhance the efficiency of providing services to the citizens of the City. 

The CIP Review Team also considers public input received throughout the year along with 
additional identified areas of concern to determine if projects need to be added to the CIP 
master document.  They then analyze the financial impact of the CIP as well as the City’s ability 
to process, design, construct, and ultimately maintain the constructed infrastructure.  It is the 
intent that the review team will meet periodically throughout the year to evaluate the progress of 
the projects, and determine future needs of the City. 

The overall goal of the CIP Review Team is to develop CIP recommendations that: 

 Preserve the past by investing in the continued upgrades of City assets and 
infrastructure; 

 Protect the present by performing improvements to existing infrastructure and facilities; 
and 

 Plan for the future. 

Items such as minor equipment and routine expenses will not be included in the CIP as they are 
accounted for in other budget items of the City’s annual budget. In addition, the operating or 
maintenance impact of the proposed CIP projects are not included in the CIP project costs.  
These costs will be accounted for in other budget items of the City’s annual budget. 

CIP CATEGORIES 

Because there are several different funding sources for capital projects, which have limitations 
on how the funds can be used, projects within the CIP fall within 5 primary categories: 

1) Transportation Projects 

a) Transportation Capital Projects 
b) Transportation Maintenance Projects 
c) Pedestrian Capital Projects 
d) Neighborhood Traffic Management/Calming 

  

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 12 of 202

54



  

Page | ES-3  City of Sherwood 
  Five Year Capital Improvement Plan 
 

2) Utility Infrastructure Projects 

a) Stormwater Capital Projects 
b) Stormwater Maintenance Projects 
c) Sanitary Sewer Capital Projects 
d) Sanitary Sewer Maintenance Projects 
e) Water System Capital Projects 
f) Water System Maintenance Projects 

3) General Construction Capital Projects 

4) Urban Renewal Agency (URA) Projects 

a) URA Capital Projects 

5) Parks Projects 

a) Parks Capital Projects 

The CIP document is designed to forecast capital needs for the next five years.  The CIP will be 
reviewed, revised and updated every year as part of the annual City budget development 
process. 

HOW THE CIP IS FUNDED 

The purpose of the CIP is two-fold. The one-year CIP identifies specific projects with certain 
funding availability which will be completed (or started) over the next fiscal year. The five-year 
CIP is a bit more aspirational as funding availability is not certain. The City may receive more or 
less revenue depending on development growth, and other revenue sources. In addition, the 
City may obtain outside funding for projects through grants, county, regional, state or federal 
allocation of funds.  For this reason, the five-year CIP list may include more projects than will 
actually be able to be funded or constructed within the five-year time period.  The CIP is 
updated annually in order to reflect new information and projections. 

The nature and cost of the project generally determine the financing options as well as the 
projected revenue resources utilized by the project.  The following financial resources are 
evaluated for funding use: 

 Outside Funding – including grants, federal, state, county funds and donations. 

 Development Fees – system development charges (SDC’s). 

 Utility Rate Revenue. 

 Debt secured by a restricted revenue source. 

 General Obligation Debt. 

PROJECT LISTS AND DETAIL SHEETS 

A complete listing of all the CIP projects is included in Section C.  The one-year and five-year 
project descriptions are included in Section A and Section B of the CIP respectively. 

The project detail sheet provides the following information: 

 A project location map showing the location and extents of the project. 

 The estimated project design/construction cost. 

 Identifying which Project Ranking Criteria is being used. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 13 of 202

55



  

Page | ES-4  City of Sherwood 
  Five Year Capital Improvement Plan 
 

 The project type and priority (e.g., short-term, medium-term, long-term). 

 A project description along with a description of the long-term operating and 
maintenance issues and costs. 

 The fiscal year funding is needed within and which funding sources are planned on 
being used. 

 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 14 of 202

56



 CITY OF SHERWOOD 
 CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 
 

 

 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

SECTION A 

ONE-YEAR CAPITAL PROJECTS LIST 

  

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 15 of 202

57



  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 16 of 202

58



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

City of Sherwood 
Capital Improvement Plan A-1       5/23/2016 

 

ONE-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT LISTING 

The following project list shows all capital projects (including those projects funded with operational, capital & other funds) proposed 

for the FY 2016-2017 budget cycle.  These projects are a compilation of projects from the City’s Master Plans, and Engineering and 

Public Works identified infrastructure improvement projects.  Not all projects on this table are shown under the Current Year Capital 

Projects page of the budget, but all projects are included in the FY 2016-2017 budget.  Projects not included in the Current Year 

Capital Project page are denoted with an asterisk (*) in the MP/Project # column. 

MP/Project # Project Title 
Budgeted 
Amount 

Previous FY’s 
Expenditures 

Est FY16/17 
Expenditures 

Future Years 
Expenditures

Pg # 

CC-3 
(see note 2) 

Columbia Street WQ Facility Phase 2 
(construction) 

$ 1,694,312 $ 1,440,349 $ 228,963 $ 0 N/A 

N/A 
(see note 2 & 5) 

Langer Farms Parkway Pedestrian 
Crossing (construction) 

  135,500 45,763 89,737  0 1 

N/A 
(see note 13) 

City Property - Derelict House Demolition 25,000 0 25,000 0 2 

N/A 
(see notes 1 & 2) 

City Transportation SDC and Rate Study 150,000 144,411 5,609 0 3 

D3 
(see note 4) 

Oregon Street/Tonquin Road  
(pre-design & intermediate Improvements) 

80,000  36,073   43,927   0 5 

D8 
(see note 4) 

Oregon Street Improvements (pre-design) 50,000 0 50,000 0 10 

D17 
Meinecke Road/Hwy 99W Intersection 
Improvements 

5,000 0 5,000 0 17 

D22 
(see note 14) 

Kruger/Elwert/Hwy 99W Intersection 
Improvements 

2,800,000 1,321,997 23,124 1,454,879 21 

D23 
(see note 4) 

Edy Road/Borchers Road – Right-in/Right-
Out and Eastbound Lanes (pre-design) 

50,000 0 50,000 0 22 

D25 
Sunset Boulevard/Pine Street Intersection 
Improvements 

6,000 0 6,000 0 24 

(*)  N/A 
(see note 7) 

Ice-Age Tonquin Trail Segment 8 
Way Finding Signage Project  
WACO VA Grant (design & construction) 

79,500 0 15,000 53,000 60 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 17 of 202

59



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

City of Sherwood 
Capital Improvement Plan A-2       5/23/2016 

MP Project # Project Title 
Budgeted 
Amount 

Previous FY’s 
Expenditures 

Est FY16/17 
Expenditures 

Future 
Expenditures

Pg # 

(*)  N/A 
(see note 7) 

Ice-Age Tonquin Trail Segment 
Way Finding Signage Project 
Metro Nature in the Neighborhood Grant 
(design & construction) 

$ 109,552 $ 0 $ 43,250 $ 66,302 60 

P13/P14 
(see note 2) 

Ice-Age Tonquin Trail Segment 8 
(Cedar Creek Trail, segments 8 & 9 design, 
segment 8 construction) 

865,000 332,849 532,151 0 60/61

(*)  RC-2/RC-4 
(see note 4) 

Oregon Street Regional Stormwater Facility 
(pre-design) & Area 48 Tonquin Road 

35,000 0 35,000 0 92/94

(*)  N/A 
(see note 15) 

Citywide Catch Basin Remediation 
Program 

300,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 112 

N/A 
(see note 9) 

2nd & Park Street Storm Water Quality 
Facility Remediation (design) 

35,000 0 35,000 0 115 

N/A 
(see notes 1 & 2) 

City Stormwater Master Plan Update, SDC 
and Rate Study 

160,017 154,017 6,000 0 117 

SS-18 
(see note 11) 

Old Town Mid-Block Sanitary Sewer Point 
Repair (design & construction) 

20,000 0 20,000 0 126 

SS-1 
(see note 10) 

Sunset Boulevard  and Pine Street Sanitary 
Sewer Extension (design & construction) 

279,141 38,272 240,069 0 128 

N/A 
(see notes 1 & 2) 

City Sanitary Sewer Master Plan Update 
and SDC Rate Study 

185,712 171,582 14,130 0 129 

WRWTP-1 Existing WRWTP Upgrades 15,000 0 15,000 0 130 

(*)  M-1 
Fire Flow Capacity – Marjorie Stewart 
Community/Senior Center 

36,000 0 36,000 0 136 

(*)  WTR-(X) 
(see note 6) 

Routine Waterline Replacement Program 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 152 

(*)  WTR-(X) 
(see note 6) 

Upgrade SCADA System 75,000 0 75,000 0 157 

PK-2 Woodhaven Park Phase 2 (construction) 954,025 187,051 766,974 0 161 

PK-3 Parks Master Plan 175,000 0 175,000 0 162 

N/A 
(see note 12) 

Skate Park (design) 12,000 0 12,000 0 163 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 18 of 202

60



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

City of Sherwood 
Capital Improvement Plan A-3       5/23/2016 

MP Project # Project Title 
Budgeted 
Amount 

Previous FY’s 
Expenditures 

Est FY16/17 
Expenditures 

Future 
Expenditures

Pg # 

N/A 
(see note 12) 

City Dog Park – North of Hwy 99W (design) 12,000 0 12,000 0 164 

N/A 
(see note 5) 

Cannery Square Restroom Installation 130,000 0 130,000 0 165 

(*)  URA-1 
Downtown Parking Lot Paving 
(design & construction) 

$ 185,010 $ 25,010 $ 160,000 $ 0 166 

(*)  URA-2 
(see note 2 & 5) 

Downtown Monument Removal 
(construction) 

250,000 23,143 161,857 0 167 

(*)  N/A 
(see note 8) 

Downtown Way Finding Signage and 
Monuments (design) 

35,000 0 35,000 0 167 

 

Keyed Notes 

1. SDC and Rate Studies shall be conducted as part of the individual Master Plan Update projects. 

2. Project schedule spans two or more fiscal years, with some work completed in previous fiscal year(s). 

3. Project schedule spans more two or more fiscal years.  Project includes pre-design and intermediate improvements. 

4. Pre-design efforts needed to initiate full project design and construction in future fiscal years. 

5. Project is not identified under any Master Plan, but being performed as directed by City Council for health and safety 

concerns of the community. 

6. Projects identified by Public Works as ongoing major system upgrade or improvement requirement. 

7. Project budgeted amount based on funding by other than City funding sources (WACO Visitors Association – Bicycle Way 

Finding Grant, Metro – Nature in the Neighborhood Way Finding Grant). 

8. Project is re-establishing way finding and event notification monuments within Old Town due to removal of existing concrete 

monuments constructed under Downtown Streetscapes - Phase 1 improvements. 

9. Project not identified under Storm Master Plan, but is being undertaken to meet performance compliance requirements of 

Clean Water Services MS4 Permit. 

10. Project is not identified under Sanitary Master Plan, but is being performed to provide sanitary sewer mainline service to 

properties within the City limits who are currently utilizing septic tanks/fields for residential sewer treatment. 

11. Project is not identified under Sanitary Master Plan, but is being performed to correct a sanitary sewer mainline deficiency. 

12. Project not identified in Parks Master Plan, but defined by City Council directive. 

13. Project is part of the Kruger-Elwert Intersection project and defined by City staff as a public safety and City liability issue. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 19 of 202

61



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

City of Sherwood 
Capital Improvement Plan A-4       5/23/2016 

14. Project is being designed and constructed under an Inter-Governmental Agreement (IGA) with WACO, and funded out of 

MSTIP-3d program. 

15. Project is ongoing yearly replacement program and may extend beyond the five year timeline. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 20 of 202

62



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 
 

 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

SECTION B 

FIVE-YEAR CAPITAL PROJECTS LIST 
  

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 21 of 202

63



  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 22 of 202

64



 CITY OF SHERWOOD 
 CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES  

City of Sherwood 
Capital Improvement Plan B-1 5/23/2016 

 

FIVE-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT LISTING 

The following project list shows all capital projects envisioned for the following five fiscal years 

(FY17/18 to FY22/23) budget cycle.  These projects are a compilation of projects from the City’s 

Master Plans, and Engineering and Public Works identified infrastructure improvement projects. 

MP Project # Project Title 
Estimated 

Project Cost 
Pg #

N/A 
(see note 2) 

Downtown Way Finding Signage & Monument 
(construction) 

$ 150,000 N/A 

D3 
Oregon Intersection Improvements at Murdock and 
Tonquin Roads  
(design & construction) 

  2,623,413 5 

D8 
Oregon Street Improvements  
(design & construction) 

 6,155,470 10 

D22 
(see note 4) 

Kruger/Elwert/Hwy 99W Intersection Improvements 1,454,879 21 

D23 
Edy Road/Borchers Road, Right-In/Right-Out and 
Eastbound Lanes (design & construction) 

2,328,256 22 

P16 
Ice-Age Tonquin Trail Segment 11 
(design & construction) 

2,372,653 63 

P44 Oregon Street Sidewalk Infill (design & construction) 225,000 85 

RC-2 
Oregon Street Regional Stormwater Quality Facility  
(design & construction) 

400,000 92 

CC-6 Gleneagle Drive Stormwater Facility 120,000 100 

CC-8 Gleneagle Village Regional Water Quality Facility 120,000 102 

CC-10 Saint Charles (North) Stormwater Facility 85,000 104 

CC-11 Saint Charles (South) Stormwater Facility 95,000 105 

CC-13 
(see note 1) 

Brookman Area Regional Stormwater Quality 
Facility   
(pre-design) 

35,000 106 

CC-14 
(see note 1) 

Brookman Area Regional Stormwater Quality 
Facility  
(pre-design) 

35,000 107 

N/A 
(see note 5) 

Citywide Catch Basin Remediation Program 60,000 112 

SS-6 
Rock Creek Trunk Improvement – Phase 2 (design 
& construction) 

408,772 121 

SS-7 
Rock Creek Trunk Improvement – Phase 1 (design 
& construction) 

401,244 122 

SS-14 
SW Washington Street Sanitary Sewer 
Rehabilitation 

52,750 124 

SS-15 SW Schamburg Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 388,300 125 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 23 of 202

65



 CITY OF SHERWOOD 
 CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES  

City of Sherwood 
Capital Improvement Plan B-2 5/23/2016 

MP Project # Project Title 
Estimated 

Project Cost 
Pg #

SS-18 Old Town Sanitary Sewer Laterals Rehabilitation  $ 40,000 127 

WRWTP-1 Existing WRWTP Upgrades 1,000,000 130 

WRWTP-2 WRWTP Purchase 5 MGD Capacity 2,000,000 131 

WRWTP-3 
WRWTP Treatment Expansion – Sherwood 5 MGD 
Share 

1,540,000 132 

M-2 Fire Flow Capacity – Norton Avenue 92,000 137 

M-60 Fire Flow Capacity – June Court $ 43,000 138 

M-7 
Expansion to Brookman – Loop from Prop SW 
Sherwood PRV to Hwy 99W 

68,000 139 

M-8 
Expansion to Brookman – Loop from Prop SW 
Sherwood PRV to Hwy 99W 

204,000 140 

M-9 
Expansion to Brookman – Loop from Prop SW 
Sherwood PRV to Hwy 99W 

239,000 141 

M-29 
Expansion to TEA – Loop with Existing Oregon 
Street Mains 

154,000 142 

M-30 
Expansion to TEA – Loop with Existing Oregon 
Street Mains 

264,000 143 

M-31 
Expansion to TEA – Loop with Existing Oregon 
Street Mains 

438,000 144 

M-32 
Expansion to TEA – Loop with Existing Oregon 
Street Mains 

267,000 145 

M-33 
Expansion to TEA – Loop with Existing Oregon 
Street Mains 

162,000 146 

M-34 
Expansion to TEA – Loop with Existing Oregon 
Street Mains 

178,000 147 

WTR-(X) 
(see note 3) 

Routine Pipe Replacement Program 250,000 152 

WTR-V-1 SW Sherwood PRV Installation 150,000 153 

WTR-(X) Update Water Management and Conservation Plan 150,000 158 

WTR-(X) Update Resiliency Plan 150,000 160 

URA-3 Old Town Sidewalk Improvements 200,000 168 

URA-4 Old Town Alley Improvements 100,000 169 

  

Keyed Notes 

1. Pre-design efforts needed to initiate full project design and construction in future fiscal 

years. 

2. Project replaces way finding and event notification monuments removed under 

Downtown Monument Removal Project performed in FY16/17. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 24 of 202

66



 CITY OF SHERWOOD 
 CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES  

City of Sherwood 
Capital Improvement Plan B-3 5/23/2016 

3. Project identified by Public Works as ongoing major system upgrade or improvement 

requirement. 

4. Project being designed and constructed under an Inter-Governmental Agreement (IGA) 

with WACO.  Funding for project from WACO MSTIP-3d program. 

5. Project is on-going yearly replacement program.   

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 25 of 202

67



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(INTENTIONAL BLANK PAGE) 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 26 of 202

68



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

 

 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

SECTION C 

COMPLETE LIST OF CAPITAL PROJECTS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 27 of 202

69



  
 

 
 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 28 of 202

70



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 1 May 23, 2016 

LANGER FARMS PARKWAY PEDESTRIAN CROSSING (Construction) 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: n/a 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $ 184,791   

 

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous $ 45,763  Transportation SDC (Design) 100%   

FY16-17 $ 89,737  Transportation SDC (Construction) 100%   

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes construction of a signalized (RRFB) pedestrian crossing system near the site assess drives to the 
Target and Wal-Mart stores.  Included in the project are radar controlled speed signage, pedestrian mid-block crossing ADA 
ramps, and appropriate crossing striping.  Safety issues, citizen complaints and City Council directive warrant the 
installation.  Project was not identified in the City TSP nor on the previous FY CIP project listing.   Design will occur in 
FY15/16 with construction being completed in 1

st
 quarter of FY16/17. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Installation of the improvements will require long term maintenance of the roadway striping and signal systems by Public 
Works.  This will occur on an annual basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 29 of 202

71



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 2 May 23, 2016 

CITY PROPERTY DERELICT HOUSE DEMOLITION 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: n/a 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $ 25,000   

 

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17 $ 25,000  Transportation SDC (Demolition) 100%   

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes demolition of a derelict house included in the purchase of the property adjacent to Elwert Road.  The 
house represents a health and safety liability to the City.  The property was purchased with the intent of constructing 
intersection improvements to the Kruger/Elwert intersection. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Demolition of the derelict house and out buildings will not result in any annual maintenance expenses or actions. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 30 of 202

72



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 3 May 23, 2016 

SHERWOOD TRANSPORTATION SDC RATE AND STREET FEE STUDY 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: n/a 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $ 150,020   

 
 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous $ 144,411  Transportation SDC 100%   

FY16-17 $ 5,609  Transportation SDC 100%   

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

 

  

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

Project includes performing an analysis on current updated TSP to establish Transportation SDC and Street Fee rates.  

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

No maintenance of final projects results anticipated. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 31 of 202

73



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 4 May 23, 2016 

TONQUIN ROAD SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D2 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $28,406,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $28,406,000  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes widening Tonquin Road from Grahams Ferry Road to Oregon Street to provide shoulders.  Funding 
from WACO MSTIP.  WACO DLUT responsible for design and construction of roadway improvements. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have maintenance responsibilities for keeping vegetation cut back from roadway for that section of 
Tonquin Road which is within the City Limits. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 32 of 202

74



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 5 May 23, 2016 

OREGON INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS AT MURDOCK AND TONQUIN  ROADS 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D3 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $2,623,413   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous $36,073  Transportation SDC (Pre-Design) 100%   

FY16-17 $43,927  Transportation SDC (Inter. Imp.) 100%   

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20 $2,623,413  (Undefined)    

Future       

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes construction of a dumbbell roundabout at the Tonquin Road/Oregon Street intersection and Murdock 
Road/Oregon Street intersection. Dumbbell roundabout modifies existing Murdock Road roundabout by disallowing east 
circulating lane, the new Tonquin Road roundabout section of the dumbbell disallows the westbound circulating lane.  Adds 
a second westbound approach lane to the Murdock Road roundabout for separated westbound left and westbound through 
lanes.  Keep three lanes on bridge structure.  Project funding has not been identified, nor has a project design/construction 
schedule been established.  The expectation is that funding will consist of a combination of City Transportation SDC’s and 
Washington County TDT monies. Project includes purchase of necessary right-of-way lands. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include landscaping, lane 
striping, pavement surface repairs, street sweeping and storm system cleaning. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 33 of 202

75



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 6 May 23, 2016 

ELWERT ROAD IMPROVEMENTS 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D4 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $10,155,747   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $10,155,747  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes upgrading Elwert Road from Highway 99W to Edy Road, to a three lane arterial with bike lanes, 
sidewalks, and planter strips.  This project may be phased with project D30 for design and construction purposes. Project 
funding has not been identified, nor has a project design/construction schedule been established.  The expectation is that 
funding will consist of a combination of City Transportation SDC’s and Washington County TDT monies. Project includes 
purchase of necessary right-of-way lands. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Elwert is currently under WACO jurisdictional and maintenance control.  If in the future Elwert Road is transferred into the 
City’s jurisdictional control, Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will 
include street sweeping, storm system cleaning, painted lane striping, planter strip landscaping, and sidewalk cleaning. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 34 of 202

76



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 7 May 23, 2016 

BROOKMAN ROAD IMPROVEMENTS – THREE LANE ARTERIAL 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D5 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $13,775,908   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $13,775,908  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

Implement Brookman Road Concept Plan improvements to Brookman Road from Highway 99W to Middleton Road.  
Upgrade road to three lane arterial facility with a shared use path on the north side.  Reserve right-of-way width sufficient for 
potential widening to five lane arterial consistent with I-5/Highway 99W Connector Plan for southern arterial. Project funding 
has not been identified, nor has a project design/construction schedule been established.  The expectation is that funding 
will consist of a combination of State, County and City monies. Project includes purchase of necessary right-of-way lands. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include street sweeping and 
storm system cleaning, lane striping, pavement management, planter strip landscaping, and sidewalk maintenance. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 35 of 202

77



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 8 May 23, 2016 

EDY ROAD IMPROVEMENTS 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D6 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $8,454,093   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $8,454,093  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes upgrading Edy Road from Borchers Drive to Elwert Road to a three lane collector with bike lanes, 
sidewalks, and planter strips.  Project funding has not been identified, nor has a project design/construction schedule been 
established.  The expectation is that funding will consist of a combination of County and City monies. Project includes 
purchase of necessary right-of-way lands. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items would include street sweeping and 
storm system cleaning, lane striping, pavement management, planter strip landscaping, and sidewalk maintenance. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 36 of 202

78



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 9 May 23, 2016 

LADD HILL ROAD IMPROVEMENTS 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D7 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $5,532,749   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $6,532,749  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes upgrading Ladd Hill Road from Sunset Boulevard to the City Urban Growth Boundary to a three lane 
arterial with bike lanes, sidewalks, and planter strips.  Project funding has not been identified, nor has a project 
design/construction schedule been established.  The expectation is that funding will consist of a combination of County and 
City monies. Project includes purchase of necessary right-of-way lands. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items would include street sweeping and 
storm system cleaning, lane striping, pavement management, planter strip landscaping, and sidewalk maintenance. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 37 of 202

79



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 10 May 23, 2016 

OREGON STREET IMPROVEMENTS 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D8 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $6,155,470   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17 $50,000  Transportation Improvement SDC 100%   

FY17-18 $500,000  (Undefined)    

FY18-19 $5,655,470  (Undefined)    

FY19-20       

Future       

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes upgrading Oregon Street from existing railroad crossing east to Murdock Road roundabout with a three 
lane collector road with bike lanes, sidewalks, and planter strips.  A shared use path will be located on the north side of 
Oregon Street (part of the Ice Age Tonquin Trail project). Project funding has not been identified, nor has a project 
design/construction schedule been established.  The expectation is that funding will consist of a combination of County and 
City monies. Project includes purchase of necessary right-of-way lands. Project schedule spans multiple years with initial 
project costs used in design followed by construction. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items would include street sweeping and 
storm system cleaning, lane striping, pavement management, planter strip landscaping, and sidewalk maintenance. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 38 of 202

80



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 11 May 23, 2016 

BALER TO HERMAN CONNECTION 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D9 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $4,547,377   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $4,547,377  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project constructs a collector road connecting Baler Road at Tualatin-Sherwood Road to the future extension of 
Herman Road at Langer Farms Parkway, including bike lanes, sidewalks, and planter strips. Project funding has not been 
identified, nor has a project design/construction schedule been established.  The expectation is that funding will consist of a 
combination of County and City monies. Project includes purchase of necessary right-of-way lands. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items would include street sweeping and 
storm system cleaning, lane striping, pavement management, planter strip landscaping, and sidewalk maintenance. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 39 of 202

81



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 12 May 23, 2016 

CEDAR BROOK WAY EXTENSION – SEGMENT 2 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D11 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $8,532,750   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $8,532,750  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project constructs a collector road from the existing terminus on Meinecke Road to Elwert Road, including bike lanes, 
sidewalks, and planter strips. Project may be constructed as part of adjacent private site development.   Project alignment 
and funding has not been identified, nor has a project design/construction schedule been established. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items would include street sweeping and 
storm system cleaning, lane striping, pavement management, planter strip landscaping, and sidewalk maintenance. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 40 of 202

82



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 13 May 23, 2016 

EXTENSION OF LANGER FARMS PARKWAY AT HIGHWAY 99W 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D12 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $4,257,125   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $4,257,125  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project constructs a collector road extension of Langer Farm Parkway from the intersection with Highway 99W then 
running west terminating in a cul-de-sac.  Includes bike lanes, sidewalks, and planter strips.  Funding for this project has not 
been identified, nor has a design or construction schedule been established. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items would include street sweeping and 
storm system cleaning, lane striping, pavement management, planter strip landscaping, and sidewalk maintenance. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 41 of 202

83



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 14 May 23, 2016 

HIGHWAY 99W / BROOKMAN ROAD TRAFFIC SIGNAL AND REALIGNMENT 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D14 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $15,451,784   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $15,451,784  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

Redesign Brookman Road intersection with Highway 99W north ¼ mile current location, include installation of signal, turn 
lanes, and grade separated railroad crossing. Project funding has not been identified, nor has a project design/construction 
schedule been established.  The expectation is that funding will consist of a combination of State, County and City monies. 
Project includes purchase of necessary right-of-way lands. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items would include street sweeping and 
storm system cleaning, lane striping, pavement management, planter strip landscaping, and sidewalk maintenance. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 42 of 202

84



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 15 May 23, 2016 

SUNSET BOULEVARD IMPROVEMENTS 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D15 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $6,812,674   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $6,812,674  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

Upgrade Sunset Boulevard (from Aldergrove Avenue to Eucalyptus Terrace) to a three lane arterial with bike lanes, 
sidewalks and planter strips.  Address vertical crest sight distance issues near Pine Street.  Project funding has not been 
identified, nor has a project design/construction schedule been established. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items would include street sweeping and 
storm system cleaning, lane striping, pavement management, planter strip landscaping, and sidewalk maintenance. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 43 of 202

85



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 16 May 23, 2016 

EDY ROAD / HIGHWAY 99W INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D16 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $215,906   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $215,906  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

Restripe westbound Sherwood Boulevard approach to have a single left turn lane, a single through lane, and a single right 
turn lane.  Eliminate split phase timing for the side streets and maintain the existing green phase on Highway 99W for 
northbound and southbound lanes.  Add crosswalk to southbound approach.  Possible phase with Pedestrian (P3) project. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items would include street sweeping and 
lane striping, pavement management, and sidewalk maintenance. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 44 of 202

86



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 17 May 23, 2016 

MEINECKE ROAD / HIGHWAY 99W INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D17 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $102,813   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $ 102,813  Transportation SDC 85% WACO TDT 15% 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

Change the eastbound and westbound left turn phasing on Meinecke Road from permitted to permitted/protected and 
maintain the existing green timing for the northbound and southbound through movements.  Possible coordination with 
Pedestrian Project (P3). 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items would include street sweeping and 
lane striping, and pavement management. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 45 of 202

87



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 18 May 23, 2016 

LANGER DRIVE IMPROVEMENTS 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D18 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $4,259,374   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $4,259,374  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

Construct improvements to Langer Drive from Sherwood Boulevard to Baler Way that are consistent with the Sherwood 
Town Center Plan.  Includes buffered bike lanes, on-street parking, wider sidewalks, narrower travel lanes, removal of 
center left turn lane, and landscaping. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

City Public Works staff will be responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of this road after construction is completed. 
However, being new construction, it is anticipated that this work will be minimal and consist mostly of cleaning of storm 
water catch basins, street sweeping, and leaf disposal. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 46 of 202

88



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 19 May 23, 2016 

TONQUIN EMPLOYMENT AREA EAST / WEST COLLECTOR 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D20 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $10,919,535   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $10,919,535  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project constructs an east-west collector road connecting 124
th

 Avenue and Tonquin Road across the Tonquin 
Employment Area.  Improvement to be coordinated with Transportation Project (D3). 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

City Public Works staff will be responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of this road after construction is completed. 
However, being new construction it is anticipated that this work will be minimal and consist mostly of cleaning of storm water 
catch basins, street sweeping, and leaf disposal. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 47 of 202

89



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 20 May 23, 2016 

HERMAN ROAD EXTENSION 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D21 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $13,943,186   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $13,943,186  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

Extends Herman Road from its existing terminus at Cipole Road west to either Highway 99W or Langer Farms Parkway.  
Constructs either two or three lane collector.  Includes bike lanes, sidewalks, and planter strips.  Right-of-way purchase or 
dedication required.  Funding has not been identified for this project, but may consist of WACO and City transportation 
funds.  Design and construction schedule has not been established for this project. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

City Public Works staff will be responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of this road after construction is completed. 
However, being new construction, it is anticipated that this work will be minimal and consist mostly of cleaning of storm 
water catch basins, street sweeping, and leaf disposal. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 48 of 202

90



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 21 May 23, 2016 

KRUGER / ELWERT / HWY99W INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D22 

Category: Capital Project - Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $2,800,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous $1,321,997  Transportation SDC (Purchase) 100%   

FY16-17 $23,124  Transportation SDC (Design) 100%   

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20 $1,454,879  WACO MSTIP 3C (Construction) 100%   

Future       

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes construction of a roundabout and relocation of the intersection of Kruger/Elwert Roads.  This is joint 
City/County/State controlled project.  The City has expended $1.3 million to purchase the property needed for the relocation 
of the Kruger/Elwert intersection.  This project will improve safety and traffic volume along Elwert.  This project is identified 
on the FY2012 Federal Appropriations list for Congressional District #1, however the funding potential is considered low at 
this time.  It is expected that ODOT and Washington County DLUT funding sources will be utilized for design and 
construction.   

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

City Public Works staff will be responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of this road after construction is completed. 
However, being new construction, it is anticipated that this work will be minimal and consist mostly of cleaning of storm 
water catch basins, street sweeping, and leaf disposal. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 49 of 202

91



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 22 May 23, 2016 

EDY ROAD / BORCHERS ROAD – RIGHT-IN / RIGHT-OUT AND EASTBOUND LANES 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D23 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $2,328,256   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

FY15-16       

FY16-17 $50,000  Transportation SDC (Pre-Design) 100%   

FY17-18 $150,000  Transportation SDC (Design) 65% Private Dev Fee-In-Lieu 35% 

FY18-19 $2,143,256  Transportation SDC (Construction) 65% Private Dev Fee-In-Lieu 35% 

FY19-20       

Future       

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

The project converts the Edy Road / Borchers Drive intersection to right-in/right-out and eastbound left–in only movements. 
Includes the construction of a roundabout further west on Edy Road to provide access to adjacent lands for development.  
Funding for this project has not been defined and may include private development funding.  The design and construction 
schedule for this project has also not been established. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

City Public Works staff will be responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of this road after construction is completed. 
However, being new construction, it is anticipated that this work will be minimal and consist mostly of cleaning of storm 
water catch basins, street sweeping, and leaf disposal. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 50 of 202

92



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 23 May 23, 2016 

SHERWOOD BOULEVARD / LANGER DRIVE INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D24 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $937,193   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $937,193  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes moving the existing traffic signal at Langer Drive to the intersection of Century Drive.  The Langer 
Drive intersection would be converted to a right-in/right-out and left-in only movements.  Turn lanes would be added at the 
Century Drive intersection in the eastbound and westbound direction. Funding for this project has not been identified at this 
time, but may include WACO and City combined funds.  The design and construction schedule for this project has also not 
been established. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

City Public Works staff will be responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of this road after construction is completed. 
However, being new construction, it is anticipated that this work will be minimal and consist mostly of cleaning of storm 
water catch basins, street sweeping, and leaf disposal. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 51 of 202

93



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 24 May 23, 2016 

SUNSET BOULEVARD / PINE STREET INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D25 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $6,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17 $6,000  Transportation SDC 100%   

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes restriping Sunset Boulevard at Pine Street to add eastbound and westbound left turn lanes. 
 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

City Public Works staff will be responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of this road after construction is completed. 
However, being new construction, it is anticipated that this work will be minimal and consist mostly of restriping. 
 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 52 of 202

94



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 25 May 23, 2016 

SUNSET BOULEVARD / MAIN STREET – TRAFFIC CONTROL ENHANCEMENTS 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D26 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $605,936   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $635,936  (Undefined)    

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes installation of a traffic signal at the intersection of Sunset Boulevard and Main Street.  Funding for this 
project has not been identified at this time, nor has a design and construction schedule for this project been established. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

City Public Works staff will be responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of this road after construction is completed. 
However, being new construction, it is anticipated that this work will be minimal and consist mostly of cleaning and 
maintaining signal performance. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 53 of 202

95



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 26 May 23, 2016 

BAKER ROAD IMPROVEMENTS 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D27 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $1,702,588   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $1,702,588  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes upgrading Baker Road from Sunset Boulevard south to the City’s southern Urban Growth Boundary, 
with a two-lane arterial including bike lanes, sidewalks and planter strips. Funding for this project has not been identified at 
this time, nor has a design and construction schedule for this project been established. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

City Public Works staff will be responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of this road after construction is completed. 
However, being new construction, it is anticipated that this work will be minimal and consist mostly of street sweeping, storm 
drainage system cleaning, and leaf pick-up. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 54 of 202

96



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 27 May 23, 2016 

SUNSET BOULEVARD / TIMBREL LANE TRAFFIC CONTROL ENHANCEMENTS 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D28 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $1,199,932   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $1,199,932  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes installation of a single lane roundabout at the Sunset Boulevard/Timbrel Lane intersection. Funding for 
this project has not been identified at this time, nor has a design and construction schedule for this project been established.  
Project would require purchasing land for roundabout right-of-way. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

City Public Works staff will be responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of this road after construction is completed. 
However, being new construction it is anticipated that this work will be minimal and consist mostly of street sweeping, storm 
drainage system cleaning, and leaf pick-up. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 55 of 202

97



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 28 May 23, 2016 

EDY ROAD TO ROY ROGERS ROAD COLLECTOR ROADWAY 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D29 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $3,202,630   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $3,202,650  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes building a two lane collector road between Edy Road and Roy Rogers Road, between Cedarview Way 
and Lynnly Way.  Funding for this project has not been identified at this time, nor has a design and construction schedule for 
this project been established.  This project would require purchasing land for road right-of-way. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

City Public Works staff will be responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of this road after construction is completed. 
However, being new construction, it is anticipated that this work will be minimal and consist mostly of street sweeping, storm 
drainage system cleaning, and leaf pick-up. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 56 of 202

98



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 29 May 23, 2016 

ELWERT ROAD / EDY ROAD ROUNDABOUT 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D30 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $2,562,343   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $2,451,343  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes installing single lane roundabout at the intersection of Edy Road and Elwert Road.  This project may be 
phased with Transportation Project (D4) for design and construction purposes.  Funding for this project has not been 
identified at this time, nor has a design and construction schedule for this project been established.  This project would 
require purchasing land for road right-of-way.  

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

City Public Works staff will be responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of this road after construction is completed. 
However, being new construction, it is anticipated that this work will be minimal and consist mostly of street sweeping, storm 
drainage system cleaning, and leaf pick-up. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 57 of 202

99



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 30 May 23, 2016 

SUNSET BOULEVARD / HIGHWAY 99W IMPROVEMENTS 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D31 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $906,755   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $906,755  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes adding westbound and eastbound left turn lanes on Sunset Boulevard, and changing the signal 
phasing from permissive to protected/permissive phasing.  Consider implementing improvements with Pedestrian Project 
(P3) or Transportation Project (D22).   Funding for this project has not been identified at this time, nor has a design and 
construction schedule for this project been established.   

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

City Public Works staff will be responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of this road after construction is completed. 
However, being new construction, it is anticipated that this work will be minimal and consist mostly of restriping, street 
sweeping, and leaf pick-up. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 58 of 202

100



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 31 May 23, 2016 

LADD HILL ROAD / BROOKMAN ROAD INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D32 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $266,466   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $266,466  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes adding a southbound right turn lane on Ladd Hill Road to Brookman Road.  Funding for this project has 
not been identified at this time, nor has a design and construction schedule for this project been established.  This project 
would require purchasing land for road right-of-way. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

City Public Works staff will be responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of this road after construction is completed. 
However, being new construction, it is anticipated that this work will be minimal and consist mostly of street sweeping, storm 
drainage system cleaning, and leaf pick-up. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 59 of 202

101



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 32 May 23, 2016 

SUNSET BOULEVARD / MURDOCK ROAD TURN LANES 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D33 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $508,322   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $508,322  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes adding a southbound right-turn lane and northbound left-turn lane on Murdock Road at the intersection 
with Sunset Boulevard.  Funding for this project has not been identified at this time, nor has a design and construction 
schedule for this project been established. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

City Public Works staff will be responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of this road after construction is completed. 
However, being new construction, it is anticipated that this work will be minimal and consist mostly of street sweeping, 
restriping, and leaf pick-up. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 60 of 202

102



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 33 May 23, 2016 

BROOKMAN ROAD / MIDDLETON ROAD TRAFFIC CONTROL ENHANCEMENTS 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D34 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $138,945   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $138,945  (Undefined)    

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes moving the existing stop signage to the north and south Middleton Road approaches, and adding a 
southbound left-turn lane on Brookman Road at the intersection.  Funding for this project has not been identified at this time, 
nor has a design and construction schedule for this project been established. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

City Public Works staff will be responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of this road after construction is completed. 
However, being new construction, it is anticipated that this work will be minimal and consist mostly of street sweeping, storm 
drainage system cleaning, and leaf pick-up. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 61 of 202

103



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 34 May 23, 2016 

AREA 59 NEIGHBORHOOD ROUTE 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D35 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $3,160,297   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $3,160,297  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes constructing a neighborhood classification road between Copper Terrace and Elwert Road as identified 
in the Area 59 concept plan.   Funding for this project has not been identified at this time, nor has a design and construction 
schedule for this project been established.  It is expected that private site development within this area will dedicate the 
needed right-of-way and construct the street. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

City Public Works staff will be responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of this road after construction is completed. 
However, being new construction, it is anticipated that this work will be minimal and consist mostly of street sweeping, storm 
drainage system cleaning, and leaf pick-up. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 62 of 202

104



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 35 May 23, 2016 

SHERWOOD SYSTEM MONITORING PROGRAM 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: D36 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $400,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $400,000  (Undefined)    

 

  

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

Establish and maintain a program involving monitoring system performance measures semiannually.  Program will monitor 
growth, performance targets, and identify when improvements are needed. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Maintain a monitoring program on an on-going basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 63 of 202

105



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 36 May 23, 2016 

CLIFFORD COURT 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: X2 

Category: Capital Project – Upgrade Navision Job# n/a 

Total Project Cost: $2,375,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $2,375,000  (Undefined)    

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project reconstructs approximately 190 linear feet of Clifford Court from the intersection of Lincoln Street to the end of 
the cul-de-sac. This project upgrades the current road section to meet the City’s TSP standards for a local street. Also 
included is the acquisition of right-of-way, the installation/upgrade of utility infrastructure (sanitary, storm, and water) to meet 
current standards, undergrounding of franchise utilities, and street lighting improvement. Project funding has not been 
identified, nor has a project design/construction schedule been established. The expectation is that funding will consist of 
City SDC’s. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

City Public Works staff will be responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of this road after construction is completed. 
However, being new construction, it is anticipated that this work will be minimal and consist mostly of cleaning of storm 
water catch basins, street sweeping, and leaf disposal. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 64 of 202

106



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 37 May 23, 2016 

LINCOLN STREET (OREGON STREET TO WILLAMETTE STREET) 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: X3 

Category: Capital Project – Upgrade Navision Job# n/a 

Total Project Cost: $2,970,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $2,970,000  (Undefined)    

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project reconstructs approximately 975 linear feet of Lincoln Street between Oregon Street and Willamette Street. This 
project upgrades the current road section to meet the City’s TSP standards for a neighborhood street. Also included is the 
acquisition of right-of-way, the installation/upgrade of utility infrastructure (sanitary, storm, and water) to meet current 
standards, undergrounding of franchise utilities, and street lighting improvement. Project funding has not been identified, nor 
has a project design/construction schedule been established. The expectation is that funding will consist of a combination of 
City SDC’s and County TDT monies. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

City Public Works staff will be responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of this road after construction is completed. 
However, being new construction it is anticipated that this work will be minimal and consist mostly of cleaning of storm water 
catch basins, street sweeping, and leaf disposal. 
 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 65 of 202

107



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 38 May 23, 2016 

LINCOLN STREET (WILLAMETTE STREET TO DIVISION STREET) 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: X4 

Category: Capital Project – Upgrade Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $4,000,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $4,000,000  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project reconstructs approximately 1,100 linear feet of Lincoln Street between Willamette Street and Division Street.  
This project upgrades the current road section to meet the City’s TSP standards for a neighborhood route.  Also included is 
the acquisition of right-of-way, the installation/upgrade of utility infrastructure (sanitary, storm, and water) to meet current 
standards, undergrounding of franchise utilities, and street lighting improvement.  Project funding has not been identified, 
nor has a project design/construction schedule been established.  The expectation is that funding will consist of a 
combination of City SDC’s and County TDT monies.   

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

City Public Works staff will be responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of this road after construction is completed.  
However, being new construction, it is anticipated that this work will be minimal and consist mostly of cleaning of stormwater 
catch basins, street sweeping, and leaf disposal. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 66 of 202

108



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 39 May 23, 2016 

HIGHLAND DRIVE (WILLAMETTE STREET TO PINE STREET) 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: X5 

Category: Capital Project – Upgrade Navision Job# n/a 

Total Project Cost: $2,400,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $2,400,000  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project reconstructs Highland Drive between Willamette Street and Pine Street, approximately 870 linear feet. This 
project upgrades the current road section to meet the City’s TSP standards for a residential street. Also included is the 
acquisition of right-of-way, the installation/upgrade of utility infrastructure (sanitary, storm, and water) to meet current 
standards, undergrounding of franchise utilities, and street lighting improvement. Project funding has not been identified, nor 
has a project design/construction schedule been established. The expectation is that funding will consist of City SDC’s. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

City Public Works staff will be responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of this road after construction is completed. 
However, being new construction, it is anticipated that this work will be minimal and consist mostly of cleaning of storm 
water catch basins, street sweeping, and leaf disposal. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 67 of 202

109



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 40 May 23, 2016 

ORCUTT COURT 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: X6 

Category: Capital Project – Upgrade Navision Job# n/a 

Total Project Cost: $845,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $845,000  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project reconstructs approximately 340 linear feet of Orcutt Court from the intersection of Willamette Street to the end 
of the cul-de-sac. This project upgrades the current road section to meet the City’s TSP standards for a neighborhood route. 
Also included is the acquisition of right-of-way, the installation/upgrade of utility infrastructure (sanitary, storm, and water) to 
meet current standards, undergrounding of franchise utilities, and street lighting improvement. Project funding has not been 
identified, nor has a project design/construction schedule been established. The expectation is that funding will consist of 
City SDC’s. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

City Public Works staff will be responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of this road after construction is completed. 
However, being new construction, it is anticipated that this work will be minimal and consist mostly of cleaning of storm 
water catch basins, street sweeping, and leaf disposal. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 68 of 202

110



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 41 May 23, 2016 

AREA 54/55 IMPROVEMENTS 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: X7 

Category: Capital Project – Upgrade Navision Job# n/a 

Total Project Cost: $3,000,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $3,000,000  (Undefined)    

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project consists of improving Brookman Road from Highway 99W to Ladd Hill Road to a collector road according to the 
TSP standards, approximately 1.75 miles. Project funding has not been identified, nor has a project design/construction 
schedule been established. Funding for this project is expected to be a combination of City SDC’s, County TDT, and MSTIP 
monies. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

City Public Works staff will be responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of this road after construction is completed. 
However, being new construction, it is anticipated that this work will be minimal and consist mostly of cleaning of storm 
water catch basins, street sweeping, and leaf disposal. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 69 of 202

111



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 42 May 23, 2016 

WILLAMETTE STREET (PINE STREET TO DIVISION STREET) 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: X8 

Category: Capital Project – Upgrade Navision Job# n/a 

Total Project Cost: $2,250,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $2,250,000  (Undefined)    

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project reconstructs Willamette Street between Pine Street and Division Street, approximately 850 linear feet. This 
project upgrades the current road section to meet the City’s TSP standards for a neighborhood route. Also included is the 
acquisition of right-of-way, the installation/upgrade of utility infrastructure (sanitary, storm, and water) to meet current 
standards, undergrounding of franchise utilities, and street lighting improvement. Project funding has not been identified, nor 
has a project design/construction schedule been established. The expectation is that funding will consist of a combination of 
City SDC’s and County TDT monies. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

City Public Works staff will be responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of this road after construction is completed. 
However, being new construction, it is anticipated that this work will be minimal and consist mostly of cleaning of storm 
water catch basins, street sweeping, and leaf disposal. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 70 of 202

112



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 43 May 23, 2016 

VILLA ROAD / FIRST STREET CONNECTION 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: X9 

Category: Capital Project – Upgrade Navision Job# n/a 

Total Project Cost: $2,885,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $2,885,000  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project consists of connecting Villa Street to First Street. Project funding has not been identified, nor has a project 
design/construction schedule been established. The expectation is that funding will consist of City SDC’s. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

City Public Works staff will be responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of this road after construction is completed. 
However, being new construction, it is anticipated that this work will be minimal and consist mostly of cleaning of storm 
water catch basins, street sweeping, and leaf disposal. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 71 of 202

113



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 44 May 23, 2016 

BALER WAY/TUALATIN-SHERWOOD ROAD INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: X10 

Category: Capital Project- Transportation Navision Job# n/a 

Total Project Cost: $250,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $250,000  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project consists of removing the existing traffic signal once the new signal on Tualatin-Sherwood Road at Adams 
Avenue is built and installing raised median on Tualatin-Sherwood Road. Project funding has not been identified, nor has a 
project design/construction schedule been established. The expectation is that funding will consist of WACO MSTIP funding 
and be constructed as part of the Tualatin-Sherwood Road reconfiguration project. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

City Public Works staff will be responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of Langer Drive after improvements are 
completed. Tualatin-Sherwood Road will be maintained by Washington County. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 72 of 202

114



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 45 May 23, 2016 

ALEXANDER LANE (SMITH AVENUE TO STREET TERMINUS) 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: X11 

Category: Maintenance Project Navision Job# n/a 

Total Project Cost: $14,320   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $14,320  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project rehabilitates approximately 600 linear feet of Alexander Lane road surface from the Smith Avenue intersection 
to the end of Alexander Lane. This project rehabilitates the street surface by placing a new 2-inch AC pavement overlay on 
the existing pavement. The schedule for project design and construction has not been established for this project. The 
expectation is that funding will consist of street maintenance fund monies. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

City Public Works staff will be responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of this road after construction is completed. 
However, being new construction, it is anticipated that this work will be minimal and consist mostly of cleaning of storm 
water catch basins, street sweeping, and leaf disposal. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 73 of 202

115



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 46 May 23, 2016 

SUNSET BOULEVARD (GREENGATE DRIVE TO REDFERN DRIVE) 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: X12 

Category: Maintenance Project Navision Job# n/a 

Total Project Cost: $74,850   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $74,850  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project rehabilitates approximately 1,600 linear feet of Sunset Boulevard road surface from the Greengate Drive 
intersection to the Redfern Drive intersection. This project rehabilitates the street surface by placing a new 2-inch AC 
pavement overlay on the existing pavement. The schedule for project design and construction has not been established for 
this project. The expectation is that funding will consist of street maintenance fund monies. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

City Public Works staff will be responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of this road after construction is completed. 
However, being new construction, it is anticipated that this work will be minimal and consist mostly of cleaning of storm 
water catch basins, street sweeping, and leaf disposal. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 74 of 202

116



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 47 May 23, 2016 

OREGON STREET (LINCOLN STREET TO MURDOCK ROAD) 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: X13 

Category: Maintenance Project Navision Job# n/a 

Total Project Cost: $215,578   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $215,578  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project rehabilitates approximately 2,800 linear feet of Oregon Street road surface from the Lincoln Street intersection 
to the intersection with Murdock Road. This project rehabilitates the street surface by placing a new 2-inch AC pavement 
section on the existing pavement. A project design and construction schedule has not been established.  The expectation is 
that funding will consist of street maintenance fund monies. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

City Public Works staff will be responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of this road after construction is completed. 
However, being new construction, it is anticipated that this work will be minimal and consist mostly of cleaning of storm 
water catch basins, street sweeping, and leaf disposal. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 75 of 202

117



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(INTENTIONAL BLANK PAGE) 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 76 of 202

118



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 48 May 23, 2016 

HANDLEY STREET SIDEWALK INFILL 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P1 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $15,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $15,000  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes construction of sidewalk along the north side of Handley Street from Elwert Road to the existing 
sidewalk terminus, approximately 250 feet east of Elwert Road.  Funding for this project has not been identified.  Design and 
construction schedule has not been established. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works will be responsible for the long term observation of sidewalk maintenance conditions.  The property owner 
whose property fronts the sidewalk will be responsible for the long term maintenance in compliance with City Code. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 77 of 202

119



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 49 May 23, 2016 

HIGHWAY 99W SIDEWALK INFILL 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P2 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $5,938,495   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $5,938,495  (Undefined)    

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes construction of sidewalk along both sides of Highway 99W between the north and south limits of the 
Urban Growth Boundary.  Project is expected to include a combination of funding from State ODOT, City Transportation 
SDC’s, and private developments.  Funding for this project has not been identified.  Design and construction schedule has 
not been established. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works staff will be responsible for the long term observation of sidewalk maintenance condition.  Necessary 
maintenance repairs will be the responsibility of the property owner fronting the sidewalk, and the City in open space areas. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 78 of 202

120



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 50 May 23, 2016 

HIGHWAY 99W CROSSWALKS 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P3 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $7,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $7,000  (Undefined)    

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes installation of pedestrian crosswalks at existing traffic signal locations on Highway 99W between Edy 
Road and Sunset Boulevard.  The crosswalk improvements may be phased individually with their corresponding intersection 
improvement project (D16, D17 and D31).   Funding for this project has not been identified.  Design and construction 
schedule has not been established. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works staff will be responsible for the long term observation of crosswalk maintenance condition.  ODOT 
maintenance program will be responsible for maintenance of the crosswalks. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 79 of 202

121



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 51 May 23, 2016 

ICE AGE TONQUIN TRAIL / HIGHWAY 99W CONNECTION 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P4 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $366,781   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $366,781  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes construction of a shared use path that connects the proposed Cedar Creek Trail / Tonquin Trail to 
Highway 99W.  Funding for this project has not been identified, nor has a project design/construction schedule been 
established. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Yearly maintenance actions would include cleaning the 
trail surface, replacing any worn or damaged sections, keeping vegetation cut back from the trail, and maintaining any trail 
structural elements.  Estimated at $10,000 per year. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 80 of 202

122



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 52 May 23, 2016 

10TH STREET NEIGHBORHOOD GREENWAY 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P5 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $10,500   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $10,500  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes construction of sidewalks and shared lane markings to 10
th

 Street and Gleneagle Drive from Sherwood 
Boulevard to the planned Cedar Creek / Tonquin Trail connection.  Funding for this project has not been identified.  Design 
and construction schedule has not been established. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include restriping and sidewalk 
maintenance observation. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 81 of 202

123



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 53 May 23, 2016 

SHERWOOD BOULEVARD IMPROVEMENTS 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P6 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $1,273,618   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $1,273,618  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes constructing improvements to Sherwood Boulevard between Langer Drive and 3
rd

 Street that are 
consistent with the Sherwood Town Center Plan.  Major improvements include a shared use path on the east side, wider 
sidewalks on the west side, narrower travel lanes, and landscaping. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include landscaping, facility 
cleaning, and any structural repairs. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 82 of 202

124



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 54 May 23, 2016 

LANGER TO TRUMPETER SHARED USE PATH 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P7 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $435,976   

  
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $435,976  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes constructing a shared use path connecting Langer Drive and Trumpeter Drive. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include landscaping and 
surfaces. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 83 of 202

125



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 55 May 23, 2016 

HOPKINS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL NORTH SHARED USE PATH 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P8 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $303,946   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $303,946  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes constructing a shared use path along the north side of Hopkins School connecting Sherwood 
Boulevard to the existing trail south of Baler Way. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include landscaping and 
surfaces. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 84 of 202

126



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 56 May 23, 2016 

HOPKINS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL EAST SHARED USE PATH 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P9 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $495,319   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $495,319  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes constructing a shared use path along the east side of Hopkins Elementary School, connecting the 
existing trail south of Baler Way to St Francis Church access road. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include landscaping and 
structural maintenance of the pathway. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 85 of 202

127



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 57 May 23, 2016 

SHERWOOD MIDDLE SCHOOL SHARED USE PATH 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P10 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $529,091   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $529,091  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes constructing a shared use path on the east side of Sherwood Middle School, connecting the Hopkins 
Elementary School East Shared Use Path to the pear-about at the Oregon Street/Ash Street intersection. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include landscaping and 
cleaning of sidewalks. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 86 of 202

128



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 58 May 23, 2016 

ICE AGE TONQUIN TRAIL SEGMENT 6 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P11 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $4,650,409   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $4,650,409  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes constructing the Ice Age Tonquin Trail Segment 6 improvements from immediately west of the Tonquin 
Road/Morgan Road intersection to the Tonquin Road/Oregon Road intersection. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility within the City limits.  Maintenance items will include 
landscaping and cleaning of sidewalks. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 87 of 202

129



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 59 May 23, 2016 

ICE AGE TONQUIN TRAIL SEGMENT 7 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P12 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $1,438,318   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $1,438,319  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes constructing the Ice Age Tonquin Trail Segment 7 improvements from immediately west of the Tonquin 
Road/Oregon Street intersection to immediately north of Park Street. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility within the City limits.  Maintenance items will include 
landscaping and cleaning of sidewalks. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 88 of 202

130



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 60 May 23, 2016 

ICE AGE TONQUIN TRAIL SEGMENT 8 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P13 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $4,677,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous $370,965  
ODOT TGM Grant, City 
Transportation SDC Match 

85/15 Split   

FY16-17 $5,977,000  
ODOT TGM Grant, City 
Transportation SDC Match 

85/15 Split   

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes constructing Ice Age Tonquin Trail Segment 8 from immediately north of Park Street to immediately 
south of Hwy 99W, and the Hwy 99W crossing at Meinecke Road. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include landscaping, cleaning 
of sidewalks and repair of any damaged structural elements. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 89 of 202

131



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 61 May 23, 2016 

ICE AGE TONQUIN TRAIL SEGMENT 9 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P14 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $1,347,898   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $1,348,898  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes constructing Ice Age Tonquin Trail Segment 9 from immediately north of Highway 99W to Roy Rogers 
Road (including Roy Rogers intersection). 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility within the City limits.  Maintenance items will include 
landscaping, cleaning of sidewalks, and repair or replacement of damaged structural items. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 90 of 202

132



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 62 May 23, 2016 

ICE AGE TONQUIN TRAIL SEGMENT 10 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P15 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $1,867,725   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $1,867,725  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes constructing Ice Age Tonquin Trail Segment 10 improvements from Roy Rogers Road north to the 
Tualatin National Wildlife Refuge trailhead. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility within the City limits.  Maintenance items will include 
landscaping, sidewalk cleaning, and repair or replacement of any damaged structural elements. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 91 of 202

133



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 63 May 23, 2016 

ICE AGE TONQUIN TRAIL SEGMENT 11 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P16 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $2,372,653   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $2,372,653  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes constructing the Ice Age Tonquin Trail Segment 11 improvements from immediately east of Tonquin 
Road/Oregon Street intersection to immediately west of Cipole Road. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility within the City limits.  Maintenance items will include 
landscaping, sidewalk cleaning, and repair or replacement of any damaged structural elements. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 92 of 202

134



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 64 May 23, 2016 

ICE AGE TONQUIN TRAIL SEGMENT 12 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P17 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $3,690,738   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $3,690,738  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes constructing the Age Tonquin Trail Segment 12 improvements from immediately west of Cipole Road 
to immediately north of Highway 99W. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility within the City limits.  Maintenance items will include 
landscaping, sidewalk cleaning, and repair or replacement of any damaged structural elements. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 93 of 202

135



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 65 May 23, 2016 

CIPOLE ROAD SIDEWALK INFILL 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P18 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $51,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $51,000  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes constructing approximately 800 feet of sidewalk along the east side of Cipole Road from approximately 
1,250 feet north of Tualatin-Sherwood Road to the existing sidewalk terminus located approximately 450 feet north of 
Tualatin-Sherwood Road. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include landscaping and 
cleaning of sidewalks. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 94 of 202

136



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 66 May 23, 2016 

12TH STREET SIDEWALK INFILL 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P19 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $70,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $70,000  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes constructing sidewalk along the south side of 12
th

 Street from Highway 99W to Sherwood Boulevard.  
Design items include obtaining right-of-way and access easements. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include landscaping and 
cleaning of sidewalks. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 95 of 202

137



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 67 May 23, 2016 

DIVISION STREET SIDEWALK INFILL 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P20 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $1,287,891   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $1,287,891  (Undefined)    

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes constructing sidewalk along both sides of Division Street from Main Street to Cuthill Place. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include landscaping and 
cleaning of sidewalks. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 96 of 202

138



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 68 May 23, 2016 

MEINECKE ROAD SIDEWALK INFILL 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P21 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $23,500   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $23,500  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes constructing sidewalk along the north side of Meinecke Road from Lee Drive to the existing sidewalk 
terminus to the east (approximately 400 feet). 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include landscaping and 
cleaning of sidewalks. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 97 of 202

139



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 69 May 23, 2016 

PINE STREET SIDEWALK INFILL SEGMENT 1 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P22 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $12,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $12,000  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes constructing sidewalk along the west side of Pine Street from Willamette Street to Columbia Street. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include landscaping and 
cleaning of sidewalk. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 98 of 202

140



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 70 May 23, 2016 

PINE STREET SIDEWALK INFILL SEGMENT 2 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P23 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $68,500   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $68,500  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes constructing sidewalks along the east side of Pine Street from Division Street to Sunset Boulevard, 
and the fill the sidewalk gap along the west side of Pine just north of Sunset Boulevard. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include landscaping and 
cleaning the sidewalks. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 99 of 202

141



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 71 May 23, 2016 

WILLAMETTE STREET SIDEWALK INFILL SEGMENT 1 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P24 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $929,411   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $929,411  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes constructing sidewalk along the south side of Willamette Street from Division Street to Upper Roy 
Street. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include landscaping and 
cleaning the sidewalks. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 100 of 202

142



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 72 May 23, 2016 

WILLAMETTE STREET SIDEWALK INFILL SEGMENT 2 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P25 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $8,500   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $8,500  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes constructing sidewalk along the north side of Willamette Street from Cochran Drive to Murdock Road. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include landscaping and 
cleaning of sidewalks. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 101 of 202

143



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 73 May 23, 2016 

HIGHWAY 99W GRADE-SEPARATED CROSSING 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P26 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $6,412,057   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $6,412,057  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes constructing a grade separated crossing of Highway 99W for pedestrians and bicyclists, providing a 
direct connection for the Ice Age Tonquin Trail east and west of the highway.  Items will include constructing a combination 
pedestrian/wildlife habitat undercrossing of Highway 99W.  The new undercrossing will be located within the existing stream 
culvert crossing corridor of Highway 99W.   Significant coordination between ODOT, City, County, and other jurisdiction 
agencies will be necessary for the project.  Project schedule and funding sources have not been determined at this time.   

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include landscaping, pavement 
surfaces, and non-structural items. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 102 of 202

144



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 74 May 23, 2016 

WASHINGTON STREET SIDEWALK INFILL 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P27 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $46,500   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $46,500  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes constructing sidewalk along both sides of Washington Street from Division Street to Tualatin Street. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include landscaping and 
sidewalk cleanings. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 103 of 202

145



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 75 May 23, 2016 

PINE STREET / DIVISION STREET CROSSING IMPROVEMENTS 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P28 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $1,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18 $1,000  (Undefined)    

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes installing crosswalk markings at the Pine Street/Division Street intersection. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include restriping the 
intersection when needed. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 104 of 202

146



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 76 May 23, 2016 

PINE STREET / SUNSET BOULEVARD CROSSING IMPROVEMENTS 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P29 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $6,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous $6,000  Transportation SDC 100%   

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes installation of crosswalk striping at the Pine Street/Sunset Boulevard intersection. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include restriping the crossings 
when needed. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 105 of 202

147



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 77 May 23, 2016 

SUNSET BOULEVARD/ST. CHARLES WAY CROSSING IMPROVEMENTS 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P30 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $1,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $ 1,000  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes installation of crosswalk striping at the intersection of Sunset Boulevard and St. Charles Way. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include restriping the crosswalk 
markings when needed. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 106 of 202

148



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 78 May 23, 2016 

SUNSET BOULEVARD / REDFERN DRIVE CROSSING IMPROVEMENT 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P31 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $10,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $10,000  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes installation of pedestrian crossing at the Sunset Boulevard / Redfern Drive intersection.  

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include restriping the 
pedestrian crossing as needed. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 107 of 202

149



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 79 May 23, 2016 

SUNSET BOULEVARD / EXISTING TRAIL CROSSING IMPROVEMENTS 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: 
 

P35 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $1,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $ 1,000  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes installation of pedestrian crossing across Sunset Boulevard at the existing trail located west of 
Heatherwood Lane. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include restriping the crossing 
on an as-needed basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 108 of 202

150



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 80 May 23, 2016 

LOCAL OFF-STREET TRAIL SEGMENT 1 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P36 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $1,350,200   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $1,350,200  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes constructing an off-street trail from the existing trail on Seely Lane to the Highway 99W/Home Depot 
access intersection (approximately 4,100 feet length). 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include landscaping and repairs 
of trail facilities on an as-needed basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 109 of 202

151



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 81 May 23, 2016 

LOCAL OFF-STREET TRAIL SEGMENT 4 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P39 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $337,550   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $337,550  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes constructing an off-street trail from Highway 99W to Woodhaven Drive, approximately 150-feet west of 
Dewey Drive (approximately 1,000-feet length). 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include landscaping and repairs 
of trail facilities on an as-needed basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 110 of 202

152



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 82 May 23, 2016 

LOCAL OFF-STREET TRAIL SEGMENT 5 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P40 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $514,362   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $514,362  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes constructing an off-street trail segment from the Stellar Drive trail to Sunset Boulevard at the Gatewood 
Drive pedestrian access, and an off-street trail segment connecting the Richen Park Terrace pedestrian access to Pinehurst 
Drive along the back of Woodhaven Park (approximately 1,600 feet length). 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include landscaping and repair 
of trail facilities on an as-needed basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 111 of 202

153



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 83 May 23, 2016 

LOCAL OFF-STREET TRAIL SEGMENT 6 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P41 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $273,037   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $273,037  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes construction of off-street trail from Sunset Boulevard, just west of Redfern Drive, to the St. Charles 
Way trail (approximately 1,500 feet length). 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include landscaping and repairs 
to trail facilities on an as-needed basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 112 of 202

154



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 84 May 23, 2016 

LOCAL OFF-STREET TRAIL SEGMENT 7 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P42 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $218,430   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $218,430  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes construction of an off-street trail from the north end of the St Charles Way trail to Villa Road at the 
existing trail head (approximately 3,200 feet length). 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include landscaping and repairs 
to trail facilities on an as-needed basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 113 of 202

155



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 85 May 23, 2016 

OREGON STREET SIDEWALK INFILL 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P44 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $225,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18 $225,000  Transportation SDC 100%   

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes constructing sidewalk along the south side of Oregon Street between Hall Street and Orland Street. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include landscaping and repair 
of sidewalk facilities on an as-needed basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 114 of 202

156



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 86 May 23, 2016 

MURDOCK ROAD SIDEWALK INFILL SEGMENT 1 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P45 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $77,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $77,000  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes construction of sidewalk along the east side of Murdock Road between Willamette Street and the 
Murdock Road/Oregon Street intersection. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include landscaping and repairs 
to trail facilities on an as-needed basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 115 of 202

157



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 87 May 23, 2016 

MURDOCK ROAD SIDEWALK INFILL SEGMENT 2 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P46 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $588,596   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $588,596  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes construction of pedestrian sidewalk along the east side of Murdock Road between Sunset Boulevard to 
the existing sidewalk terminus approximately 600 feet south of Upper Roy Street. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include landscaping, sidewalk 
cleaning, and repairs of the sidewalk facilities on an as-needed basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 116 of 202

158



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 88 May 23, 2016 

ROY ROGERS ROAD CROSSING IMPROVEMENTS 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P47 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $50,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $50,000  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes installation of a pedestrian crossing on Roy Rogers Road between Lynnly Way and Lavender Avenue 
(e.g. at the Seely Lane alignment). 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include restriping the 
pedestrian crossing on an as-needed basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 117 of 202

159



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 89 May 23, 2016 

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPES MASTER PLAN PHASE 3 (OLD TOWN SECONDARY STREETS) 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P49 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $528,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $528,000  (Undefined)    

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes completing Phase 3 (Old Town Secondary Streets) of the Downtown Streetscapes Master Plan. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include landscaping, sidewalk 
cleaning, and repair of sidewalk facilities on an as-needed basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 118 of 202

160



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 90 May 23, 2016 

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPES MASTER PLAN PHASE 4 (OLD TOWN RESIDENTIAL STREETS) 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: P50 

Category: Capital Project-Pedestrian Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $528,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $528,000  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes completing Phase 4 (Old Town Residential Neighborhoods) of the Downtown Streetscapes Master 
Plan. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include landscaping, sidewalk 
cleaning, and repairs of sidewalk facilities on an as-needed basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 119 of 202

161



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(INTENTIONAL BLANK PAGE) 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 120 of 202

162



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 91 May 23, 2016 

MURDOCK ROAD (NORTH) REGIONAL STORMWATER FACILITY 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: RC-1 

Category: Capital Project - Storm Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $400,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $ 400,000  Storm Water SDC 100%   

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project is identified in the City’s Stormwater Master Plan. This project constructs a regional storm water treatment and 
retention/detention facility located on the east side of Murdock Road, approximately 800 feet south of the intersection with 
Oregon Street. This project will treat portions of upstream residential area and provide reduction of peak runoff rates. 
Project funding has not been identified, nor has a project design/construction schedule been established. The expectation is 
that funding will consist of a combination of City SDC and CWS SWM CIP reimbursement monies. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance will consist of inspection and cleaning the water quality facility to maintain its functionality. This 
work will be performed on a yearly basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 121 of 202

163



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 92 May 23, 2016 

OREGON STREET REGIONAL STORMWATER FACILITY 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: RC-2 

Category: Capital Project – Storm Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $400,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $400,000  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project is identified in the City’s Stormwater Master Plan. This project constructs a regional storm water treatment 
facility located north of Oregon Street and west of the Murdock Road roundabout, and which will serve the Tannery site 
acreage. The construction of this storm water quality facility will increase the redevelopment potential of the Tannery site. 
Project funding has not been identified, nor has a project design/construction schedule been established. The expectation is 
that funding will consist of a combination of City SDC and CWS SWM CIP reimbursement monies. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance will consist of inspection and cleaning the water quality facility to maintain its functionality. This 
work will be performed on a yearly basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 122 of 202

164



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 93 May 23, 2016 

AREA 48 LOWER ROCK CREEK REGIONAL STORMWATER FACILITY 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: RC-3 

Category: Capital Project – Storm Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $819,270   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $819,270  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project is identified in the City’s Stormwater Master Plan. This project constructs a regional storm water treatment 
facility located on the north side of Tualatin-Sherwood Road, just east of Rock Creek culvert crossing. This project will treat 
runoff from adjacent industrial developments and Tualatin-Sherwood Road right-of-way. Project funding has not been 
identified, nor has a project design/construction schedule been established. The expectation is that funding will consist of a 
combination of City SDC and CWS SWM CIP reimbursement monies. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance will consist of inspection and cleaning the water quality facility to maintain its functionality. This 
work will be performed on a yearly basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 123 of 202

165



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 94 May 23, 2016 

AREA 48 TONQUIN ROAD (NORTH) STORMWATER QUALITY FACILITY 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: RC-4 

Category: Capital Project – Storm Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $200,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17 $35,000  Transportation Improvement SDC 100%   

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $200,000  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project is identified in the City’s Stormwater Master Plan. This project constructs a stormwater treatment facility located 
on the north side of Oregon Street at the intersection with Tonquin Road, along the east bank of Rock Creek. This project 
will treat runoff from portion of Oregon Street right-of-way. Project funding has not been identified, nor has a project 
design/construction schedule been established. The expectation is that funding will consist of a combination of City SDC 
and CWS SWM CIP reimbursement monies. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance will consist of inspection and cleaning the water quality facility to maintain its functionality. This 
work will be performed on a yearly basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 124 of 202

166



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 95 May 23, 2016 

AREA 48 TONQUIN ROAD (SOUTH) STORMWATER FACILITY 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: RC-5 

Category: Capital Project – Storm Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $1,475,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $1,475,000  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project is identified in the City’s Stormwater Master Plan. This project constructs a regional stormwater treatment 
facility located on the south side of Oregon Street and east of Tonquin Road, along the east bank of a tributary to Rock 
Creek. This project will treat runoff from future developments in the area, primarily industrial use. Project funding has not 
been identified, nor has a project design/construction schedule been established. The expectation is that funding will consist 
of a combination of City SDC and CWS SWM CIP reimbursement monies. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance will consist of inspection and cleaning the water quality facility to maintain its functionality. This 
work will be performed on a yearly basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 125 of 202

167



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 96 May 23, 2016 

MURDOCK ROAD (SOUTH) STORMWATER FACILITY 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: RC-6 

Category: Capital Project – Storm Navision Job# n/a 

Total Project Cost: $240,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $ 240,000  Storm Water SDC 100%   

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project is identified in the City’s Stormwater Master Plan. This project constructs a combined stormwater treatment and 
detention facility located on the east side of Murdock Road, approximately 500 feet north of Upper Roy Road. This project 
will treat runoff from future residential development before entering the public storm drainage system. Project funding has 
not been identified, nor has a project design/construction schedule been established. The expectation is that funding will 
consist of a combination of City SDC and CWS SWM CIP reimbursement monies. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance will consist of inspection and cleaning the water quality facility to maintain its functionality. This 
work will be performed on a yearly basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 126 of 202

168



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 97 May 23, 2016 

LADD HILL REGIONAL STORMWATER FACILITY 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: CC-1 

Category: Capital Project – Storm Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $220,637   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $220,637  (Undefined)    

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project is identified in the City’s Stormwater Master Plan. This project consists of improving existing facilities located on 
the east and west sides of Ladd Hill Road, approximately 250 feet south of the intersection with Sunset Boulevard. 
Improvements include removing silt build-up on the downstream side of the culvert under Ladd Hill Road, reconfiguration of 
the existing swale to meet current CWS standards, investigation on capacity of the downstream channel and 
implementation of findings. Project funding has not been identified, nor has a project design/construction schedule been 
established. The expectation is that funding will consist of a combination of City SDC and CWS SWM CIP reimbursement 
monies. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance will consist of inspection and cleaning the water quality facility to maintain its functionality. This 
work will be performed on a yearly basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 127 of 202

169



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 98 May 23, 2016 

SOUTH STELLA OLSEN PARK STORMWATER FACILITY 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: CC-4 

Category: Capital Project – Storm Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $250,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $250,000  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project is identified in the City’s Stormwater Master Plan. This project constructs a stormwater treatment facility located 
at Stella Olsen Park, east of the Sherwood High School ball fields. This project will treat runoff from existing residential 
areas and high school impervious areas, currently not treated. Project funding has not been identified, nor has a project 
design/construction schedule been established. The expectation is that funding will consist of a combination of City SDC 
and CWS SWM CIP reimbursement monies. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance will consist of inspection and cleaning the water quality facility to maintain its functionality. This 
work will be performed on a yearly basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 128 of 202

170



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 99 May 23, 2016 

COMMUNITY CAMPUS STORMWATER FACILITY 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: CC-5 

Category: Capital Project – Storm Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $250,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $250,000  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project is identified in the City’s Stormwater Master Plan. This project constructs a stormwater treatment facility located 
on the east bank of Cedar Creek near the intersection of North Sherwood Boulevard and Gleneagle Drive. This project will 
treat runoff from surrounding vicinity including Sherwood Boulevard right-of-way, the shopping center at Langer Drive and 
Highway 99W, the residential area on Gleneagle Drive and portions of the nearby schools. Project funding has not been 
identified, nor has a project design/construction schedule been established. The expectation is that funding will consist of a 
combination of City SDC and CWS SWM CIP reimbursement monies. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance will consist of inspection and cleaning the water quality facility to maintain its functionality. This 
work will be performed on a yearly basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 129 of 202

171



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 100 May 23, 2016 

GLENEAGLE DRIVE STORMWATER FACILITY 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: CC-6 

Category: Capital Project – Storm Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $120,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20 $ 120,000  Storm Water SDC 100%   

Future       

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project is identified in the City’s Stormwater Master Plan. This project constructs a stormwater treatment facility located 
on the east bank of Cedar Creek near the intersection of Gleneagle Drive and 10

th
 Street. This project will treat runoff from 

existing residential area, currently not treated. Project funding has not been identified, nor has a project design/construction 
schedule been established. The expectation is that funding will consist of a combination of City SDC and CWS SWM CIP 
reimbursement monies. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance will consist of inspection and cleaning the water quality facility to maintain its functionality. This 
work will be performed on a yearly basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 130 of 202

172



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 101 May 23, 2016 

GLENCOE COURT STORMWATER FACILITY 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: CC-7 

Category: Capital Project – Storm Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $100,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $100,000  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project is identified in the City’s Stormwater Master Plan. This project constructs a stormwater treatment facility located 
on the east bank of Cedar Creek near the intersection of Glencoe Court and Gleneagle Drive. This project will treat runoff 
from existing residential area, currently not treated. Project funding has not been identified, nor has a project 
design/construction schedule been established. The expectation is that funding will consist of a combination of City SDC 
and CWS SWM CIP reimbursement monies. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance will consist of inspection and cleaning the water quality facility to maintain its functionality. This 
work will be performed on a yearly basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 131 of 202

173



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 102 May 23, 2016 

GLENEAGLE VILLAGE REGIONAL STORMWATER FACILITY 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: CC-8 

Category: Capital Project – Storm Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $120,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $120,000  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project is identified in the City’s Stormwater Master Plan. This project constructs a stormwater treatment facility located 
on the east bank of Cedar Creek near the intersection of Gleneagle Drive and Gleneagle Village Condominiums. This 
project will treat runoff from existing residential areas, currently not treated. Project funding has not been identified, nor has 
a project design/construction schedule been established. The expectation is that funding will consist of a combination of City 
SDC and CWS SWM CIP reimbursement monies. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance will consist of inspection and cleaning the water quality facility to maintain its functionality. This 
work will be performed on a yearly basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 132 of 202

174



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 103 May 23, 2016 

EDY ROAD STORMWATER FACILITY 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: CC-9 

Category: Capital Project – Storm Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $285,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $ 285,000  Storm Water SDC 100%   

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project is identified in the City’s Stormwater Master Plan. This project constructs a stormwater treatment facility located 
on the north side of Edy Road near the east side of Cedar Creek. This project will treat runoff from existing residential areas, 
currently not treated. Project funding has not been identified, nor has a project design/construction schedule been 
established. The expectation is that funding will consist of a combination of City SDC and CWS SWM CIP reimbursement 
monies. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance will consist of inspection and cleaning the water quality facility to maintain its functionality. This 
work will be performed on a yearly basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 133 of 202

175



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 104 May 23, 2016 

SAINT CHARLES (NORTH) STORMWATER FACILITY 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: CC-10 

Category: Capital Project – Storm Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $85,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19 $85,000  Storm Water SDC 100%   

FY19-20       

Future       

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project is identified in the City’s Stormwater Master Plan. This project constructs a proprietary treatment system located 
on Saint Charles Way, approximately 1,000 feet north of Sunset Boulevard. This project will treat runoff from existing 
residential area, currently not treated. Project funding has not been identified, nor has a project design/construction 
schedule been established. The expectation is that funding will consist of a combination of City SDC and CWS SWM CIP 
reimbursement monies. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance will consist of inspection and cleaning the water quality facility to maintain its functionality. This 
work will be performed on a yearly basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 134 of 202

176



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 105 May 23, 2016 

SAINT CHARLES (SOUTH) STORMWATER FACILITY 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: CC-11 

Category: Capital Project – Storm Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $95,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19 $95,000  Storm Water SDC 100%   

FY19-20       

Future       

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project is identified in the City’s Stormwater Master Plan. This project constructs a proprietary treatment system located 
on Saint Charles Way, approximately 300 feet north of Sunset Boulevard. This project will treat runoff from existing 
residential area, currently not treated. Project funding has not been identified, nor has a project design/construction 
schedule been established. The expectation is that funding will consist of a combination of City SDC and CWS SWM CIP 
reimbursement monies. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance will consist of inspection and cleaning the water quality facility to maintain its functionality. This 
work will be performed on a yearly basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 135 of 202

177



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 106 May 23, 2016 

BROOKMAN AREA (AREA 54/55) UPPER LADD HILL REGIONAL STORMWATER 

TREATMENT FACILITY FEASABILITY STUDY AND DESIGN 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: CC-13 

Category: Capital Project – Storm Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $151,250   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $151,250  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

The project is to define an area where a regional stormwater quality treatment facility may be located and to provide a 
design for its construction. These design drawings will be provided to developers for their use in development of the 
Brookman Area (Areas 54/55). This level of work will not have any impact on Public Works maintenance staff. Project 
funding has not been identified, nor has a project design/construction schedule been established. The expectation is that 
funding will consist of a combination of City SDC and CWS SWM CIP reimbursement monies. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

No Public Works maintenance efforts will be required for this phase of the project. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 136 of 202

178



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 107 May 23, 2016 

BROOKMAN AREA (AREA 54/55 EAST) REGIONAL STORMWATER FACILITY 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: CC-14 

Category: Capital Project – Storm Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $847,950   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $847,950  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project is identified in the City’s Stormwater Master Plan. This project constructs a combined regional water quality and 
detention facility located near the north boundary of Area 54/55, just east of the railroad tracks. This project will treat runoff 
from future development area before entering the public system and also reduce peak runoff rates. Project funding has not 
been identified, nor has a project design/construction schedule been established. The expectation is that funding will consist 
of a combination of City SDC and CWS SWM CIP reimbursement monies. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance will consist of inspection and cleaning the water quality facility to maintain its functionality. This 
work will be performed on a yearly basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 137 of 202

179



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 108 May 23, 2016 

BROOKMAN ROAD (AREA 54/55 WEST) REGIONAL STORMWATER FACILITY 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: CC-17 

Category: Capital Project – Storm Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $427,950   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $427,950  (Undefined)    

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project is identified in the City’s Stormwater Master Plan. This project constructs a combined regional water quality and 
detention facility located between Old Highway 99W and Middleton Road, just north of the railroad tracks. This project will 
treat runoff from future development area before discharging into Cedar Creek and also reduce peak runoff rates. Project 
funding has not been identified, nor has a project design/construction schedule been established. The expectation is that 
funding will consist of a combination of City SDC and CWS SWM CIP reimbursement monies. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance will consist of inspection and cleaning the water quality facility to maintain its functionality. This 
work will be performed on a yearly basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 138 of 202

180



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 109 May 23, 2016 

AREA 48 HEDGES CREEK STORMWATER FACILITY 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: HC-1 

Category: Capital Project – Storm Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $1,050,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $1,050,000  (Undefined)    

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project is identified in the City’s Stormwater Master Plan. This project constructs a regional water quality and possible 
detention facility located on the south side of Tualatin-Sherwood Road across from Cipole Road. This project will treat runoff 
from future development area discharging into Hedges Creek. Project funding has not been identified, nor has a project 
design/construction schedule been established. The expectation is that funding will consist of a combination of City SDC 
and CWS SWM CIP reimbursement monies. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance will consist of inspection and cleaning the water quality facility to maintain its functionality. This 
work will be performed on a yearly basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 139 of 202

181



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 110 May 23, 2016 

AREA 59 CHICKEN CREEK STORMWATER FACILITY 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: CH-1 

Category: Capital Project – Storm Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $145,000   

 
 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $145,000  (Undefined)    

 

  

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project is identified in the City’s Stormwater Master Plan. This project constructs a regional water quality facility located 
on the northwest corner of Area 59, on the east bank of the tributary of Chicken Creek. The facility may also include 
detention time to reduce impacts to existing downstream culverts. Project funding has not been identified, nor has a project 
design/construction schedule been established. The expectation is that funding will consist of a combination of City SDC 
and CWS SWM CIP reimbursement monies. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance will consist of inspection and cleaning the water quality facility to maintain its functionality. This 
work will be performed on a yearly basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 140 of 202

182



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 111 May 23, 2016 

AREA 48 COFFEE LAKE CREEK STORMWATER FACILITY 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: CL-1 

Category: Capital Project – Storm Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $500,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $500,000  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project is identified in the City’s Stormwater Master Plan. This project constructs a regional water quality facility to treat 
runoff from future development area, located on the southeast corner of Area 48. This facility may also include detention 
time to reduce impacts to existing downstream culverts. Project funding has not been identified, nor has a project 
design/construction schedule been established. The expectation is that funding will consist of a combination of City SDC 
and CWS SWM CIP reimbursement monies. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance will consist of inspection and cleaning the water quality facility to maintain its functionality. This 
work will be performed on a yearly basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 141 of 202

183



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 112 May 23, 2016 

CITYWIDE CATCH BASIN REMEDIATION PROGRAM 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: n/a 

Category: Maintenance Project-Storm Navision Job# n/a 

Total Project Cost: $360,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous $60,000      

FY16-17 $60,000  Storm Water Maintenance 100%   

FY17-18 $60,000      

FY18-19 $60,000      

FY19-20 $60,000      

Future $0      

 

  

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This program consists of replacement of un-sumped catch basins located within the City’s storm drainage conveyance 
system, in compliance with CWS’s MS4 Permit. The total number of un-sumped catch basins within the City’s system is 
estimated at 300 units. The expectation is to replace all 300 units over a 5-year timespan. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

After replacement of the unsumped catch basins, the maintenance requirements will be limited to cleaning the sumps by 
City crews on a yearly basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 142 of 202

184



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 113 May 23, 2016 

GLENEAGLE OUTFALL REMEDIATION 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: n/a 

Category: Maintenance Project-Storm Navision Job# n/a 

Total Project Cost: $15,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $15,000  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project is located off of Gleneagle Drive south of Glencoe Court. Maintenance consists of rehabilitating the storm 
drainage outfall to re-establish the hydraulic flow capabilities of the outfall, to clean the adjacent area of vegetation that may 
cause clogging, and to re-establish adjacent slopes which may have shifted or eroded over time. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

City long term maintenance will consist of clearing obstructions and cutting back overgrowth. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 143 of 202

185



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 114 May 23, 2016 

KAY APARTMENTS CULVERT REMEDIATION 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: n/a 

Category: Maintenance Project-Storm Navision Job# n/a 

Total Project Cost: $15,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $15,000  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project is located west of SW Murdock Road and north of Lower Roy Street. This project consists of rehabilitating the 
culvert outfall by re-establishing the rip-rap channel pad and rock armoring of the adjacent slopes, and clearing vegetation 
overgrowth, and clearing obstructions. 
 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

City long term maintenance will consist of clearing obstructions and cutting back overgrowth. 
 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 144 of 202

186



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 115 May 23, 2016 

2ND AND PARK STREETS WATER QUALITY FACILITY REMEDIATION 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: n/a 

Category: Maintenance Project-Storm Navision Job# n/a 

Total Project Cost: $12,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17 $35,000  Transportation SDC 100%   

FY17-18 $$  Transportation SDC 20% Stormwater SDC 80% 

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project is located in Stella Olsen Park at the terminus of Park Street, north of the 2
nd

 Street intersection. This project 
consists of rehabilitating the rip-rap energy dissipation pad, clearing vegetation overgrowth, removal of invasive plant 
species within the facility, and replanting with appropriate water quality facility vegetation. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Long-term maintenance will consist of clearing vegetation overgrowth, clearing obstructions, and removing invasive plant 
species. This work will be in compliance with CWS MS4 requirements. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 145 of 202

187



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 116 May 23, 2016 

CEDAR CREEK REGIONAL STORMWATER FACILITY REMEDIATION 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: n/a 

Category: Maintenance Project-Storm Navision Job# n/a 

Total Project Cost: $12,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $12,000  (Undefined)    

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project is located on the north side of Meinecke Road, and west of Stella Olsen Park. This project consists of 
rehabilitating the rip-rap energy dissipation pad, clearing vegetation overgrowth, removal of invasive plant species within the 
facility, and replanting with appropriate water quality facility vegetation. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Long term maintenance will consist of clearing vegetation overgrowth, clearing obstructions, and removing invasive plant 
species. This work will be in compliance with CWS MS4 requirements. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 146 of 202

188



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 117 May 23, 2016 

STORMWATER MASTER PLAN & SDC RATE UPDATE 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: n/a 

Category: Capital Project-Storm Navision Job# n/a 

Total Project Cost: $160,017   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous $154,017  City Stormwater SDC 100%   

FY16-17 $6,000  City Stormwater SDC 100%   

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project consists of updating the stormwater master plan and related system development charge methodology and 
rate.  Included in the study is analysis of the street lighting, and maintenance fees.  The work associated with this project 
extends across two budgetary years, 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

No anticipated allocation of staff time is foreseen once the master plan and related SDC rate methodology and fee is 
adopted. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 147 of 202

189



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

 

 

 

 

(INTENTIONAL BLANK PAGE)  

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 148 of 202

190



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 118 May 23, 2016 

BROOKMAN AREA (AREA 54/55) SANITARY SEWER CONVEYANCE SYSTEM EXTENSION  

Department: Engineering MP Project #: SS-4 

Category: Capital Project-Sanitary Navision Job# n/a 

Total Project Cost: $1,113,100   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $1,113,100  (Undefined)    

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project extends a public sanitary conveyance system mainline through the Brookman Area annexed property. This 
mainline extension will provide service for the future growth of the area. Funding will come from existing City sanitary sewer 
SDC funds or from private development expansion within the area. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance will consist mostly of inspection of the conveyance system on a bi-weekly basis and cleaning 
once every 5 to 10 years. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 149 of 202

191



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 119 May 23, 2016 

AREA 48 SOUTH SEWER CONVEYANCE SYSTEM EXTENSION – PHASE 1 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: SS-9 

Category: Capital Project-Sanitary Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $744,560   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $744,560  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project extends the public sanitary sewer conveyance system from Manhole 402NSan with approximately 3,280 linear 
feet of new 12-inch diameter pipe to serve the north and central zones of Area 48. Funding will come from existing City 
sanitary sewer SDC funds. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance will consist mostly of inspection of the conveyance system on a bi-yearly basis and cleaning 
once every 5 to 10 years. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 150 of 202

192



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 120 May 23, 2016 

AREA 48 NORTH SEWER CONVEYANCE SYSTEM EXTENSION – PHASE 2 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: SS-10 

Category: Capital Project-Sanitary Navision Job# n/a 

Total Project Cost: $683,497   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $683,497  (Undefined)    

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project extends the public sanitary sewer conveyance system from Manhole 414NSan with approximately 2,650 linear 
feet of new 15-inch diameter pipe to serve the south side of Area 48. The project will be funded by a combination of City 
SDC funds and reimbursement funds from CWS CIP program. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance will consist mostly of inspection of the conveyance system on a bi-yearly basis and cleaning 
once every 5 to 10 years. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 151 of 202

193



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 121 May 23, 2016 

ROCK CREEK TRUNK CAPACITY UPGRADE PHASE 2 (MANHOLE 414NSAN TO MANHOLE 

402NSAN) 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: SS-6 

Category: Capital Project-Sanitary Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $408,772   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $408,772  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project consists of replacing/upsizing approximately 1,436 linear feet of existing 15-inch diameter pipe with 18-inch 
diameter pipe between the two manholes noted above. The project will be funded by reimbursement funds from CWS CIP 
program. This upgrade is necessary to provide capacity for future growth and expansion of the northeast portion of 
Sherwood (Area 48). 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include regularly scheduled 
video inspection and cleaning on an as-needed basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 152 of 202

194



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 122 May 23, 2016 

ROCK CREEK TRUNK CAPACITY UPGRADE PHASE 1 (MANHOLE 402NSAN TO MANHOLE 

396NSAN) 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: SS-7 

Category: Capital Project-Sanitary Navision Job# n/a 

Total Project Cost: $401,244   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $401,244  (Undefined)    

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project consists of replacing/upsizing approximately 1,349 linear feet of existing 18-inch diameter pipe with 24-inch 
diameter pipe between the two manholes noted above. This upgrade is necessary to provide capacity for future growth and 
expansion of the northeast portion of Sherwood (Area 48). The project will be funded by reimbursement funds from CWS 
CIP program. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Maintenance of this system is the responsibility of CWS. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 153 of 202

195



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 123 May 23, 2016 

SW GLENEAGLE DRIVE SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: SS-13 

Category: Capital Project-Sanitary Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $49,813   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $ 49,813  Sanitary Improvement SDC 100%   

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project consists of replacing approximately 145 linear feet of existing 6-inch diameter sanitary sewer, from Manhole 
1201NSan to Manhole 1207NSan, with 8-inch diameter pipe. This upgrade will alleviate flow restrictions and bring this 
section into compliance with minimum pipe sizes for public sanitary sewer conveyance systems. City maintenance capability 
of the upgraded line will also be enhanced. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include regularly scheduled 
video inspection and cleaning of pipe system.   

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 154 of 202

196



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 124 May 23, 2016 

SW WASHINGTON STREET SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: SS-14 

Category: Capital Project-Sanitary Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $52,750   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18 $52,750  Sanitary SDC 100%   

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project consists of replacing approximately 250 linear feet of existing 6-inch diameter sanitary sewer, from Manhole 
341NSan to Manhole 342NSan, with 8-inch diameter pipe. This upgrade will alleviate flow restrictions and bring this section 
into compliance with minimum pipe sizes for public sanitary sewer conveyance systems. City maintenance capability of the 
upgraded line will also be enhanced. Funding will come from existing City sanitary sewer SDC funds. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include regularly scheduled  
video inspection and cleaning of pipe systems. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 155 of 202

197



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 125 May 23, 2016 

SW SCHAMBURG DRIVE AT DIVISION STREET SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: SS-15 

Category: Capital Project-Sanitary Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $388,298   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19 $388,298  Sanitary SDC 100%   

FY19-20       

Future       

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project consists of replacing approximately 1,162 linear feet of existing 6-inch diameter sanitary sewer, from Manhole 
43NSan to Manhole 919NSan, with 8-inch diameter pipe. This upgrade will alleviate flow restrictions and bring this section 
into compliance with minimum pipe sizes for public sanitary sewer conveyance systems. City maintenance capability of the 
upgraded line will also be enhanced. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include regularly scheduled 
video inspection, and pipe cleaning on an as needed basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 156 of 202

198



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 126 May 23, 2016 

MID-BLOCK SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION (BETWEEN RAILROAD STREET AND 1ST 

STREET, FROM PINE STREET TO PARK STREET) 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: SS-18 

Category: Capital Project-Sanitary Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $291,208   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17 $20,000  Sanitary Improvement SDC 100%   

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project consists of replacing approximately 362 linear feet of existing 6-inch diameter sanitary sewer, from Manhole 
346NSan to Manhole 343NSan, with 8-inch diameter pipe. In addition the existing manhole (Manhole 343NSan) should be 
replaced with a new manhole structure. Part of this project, approximately 150 linear feet, from mid-block between Pine and 
Washington Streets running across Washington Street, was replaced as part of the Downtown Streetscapes Phase II 
project. Funding will come from existing City sanitary sewer SDC funds. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include regularly scheduled 
video inspection, and pipe cleaning on an as needed basis. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 157 of 202

199



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 127 May 23, 2016 

OLD TOWN SANITARY SEWER LATERALS REHABILITATION 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: SS-18 

Category: Capital Project-Sanitary Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $40,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20 $40,000  Sanitary SDC 100%   

Future       

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project consists of replacing old damaged sewer laterals in Old Town. Funding will come from existing City sanitary 
sewer SDC funds. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include regularly scheduled 
video inspection of mainline pipe to ensure non-inflow & infiltration issues. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 158 of 202

200



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 128 May 23, 2016 

SUNSET BOULEVARD/PINE STREET SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: SS-1 

Category: Capital Project-Sanitary Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $252,800   

 

 
 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous $ 38,272  Sanitary SDC (Design) 100%   

FY16-17 $ 240,869  Sanitary SDC (Construction) 100%   

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

The project extends the existing sanitary sewer mainline within Sunset Boulevard, east 130 feet to serve several properties 
which currently rely on septic tanks.  As these properties septic systems fail, access to the public sanitary sewer will allow 
connection of service laterals from the properties.  Funding for this project will come from sanitary SDC’s. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include regular maintenance of 
the mainline meeting CWS standards. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 159 of 202

201



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 129 May 23, 2016 

SANITARY SEWER MASTER PLAN UPDATE AND SDC RATE STUDY 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: n/a 

Category: Capital Project-Sanitary Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $ 185,712   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous $ 171,582  Sanitary Sewer SDC 100%   

FY16-17 $ 14,130  Sanitary Sewer SDC 100%   

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

 

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project utilizes the updated Sanitary Sewer Master Plan for determining new sanitary sewer SDC’s and rates. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works will not have any maintenance responsibilities for this work effort. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 160 of 202

202



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 130 May 23, 2016 

 
EXISTING WRWTP UPGRADES 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: WRWTP-1 

Category: Water Supply Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $1,000,000   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19 $250,000  (Undefined)    

FY19-20 $250,000  (Undefined)    

Future $500,000  (Undefined)    

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project consists of two improvement projects at the plant related to surge mitigation and disinfectant contact time in 
order to deliver the current 15 mgd capacity.

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Maintenance is the responsibility of the City of Wilsonville.  No increase in costs expected. 

 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 161 of 202

203



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 131 May 23, 2016 

 
WRWTP PURCHASE 5 MGD INTAKE CAPACITY 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: WRWTP-2 

Category: Water Supply Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $2,000,000   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18 $100,000  (Undefined)    

FY18-19 $150,000  (Undefined)    

FY19-20 $150,000  (Undefined)    

Future $1,600,000  (Undefined)    

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project consists of the purchase of 5 mgd of additional capacity in the WRWTP’s oversized intake facilities to meet 
long-term supply needs. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Maintenance is the responsibility of the City of Wilsonville.  No increase in costs expected. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 162 of 202

204



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 132 May 23, 2016 

 
WRWTP TREATMENT EXPANSION – SHERWOOD 5 MGD SHARE 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: WRWTP-3 

Category: Water Supply Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $7,700,000   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18 $440,000  (Undefined)    

FY18-19 $550,000  (Undefined)    

FY19-20 $550,000  (Undefined)    

Future $6,160,000  (Undefined)    

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project pursues expansion of the WRWTP treatment facilities to secure a total capacity of 10 mgd from the plant.  
Current facility without upgrades can only reach 15 mgd.  This will be needed to meet the City of Sherwood’s, Wilsonville’s 
and other future partners’ demands. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Maintenance would be the responsibility of the City of Wilsonville.  It is anticipated that by adding infrastructure maintenance 
costs would increase.  Costs are unknown at this time.

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 163 of 202

205



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 133 May 23, 2016 

 
PROPOSED 1,600 GPM LADD HILL PUMP STATION 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: WTR-P1 

Category: Pump Station Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $477,000   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $477,000  (Undefined)    

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project constructs a new pump station to serve future customers along Ladd Hill Road in the proposed 400 Brookman 
Zone. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance for the improvements to include leak detection, hydrant and valve maintenance.  Increased 
maintenance costs will be minimal with new water improvements.

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 164 of 202

206



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 134 May 23, 2016 

 
PROPOSED 2,400 GPM KRUGER PUMP STATION 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: WTR-P2 

Category: Pump Station Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $2,547,000   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $2,547,000  (Undefined)    

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project constructs a new pump station in the same location as the existing reservoir in order to boost water from the 
reservoir to provide customers with constant pressure service at an HGL of approximately 630 ft. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance for the improvements to include leak detection, hydrant and valve maintenance.  Increased 
maintenance costs will be minimal with new water improvements.

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 165 of 202

207



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 135 May 23, 2016 

 
PROPOSED 1,600 GPM EDY ROAD PUMP STATION 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: WTR-P3 

Category: Pump Station Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $1,505,000   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $1,505,000  (Undefined)    

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project constructs a new pump station to serve future high-elevation customers along Edy Road near the western 
boundary of the West Urban Reserve in the proposed 475 West Zone.

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance for the improvements to include leak detection, hydrant and valve maintenance.  Increased 
maintenance costs will be minimal with new water improvements.

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 166 of 202

208



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 136 May 23, 2016 

 
FIRE FLOW CAPACITY –MARJORIE STEWART COMMUNITY/SENIOR CENTER 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: M-1 

Category: Water Main Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $36,000   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17 $36,000  Water Utility 100%   

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project will upgrade from an existing 6-inch to 8” line to serve the Sherwood Senior Center (21907 Sherwood 
Boulevard) from Sherwood Boulevard.  The current sized pipeline does not support the necessary fire flow requirement for 
the land use/occupancy type.   

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance for the upgrade to include leak detection, hydrant and valve maintenance.  Existing facilities are 
to be maintained the same.  No increase in costs anticipated for ongoing maintenance. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 167 of 202

209



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 137 May 23, 2016 

 
FIRE FLOW CAPACITY – NORTON AVENUE 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: M-2 

Category: Water Main Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $92,000   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18 $92,000  Water SDC 100%   

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project will upgrade 6-inch main along Norton Street from Willamette Street south to fire hydrant at Forest Avenue to an 
8” water mainline.   The current sized pipeline does not support the necessary fire flow requirement for the land 
use/occupancy type.   

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance for the upgrade to include leak detection, hydrant and valve maintenance.  Existing facilities are 
to be maintained the same.  No increase in costs anticipated for ongoing maintenance.

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 168 of 202

210



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 138 May 23, 2016 

 
FIRE FLOW CAPACITY – JUNE COURT 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: M-60 

Category: Water Main Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $43,000   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19 $43,000  Water SDC 100%   

FY19-20       

Future       

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project will upgrade 300 feet of 2-inch galvanized main with an addition of a fire hydrant on June Court from Cochran 
Avenue to end of cul-de-sac. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance for the improvements to include leak detection, hydrant and valve maintenance.  Increased 
maintenance costs will be minimal with new water improvements.

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 169 of 202

211



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 139 May 23, 2016 

 
EXPANSION TO BROOKMAN – LOOP FROM PROP SW SHERWOOD PRV TO HWY 99 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: M-7 

Category: Water Main Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $68,000   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18 $68,000  Water SDC 100%   

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project will install new main along Old Hwy 99W from existing dead end south of Crooked River Lane to proposed 
Southwest Sherwood PRV (V-1).  Projects to be phased as development proceeds.  Funding by private development.

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance for the improvements to include leak detection, hydrant and valve maintenance.  Increased 
maintenance costs will be minimal with new water improvements.

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 170 of 202

212



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 140 May 23, 2016 

 
EXPANSION TO BROOKMAN – LOOP FROM PROP SW SHERWOOD PRV TO HWY 99 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: M-8 

Category: Water Main Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $204,000   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18 $204,000  Water SDC 100%   

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project will install new main along Old Hwy 99W from proposed Southwest Sherwood PRV (V-1) across Goose Creek.  
Projects to be phased as development proceeds.  Supports development of future Brookman area.   Funding by private 
development.   

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance for the improvements to include leak detection, hydrant and valve maintenance.  Increased 
maintenance costs will be minimal with new water improvements.

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 171 of 202

213



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 141 May 23, 2016 

 
EXPANSION TO BROOKMAN – LOOP FROM PROP SW SHERWOOD PRV TO HWY 99 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: M-9 

Category: Water Main Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $239,000   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18 $239,000  Water SDC 100%   

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project will install new main along proposed Goose Creek arterial from Old Hwy 99W northwest to Hwy 99W.   Projects 
to be phased as development proceeds.  Supports development of future Brookman area.  Funding by private development.

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance for the improvements to include leak detection, hydrant and valve maintenance.  Increased 
maintenance costs will be minimal with new water improvements.

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 172 of 202

214



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 142 May 23, 2016 

 
EXPANSION TO TEA – LOOP WITH EXISTING OREGON STREET MAINS 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: M-29 

Category: Water Main Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $154,000   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18 $154,000  Water SDC 100%   

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project will extend Cipole Road main south from Tualatin Sherwood Road to proposed TEA water main backbone. 
Projects to be phased as development proceeds.  Supports development of future Tonquin Employment area.   Funding by 
private development. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance for the improvements to include leak detection, hydrant and valve maintenance.  Increased 
maintenance costs will be minimal with new water improvements.

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 173 of 202

215



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 143 May 23, 2016 

 
EXPANSION TO TEA – LOOP WITH EXISTING OREGON STREET MAINS 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: M-30 

Category: Water Main Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $264,000   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19 $264,000  Water SDC 100%   

FY19-20       

Future       

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project will install new main to form TEA water main backbone running northeast to southwest across TEA parallel to 
Oregon Street.  Supports development of future Tonquin Employment area.   Funding by private development.

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance for the improvements to include leak detection, hydrant and valve maintenance.  Increased 
maintenance costs will be minimal with new water improvements.

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 174 of 202

216



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 144 May 23, 2016 

 
EXPANSION TO TEA – LOOP WITH EXISTING OREGON STREET MAINS 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: M-31 

Category: Water Main Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $438,000   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19 $438,000  Water SDC 100%   

FY19-20       

Future       

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project will install new main to form TEA water main backbone running northeast to southwest across TEA parallel to 
Oregon Street.  Supports development of future Tonquin Employment area.   Funding by private development.

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance for the improvements to include leak detection, hydrant and valve maintenance.  Increased 
maintenance costs will be minimal with new water improvements.

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 175 of 202

217



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 145 May 23, 2016 

 
EXPANSION TO TEA – LOOP WITH EXISTING OREGON STREET MAINS 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: M-32 

Category: Water Main Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $267,000   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20 $267,000  Water SDC 100%   

Future       

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project will install new main across 21600 Oregon Street property to TEA water main backbone.  Supports 
development of future Tonquin Employment area.   Funding by private development.

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance for the improvements to include leak detection, hydrant and valve maintenance.  Increased 
maintenance costs will be minimal with new water improvements.

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 176 of 202

218



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 146 May 23, 2016 

 
EXPANSION TO TEA – LOOP WITH EXISTING OREGON STREET MAINS 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: M-33 

Category: Water Main Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $162,000   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20 $162,000  Water SDC 100%   

Future       

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project will extend proposed Cipole Road main (M-29) southeast to proposed 124th Avenue roadway extension south 
of Tualatin Sherwood Road.   Supports development of future Tonquin Employment area.  Funding by private development.  

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance for the improvements to include leak detection, hydrant and valve maintenance.  Increased 
maintenance costs will be minimal with new water improvements.

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 177 of 202

219



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 147 May 23, 2016 

 
EXPANSION TO TEA – LOOP WITH EXISTING OREGON STREET MAINS 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: M-34 

Category: Water Main Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $178,000   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20 $178,000  Water SDC 100%   

Future       

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project will install new main along proposed 124th Avenue roadway extension south of Tualatin-Sherwood Road 
continuing south to proposed collector road running west to east across TEA.   Supports development of future Tonquin 
Employment area.  Funding by private development.

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance for the improvements to include leak detection, hydrant and valve maintenance.  Increased 
maintenance costs will be minimal with new water improvements.

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 178 of 202

220



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 148 May 23, 2016 

 
10-YEAR (2024) PROJECTS - UPGRADE EXISTING WATER MAINS 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: M-3, 4 & 5 

Category: Water Main Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $300,000   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $300,000  (Undefined)    

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project will upgrade water mainlines along Sanders Terrace, Maidenfern Land and Middleton Road to transfer services 
from 455 to 380 Zone for fire flow to Brookman Expansion. Size increase is needed to support growth, fire flow 
requirements.  Projects to be phased as development proceeds.  Funding by private development. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance for the improvements to include leak detection, hydrant and valve maintenance.  Increased 
maintenance costs will be minimal with new water improvements.

 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 179 of 202

221



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 149 May 23, 2016 

 
10-YEAR (2024) PROJECTS – CONSTRUCT WATER MAINS FOR FUTURE EXPANSION 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: M-6, 10 to 19B, 35 to 37, 40 to 42 

Category: Water Main Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $5,275,000   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $5,275,000  (Undefined)    

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes installation of mains in various locations to connect to the Brookman Expansion 380 Zone (M-6, 10 to 
19B), to the TEA Expansion 380 Zone (M-35 to 37) and to the West Expansion 380 Zone (M-40 to 42). 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance for the improvements to include leak detection, hydrant and valve maintenance.  Increased 
maintenance costs will be minimal with new water improvements.

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 180 of 202

222



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 150 May 23, 2016 

 
20-YEAR (2034) PROJECTS  - CONSTRUCT NEW WATER MAINS FOR FUTURE EXPANSION 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: M-20 to 28, 43 to 45 

Category: Water Main Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $3,295,000   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $3,295,000  (Undefined)    

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes installation of mains in various locations to connect to the Brookman Expansion 380 Zone and 400 
Zone (M-20 to 28) and to the West Expansion 455 Zone (M-43 to 45).

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance for the improvements to include leak detection, hydrant and valve maintenance.  Increased 
maintenance costs will be minimal with new water improvements.

 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 181 of 202

223



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 151 May 23, 2016 

 
BEYOND 20-YEARS PROJECTS – CONSTRUCT WATER MAINS FOR FUTURE EXPANSION 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: M-38, 39, 40 to 59 

Category: Water Main Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $7,183,000   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $7,183,000  (Undefined)    

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes installation of mains in various locations to connect to the TEA Expansion 380 Zone (M-38, 39) and to 
the West Expansion 380, 455 and 630 Zones (M-46 to 59).

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance for the improvements to include leak detection, hydrant and valve maintenance.  Increased 
maintenance costs will be minimal with new water improvements.

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 182 of 202

224



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 152 May 23, 2016 

 
ROUTINE WATERLINE PIPE REPLACEMENT PROGRAM 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: WTR-(X) 

Category: Water Main Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $50K Annually   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous $50,000      

FY16-17 $50,000      

FY17-18 $50,000      

FY18-19 $50,000      

FY19-20 $50,000      

Future 
$50K 

Annually 
 Water Utility 100%   

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes replacement of pipes based on a 100-year life cycle adopting the following prioritization:  
1. Known pipe capacity and condition issues 
2. Pipe material – based on City record of pipe material and era of manufacture; Highest priorities are galvanized 
pipe and post-1950 cast iron 
3. Pipe age – coordinate replacement of pipes 50 years or older with other City utilities and transportation (City, 
County or State) projects 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance programs to include uni-directional 
flushing, valve maintenance, leak detection, hydrant maintenance and more.

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 183 of 202

225



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 153 May 23, 2016 

 
SW SHERWOOD PRV INSTALLATION 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: WTR-V-1 

Category: PRV Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $150,000   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18 $150,000  Water SDC 100%   

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project will install a pressure reducing valve to provide an emergency connection between the existing 455 Zone 
distribution mains and future 380 Zone mains on Old Highway 99W at the Brookman Annexation Boundary.

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance for the improvements to include leak detection, hydrant and valve maintenance.  Increased 
maintenance costs will be minimal with new water improvements.

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 184 of 202

226



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 154 May 23, 2016 

 
HANDLEY PRV INSTALLATION 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: WTR-V-2 

Category: PRV Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $150,000   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $150,000  (Undefined)    

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project will install a pressure reducing valve to provide an emergency connection between the existing 455 Zone 
distribution mains and future 380 Zone mains on Elwert Road at Handley Street.

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance for the improvements to include leak detection, hydrant and valve maintenance.  Increased 
maintenance costs will be minimal with new water improvements.

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 185 of 202

227



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 155 May 23, 2016 

 
HAIDE PRV INSTALLATION 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: WTR-V-3 

Category: PRV Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $150,000   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $150,000  (Undefined)    

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project will install a pressure reducing valve to provide an emergency connection between the future 630 West 
Pressure Zone and 455 Zone future expansion in the West Urban Reserve.

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance for the improvements to include leak detection, hydrant and valve maintenance.  Increased 
maintenance costs will be minimal with new water improvements.

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 186 of 202

228



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 156 May 23, 2016 

 
195th PRV INSTALLATION 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: WTR-V-4 

Category: PRV Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $150,000   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $150,000  (Undefined)    

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project will install a pressure reducing valve to provide an emergency connection between the future 630 West 
Pressure Zone and 455 Zone future expansion in the West Urban Reserve.

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance for the improvements to include leak detection, hydrant and valve maintenance.  Increased 
maintenance costs will be minimal with new water improvements.

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 187 of 202

229



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 157 May 23, 2016 

 
UPGRADE SCADA SYSTEM 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: WTR-(X) 

Category: Other Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $75,000   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17 $75,000  Water Utility 100%   

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project will upgrade the existing system, which is over 10 years old, to increase reliability and to replace the collective 
appurtenances. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility. No additional maintenance demands.

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 188 of 202

230



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 158 May 23, 2016 

 
UPDATE WATER MANAGEMENT AND CONSERVATION PLAN 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: WTR-(X) 

Category: Planning Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $150,000   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18 $150,000  Water SDC 100%   

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes compliance with Oregon Water Resources Department (OWRD) requirements for groundwater permit 
holders.  The City is required to complete an update of their Water Management and Conservation Plan (WMCP) every 10 
years. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Various components of plan will impact staff resources for repairing, leak detection programs, etc.  It is not known if new 
plan will be more or less restrictive. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 189 of 202

231



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 159 May 23, 2016 

 
UPDATE VULNERABILITY ASSESSMENT 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: WTR-(X) 

Category: Planning Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $60,000   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future $60,000  (Undefined)    

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes updating the existing Water System Vulnerability Assessment within the next 10 years to identify any 
additional security measures or operational procedures which may be needed to protect water facilities. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Update of the Vulnerability Assessment could identify additional maintenance needs and recommend system 
improvements.  Annual costs are unknown at this time and will be identified upon plan completion. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 190 of 202

232



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Projects Listing 160 May 23, 2016 

 
UPDATE RESILIENCY PLAN 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: WTR-(X) 

Category: Planning Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $150,000   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18 $150,000  Water Utility 100%   

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes addressing the need for a local water system resilience plan to achieve the seismic response and 
recovery goals for Willamette Valley water utilities presented in the Oregon Resilience Plan. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

The Resiliency Plan would identify additional maintenance needs and recommend system improvements.  Annual costs are 
unknown at this time and will be identified upon plan completion.

 

 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 191 of 202

233



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 (INTENTIONAL BLANK PAGE) 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 192 of 202

234



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

CIP Projects Listing 161 May 23, 2016 

 

WOODHAVEN PARK PHASE 2 CONSTRUCTION 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: PK-2 

Category: Capital Project-Parks Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $800,000   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous $187,051  Parks Improvements SDC 100%   

FY16-17 $766,974  Parks Improvements SDC 100%   

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project provides the construction for upgrades and expands the park facilities at the Woodhaven Park, located off 
Sunset Boulevard.  Facilities include walking trail, parking lot, restroom facility, sports fields, playground equipment, and 
landscaping. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include landscaping care, 
facility care, and restroom maintenance. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 193 of 202

235



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

CIP Projects Listing 162 May 23, 2016 

 

CITY OF SHERWOOD PARKS MASTER PLAN UPDATE 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: PK3 

Category: Capital Project-Parks Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $175,000   

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17 $175,000  Parks Improvement SDC 75% Parks Administration SDC 25% 

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

 

  

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project develops a Parks Master Plan.  A Parks Master Plan is needed to define goals, projects, and budget 
information.  Project would be paid for out of Parks SDC funds.  Schedule for this project has not been established but 
would be considered to be a near-term project. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works maintenance requirements created from the projects developed from the Master Plan would be defined as 
part of the Master Plan work effort. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 194 of 202

236



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

CIP Projects Listing 163 May 23, 2016 

 

SKATEPARK 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: n/a 

Category: Capital Project- Parks Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $12,000   

 
 
 

 

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17 $12,000  Parks Improvement SDC 100%   

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes providing construction ready design drawings, specifications, and estimates of probable construction 
costs.  Project construction funding has not been identified, nor has a project construction schedule been established.  The 
expectation is that construction funding will be identified after construction cost estimates have been provided. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items would include leaf and garbage 
removal, storm system cleaning, and general facility structural repairs due to usage. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 195 of 202

237



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

CIP Projects Listing 164 May 23, 2016 

 

SHERWOOD WEST-SIDE DOG PARK 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: n/a 

Category: Capital Project- Parks Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $12,000   

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17 $12,000  Parks Improvement SDC 100%   

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes providing construction ready design drawings, specifications, and estimates of probable construction 
costs.  Project construction funding has not been identified, nor has a project construction schedule been established.  The 
expectation is that construction funding will be identified after construction cost estimates have been provided. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items would include leaf and garbage 
removal, storm system cleaning, and general facility repairs due to usage. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 196 of 202

238



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

CIP Projects Listing 165 May 23, 2016 

 

CANNERY SQUARE RESTROOM INSTALLATION 

Department: Public Works MP Project #: n/a 

Category: Capital Project- Parks Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $130,000   

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17 $130,000  Parks Improvement SDC 100%   

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

  

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes constructing permanent restroom facilities for the Cannery Square site.  Anticipate using pre-fabricated 
restroom facility. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items would include daily/weekly cleaning 
of the facility to maintain health standards, and facility maintenance on a monthly basis to maintain facility integrity. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 197 of 202

239



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECTS LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(INTENTIONAL BLANK PAGE) 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 198 of 202

240



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECT LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Project Listing 166 May 23, 2016 

DOWNTOWN PARKING LOT PAVING 

Department: URA MP Project #: URA-1 

Category: Capital Project-Infrastructure Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $185,010   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous $ 25,010  URA Funds 100%   

FY16-17 $ 160,000  URA Funds 100%   

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

 

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project utilizes vacant City property located on 1
st
 Street between Pine and Oak Streets and constructs a public parking 

lot.  Project will include land-use application. 
 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works would have long-term maintenance of the new facility.  Maintenance items will include general maintenance of 
plantings and pavement surface and markings.  Leaf pickup on an annual basis is also expected. 
 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 199 of 202

241



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECT LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Project Listing 167 May 23, 2016 

DOWNTOWN MONUMENT REMOVAL (Construction) 

Department: Engineering MP Project #: URA-2 

Category: Capital Project-Transportation Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $250,000   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous $38,272  URA Funds (Design) 100%   

FY16-17 $211,728  URA Funds (Construction) 100%   

FY17-18       

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project includes removal of all the concrete pedestals at three intersections.  Safety issues, citizen complaints and City 
Council directive warrant monument removal.  Project removal plans and specifications occurred in previous FY15/16.  
Project not included in TSP or previous FY CIP listing. 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Removal of the monuments will eliminate the need for maintenance. 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 200 of 202

242



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECT LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Project Listing 168 May 23, 2016 

OLD TOWN SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENTS 

Department: URA MP Project #: URA-3 

Category: Capital Project-Infrastructure Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $200,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18 $200,000  URA Funds 100%   

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This project constructs sidewalks within Old Town limits where none exist currently. 
 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Property owners would have maintenance responsibilities for installed sidewalks per City Code requirements.  Sidewalks 
which show signs of failure will fall under the City’s Sidewalk Program. 
 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 201 of 202

243



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
CIP PROJECT LISTING AND SCHEDULES 

 

CIP Project Listing 169 May 23, 2016 

OLD TOWN ALLEY PAVEMENT IMPROVEMENTS 

Department: URA MP Project #: URA-4 

Category: Capital Project-Infrastructure Navision Job#  

Total Project Cost: $100,000   

 
% of Project Budget Assigned to Funding Source 

Fiscal 
Year 

Funding 
Amount  

Funding Source 
Funding 

Amount or % 
Funding Source 

Funding 
Amount or % 

Previous       

FY16-17       

FY17-18 $100,000  URA Funds 100%   

FY18-19       

FY19-20       

Future       

Ranking Criteria Met Project Type Priority 

 Council Goals  Regulatory Requirement  Maintenance  High     Medium     Low 

 Master Plan  Outside Funding/Partnership  Replacement  High     Medium     Low 

 Health & Safety  Upgrade Serviceability  New/Expansion  High     Medium     Low 

Project Description 

This installs asphalt pavement within the public alleys within the Old Town limits.  Project funding comes from URA capital 
funds.  Any storm drainage issues would be resolved using stormwater SDC funds. 
 

Ongoing Maintenance Description and Estimated Annual Cost 

Public Works will be responsible for the long term maintenance of the asphalt pavement and any installed stormwater 
systems. 
 

Resolution 2016-037, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 202 of 202

244





Ordinance 2016-008, Staff Report 
June 21, 2016 
Page 1 of 2, with attachments  

City Council Meeting Date: June 21, 2016 

 

Agenda Item: Public Hearing, Second Reading 

 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 

 

FROM: Julia Hajduk, Community Development Director  

Through: Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager and Josh Soper, City Attorney 

 

SUBJECT: Ordinance 2016-008, Amendment to Chapter 16.31 (Industrial Uses) of the Sherwood 

Zoning and Community Development Code 

 

 

Issue: 
Shall the City Council adopt amendments to the Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code 
related to industrial uses? 
 
Background: 
The City of Sherwood adopted a concept plan and implementing code language for the Tonquin 
Employment Area (TEA) in October 2010.  The intent at the time was to make the types of uses we wanted 
most, permitted outright and other uses that would complement the vision permitted conditionally upon 
demonstrating that they were compatible with the desired uses and intent. In August 2012, the City 
updated the industrial use code sections as part of a larger code clean-up project and in the translation 
process of merging three chapters with slightly different use categories into one, there were very few uses 
allowed outright or conditionally in the TEA area.   
 
This was brought to the City’s attention by multiple property owners and brokers as they were trying to sell 
and develop properties in the TEA.  The City staff and Planning Commission identified this as an 
opportunity to not only address the problem in the TEA but also to better categorize uses in all industrial 
zones to regulate the types of uses that would not be compatible with the community (for example, those 
that are attractive nuisances or emit noxious odors) while being open to new products and processes.  
After obtaining feedback from industrial property owners, representatives from the development community 
and Sherwood residents, draft amendments were developed.   
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on April 12, 2016 and voted to forward a recommendation 
of approval to the City Council.  The Council held a public hearing and approved the Ordinance at a first 
reading on May 3, 2016.  
 
Since the first Council hearing, staff has continued to review the proposed code changes.  While the issue 
did not come up from the public or property owners, there is a concern that it may not be appropriate that 
“Public and private utility structures, including but not limited to telephone exchanges, electric substations, 
gas regulator stations, treatment plants, water wells and public work yards” remain as a permitted use in 
the Employment Industrial (EI) zone.  While this use is absolutely appropriate in the industrial zones, 
careful consideration on a site and use specific basis may be needed to ensure that it is appropriately 
located so as not to have negative impacts the surrounding area.  It is staff’s recommendation that this be 
changed to a Conditional Use in the EI zone, rather than Permitted.  While the same argument could be 
made for making it a conditional use in all industrial zones, these areas are already primarily developed. 
As the EI zone develops, it will be important to ensure that this type of use is sited in ways that are 
compatible with the other development that is occurring and any potentially negative impacts that could 
affect the developability of the area as a whole are mitigated. 
 

245



Ordinance 2016-008, Staff Report 
June 21, 2016 
Page 2 of 2, with attachments  

If Council chooses to accept this staff recommendation, the following motion would be appropriate: 
 
“I move that the proposed code changes shown in Exhibit A to Ordinance 2016-008 be amended to 
change “Public and private utility structures, including but not limited to telephone exchanges, electric 
substations, gas regulator stations, treatment plants, water wells and public work yards” from P (permitted) 
to C (conditional) in the EI zone” 
 
Financial Impacts: 
It is likely that there will be a minimal cost associated with making the Code updates available online and 
providing informational materials to the public.  It is anticipated that adoption of the proposed amendments 
will provide more certainty and clarity for developers currently looking at the Tonquin Employment Area and 
help spur annexation and development of the area.  Development of the area, inside city limits, will increase 
tax revenues and provide additional jobs which will benefit the local economy.  
 
Recommendation: 
Staff respectfully recommends City Council adoption of Ordinance 2016-008, Amendment to Chapter 16.31 
(Industrial Uses) of the Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code. 
 
Attachments: 
1 – Planning Commission recommendation with 9 exhibits 

246



247

allenk
Typewritten Text

allenk
Typewritten Text

allenk
Typewritten Text

allenk
Typewritten Text

allenk
Typewritten Text

allenk
Typewritten Text



The City of Sherwood adopted a concept plan and implementing code language for the 
Tonquin Employment Area (TEA) in October 2010. The intent at the time was to make the 
types of uses we wanted most, permitted outright and other uses that would complement the 
vision permitted conditionally upon demonstrating that they were compatible with the desired 
uses and intent. In August 2012 the City updated the industrial use code sections as part of a 
larger code clean-up project and in the translation process of merging 3 chapters with slightly 
different use categories into 1, there were very few uses allowed outright or conditionally in 
the TEA area. This was brought to the City's attention by multiple property owners and brokers 
as they were trying to sell and develop properties in the TEA. The City staff and Planning 
Commission identified this as an opportunity to not only address the problem in the TEA but 
also to better categorize uses in all industrial zones to regulate the types of uses that would 
not be compatible with the community (for example, those that are attractive nuisances or 
emit noxious odors) while being open to new products and processes. After obtaining 
feedback from industrial property owners, representatives from the development community 
and Sherwood residents, the planning staff drafted the proposed amendments. A summary 
of the amendments are included in Attachment 1 to this staff report. The proposed changes 
with track changes shown are in Attachment 2 and a clean copy of the proposed changes are 
included as Attachment 3. 

II. AFFECTED AGENCY, PUBLIC NOTICE, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Agencies: 
DLCD notice was sent on February 19, 2016. The City has not received any comments to date 
on the proposed amendments. 

Metro was provided notice and indicated that they would like to see analysis in the staff report that 
identifies how much of the Ll, Gl, and Eiland overlaps with Title 41and. Some of the permitted uses 
might raise concerns about increases in daily traffic, but it would depend on whether they're in Title 4 
areas or not. 

Staff response: Compliance with Title 4 is discussed in Section Ill of this staff report. 

Public: 
Notice was initially sent to all industrial property owners informing them of work sessions on the 
topic. An interested parties list was developed and a project web page developed. Notice of the 
public hearing was mailed to all industrial property owners, emailed to interested parties, posted 
on the web site, posted in 5 locations around the City and published in The Times and The 
Gazette. 

The following comments have been received as of the date of the initial staff report: 

Pride Disposal submitted a letter dated March 21, 2016 (Attachment 4 ). Their letter stated 
"Pride Recycling Company operates a solid waste transfer and recycling station at 13910 SW 
Tualatin-Sherwood Road. The new amendments to the Sherwood Development Code, 
specifically regarding a facility as ours needs to be clarified. In one section the siting of a solid 
waste transfer station is a conditional permit; another section refers to General purpose solid 
waste landfills, incinerators and other solid waste facilities as not being allowed. A solid waste 
transfer station is a solid waste facility, and therefore the intent is unclear. It is my hope that this 
can be easily corrected." 

Staff response: The proposed changes did not make changes to these existing 
categories. That said, it is clear that there is an inconsistency and, as currently written 
makes it unclear. It is proposed that "not otherwise permitted in this code" be added to 
the end of "General purpose solid waste landfills, incinerators and other solid waste 

PA 16-041ndustrial Uses Code amendment Page 2 of 5 
Exhibit A- Planning Commission Recommendation to Council 

248



facilities" to make it clear that the other use category "solid waste transfer stations" is 
allowed. The Commission accepted this change and this is reflected in the 
recommendation. 

Rhys Conrad, representing the Orr Family, submitted a letter dated April 4, 2016 (Attachment 
5). Their letter is generally supportive of the proposed amendments but propose that there be 
no cap on the amount of standalone warehousing that is permitted without a conditional use 
permit. If a cap is necessary, they recommend it be increased to 150,000 square feet rather 
than 100,000 as currently proposed. The Commission discussed this and the testimony 
received and voted to change the size limit to 150,000 square feet. 

Additional written testimony and public comments were provided from the following 
people to the Planning Commission at their April12, 2016 meeting: 

• David Kraska, Willamette Water Supply, submitted April 6, 2016 letter 
• David Stiller, submitted April12, 2016 email and provided verbal testimony 
• Bill Bach, Trammell Crow Company, provided April 12, 2016 letter and provided verbal 

testimony 
• Tim Voorhies, provided February 22, 2016 email and verbal testimony 
• Erhardt Steinborn, provided verbal testimony 
• Stu Peterson, Macadam Forbes, provided verbal testimony 

Ill. REQUIRED FINDINGS FOR A PLAN TEXT AMENDMENT 

The applicable Plan Text Amendment review criteria are 16.80.030.A and C 

16.80.030.A- Text Amendment Review 
An amendment to the text of the Comprehensive Plan shall be based upon the need for 
such an amendment as identified by the Council or the Commission. Such an amendment 
shall be consistent with the intent of the Comprehensive Plan, and with all other provisions 
of the Plan and Code, and with any applicable State or City statutes and regulations. 

There is a clear need for clarification of the industrial use categories in the El zone to open up the 
permissible uses to those that are realistic and in line with the vision of the Tonquin Employment 
Area plan. Feedback received through the public outreach process also demonstrates a need for 
the additional clarification and modifications made with the proposed amendments. 

Applicable Comprehensive Plan Policies 
Chapter4, H. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT POLICIES AND STRATEGIES 

Policy 5 - The City will seek to diversify and expand commercial and industrial development in 
order to provide nearby job opportunities, and expand the tax base. 

Economic Development Strategy - Policy 1 - Support existing businesses and recruit 
additional businesses that provide local family-wage jobs. Replace any employment land 
rezoned for other uses with other employment land. 

Strategy 1.3: Support and build upon manufacturing and other industries likely to 
produce family-wage jobs. 

Chapter 4, K. INDUSTRIAL PLANNING DESIGNATIONS 
Policy 2 -The City will encourage sound industrial development by all suitable means to provide 
employment and economic stability to the community. 

PA 16-04 Industrial Uses Code amendment Page 3 of 5 
Exhibit A - Planning Commission Recommendation to Council 

249



The proposed amendments are consistent with the applicable criteria by providing for uses that 
expand and provide family wage jobs. In addition, by distinguishing uses based on impacts off 
site and providing for specific uses that are deemed incompatible in all zones, the changes respect 
the intent outlined in the comprehensive plan for the Ll, Gl and El zones. In addition, the 
modifications made that affect the El zone allow for uses that provide jobs, limit commercial and 
uses incompatible with the long term vision for the area. These changes also help set the stage 
for development of the area. 

Applicable Regional (Metro) Standards 

Metro Functional Plan- 3.07.430 Protection of Industrial Areas 
A. Cities and counties shall review their land use regulations and revise them, if necessary, to 

include measures to limit new buildings for retail commercial uses-such as stores and 
restaurants-and retail and professional services that cater to daily customers-such as 
financial, insurance, real estate, legal, medical and dental offices-in order to ensure that they 
serve primarily the needs of workers in the area. One such measure shall be that new 
buildings for stores, branches, agencies or other outlets for these retail uses and services 
shall not occupy more than 5,000 square feet of sales or service area in a single outlet, or 
multiple outlets that occupy more than 20,000 square feet of sales or service area in a single 
building or in multiple buildings that are part of the same development project, with the 
following exceptions: 

1. Within the boundaries of a public use airport subject to a facilities master plan, 
customary airport uses, uses that are accessory to the travel-related and freight 
movement activities of airports, hospitality uses, and retail uses appropriate to serve 
the needs of the traveling public; and 

2. Training facilities whose primary purpose is to provide training to meet industrial 
needs. 

B. Cities and counties shall review their land use regulations and revise them, if necessary, to 
include measures to limit new buildings for the uses described in subsection A to ensure that 
they do not interfere with the efficient movement of freight along Main Roadway Routes and 
Roadway Connectors shown on the Regional Freight Network Map in the RTP. Such measures 
may include, but are not limited to, restrictions on access to freight routes and connectors, 
siting limitations and traffic thresholds. This subsection does not require cities and counties 
to include such measures to limit new other buildings or uses. 

C. No city or county shall amend its land use regulations that apply to lands shown as Industrial 
Area on the Employment and Industrial Areas Map to authorize uses described in subsection 
A of this section that were not authorized prior to July 1, 2004. 

Sherwood updated its code in 2012 to fully comply with Title 4 and the proposed changes do not change 
the uses that are otherwise limited by the Title 4 requirements. Sherwood's industrial land is primarily 
identified on the Metro Title 4 maps as "Industrial Area" with some of the light industrial areas identified 
as "employment areas". The proposed amendments do not modify the uses already restricted by the 
Title 4 requirements. In instances where a new category was added that had the potential of allowing 
more uses that might cater to daily customers or allow for commercial uses, clarifications or footnotes 
were added. Attachment 3 provides a detailed summary of each change and an explanation of the 
change. This summary also notes where the change was made to clarify/confirm Title 4 compliance. 

Consistency with Statewide Planning Goals 
The process for developing and identifying the proposed changes has been made consistent with Goal 
1, citizen involvement. There are no known Statewide Planning Goals that directly apply to the 
proposed amendments, however, it could be argued that the changes will provide more economic 
development opportunities and have been developed based on specific and valid feedback from the 
development community. If these changes were not made there is a very good chance that the TEA 
would remain undeveloped for years to come because the existing permissible uses are very limited 
and incompatible with the market realities. Therefore, the amendments are supportive of Goal9. 

PA 16-04 Industrial Uses Code amendment Page 4 of 5 
Exhibit A - Planning Commission Recommendation to Council 

250



FINDING: As discussed above in the analysis, there is a need for the proposed amendments in 
order to clarify the Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code. The proposed 
amendments are consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and applicable City, regional and State 
regulations and policies. 

16.80.030.3 -Transportation Planning Rule Consistency 
A. Review of plan and text amendment applications for effect on transportation facilities. 
Proposals shall be reviewed to determine whether it significantly affects a transportation 
facility, in accordance with OAR 660-12-0060 (the TPR). Review is required when a 
development application includes a proposed amendment to the Comprehensive Plan or 
changes to land use regulations. 

FINDING: The proposed amendments are not tied to any one development application and do not 
affect the functional classification of any street. Rather, the proposed amendments are provided to 
clarify existing language within the existing development code. The proposed amendments will have 
no measurable impacts on the amount of traffic on the existing transportation system; therefore this 
policy is not applicable to the proposed amendment. 

IV. RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the above findings of fact, and the conclusion of law based on the applicable criteria, the 
Planning Commission recommends the Council approve of PA 16-04. 

v. EXHIBITS 1. 
2. 
3. 
4. 
5. 
6. 
7. 
8. 
9. 

Proposed development code changes - Clean format 
Proposed development code changes - Track changes format 
Summary of proposed changes 
March 21, 2016 letter from Mike Leicher of Pride Disposal 
April 4, 2016 letter from Rhys Conrad of Macadam Forbes 
April 6, 2016 letter from David Kraska, Willamette Water Supply 
April 12, 2016 email from David Stiller 
April 12, 2016 letter from Bill Bach, Trammell Crow Company 
February 22, 2016 email from Tim Voorhies 

PA 16-04 Industrial Uses Code amendment 
Exhibit A - Planning Commission Recommendation to Council 

Page 5 of 5 

251



 

 

  Page 1 

 

16.10.020 Definitions 

ADD the following: 

Small-scale energy facilities - a facility, such as a solar panel, that produces energy but that is 
generally not visible from neighboring properties, with the exception of facilities attached to a 
building that do not exceed the height limits of the underlying zone and do not exceed the building 
height by more than 25%.  For example, solar panels on the roof of a 24-foot-tall home could not 
exceed 6 feet in height.   
Large-scale facilities - a facility that produces energy and exceeds the thresholds of a ‘small-scale 
energy facility’”.   
 

 

Chapter 16.31 - INDUSTRIAL LAND USE DISTRICTS[19]  

Sections:  

 

Footnotes:  

--- (19) ---  

Editor's note—Ord. No. 2012-011, adopted August 7, 2012, amended the Code by consolidating the 
provisions of Chs. 16.31, 16.32 and 16.34. Former Ch. 16.31, §§ 16.31.010—16.31.100, pertained to the 
Employment Industrial district, and derived from Ord. 2010-014, adopted October 5, 2010. See Chs. 
16.32 and 16.34 for specific derivation. 

 

16.31.010 - Purpose  

A. Employment Industrial (EI) - The EI zoning district provides employment areas that are suitable for, 
and attractive to, key industries and industry clusters that have been identified by the State of Oregon 
and the City's economic development strategy as important to the state and local economy. The 
following are preferred industry sectors for areas zoned EI: Clean Technology; Technology and 
Advanced Manufacturing; and Outdoor Gear and Active Wear.  

Land zoned EI shall provide for large and medium-sized parcels for industrial campuses and other 
industrial sites that can accommodate a variety of industrial companies and related businesses. Areas 
zoned EI are also intended to provide the opportunity for flex building space within small- and medium-
sized industrial campuses and business parks to accommodate research and development 
companies, incubator/emerging technology businesses, related materials and equipment suppliers, 
and or spin-off companies and other businesses that derive from, or are extensions of, larger campus 
users and developments. Retail and commercial uses are allowed only when directly supporting area 
employers and employees.  

Exhibit 1  

PC recommended draft - CLEAN 

252



 

 

  Page 2 

Industrial establishments and support services shall not have objectionable external features and shall 
feature well-landscaped sites and attractive architectural design, as determined by the Hearing 
Authority.  

B. Light Industrial (LI) - The LI zoning district provides for the manufacturing, processing, assembling, 
packaging and treatment of products which have been previously prepared from raw materials. 
Industrial establishments shall not have objectionable external features and shall feature well-
landscaped sites and attractive architectural design, as determined by the Commission.  

C. General Industrial (GI) - The GI zoning district provides for the manufacturing, processing, assembling, 
packaging and treatment of products from previously prepared or raw materials, providing such 
activities can meet and maintain minimum environmental quality standards and are situated so as not 
to create significant adverse effects to residential and commercial areas of the City. The minimum 
contiguous area of any GI zoning district shall be fifty (50) acres.  

(Ord. No. 2012-011, § 2, 8-7-2012) 

16.31.020 - Uses  

A. The table below identifies the land uses that are permitted outright (P), permitted conditionally (C) and 
not permitted (N) in the industrial zoning districts. The specific land use categories are described and 
defined in Chapter 16.88.  

B. Uses listed in other sections of this Code, but not within this specific table are prohibited.  

C. Any use not otherwise listed that can be shown to be consistent or associated with the uses permitted 
outright or conditionally in the industrial zones or contribute to the achievement of the objectives of the 
industrial zones may be permitted outright or conditionally, utilizing the provisions of Chapter 16.88.  

D. Additional limitations for specific uses are identified in the footnotes of this table. 

Uses LI GI EI1  

RESIDENTIAL  

•  Single Dwelling unit, including a manufactured home, for one (1) security person 

employed on the premises and their immediate family  
P P P 

CIVIC  

•  Hospitals C N N 

•  Police and fire stations and other emergency services C C C 

•  Vehicle testing stations C C C 

•  Postal services - Public C C C 

253



 

 

  Page 3 

Uses LI GI EI1  

•  Postal substations when located entirely within and incidental to a use permitted 

outright  
C C C 

•  Public and private utility structures, including but not limited to telephone exchanges, 

electric substations, gas regulator stations, treatment plants, water wells, and public work 

yards  

P P P 

•  Small-scale power generation facilities P P P 

•  Large-scale power generation facilities C P C 

•  Public recreational facilities including parks, trails, playfields and sports and racquet 

courts on publicly owned property or under power line easements  
C C C 

COMMERCIAL  

•  Commercial Trade Schools, commercial educational services and training facilities P P C 

Entertainment/recreation 

•  Country clubs, sports and racquet clubs and other similar clubs C C C 

•  Indoor recreation facilities such as arcades, mini-golf, or bounce house facilities2,3  C C C 

Motor Vehicle related 

•  Motorized vehicle and sport craft repairs and service C C N 

•  Motorized vehicle and sport craft repair and service clearly incidental and secondary to 

and customarily associated with a use permitted outright or conditionally  
P P P 

•  Automotive, boat, trailer and recreational vehicle storage C C C4 

•  Vehicle fueling stations or car wash facilities 5  C C C 

•  Junkyards and salvage yards N N N 

254



 

 

  Page 4 

Uses LI GI EI1  

•  Manufactured home sales and display area N N N 

Office and Professional Support services 

•  Business and professional offices3 P P P 

•  Business support services such as duplicating, photocopying, mailing services, fax and 

computer facilities3  
P P P 

•  Any incidental business, service, processing, storage or display, not otherwise permitted, 

that is essential to and customarily associated with a use permitted outright, provided said 

incidental use is conducted entirely within an enclosed building  

P P P 

Childcare 

•  Day cares, preschools, and kindergartens, when clearly secondary to a permitted use  P P P 

•  Day cares, preschools, and kindergartens as a stand-alone use3  C C C 

General Retail - sales oriented 

•  Incidental retail sales or display/showroom directly associated with a permitted use and 

limited to a maximum of 10% of the total floor area of the business3  
P P P 

•  Medical marijuana dispensary, not exceeding 3,000 square feet of gross square footage P6 P6 N 

•  Tool and equipment repair, rental and sales, including truck rental7  P P P 

•  Retail plant nurseries and garden supply stores (excluding wholesale plant nurseries) P P N 

•  Wholesale building material sales and service C P N 

•  Retail building material sales and lumber yards3  C P N 

Personal Services 

•  Health clubs and studios less than 5,000 square feet in size P P P 

255



 

 

  Page 5 

Uses LI GI EI1  

•  Personal services catering to daily customers where patrons pay for or receive a service 

rather than goods or materials, including but not limited to financial, beauty, pet grooming, 

and similar services8  

C C C 

•  Public or commercial parking (non- accessory) N N N 

•  Veterinarian offices and animal hospitals C C C 

•  Animal boarding/Kennels and pet daycare facilities with outdoor recreation areas8  C C C 

Eating and Drinking establishments: 

•  Restaurants, taverns, and lounges without drive-thru3 C C C 

•  Restaurants with drive-thru services N N N 

 On-site cafeteria that is secondary to, and serving employees of, a permitted use P P P 

INDUSTRIAL  

•  Manufacture, compounding, processing, assembling, packaging, treatment, fabrication 

of products contained wholly within an enclosed building provided exterior odor and noise 

is consistent with municipal code standards and there is no unscreened storage and not 

otherwise regulated elsewhere in the code,  

P P P 

•  Manufacture, compounding, processing, assembling, packaging, treatment, fabrication 

of products not otherwise prohibited elsewhere in the code provided other off-site impacts 

are compliant with local, state and federal regulations. 

C P C 

• Manufacture, compounding, processing, assembling, packaging, treatment, or fabrication 

of acids, paints, dyes, paints, soaps, ammonia, chlorine, sodium compounds, fertilizer, 

herbicides, insecticides and similar chemicals  

N C N 

•  Distribution, warehousing and storage associated with a permitted use operating on the 

same site 
P P P 

256



 

 

  Page 6 

Uses LI GI EI1  

Distribution and warehousing up to 150,000 square feet, provided product(s) are stored 

within an enclosed building9 
P P P 

Distribution and warehousing greater than 150,000 square feet provided product(s) are 

stored within an enclosed building 9 
N P C 

•  Mini-warehousing or self-storage N P N 

•  Medical or dental laboratories, including biomedical compounding P P P 

•  Laboratories (not medical or dental) P P P 

•  Research and development and associated manufacturing P P P 

•  Contractors' storage and equipment yards,  C P C4 

Building, heating, plumbing or electrical contractors and suppliers, building maintenance 

services, and similar uses 10 
P P P 

• Industriallaundry, dry cleaning, dyeing, or rug cleaning plants C P N 

•  Sawmills C C N 

•  Sand and gravel pits, rock crushing facilities, aggregate storage and distribution facilities 

or concrete or asphalt batch plants  
N C N 

•  Solid waste transfer stations N C N 

The following Uses are specifically prohibited in all industrial zones because they have been 

determined to have adverse environmental, public and aesthetic impacts and are not 

suitable for location in any of the industrial zones in the City 

   

•  Manufacture, compounding, processing, assembling, packaging, treatment, or 

fabrication of toxins or explosive materials, or any product or compound determined 

by a public health official to be detrimental to the health, safety and welfare of the 

community  

N N N 

257



 

 

  Page 7 

Uses LI GI EI1  

•  Pulp and paper mills N N N 

•  Distillation of oil, coal, wood or tar compounds and the creosote treatment of any 

products  
N N N 

•  Metal rolling and extraction mills, forge plants, smelters and blast furnaces N N N 

•  Meat, fish, poultry and tannery processing N N N 

•  General purpose solid waste landfills,-incinerators, and other solid waste facilities 

not otherwise permitted in this code 
N N N 

WIRELESS COMMUNICATION FACILITIES  

•  Radio, television, and similar communication stations, including associated transmitters C C C 

•  Wireless communication towers11 and transmitters  C C C 

•  Wireless communication facilities on City-owned property C C C 

•  Wireless communication antennas co-located on an existing tower or on an existing 

building or structure not exceeding the roof of the structure  
P P P 

OTHER  

Agricultural uses including but not limited to: 

•  Farm equipment sales and rentals N N N 

•  Farming and horticulture P P P 

•  Raising of animals other than household pets N N N 

•  Truck and bus yards N P N 

  

1 See special criteria for the EI zone, 16.31.030 and the Tonquin Employment Area (TEA), 16.31.040.  

258



 

 

  Page 8 

2If use is mixed with another, such as a restaurant, it is considered secondary to that use and permitted, 
provided it occupies less than fifty (50) percent of the total area.  

3 Limited in size to five thousand (5,000) square feet in a single outlet and no more than twenty 
thousand (20,000) square feet in multiple outlets in the same development project.  

4 On constrained land where structures would not otherwise be permitted, provided that no natural 
resources such as wetland or floodplains are impacted 

5 Limited to Cardlock, wholesale or facilities incidental to and solely serving an associated permitted 
or conditional use- no public retail fuel sales.  

6 See Special Criteria for Medical Marijuana Dispensary under Section 16.38.020.  

7Sales and rental area Limited in size to five thousand (5,000) square feet in a single outlet and no 
more than twenty thousand (20,000) square feet in multiple outlets in the same development project.  

.  

8 Animal boarding/kennels and pet daycare facilities entirely within an enclosed building are considered 
"other personal service."  

9 For standalone warehousing and distribution only. Warehousing and distribution associated with 
another approved use is ancillary and permitted without size limitations 

10 These businesses are involved in the servicing and supplying of materials and equipment 
primarily intended for industrial, institutional, or commercial businesses.  On-site sales are limited 
as most activity occurs electronically or off-site.  Businesses may or may not be open to the general 
public, but sales to the general public are limited as a result of the way in which the firm operates.  
Products are generally delivered to the customer.  Few customers, especially the general public, 
come to the site. 

11 Except for towers located within one thousand (1,000) feet of the Old Town District which are 
prohibited.  

(Ord. No. 2015-005, § 2, 5-5-2015; Ord. No. 2015-003, § 2, 3-17-2015; Ord. No. 2012-011, § 2, 

8-7-2012)  

16.31.030 - Development Standards  

A. Generally 

No lot area, setback, yard, landscaped area, open space, off-street parking or loading area, or other site 
dimension or requirement, existing on, or after, the effective date of this Code shall be reduced below the 
minimum required by this Code. Nor shall the conveyance of any portion of a lot, for other than a public use 
or right-of-way, leave a lot or structure on the remainder of said lot with less than minimum Code 
dimensions, area, setbacks or other requirements, except as permitted by Chapter 16.84 (Variances and 
Adjustments).  

B. Development Standards 

Except as otherwise provided, required minimum lot areas and dimensions and setbacks shall be:  

259



 

 

  Page 9 

Development Standards by Zone  LI GI EI 

Lot area- Industrial Uses:  10,000 SF 20,000 SF 3 acres9  

Lot area- Commercial Uses (subject to Section 16.31.050):   10,000 SF 20,000 SF 10,000 SF 

Lot width at front property line: 100 feet 

Lot width at building line: 100 feet 

Front Yard Setback11   20 feet None 20 feet 

Side Yard Setback10   None None None 

Rear Yard Setback11   None None None 

Corner lot street side11   20 feet None 20 feet 

Height11  50 feet 

  

9 Lots within the El zone that were legal lots of record prior to October 5, 2010 and smaller than the 
minimum lot size required in the table below may be developed if found consistent with other applicable 
requirements of Chapter 16.31 and this Code. Further subdivision of lots smaller than three (3) acres 
shall be prohibited unless Section 16.31.050 applies.  

10 When a yard is abutting a residential zone or public park, there shall be a minimum setback of forty 
(40) feet provided for properties zoned Employment Industrial and Light Industrial Zones, and a 
minimum setback of fifty (50) feet provided for properties zoned General Industrial.  

11 Structures located within one-hundred (100) feet of a residential zone shall be limited to the height 
requirements of that residential zone.  

16.31.040 - Employment Industrial (EI) Restrictions  

A. Use Restrictions 

1. Retail and professional services that cater to daily customers, such as restaurants and financial, 
insurance, real estate, legal, medical and dental offices, shall be limited in the EI zone.  

a. New buildings for stores, branches, agencies or other retail uses and services shall not 
occupy more than five thousand (5,000) square feet of sales or service area in a single outlet 
and no more than twenty thousand (20,000) square feet of sales or service area in multiple 
outlets in the same development project, and  

260



 

 

  Page 10 

b. New buildings for stores, branches, agencies or other retail uses and services shall not be 
located on lots or parcels smaller than five (5) acres in size. A "development project" includes 
all improvements proposed through a site plan application.  

2. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 16.31.050 "Commercial Nodes Use Restrictions", 
commercial development permitted under 16.31.050(1)(a) may only be proposed concurrent with 
or after industrial development on the same parcel. Commercial development may not occur prior 
to industrial development on the same parcel.  

B. Land Division Restrictions 

1. Lots of record prior to October 5, 2010 that are smaller than the minimum lot size required in the 
El zone may be developed if found consistent with other applicable requirements of Chapter 16.31 
and this code. Further subdivision of lots smaller than three (3) acres shall be prohibited unless 
Section 16.31.050 applies.  

2. Lots or parcels larger than fifty (50) acres may be divided into smaller lots and parcels pursuant 
to a Planned Unit Development approved by the city so long as the resulting division yields at 
least one (1) lot or parcel of at least 50 acres in size.  

3. Lots or parcels fifty (50) acres or larger, including those created pursuant to subsection (2) above, 
may be divided into any number of smaller lots or parcels pursuant to a Planned Unit Development 
approved by the city so long as at least forty (40) percent of the area of the lot or parcel has been 
developed with industrial uses or uses accessory to industrial use.  

(Ord. No. 2012-011, § 2, 8-7-2012) 

16.31.050 - Tonquin Employment Area (TEA) Commercial Nodes Use Restrictions  

A. Within the Tonquin Employment Area (TEA), only commercial uses that directly support industrial uses 
located within the TEA are permitted as conditional uses.  

B. Commercial development, not to exceed a total of five (5) contiguous acres in size, may be permitted.  

C. Commercial development may not be located within three hundred (300) feet of SW 124th Avenue or 
SW Oregon Street, and must be adjacent to the proposed east-west collector street.  

(Ord. No. 2012-011, § 2, 8-7-2012) 

16.31.060 - Community Design  

For standards relating to off-street parking and loading, energy conservation, historic resources, 
environmental resources, landscaping, access and egress, signs, parks and open space, on- site storage, 
and site design, the applicable provisions of Divisions V, VIII and IX will apply.  

(Ord. No. 2012-011, § 2, 8-7-2012) 

16.31.070 - Floodplain  

Except as otherwise provided, Section 16.134.020 shall apply.  

(Ord. No. 2012-011, § 2, 8-7-2012) 

261



 

 

  Page 1 

 

16.10.020 Definitions 

ADD the following: 

Small-scale energy facilities - a facility, such as a solar panel, that produces energy but that is 
generally not visible from neighboring properties, with the exception of facilities attached to a 
building that do not exceed the height limits of the underlying zone and do not exceed the building 
height by more than 25%.  For example, solar panels on the roof of a 24-foot-tall home could not 
exceed 6 feet in height.   
Large-scale facilities - a facility that produces energy and exceeds the thresholds of a ‘small-scale 
energy facility’”.   
 

 

Chapter 16.31 - INDUSTRIAL LAND USE DISTRICTS[19]  

Sections:  

 

Footnotes:  

--- (19) ---  

Editor's note—Ord. No. 2012-011, adopted August 7, 2012, amended the Code by consolidating the 
provisions of Chs. 16.31, 16.32 and 16.34. Former Ch. 16.31, §§ 16.31.010—16.31.100, pertained to the 
Employment Industrial district, and derived from Ord. 2010-014, adopted October 5, 2010. See Chs. 
16.32 and 16.34 for specific derivation. 

 

16.31.010 - Purpose  

A. Employment Industrial (EI) - The EI zoning district provides employment areas that are suitable for, 
and attractive to, key industries and industry clusters that have been identified by the State of Oregon 
and the City's economic development strategy as important to the state and local economy. The 
following are preferred industry sectors for areas zoned EI: Clean Technology; Technology and 
Advanced Manufacturing; and Outdoor Gear and Active Wear.  

Land zoned EI shall provide for large and medium-sized parcels for industrial campuses and other 
industrial sites that can accommodate a variety of industrial companies and related businesses. Areas 
zoned EI are also intended to provide the opportunity for flex building space within small- and medium-
sized industrial campuses and business parks to accommodate research and development 
companies, incubator/emerging technology businesses, related materials and equipment suppliers, 
and or spin-off companies and other businesses that derive from, or are extensions of, larger campus 
users and developments. Retail and commercial uses are allowed only when directly supporting area 
employers and employees.  

Exhibit 2 

PC recommended draft – Track 

changes 

262



 

 

  Page 2 

Industrial establishments and support services shall not have objectionable external features and shall 
feature well-landscaped sites and attractive architectural design, as determined by the Hearing 
Authority.  

B. Light Industrial (LI) - The LI zoning district provides for the manufacturing, processing, assembling, 
packaging and treatment of products which have been previously prepared from raw materials. 
Industrial establishments shall not have objectionable external features and shall feature well-
landscaped sites and attractive architectural design, as determined by the Commission.  

C. General Industrial (GI) - The GI zoning district provides for the manufacturing, processing, assembling, 
packaging and treatment of products from previously prepared or raw materials, providing such 
activities can meet and maintain minimum environmental quality standards and are situated so as not 
to create significant adverse effects to residential and commercial areas of the City. The minimum 
contiguous area of any GI zoning district shall be fifty (50) acres.  

(Ord. No. 2012-011, § 2, 8-7-2012) 

16.31.020 - Uses  

A. The table below identifies the land uses that are permitted outright (P), permitted conditionally (C) and 
not permitted (N) in the industrial zoning districts. The specific land use categories are described and 
defined in Chapter 16.88.  

B. Uses listed in other sections of this Code, but not within this specific table are prohibited.  

C. Any use not otherwise listed that can be shown to be consistent or associated with the uses permitted 
outright or conditionally in the industrial zones or contribute to the achievement of the objectives of the 
industrial zones may be permitted outright or conditionally, utilizing the provisions of Chapter 16.88.  

D. Additional limitations for specific uses are identified in the footnotes of this table. 

Uses LI GI EI1  

RESIDENTIAL  

•  Single Dwelling unit, including a manufactured home, for one (1) security person 

employed on the premises and their immediate family  
P P P 

CIVIC  

•  Hospitals C N N 

•  Police and fire stations and other emergency services C C C 

•  Vehicle testing stations C C C 

•  Postal services - Public C C C 

263



 

 

  Page 3 

Uses LI GI EI1  

•  Postal substations when located entirely within and incidental to a use permitted 

outright  
C C C 

•  Public and private utility structures, including but not limited to telephone 

exchanges, electric substations, gas regulator stations, treatment plants, water wells, 

and public work yards  

P P P 

•  Small-scale power generation facilities P P P 

•  Large-scale power generation facilities C P C 

•  Public recreational facilities including parks, trails, playfields and sports and racquet 

courts on publicly owned property or under power line easements  
C C C 

COMMERCIAL  

•  Commercial Trade Schools, commercial educational services and training facilities P P C 

Entertainment/recreation 

•  Country clubs, sports and racquet clubs and other similar clubs C C C 

•  Indoor recreation facilities such as arcades, mini-golf, or bounce house facilities2,3  C C C 

Motor Vehicle related 

•  Motorized vehicle and sport craft repairs and service C C N 

•  Motorized vehicle and sport craft repair and service clearly incidental and secondary 

to and customarily associated with a use permitted outright or conditionally  
P P P 

•  Automotive, boat, trailer and recreational vehicle storage C C NC4 

•  Vehicle fueling stations or car wash facilities 4 5  C C C 

•  Jjunkyards and salvage yards N N N 

264



 

 

  Page 4 

Uses LI GI EI1  

•  Manufacturesd home sales and display area N N N 

Office and Professional Support services 

•  Business and professional offices53  P P P 

•  Business support services such as duplicating, photocopying, mailing services, fax 

and computer facilities36  
P P PC 

•  Any incidental business, service, processing, storage or display, not otherwise 

permitted, that is essential to and customarily associated with a use permitted outright, 

provided said incidental use is conducted entirely within an enclosed building  

CP CP CP 

Childcare 

•  Day cares, preschools, and kindergartens, when clearly secondary to a permitted use  P P P 

•  Day cares, preschools, and kindergartens as a stand-alone use36  C C C 

General Retail - sales oriented 

•  Incidental retail sales or display/showroom directly associated with a permitted use 

and limited to a maximum of 10% of the total floor area of the business73  
P P P 

•  Medical marijuana dispensary, not exceeding 3,000 square feet of gross square 

footage 
P610  P610  N 

•  Tool and equipment repair, rental and sales, including truck rental7  P P P 

•  Retail plant nurseries and garden supply stores (excluding wholesale plant nurseries) P P N 

•  Wholesale building material sales and service C P N 

•  Retail building material sales and lumber yards37  C P N 

Personal Services 

265



 

 

  Page 5 

Uses LI GI EI1  

•  Health clubs and studios less than 5,000 square feet in size P P P 

•  Personal services catering to daily customers where patrons pay for or receive a 

service rather than goods or materials, including but not limited to financial, beauty, pet 

grooming, and similar services8  

C C C 

•  Public or commercial parking (non- accessory) N N N 

•  Veterinarian offices and animal hospitals C C C 

•  Animal boarding/Kennels and pet daycare facilities with outdoor recreation areas8  C C C 

Eating and Drinking establishments: 

•  Restaurants, taverns, and lounges without drive-thru37  C C C 

•  Restaurants with drive-thru services N N N 

 On-site cafeteria that is secondary to, and serving employees of, a permitted use P P P 

INDUSTRIAL  

•  Manufacture, compounding, processing, assembling, packaging, treatment, 

fabrication of products contained wholly within an enclosed buildingFood products 

provided exterior odor and noise is consistent with municipal code standards and there 

is no unscreened storage and not otherwise regulated elsewhere in the code, 

appliances, textiles and fiber products, pottery, glass and previously pulverized clay 

ceramics, small electronics, communication equipment, instruments, toys, novelties, 

electronics components, maintenance equipment, vending machines, cosmetics, 

chemicals and other small products and tools manufactured from previously prepared 

or semi-finished materials  

P P NP 

•  Manufacture, compounding, processing, assembling, packaging, treatment, 

fabrication of products not otherwise prohibited elsewhere in the code provided other 

off-site impacts are compliant with local, state and federal regulations. 

C P C 

266



 

 

  Page 6 

Uses LI GI EI1  

• Manufacture, compounding, processing, assembling, packaging, treatment, or 

fabrication of  Aacids, paints, dyes, paints, soaps, ammonia, chlorine, sodium 

compounds, fertilizer, herbicides, insecticides and similar chemicals  

N C N 

•  Distribution, warehousing and storage associated with a permitted use operating on 

the same site 
P P P 

Distribution and warehousing up to 150,000 square feet, provided product(s) are stored 

within an enclosed building9 
P P P 

Distribution and warehousing greater than 150,000 square feet provided product(s) are 

stored within an enclosed building 9 
N P C 

•  Limited manufacturing entirely within an enclosed building that is generally 

secondary to a permitted or conditional commercial use  
P P P 

•  mMini-warehousing or self-storage N P N 

•  Medical or dental laboratories, including biomedical compounding P P P 

•  Laboratories (not medical or dental) P P P 

•  Research and development and associated manufacturing P P P 

•  Contractors' storage and equipment yards, building maintenance services, and 

similar uses  
C P NC4 

Building, heating, plumbing or electrical contractors and suppliers, building 

maintenance services, and similar uses 10 
P P P 

• Industrial Llaundry, dry cleaning, dyeing, or rug cleaning plants C P N 

•  Sawmills C C N 

•  Sand and gravel pits, rock crushing facilities, aggregate storage and distribution 

facilities or concrete or asphalt batch plants  
N C N 

267



 

 

  Page 7 

Uses LI GI EI1  

•  Solid waste transfer stations N C N 

Manufacture, compounding, processing, assembling, packaging, treatment, fabrication, wholesaling, 

warehousing or storage of the following articles or products:  

•  Pharmaceuticals in facilities up to 50,000 square feet building size P P P 

•  Pharmaceuticals in facilities larger than 50,000 square feet building size N C N 

•  Building components, furniture, fixtures, signs P P N 

•  Non-motorized recreational vehicles and equipment P P N 

•  Manufactured homes, farm equipment, and greenhouses N P N 

•  Any non-toxic materials or products made of metal, paper, wood, plastic, stone, 

fabric or other materials or products not otherwise permitted in the zone  
P P N 

•  Renewable energy/energy efficiency, sustainable environmental products, advanced 

manufacturing, high technology, biotechnology, sports apparel and other recreational 

products  

P P P 

•  Toxins or explosive materials, or any product or compound determined by a public 

health official to be detrimental to the health, safety and welfare of the community  
N N N 

The following Uses are specifically prohibited in all industrial zones because they have 

been determined to have adverse environmental, public and aesthetic impacts and are 

not suitable for location in any of the industrial zones in the City 

   

•  Manufacture, compounding, processing, assembling, packaging, treatment, or 

fabrication of  Ttoxins or explosive materials, or any product or compound 

determined by a public health official to be detrimental to the health, safety and 

welfare of the community  

N N N 

•  Pulp and paper mills N N N 

•  Distillation of oil, coal, wood or tar compounds and the creosote treatment of 

any products  
N N N 

268



 

 

  Page 8 

Uses LI GI EI1  

•  Metal rolling and extraction mills, forge plants, smelters and blast furnaces N N N 

•  Meat, fish, poultry and tannery processing N N N 

•  Sand and gravel pits, rock crushing facilities, aggregate storage and distribution 

facilities or concrete or asphalt batch plants  
N C N 

•  Solid waste transfer stations N C N 

•  General purpose solid waste landfills,-incinerators, and other solid waste 

facilities not otherwise permitted in this code 
N N N 

•  Manufacture of biomedical compounds as regulated by the U.S. Food and Drug 

Administration 
N C N 

WIRELESS COMMUNICATION FACILITIES  

•  Radio, television, and similar communication stations, including associated 

transmitters 
C C C 

•  Wireless communication towers119 and transmitters  C C C 

•  Wireless communication facilities on City-owned property C C C 

•  Wireless communication antennas co-located on an existing tower or on an existing 

building or structure not exceeding the roof of the structure  
P P P 

OTHER  

Agricultural uses including but not limited to: 

•  Farm equipment sales and rentals N N N 

•  Farming and horticulture P P P 

•  Raising of animals other than household pets N N N 

269



 

 

  Page 9 

Uses LI GI EI1  

•  Truck and bus yards N P N 

  

1 See special criteria for the EI zone, 16.31.030 and the Tonquin Employment Area (TEA), 16.31.040.  

2If use is mixed with another, such as a restaurant, it is considered secondary to that use and permitted, 
provided it occupies less than fifty (50) percent of the total area.  

3 Limited in size to five thousand (5,000) square feet in a single outlet and no more than twenty 
thousand (20,000) square feet in multiple outlets in the same development project.  

4 On constrained land where structures would not otherwise be permitted, provided that no natural 
resources such as wetland or floodplains are impacted 

45 Limited to Cardlock, or wholesale or facilities incidental to and solely serving an associated permitted 
or conditional use- no public retail fuel sales.  

610 See Special Criteria for Medical Marijuana Dispensary under Section 16.38.020.  

57Sales and rental area Limited in size to five thousand (5,000) square feet in a single outlet and no 
more than twenty thousand (20,000) square feet in multiple outlets in the same development project.  

6 Limited in size to five thousand (5,000) square feet in a single outlet and no more than twenty 
thousand (20,000) square feet in multiple outlets in the same development project.  

7 Limited in size to five thousand (5,000) square feet in a single outlet and no more than twenty 
thousand (20,000) square feet in multiple outlets in the same development project.  

8 Animal boarding/kennels and pet daycare facilities entirely within an enclosed building are considered 
"other personal service."  

9 For standalone warehousing and distribution only. Warehousing and distribution associated with 
another approved use is ancillary and permitted without size limitations 

10 These businesses are involved in the servicing and supplying of materials and equipment 
primarily intended for industrial, institutional, or commercial businesses.  On-site sales are limited 
as most activity occurs electronically or off-site.  Businesses may or may not be open to the general 
public, but sales to the general public are limited as a result of the way in which the firm operates.  
Products are generally delivered to the customer.  Few customers, especially the general public, 
come to the site. 

911 Except for towers located within one thousand (1,000) feet of the Old Town District which are 
prohibited.  

10 See Special Criteria for Medical Marijuana Dispensary under Section 16.38.020.  

(Ord. No. 2015-005, § 2, 5-5-2015; Ord. No. 2015-003, § 2, 3-17-2015; Ord. No. 2012-011, § 2, 

8-7-2012)  

270



 

 

  Page 10 

16.31.030 - Development Standards  

A. Generally 

No lot area, setback, yard, landscaped area, open space, off-street parking or loading area, or other site 
dimension or requirement, existing on, or after, the effective date of this Code shall be reduced below the 
minimum required by this Code. Nor shall the conveyance of any portion of a lot, for other than a public use 
or right-of-way, leave a lot or structure on the remainder of said lot with less than minimum Code 
dimensions, area, setbacks or other requirements, except as permitted by Chapter 16.84 (Variances and 
Adjustments).  

B. Development Standards 

Except as otherwise provided, required minimum lot areas and dimensions and setbacks shall be:  

Development Standards by Zone EI LI GI EI 

Lot area- Industrial Uses: 3 acres9  10,000 SF 20,000 SF 3 acres9  

Lot area- Commercial Uses (subject to Section 16.31.050):  10,000 SF 10,000 SF 20,000 SF 10,000 SF 

Lot width at front property line: 100 feet 

Lot width at building line: 100 feet 

Front Yard Setback11  20 feet 20 feet None 20 feet 

Side Yard Setback10  None None None None 

Rear Yard Setback11  None None None None 

Corner lot street side11  20 feet 20 feet None 20 feet 

Height11  50 feet 

  

9 Lots within the El zone that were legal lots of record prior to October 5, 2010 and smaller than the 
minimum lot size required in the table below may be developed if found consistent with other applicable 
requirements of Chapter 16.31 and this Code. Further subdivision of lots smaller than three (3) acres 
shall be prohibited unless Section 16.31.050 applies.  

10 When a yard is abutting a residential zone or public park, there shall be a minimum setback of forty 
(40) feet provided for properties zoned Employment Industrial and Light Industrial Zones, and a 
minimum setback of fifty (50) feet provided for properties zoned General Industrial.  

11 Structures located within one-hundred (100) feet of a residential zone shall be limited to the height 
requirements of that residential zone.  

271



 

 

  Page 11 

16.31.040 - Employment Industrial (EI) Restrictions  

A. Use Restrictions 

1. Retail and professional services that cater to daily customers, such as restaurants and financial, 
insurance, real estate, legal, medical and dental offices, shall be limited in the EI zone.  

a. New buildings for stores, branches, agencies or other retail uses and services shall not 
occupy more than five thousand (5,000) square feet of sales or service area in a single outlet 
and no more than twenty thousand (20,000) square feet of sales or service area in multiple 
outlets in the same development project, and  

b. New buildings for stores, branches, agencies or other retail uses and services shall not be 
located on lots or parcels smaller than five (5) acres in size. A "development project" includes 
all improvements proposed through a site plan application.  

2. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 16.31.050 "Commercial Nodes Use Restrictions", 
commercial development permitted under 16.31.050(1)(a) may only be proposed concurrent with 
or after industrial development on the same parcel. Commercial development may not occur prior 
to industrial development on the same parcel.  

B. Land Division Restrictions 

1. Lots of record prior to October 5, 2010 that are smaller than the minimum lot size required in the 
El zone may be developed if found consistent with other applicable requirements of Chapter 16.31 
and this code. Further subdivision of lots smaller than three (3) acres shall be prohibited unless 
Section 16.31.050 applies.  

2. Lots or parcels larger than fifty (50) acres may be divided into smaller lots and parcels pursuant 
to a Planned Unit Development approved by the city so long as the resulting division yields at 
least one (1) lot or parcel of at least 50 acres in size.  

3. Lots or parcels fifty (50) acres or larger, including those created pursuant to subsection (2) above, 
may be divided into any number of smaller lots or parcels pursuant to a Planned Unit Development 
approved by the city so long as at least forty (40) percent of the area of the lot or parcel has been 
developed with industrial uses or uses accessory to industrial use.  

(Ord. No. 2012-011, § 2, 8-7-2012) 

16.31.050 - Tonquin Employment Area (TEA) Commercial Nodes Use Restrictions  

A. Within the Tonquin Employment Area (TEA), only commercial uses that directly support industrial uses 
located within the TEA are permitted as conditional uses.  

B. Commercial development, not to exceed a total of five (5) contiguous acres in size, may be permitted.  

C. Commercial development may not be located within three hundred (300) feet of SW 124th Avenue or 
SW Oregon Street, and must be adjacent to the proposed east-west collector street.  

(Ord. No. 2012-011, § 2, 8-7-2012) 

16.31.060 - Community Design  

For standards relating to off-street parking and loading, energy conservation, historic resources, 
environmental resources, landscaping, access and egress, signs, parks and open space, on- site storage, 
and site design, the applicable provisions of Divisions V, VIII and IX will apply.  

(Ord. No. 2012-011, § 2, 8-7-2012) 

272



 

 

  Page 12 

16.31.070 - Floodplain  

Except as otherwise provided, Section 16.134.020 shall apply.  

(Ord. No. 2012-011, § 2, 8-7-2012) 

273



 

Exhibit 3, Summary of proposed changes PA 16-04    Page 1 of 5 

Summary of draft Industrial Use changes – 4-18-16  

 Change Explanation 

1 Added: Small-scale energy facilities - a facility, such as a solar panel, that produces 

energy but that is generally not visible from neighboring properties, with the exception of 

facilities attached to a building that do not exceed the height limits of the underlying zone 

and do not exceed the building height by more than 25%.  For example, solar panels on the 

roof of a 24-foot-tall home could not exceed 6 feet in height.   

Large-scale facilities - a facility that produces energy and exceeds the thresholds of a 

‘small-scale energy facility’”.   

 

These are referred to in the existing code but have no definition. 

These were added in 2012 when the code was updated and the 

proposed definitions were discussed with the Commission and 

Staff, however it appears the definition was inadvertently not 

included in the amendments at the time. 

2 Added: “single” in from of dwelling unit To clarify that you could not have more than one dwelling unit 

3 Changed “Automotive, boat, trailer and recreational vehicle storage” from not permitted to 

conditional with restrictions in the EI zone 

Added: restriction note that this use was conditional “On constrained land where structures would 

not otherwise be permitted, provided that no natural resources such as wetland or floodplains are 

impacted” 

Helps to address concerns raised by property owner with property 

almost entirely constrained by overhead powerline easements. 

4 Changed footnote on “vehicle fueling stations or car wash facilities” to reflect renumbering 

Added: Modified the footnote to the “vehicle fueling stations or car wash facilities” to allow for 

facilities incidental to and solely serving an associated permitted or conditional use 

This is to take into account industrial uses that might have fueling 

facilities for their fleet or equipment. This was based on 

comments from Enterprise Holdings.  Remains consistent with 

Title 4 by continuing to limit to prohibit public sales 

4.1 Capitalized Junkyards Scriveners error/consistency 

4.2 Changed “manufactures” to “manufactured” Scriveners error 

5 Changed footnote on Business and Professional offices to reflect renumbering Reflects renumbering 

6 Changed: “Business support services such as duplicating, photocopying, mailing services, fax 

and computer facilities” from Conditional in the EI to Permitted in the EI 

 

Changed footnote on “Business support services…” to reflect renumbering 

Unnecessary to have that added layer of discretion in the EI zone 

7 Changed: “Any incidental business, service, processing, storage or display, not otherwise 

permitted, that is essential to and customarily associated with a use permitted outright, provided 

said incidental use is conducted entirely within an enclosed building” from Conditional in all 

industrial zones to Permitted  

Unnecessary to have that added layer of discretion for something 

that is “essential to and customarily associated with” a permitted 

use 

8 Changed footnote on “daycares, preschools…” to reflect renumbering Reflects renumbering 

9 Changed footnote on “incidental retail sales…” to reflect renumbering Reflects renumbering 

Exhibit 3 

274



 

 

10 Changed footnote on “medical marijuana dispensary…” to reflect renumbering Reflects renumbering 

11 Added “repair” to tool and equipment rental and sales… To clarify that tool repair would also be allowed.  Footnote 7 was 

also modified to add “sales and rental areas” to make is clear that 

those types of uses are still limited per Metro title 4 requirements 

but industrial repair types of uses would be permitted. 

12 Changed footnote on “retail building material sales and lumberyards” to reflect renumbering 

Changed “lumberyard” to “lumber yard” 

Reflects renumbering 

13 Added: “pet” under animal boarding/kennels and daycare facilities… Clarification that it was a pet daycare and not a child daycare 

14 Changed footnote on “Restaurants, taverns, and lounges without drive-thru” to reflect 

renumbering”  

Reflects renumbering 

15 Add: On-site cafeteria that is secondary to, and serving employees of, a permitted use To make it clear that a cafeteria on-site and serving the 

employees of a business does not require a conditional use. 

Because it is serving employees and secondary to a permitted 

use, it is consistent with Metro Title 4 requirements. 

16 Add: Manufacture, compounding, processing, assembling, packaging, treatment, fabrication of 

products contained wholly within an enclosed building provided exterior odor and noise is 

consistent with municipal code standards and there is no unscreened storage and not otherwise 

regulated elsewhere in the code 

This provides general categories and allows for differentiation by 

zone when considering what it looks like from the outside and 

potential adverse impacts. Removed many of the specific 

categories in the original section.  Differentiated from other 

categories primarily in how they are viewed off site” 

17 Add: Manufacture, compounding, processing, assembling, packaging, treatment, fabrication of 

products not otherwise prohibited elsewhere in the code provided other off-site impacts are 

compliant with local, state and federal regulations. 

Allows for industrial uses with some off site impacts (noise, 

odor, etc) provided they comply with other standards such as 

DEQ regulations. By stating “not otherwise prohibited” it allows 

restriction of specific uses not desired 

18 Added” Manufacture, compounding, processing, assembling, packaging, treatment, or fabrication 

of” in front of “acids, paints, dyes, paints, soaps, ammonia, chlorine, sodium compounds, 

fertilizer, herbicides, insecticides and similar chemicals” 

To clarify this is different from the more general category. The 

reason for this is because of the chemicals used. It is not 

appropriate in the LI zone due to the proximity to residential and 

commercial and is not consistent with the vision for the Tonquin 

Employment Area, therefore this distinction retains it is 

prohibited in the LI and EI and conditional in the GI 

275



 

 

19 Added: :”operating on the same site” in front of Distribution, warehousing and storage associated 

with a permitted use 

Clarifies that a permitted use (such a manufacturing: may also 

have distribution and warehousing associated with it without the 

size limitations for a standalone use 

20 Add: Distribution and warehousing up to 150,000 square feet, provided product(s) are stored 

within an enclosed building9 

 

 

Added footnote For standalone warehousing and distribution only. Warehousing and distribution 

associated with another approved use is ancillary and permitted without size limitations 

Responds to specific feedback from owners within the TEA area 

to allow some distribution and warehousing while providing 

some level of protection of the area for jobs. This category (up to 

150,000 square feet) is permitted in all zones 

 

Footnote clarifies that this only applies to standalone facilities. 

21 Add: Distribution and warehousing greater than 150,000 square feet provided product(s) are 

stored within an enclosed building 

 

 

 

 

Added footnote For standalone warehousing and distribution only. Warehousing and distribution 

associated with another approved use is ancillary and permitted without size limitations 

 

Responds to specific feedback from owners within the TEA area 

to allow some distribution and warehousing while providing 

some level of protection of the area for jobs. This category 

(greater than 150,000 square feet) makes it possible for larger 

facilities in the TEA area provided the applicant demonstrates 

compliance with conditional use criteria, including demonstrating 

a need. 

 

Footnote clarifies that this only applies to standalone facilities. 

22 Deleted: Limited manufacturing entirely within an enclosed building that is generally secondary 

to a permitted or conditional commercial use 

 

Capitalized “Mini-warehousing” 

Unnecessary with the other changes being made 

 

 

Scriveners error/consistency 

23 Changed: Medical or dental laboratories to add “including biomedical compounding Later on (#32) we propose to delete “Manufacture of biomedical 

compounds as regulated by the U.S. Food and Drug 

Administration”.  Currently medical labs are permitted but 

biomedical compounding is only permitted conditionally in the 

GI zone. It is not clear how or why this is different from a 

medical lab.  According to the FDA website, “In general, 

compounding is a practice in which a licensed pharmacist, a 

licensed physician, or, in the case of an outsourcing facility, a 

person under the supervision of a licensed pharmacist, combines, 

mixes, or alters ingredients of a drug to create a medication 

tailored to the needs of an individual patient.” 

24 Changed: “Contractors' storage and equipment yards, building maintenance services, and similar 

uses” to remove “building maintenance services and similar uses” 

Allows us to respond to property owner/develop desire for 

building maintenance type uses while restricting contractors 

276



 

 

Added: restriction note that this use was conditional “On constrained land where structures would 

not otherwise be permitted, provided that no natural resources such as wetland or floodplains are 

impacted” 

storage to only lots with constrained land.  This helps to address 

concerns raised by property owner with property almost entirely 

constrained by overhead powerline easements 

25 Added: Building, heating, plumbing or electrical contractors and suppliers, building maintenance 

services, and similar uses  

 

Added: footnote “These businesses are involved in the servicing and supplying of materials and 

equipment primarily intended for industrial, institutional, or commercial businesses.  On-site sales 

are limited as most activity occurs electronically or off-site.  Businesses may or may not be open 

to the general public, but sales to the general public are limited as a result of the way in which the 

firm operates.  Products are generally delivered to the customer.  Few customers, especially the 

general public, come to the site.” 

Responds to comments from owners and developers to allow uses 

that are customarily associated with industrial areas.  Footnote 

provides clarification of use to differentiate it from a commercial 

use to address Metro Title 4 requirements 

26 Added: “Industrial” in front of “laundry, dry cleaning, dyeing, or rug cleaning plants” To clarify this is different from a personal service.  This is more 

consistent with Title 4 requirements than the current code which 

does not provide this clarity.  One reason for this distinction and 

maintaining existing use restrictions is that there are more 

chemicals and impacts associated with a large scale industrial 

facility which could be incompatible with LI adjacent to 

residential and commercial areas and is inconsistent with the 

vision for the EI zone. 

27 Deleted “Manufacture, compounding, processing, assembling, packaging, treatment, fabrication, 

wholesaling, warehousing or storage of the following articles or products:” 

Replaced with more general as described above in #16 and #17 

28 Deleted 

 Food products, appliances, textiles and fiber products, pottery, glass and previously pulverized 

clay ceramics, small electronics, communication equipment, instruments, toys, novelties, 

electronics components, maintenance equipment, vending machines, cosmetics, chemicals and 

other small products and tools manufactured from previously prepared or semi-finished 

materials 

 Pharmaceuticals in facilities up to 50,000 square feet building size 

 Pharmaceuticals in facilities larger than 50,000 square feet building size 

 Building components, furniture, fixtures, signs 

 Non-motorized recreational vehicles and equipment 

 Manufactured homes, farm equipment, and greenhouses 

 Any non-toxic materials or products made of metal, paper, wood, plastic, stone, fabric or other 

materials or products not otherwise permitted in the zone 

These uses were very specific and otherwise covered by #16 and 

#17 described above 

277



 

 

 Renewable energy/energy efficiency, sustainable environmental products, advanced 

manufacturing, high technology, biotechnology, sports apparel and other recreational products 

29 Moved “Toxins or explosive materials, or any product or compound determined by a public 

health official to be detrimental to the health, safety and welfare of the community” to new 

subheading and Changed to read “Manufacture, compounding, processing, assembling, 

packaging, treatment, or fabrication of Toxins or explosive materials, or any product or compound 

determined by a public health official to be detrimental to the health, safety and welfare of the 

community” to new subheading 

Moved new subheading capturing the prohibited uses in all 

industrial zones 

30 Added: “The following Uses are specifically prohibited in all industrial zones because they have 

been determined to have adverse environmental, public and aesthetic impacts and are not suitable 

for location in any of the industrial zones in the City” 

To provide for a subheading of all prohibited uses across all 

industrial zones 

31 Moved: “Sand and gravel pits, rock crushing facilities, aggregate storage and distribution 

facilities or concrete or asphalt batch plants” and “Solid waste transfer stations” 

 

Housekeeping move to separate out from prohibited uses. These 

are conditionally permitted in the GI zone. 

31.2 Added “not otherwise permitted in this code” at the end of “General purpose landfills, incinerator 

and other solid waste facilities 

In response to specific comments from Pride disposal regarding 

concern that their use, which is a solid waste transfer facility, 

would be considered and “other solid waste facility” and be 

prohibited. This is a clarification because “solid waste transfer 

facility” is conditionally permitted. 

32 Deleted “Manufacture of biomedical compounds as regulated by the U.S. Food and Drug 

Administration” 

See explanation above under #23 

33 Reordered table under 16.31.030.B Housekeeping. Put columns in the same order as the use 

classifications 

 

278



DRAFT 

Ordinance 2016-008 
June 21, 2016 
Page 1 of 2, with Exhibit A (10 pgs)   

 
 

ORDINANCE 2016-008 

 
AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 16.31 (INDUSTRIAL USES) OF THE SHERWOOD ZONING AND 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CODE 

 
WHEREAS, a need was identified to address use classifications in the Employment Industrial (EI) zone 
to help facilitate development in the Tonquin Employment Area; and 

 
WHEREAS, as part of addressing the use classifications in the EI zone, all industrial zones were 
evaluated; and 
 
WHEREAS, after reviewing other jurisdiction’s codes, Oregon model code, and obtaining feedback 
from industrial property owners, business owners, potential developers and the Sherwood community it 
was determined that changes were appropriate, and 
 
WHEREAS, the focus of the changes was to better categorize uses to allow more general categories of 
allowed uses to be open to new products and processes while restricting or prohibiting specific uses 
that were not compatible in the community; and 
 
WHEREAS, draft changes were developed and reviewed, discussed and modified over the course of 
two Planning Commission work sessions and one Planning Commission public hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed amendments were reviewed for compliance and consistency with the 
Comprehensive Plan, regional and state regulations and found to be fully compliant; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed amendments were subject to full and proper notice and review and a public 
hearing was held before the Planning Commission on April 12, 2016; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission voted to forward a recommendation of approval to the City 
Council for the proposed Zoning and Community Development Code modifications; and  
 
WHEREAS, the analysis and findings to support the Planning Commission recommendation are 
identified in Attachment 1 of the City Council Staff Report; and 
  
WHEREAS, the attached Exhibit A reflects the code amendments; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council held public hearings on May 3, 2016 and June 21, 2016 and determined 
that the proposed changes to the Development Code met the applicable Comprehensive Plan criteria 
and continued to be consistent with regional and state standards. 
 
 
 
 

279



DRAFT 

Ordinance 2016-008 
June 21, 2016 
Page 2 of 2, with Exhibit A (10 pgs)   

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:  
 
Section 1. Findings.  After full and due consideration of the proposed amendments, the Planning 
Commission recommendation, the record, findings, and evidence presented at the public hearings, the 
Council adopts the findings of fact contained in the Planning Commission recommendation finding that 
the text of the Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code shall be amended as documented 
in Exhibit A.  
 
Section 2. Approval. The proposed amendments for Plan Amendment (PA) 16-04 identified in Exhibit 
A is hereby APPROVED. 
 
Section 3 - Manager Authorized. The Planning Department is hereby directed to take such action as 
may be necessary to document this amendment, including notice of adoption to DLCD and necessary 
updates to Chapter 16 of the Municipal Code in accordance with City ordinances and regulations. 
 
Section 4 - Applicability. The amendments to the City of Sherwood Zoning and Community 
Development Code approved by this Ordinance apply to all land use applications submitted after the 
effective date of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 5 - Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective the 30th day after its enactment by 
the City Council and approval by the Mayor. 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 21st day of June 2016. 
 
 
 
       _______________________    
       Krisanna Clark, Mayor  Date 
 
 
Attest:   
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder  
 
 
           AYE NAY 

Brouse  ____ ____ 
Robinson ____ ____ 
Kuiper  ____ ____ 
King  ____ ____ 
Henderson ____ ____ 
Harris  ____ ____ 

Clark   ____ ____ 

280



 

 

  Page 1 

 

16.10.020 Definitions 

ADD the following: 

Small-scale energy facilities - a facility, such as a solar panel, that produces energy but that is 
generally not visible from neighboring properties, with the exception of facilities attached to a 
building that do not exceed the height limits of the underlying zone and do not exceed the building 
height by more than 25%.  For example, solar panels on the roof of a 24-foot-tall home could not 
exceed 6 feet in height.   
Large-scale facilities - a facility that produces energy and exceeds the thresholds of a ‘small-scale 
energy facility’”.   
 

 

Chapter 16.31 - INDUSTRIAL LAND USE DISTRICTS[19]  

Sections:  

 

Footnotes:  

--- (19) ---  

Editor's note—Ord. No. 2012-011, adopted August 7, 2012, amended the Code by consolidating the 
provisions of Chs. 16.31, 16.32 and 16.34. Former Ch. 16.31, §§ 16.31.010—16.31.100, pertained to the 
Employment Industrial district, and derived from Ord. 2010-014, adopted October 5, 2010. See Chs. 
16.32 and 16.34 for specific derivation. 

 

16.31.010 - Purpose  

A. Employment Industrial (EI) - The EI zoning district provides employment areas that are suitable for, 
and attractive to, key industries and industry clusters that have been identified by the State of Oregon 
and the City's economic development strategy as important to the state and local economy. The 
following are preferred industry sectors for areas zoned EI: Clean Technology; Technology and 
Advanced Manufacturing; and Outdoor Gear and Active Wear.  

Land zoned EI shall provide for large and medium-sized parcels for industrial campuses and other 
industrial sites that can accommodate a variety of industrial companies and related businesses. Areas 
zoned EI are also intended to provide the opportunity for flex building space within small- and medium-
sized industrial campuses and business parks to accommodate research and development 
companies, incubator/emerging technology businesses, related materials and equipment suppliers, 
and or spin-off companies and other businesses that derive from, or are extensions of, larger campus 
users and developments. Retail and commercial uses are allowed only when directly supporting area 
employers and employees.  

Exhibit A 

PC recommended draft - CLEAN 

Ordinance 2016-008, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 1 of 10

281



 

 

  Page 2 

Industrial establishments and support services shall not have objectionable external features and shall 
feature well-landscaped sites and attractive architectural design, as determined by the Hearing 
Authority.  

B. Light Industrial (LI) - The LI zoning district provides for the manufacturing, processing, assembling, 
packaging and treatment of products which have been previously prepared from raw materials. 
Industrial establishments shall not have objectionable external features and shall feature well-
landscaped sites and attractive architectural design, as determined by the Commission.  

C. General Industrial (GI) - The GI zoning district provides for the manufacturing, processing, assembling, 
packaging and treatment of products from previously prepared or raw materials, providing such 
activities can meet and maintain minimum environmental quality standards and are situated so as not 
to create significant adverse effects to residential and commercial areas of the City. The minimum 
contiguous area of any GI zoning district shall be fifty (50) acres.  

(Ord. No. 2012-011, § 2, 8-7-2012) 

16.31.020 - Uses  

A. The table below identifies the land uses that are permitted outright (P), permitted conditionally (C) and 
not permitted (N) in the industrial zoning districts. The specific land use categories are described and 
defined in Chapter 16.88.  

B. Uses listed in other sections of this Code, but not within this specific table are prohibited.  

C. Any use not otherwise listed that can be shown to be consistent or associated with the uses permitted 
outright or conditionally in the industrial zones or contribute to the achievement of the objectives of the 
industrial zones may be permitted outright or conditionally, utilizing the provisions of Chapter 16.88.  

D. Additional limitations for specific uses are identified in the footnotes of this table. 

Uses LI GI EI1  

RESIDENTIAL  

•  Single Dwelling unit, including a manufactured home, for one (1) security person 

employed on the premises and their immediate family  
P P P 

CIVIC  

•  Hospitals C N N 

•  Police and fire stations and other emergency services C C C 

•  Vehicle testing stations C C C 

•  Postal services - Public C C C 

Ordinance 2016-008, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 2 of 10

282



 

 

  Page 3 

Uses LI GI EI1  

•  Postal substations when located entirely within and incidental to a use permitted 

outright  
C C C 

•  Public and private utility structures, including but not limited to telephone exchanges, 

electric substations, gas regulator stations, treatment plants, water wells, and public work 

yards  

P P P 

•  Small-scale power generation facilities P P P 

•  Large-scale power generation facilities C P C 

•  Public recreational facilities including parks, trails, playfields and sports and racquet 

courts on publicly owned property or under power line easements  
C C C 

COMMERCIAL  

•  Commercial Trade Schools, commercial educational services and training facilities P P C 

Entertainment/recreation 

•  Country clubs, sports and racquet clubs and other similar clubs C C C 

•  Indoor recreation facilities such as arcades, mini-golf, or bounce house facilities2,3  C C C 

Motor Vehicle related 

•  Motorized vehicle and sport craft repairs and service C C N 

•  Motorized vehicle and sport craft repair and service clearly incidental and secondary to 

and customarily associated with a use permitted outright or conditionally  
P P P 

•  Automotive, boat, trailer and recreational vehicle storage C C C4 

•  Vehicle fueling stations or car wash facilities 5  C C C 

•  Junkyards and salvage yards N N N 

Ordinance 2016-008, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 3 of 10

283



 

 

  Page 4 

Uses LI GI EI1  

•  Manufactured home sales and display area N N N 

Office and Professional Support services 

•  Business and professional offices3 P P P 

•  Business support services such as duplicating, photocopying, mailing services, fax and 

computer facilities3  
P P P 

•  Any incidental business, service, processing, storage or display, not otherwise permitted, 

that is essential to and customarily associated with a use permitted outright, provided said 

incidental use is conducted entirely within an enclosed building  

P P P 

Childcare 

•  Day cares, preschools, and kindergartens, when clearly secondary to a permitted use  P P P 

•  Day cares, preschools, and kindergartens as a stand-alone use3  C C C 

General Retail - sales oriented 

•  Incidental retail sales or display/showroom directly associated with a permitted use and 

limited to a maximum of 10% of the total floor area of the business3  
P P P 

•  Medical marijuana dispensary, not exceeding 3,000 square feet of gross square footage P6 P6 N 

•  Tool and equipment repair, rental and sales, including truck rental7  P P P 

•  Retail plant nurseries and garden supply stores (excluding wholesale plant nurseries) P P N 

•  Wholesale building material sales and service C P N 

•  Retail building material sales and lumber yards3  C P N 

Personal Services 

•  Health clubs and studios less than 5,000 square feet in size P P P 

Ordinance 2016-008, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 4 of 10

284



 

 

  Page 5 

Uses LI GI EI1  

•  Personal services catering to daily customers where patrons pay for or receive a service 

rather than goods or materials, including but not limited to financial, beauty, pet grooming, 

and similar services8  

C C C 

•  Public or commercial parking (non- accessory) N N N 

•  Veterinarian offices and animal hospitals C C C 

•  Animal boarding/Kennels and pet daycare facilities with outdoor recreation areas8  C C C 

Eating and Drinking establishments: 

•  Restaurants, taverns, and lounges without drive-thru3 C C C 

•  Restaurants with drive-thru services N N N 

 On-site cafeteria that is secondary to, and serving employees of, a permitted use P P P 

INDUSTRIAL  

•  Manufacture, compounding, processing, assembling, packaging, treatment, fabrication 

of products contained wholly within an enclosed building provided exterior odor and noise 

is consistent with municipal code standards and there is no unscreened storage and not 

otherwise regulated elsewhere in the code,  

P P P 

•  Manufacture, compounding, processing, assembling, packaging, treatment, fabrication 

of products not otherwise prohibited elsewhere in the code provided other off-site impacts 

are compliant with local, state and federal regulations. 

C P C 

• Manufacture, compounding, processing, assembling, packaging, treatment, or fabrication 

of acids, paints, dyes, paints, soaps, ammonia, chlorine, sodium compounds, fertilizer, 

herbicides, insecticides and similar chemicals  

N C N 

•  Distribution, warehousing and storage associated with a permitted use operating on the 

same site 
P P P 

Ordinance 2016-008, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 5 of 10

285



 

 

  Page 6 

Uses LI GI EI1  

Distribution and warehousing up to 150,000 square feet, provided product(s) are stored 

within an enclosed building9 
P P P 

Distribution and warehousing greater than 150,000 square feet provided product(s) are 

stored within an enclosed building 9 
N P C 

•  Mini-warehousing or self-storage N P N 

•  Medical or dental laboratories, including biomedical compounding P P P 

•  Laboratories (not medical or dental) P P P 

•  Research and development and associated manufacturing P P P 

•  Contractors' storage and equipment yards,  C P C4 

Building, heating, plumbing or electrical contractors and suppliers, building maintenance 

services, and similar uses 10 
P P P 

• Industriallaundry, dry cleaning, dyeing, or rug cleaning plants C P N 

•  Sawmills C C N 

•  Sand and gravel pits, rock crushing facilities, aggregate storage and distribution facilities 

or concrete or asphalt batch plants  
N C N 

•  Solid waste transfer stations N C N 

The following Uses are specifically prohibited in all industrial zones because they have been 

determined to have adverse environmental, public and aesthetic impacts and are not 

suitable for location in any of the industrial zones in the City 

   

•  Manufacture, compounding, processing, assembling, packaging, treatment, or 

fabrication of toxins or explosive materials, or any product or compound determined 

by a public health official to be detrimental to the health, safety and welfare of the 

community  

N N N 

Ordinance 2016-008, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 6 of 10

286



 

 

  Page 7 

Uses LI GI EI1  

•  Pulp and paper mills N N N 

•  Distillation of oil, coal, wood or tar compounds and the creosote treatment of any 

products  
N N N 

•  Metal rolling and extraction mills, forge plants, smelters and blast furnaces N N N 

•  Meat, fish, poultry and tannery processing N N N 

•  General purpose solid waste landfills,-incinerators, and other solid waste facilities 

not otherwise permitted in this code 
N N N 

WIRELESS COMMUNICATION FACILITIES  

•  Radio, television, and similar communication stations, including associated transmitters C C C 

•  Wireless communication towers11 and transmitters  C C C 

•  Wireless communication facilities on City-owned property C C C 

•  Wireless communication antennas co-located on an existing tower or on an existing 

building or structure not exceeding the roof of the structure  
P P P 

OTHER  

Agricultural uses including but not limited to: 

•  Farm equipment sales and rentals N N N 

•  Farming and horticulture P P P 

•  Raising of animals other than household pets N N N 

•  Truck and bus yards N P N 

  

1 See special criteria for the EI zone, 16.31.030 and the Tonquin Employment Area (TEA), 16.31.040.  

Ordinance 2016-008, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 7 of 10

287



 

 

  Page 8 

2If use is mixed with another, such as a restaurant, it is considered secondary to that use and permitted, 
provided it occupies less than fifty (50) percent of the total area.  

3 Limited in size to five thousand (5,000) square feet in a single outlet and no more than twenty 
thousand (20,000) square feet in multiple outlets in the same development project.  

4 On constrained land where structures would not otherwise be permitted, provided that no natural 
resources such as wetland or floodplains are impacted 

5 Limited to Cardlock, wholesale or facilities incidental to and solely serving an associated permitted 
or conditional use- no public retail fuel sales.  

6 See Special Criteria for Medical Marijuana Dispensary under Section 16.38.020.  

7Sales and rental area Limited in size to five thousand (5,000) square feet in a single outlet and no 
more than twenty thousand (20,000) square feet in multiple outlets in the same development project.  

.  

8 Animal boarding/kennels and pet daycare facilities entirely within an enclosed building are considered 
"other personal service."  

9 For standalone warehousing and distribution only. Warehousing and distribution associated with 
another approved use is ancillary and permitted without size limitations 

10 These businesses are involved in the servicing and supplying of materials and equipment 
primarily intended for industrial, institutional, or commercial businesses.  On-site sales are limited 
as most activity occurs electronically or off-site.  Businesses may or may not be open to the general 
public, but sales to the general public are limited as a result of the way in which the firm operates.  
Products are generally delivered to the customer.  Few customers, especially the general public, 
come to the site. 

11 Except for towers located within one thousand (1,000) feet of the Old Town District which are 
prohibited.  

(Ord. No. 2015-005, § 2, 5-5-2015; Ord. No. 2015-003, § 2, 3-17-2015; Ord. No. 2012-011, § 2, 

8-7-2012)  

16.31.030 - Development Standards  

A. Generally 

No lot area, setback, yard, landscaped area, open space, off-street parking or loading area, or other site 
dimension or requirement, existing on, or after, the effective date of this Code shall be reduced below the 
minimum required by this Code. Nor shall the conveyance of any portion of a lot, for other than a public use 
or right-of-way, leave a lot or structure on the remainder of said lot with less than minimum Code 
dimensions, area, setbacks or other requirements, except as permitted by Chapter 16.84 (Variances and 
Adjustments).  

B. Development Standards 

Except as otherwise provided, required minimum lot areas and dimensions and setbacks shall be:  

Ordinance 2016-008, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 8 of 10

288



 

 

  Page 9 

Development Standards by Zone  LI GI EI 

Lot area- Industrial Uses:  10,000 SF 20,000 SF 3 acres9  

Lot area- Commercial Uses (subject to Section 16.31.050):   10,000 SF 20,000 SF 10,000 SF 

Lot width at front property line: 100 feet 

Lot width at building line: 100 feet 

Front Yard Setback11   20 feet None 20 feet 

Side Yard Setback10   None None None 

Rear Yard Setback11   None None None 

Corner lot street side11   20 feet None 20 feet 

Height11  50 feet 

  

9 Lots within the El zone that were legal lots of record prior to October 5, 2010 and smaller than the 
minimum lot size required in the table below may be developed if found consistent with other applicable 
requirements of Chapter 16.31 and this Code. Further subdivision of lots smaller than three (3) acres 
shall be prohibited unless Section 16.31.050 applies.  

10 When a yard is abutting a residential zone or public park, there shall be a minimum setback of forty 
(40) feet provided for properties zoned Employment Industrial and Light Industrial Zones, and a 
minimum setback of fifty (50) feet provided for properties zoned General Industrial.  

11 Structures located within one-hundred (100) feet of a residential zone shall be limited to the height 
requirements of that residential zone.  

16.31.040 - Employment Industrial (EI) Restrictions  

A. Use Restrictions 

1. Retail and professional services that cater to daily customers, such as restaurants and financial, 
insurance, real estate, legal, medical and dental offices, shall be limited in the EI zone.  

a. New buildings for stores, branches, agencies or other retail uses and services shall not 
occupy more than five thousand (5,000) square feet of sales or service area in a single outlet 
and no more than twenty thousand (20,000) square feet of sales or service area in multiple 
outlets in the same development project, and  

Ordinance 2016-008, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 9 of 10

289



 

 

  Page 10 

b. New buildings for stores, branches, agencies or other retail uses and services shall not be 
located on lots or parcels smaller than five (5) acres in size. A "development project" includes 
all improvements proposed through a site plan application.  

2. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 16.31.050 "Commercial Nodes Use Restrictions", 
commercial development permitted under 16.31.050(1)(a) may only be proposed concurrent with 
or after industrial development on the same parcel. Commercial development may not occur prior 
to industrial development on the same parcel.  

B. Land Division Restrictions 

1. Lots of record prior to October 5, 2010 that are smaller than the minimum lot size required in the 
El zone may be developed if found consistent with other applicable requirements of Chapter 16.31 
and this code. Further subdivision of lots smaller than three (3) acres shall be prohibited unless 
Section 16.31.050 applies.  

2. Lots or parcels larger than fifty (50) acres may be divided into smaller lots and parcels pursuant 
to a Planned Unit Development approved by the city so long as the resulting division yields at 
least one (1) lot or parcel of at least 50 acres in size.  

3. Lots or parcels fifty (50) acres or larger, including those created pursuant to subsection (2) above, 
may be divided into any number of smaller lots or parcels pursuant to a Planned Unit Development 
approved by the city so long as at least forty (40) percent of the area of the lot or parcel has been 
developed with industrial uses or uses accessory to industrial use.  

(Ord. No. 2012-011, § 2, 8-7-2012) 

16.31.050 - Tonquin Employment Area (TEA) Commercial Nodes Use Restrictions  

A. Within the Tonquin Employment Area (TEA), only commercial uses that directly support industrial uses 
located within the TEA are permitted as conditional uses.  

B. Commercial development, not to exceed a total of five (5) contiguous acres in size, may be permitted.  

C. Commercial development may not be located within three hundred (300) feet of SW 124th Avenue or 
SW Oregon Street, and must be adjacent to the proposed east-west collector street.  

(Ord. No. 2012-011, § 2, 8-7-2012) 

16.31.060 - Community Design  

For standards relating to off-street parking and loading, energy conservation, historic resources, 
environmental resources, landscaping, access and egress, signs, parks and open space, on- site storage, 
and site design, the applicable provisions of Divisions V, VIII and IX will apply.  

(Ord. No. 2012-011, § 2, 8-7-2012) 

16.31.070 - Floodplain  

Except as otherwise provided, Section 16.134.020 shall apply.  

(Ord. No. 2012-011, § 2, 8-7-2012) 

Ordinance 2016-008, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 10 of 10

290



Ordinance 2016-010, Staff Report 
June 21, 2016 
Page 1 of 1, with attachment (7 pgs) 

City Council Meeting Date: June 21, 2016 
 

Agenda Item: Public Hearing, Second Reading 
 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Brad Kilby, Planning Manager 
Through: Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager and Josh Soper, City Attorney 
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance 2016-010, Amending Section 16.162.040 to allow public and private parking 

lots on a residentially zoned lot within the old town overlay 
 

 
Issue: 
Should Council adopt Ordinance 2016-010 and amend the City of Sherwood Zoning and Community 
Development Code (SZCDC) to allow public and private (non-accessory) parking on residentially zoned lots 
in the Old Town Overlay? 
  
Background: 
The applicant, the Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency (URA) determined that there was a need for additional 
public parking in Old Town based on a plan to sell the Robin Hood Theater lot located at the intersection of 
SW Pine Street and SW 1st Avenue across from the American Legion. It was decided that there would be a 
need to provide parking to help replace the parking that would be lost as a result of selling the lot for 
development.  
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on April 12, 2016. As a result of the public testimony given 
at that time, and a subsequent split vote by the Commission, the URA staff amended the language to further 
limit the number of properties that would be subject to this amendment. The Planning Commission held a 
second meeting on May 24, 2016 to consider the amended language and generally supported the proposal.      
 
The Planning Commission recommendation, with analysis and findings is attached to this report.  The 
Planning Commission recommended code language is attached to the recommendation as Exhibit A in 
track change version. The clean version would be adopted by Council.    
 
Financial Impacts: 
The applicant paid an application fee which is intended to cover the costs associated with processing this 
amendment.  It is not anticipated that adoption or denial of the amendments will have cost impacts to the 
city. 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff respectfully requests that the Council hold a public hearing, consider public testimony, the Planning 
Commission recommendation, and adopt Ordinance 2016-010. This would be the second reading, and the 
meeting was noticed to those who have provided public comments, and everyone who received the initial 
notice to ensure that they understand that the second reading will not occur on July 19, 2016 as announced 
at the Council Meeting on June 7, 2016. 
 
Attachments:  Planning Commission Recommendation to the City Council (dated 05/27/2016). 

291



 

PA 16-02 2014 Code Update  Page 1 of 4 
Planning Commission Recommendation to the City Council 

 
City of Sherwood May 27, 2016  
Planning Commission Recommendation to the City Council:     
File No: PA 16-02 Code Update  
 
To:  SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL 
 
From:  PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
 
On May 24, 2016, the Planning Commission considered an amendment to the City of Sherwood Zoning 
and Community Development Code to amend the Old Town overlay to allow non-accessory public and 
private parking on residential lots, proposed by the Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency. After 
considering the applicant’s materials, public testimony, and the findings in the staff report, the Planning 
Commission voted to recommend approval of the request to the Sherwood City Council. Their decision 
is based on the facts and findings in this recommendation.      
                                                                                                                    

Signed: _ ________ 
  Brad Kilby, AICP, Planning Manager 
 
 
Proposal: As a result of the last Planning Commission split vote, and after listening to public testimony 
regarding the proposal, the City Urban Renewal Agency is proposing to revise their original amendment 
and adding language to the Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code to allow non-
accessory parking lots within residential zones in the Old Town Overlay as a conditional use provided 
they are adjacent to a collector or arterial AND the lot was vacant as of May 1, 2016. This applies to 
only one lot in the entire Old Town area. That lot is addressed as 15919 SW 1st Street.  There was a 
question of whether or not it would apply to a second lot, 15804 SW 1st Street, but that lot was not 
vacant as of May 1, 2016. That is the second of two lots that the Sherwood School District purchased 
for constructing a Bowman house, and that lot has a recently constructed outbuilding on it for storage of 
construction tools and materials.  The site is not considered vacant. All other residentially zoned lots in 
Old Town, located on a collector or arterial street are developed.   The collector and arterial streets in 
Old Town Sherwood include Pine, Washington, Main Street, and portions of 1st and 3rd streets, and 
are illustrated in the following table. 
 

   
 

Ordinance 2016-010, Attachment to Staff Report 
June 7, 2016, Page 1 of 7

292



 

PA 16-02 2014 Code Update  Page 2 of 4 
Planning Commission Recommendation to the City Council 

 
I. BACKGROUND 
 

A. Applicant: This is a City initiated text amendment from the Urban Renewal Agency. 
 

B. Location:  The proposed amendment is to the text of the Comprehensive Plan and applies to 
any residentially zoned property within the Old Town Overlay that is adjacent to a collector 
or arterial street and was vacant as of May 1, 2016.   

 
C. Review Type: Proposed text amendments are legislative and require a Type V review, which 

involves public hearings before the Planning Commission and City Council.  Any appeal of 
the City Council’s decision relating to this matter will be considered by the Oregon Land Use 
Board of Appeals. 
 

D. Public Notice and Hearing: Notice of the May 24, 2016 Planning Commission hearing on the 
proposed amendment was published in The Times on March 17, 2016, March 31, 2016, 
May 12, 2016, and again on May 19, 2016 . Notice was also re-posted in five public 
locations around town on April 28, 2016, on the City of Sherwood web site, and sent to all 
property owners within the Old Town Overlay.   

 
Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) notice was submitted 
on March 8, 2016. In conversations with the DLCD District Representative, it was 
determined that a second notice of the revised language was not required.  

 
E. Review Criteria:  

The required findings for the Plan Amendment are identified in Section 16.80.030 of the 
SZCDC. 
 

F. Background: 
The Urban Renewal Agency purchased two lots within Old Town located at 15931 and 
15919 SW 1st Street with the intention of building extra public parking that would be 
available in the event that the two lots located at 16020 SW 1st Street were to be sold and 
redeveloped. The two lots at 16020 SW 1st Street are currently unimproved, used for 
parking, and are across from City Hall. Lot 15919 SW 1st Avenue is zoned Medium Density 
Residential Low (MDRL) which currently does not allow non-accessory parking. It was 
determined that there may be other instances in the future where non-accessory parking 
may be needed in Old Town, and since there are a variety of mixed uses allowed throughout 
the Old Town Overlay, that it may be a good idea to allow them conditionally along collector 
and arterial designated streets where businesses are most likely to locate. Under the 
revised language, the proposal would only apply to one property given that all other 
residentially zoned properties within Old Town that are located along collector or arterial 
classified streets were not vacant as of May 1, 2016.   
 
 

II. AFFECTED AGENCY, PUBLIC NOTICE, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
Agencies: 
DLCD notice was submitted on March 8, 2016. Notice was sent to affected agencies on March 
25, 2016 and again on April 29, 2016.  
 
Staff did not receive any agency comments except a phone call from Metro to ask about the 
proposal and to say that they would not be providing comments.  
 

Ordinance 2016-010, Attachment to Staff Report 
June 7, 2016, Page 2 of 7

293



 

PA 16-02 2014 Code Update  Page 3 of 4 
Planning Commission Recommendation to the City Council 

The City has not received any additional agency comments to date. 
 
Public:  
Public Notice of the revised amendment was sent out to everyone in Old Town, and posted in 
five public locations around town on April 28, 2016. 
 
On March 23-28, 2016, staff received comments from Mike Versteegh of 22335 SW Washington 
Street. In his letter, Mr. Versteegh indicates that he is adamantly opposed to the proposal, and 
states that, “It makes absolutely no sense to purchase and demolish homes (many historic) that 
make up the character and charm of Old Town Sherwood to build parking lots…” Mr. 
Versteegh’s comments are attached to this report as Exhibit B. 
 
On April 30, 2016, Mr. Versteegh sent an e-mail (Exhibit C) reiterating his concern for the 
original proposal before it went to the City Council for their May 3, 2016 hearing (Application did 
not go to Council as it was amended before the May 3rd meeting).  Mr. Versteegh was contacted 
by the URA staff, and the amended language was explained to him.  Mr. Versteegh has not 
provided any additional comments to the amended proposal.  
 

III. REQUIRED FINDINGS FOR A PLAN TEXT AMENDMENT 

The applicable Plan Text Amendment review criteria are 16.80.030.A and C 
 
16.80.030.A - Text Amendment Review 

An amendment to the text of the Comprehensive Plan shall be based upon the need 
for such an amendment as identified by the Council or the Commission. Such an 
amendment shall be consistent with the intent of the Comprehensive Plan, and with 
all other provisions of the Plan and Code, and with any applicable State or City 
statutes and regulations. 
 
The proposal seeks to amend chapters of the Zoning and Community Development Code, 
Volume III of the Comprehensive Plan. While this specific proposal does not include 
changes to the goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan, it would amend language of 
the Zoning and Community Development Code. There are no specific standards other than 
ensuring that the language is consistent with the existing Comprehensive Plan and any 
applicable State or City Statutes and regulations.  
 
The 2006 Economic Development Strategy recognizes Old Town as an overlay district 
generally applied to commercially zoned property, and residential properties with the 
potential for commercial conversion. Referred to as the EOA, the document was 
incorporated into the Comprehensive Plan by reference.  Within the EOA, there is language 
to suggest that problems and opportunities within Old Town would require the enhancement 
of public parking.  There are no specific goals or policies relative to the lack or provision of 
public parking within the plan, but the City URA board which is also the City Council has 
indicated that there is a need for additional parking to replace the parking that would be lost 
in the event that the two lots located at the southwest corner of the intersection of SW 1st 
street and SW Pine were redeveloped. They authorized the purchase of the two properties 
for this purpose, and have authorized their staff liaison to proceed with this request.  
 
Finally, the City does field complaints about the lack of public parking in Old Town, and has 
made an application to the Transportation and Growth Management Program  to undergo a 
more thorough and comprehensive study of parking in Old Town.  If approved, the work and 
study could occur within the next year or so. Without a comprehensive study of the parking 
downtown, the need is perceived at this point.   

Ordinance 2016-010, Attachment to Staff Report 
June 7, 2016, Page 3 of 7

294



 

PA 16-02 2014 Code Update  Page 4 of 4 
Planning Commission Recommendation to the City Council 

 
There do not appear to be any Comprehensive Plan requirements that would conflict with 
the proposed code language.  
 
Applicable Regional (Metro) Standards 
There are no known Metro standards that would conflict with the proposed amendment. Metro 
policies related to parking are only intended to ensure that minimum and maximum parking 
ratios called for by Cities within the Metro Urban Growth Boundary do not conflict with the 
Urban Growth Management Functional Plan limits.  
 
Consistency with Statewide Planning Goals 
Because the comprehensive plan policies and strategies are not changing and the 
comprehensive plan has been acknowledged by the State, there are no known conflicts with 
this text change. Staff is not aware of any other state or local regulations that the proposed 
amendment would conflict with.  The language has been drafted in a manner that strives to 
provide clarity within the Code to staff, property owners, and developers.  
 
 
Formal notice was also published in the newspaper two weeks prior to the new hearing, has 
been posted around town in five conspicuous places, is provided on the City’s website, and 
staff took the added measure of notifying all property owners within the Old Town Overlay of 
the proposed and revised amendments. The proposed amendments are consistent with Goal 1 
(Citizen Participation) and Goal 2 (land use planning).  
   

FINDING: As discussed in the above analysis, there is a need for the proposed amendment to 
allow the parking lot that would result from this amendment on SW 1st Street, and a perceived 
need by the business owners and public who patronize and live in Old Town. The proposed 
amendment is not in conflict with any applicable City, regional or State regulations. 

 
16.80.030.3 – Transportation Planning Rule Consistency 

A. Review of plan and text amendment applications for effect on transportation 
facilities. Proposals shall be reviewed to determine whether it significantly affects a 
transportation facility, in accordance with OAR 660-12-0060 (the TPR). Review is 
required when a development application includes a proposed amendment to the 
Comprehensive Plan or changes to land use regulations. 
 

FINDING: The proposed amendment does not affect the functional classification of any street. It 
should be noted that future applications for parking lots are subject to Conditional Use review 
and are limited to streets that are collectors and arterials within Old Town. 
 
 

IV. RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the above findings of fact, and the conclusion of law based on the applicable criteria, 
staff recommends approval of PA 16-02. 

 
V. EXHIBITS  A. PA 16-02 REVISED Code Amendments 
   B. Letter from Mike and Cheryl Versteegh dated March 28, 2016 
   C. E-mail to City Council from Mike and Cheryl Versteegh dated April 30, 2016 
    

Ordinance 2016-010, Attachment to Staff Report 
June 7, 2016, Page 4 of 7

295



 

 

  Page 1 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

16.162.040 - Conditional Uses  

The following uses are permitted as conditional uses, provided such uses meet the 
applicable environmental performance standards contained in Division VIII, and are 
approved in accordance with Chapter 16.82:  

A. Uses permitted as conditional uses in the RC zone, Section 16.28.020, HDR 
zone, Section 16.20.020, and the MDRL zone, Section 16.16.020, provided that 
uses permitted as conditional uses on any given property are limited to those 
permitted in the underlying zoning district, unless otherwise specified by Section 
16.162.030 and this Section.  

(Ord. 2002-1128 § 3; 94-990; 92-946; 87-859) 

B. Townhouses (shared wall single-family attached) subject to Chapter 16.44. In 
addition, any garages shall use alley access. RC zone setback standards may 
be used in lieu of other applicable standards.  

(Ord. 2006-009 § 2) 

C. Public and commercial (non-accessory) parking within residential zoning 
districts when both of the following apply: 

1. On May 1, 2016, no buildings existed on the property where the parking 
is to be located; and 

2. The property has street frontage on an arterial and/or collector street as 
identified within the Sherwood Transportation System Plan. 

Ordinance 2016-010, Attachment to Staff Report 
June 7, 2016, Page 5 of 7

296



Exhibit B

Mike & Cheryl Versteegh 
22335 SW Washington St. 
Sherwood, Oregon 97140 

March 28th, 2016 

Planning Department- City Hall 
22560 SW Pine Street 
Sherwood, OR 97140 

COMMENT RE: Public or Commercial Parking within the Old Town Overlay 

Dear Planning Member(s) 

Let it be known and stated for public record that we are adamantly opposed to the 
proposal for a text amendment to conditionally allow public or commercial parking (non
accessory, stand-alone) provided the lot is within the Old Town Overlay District, and the 
property is located on a collector or arterial street. 

It makes absolutely no sense to purchase and demolish homes (many historic) that 
make-up the character and charm of Old Town Sherwood in order to build parking lots. 
Displacing residents, who are active tax payers, from their community is not the answer. 

Tearing down homes that are the fabric of our community only to replace them with 
scabs of asphalt patches peppered throughout the heart of our city is poor planning. I 
suggest you consider utilizing areas within the city that are not currently occupied. I 
propose that you open (and pave) the large gravel lot located at the corner of 3rd and 
Pine Street which is currently not in use and could accommodate numerous vehicles. 

If you are really "hell bent" on using tax payer money to pave over something ............ I 
suggest you start with the streets in old town as they are in grave dis-repair. 

Ordinance 2016-010, Attachment to Staff Report 
June 7, 2016, Page 6 of 7

297



From: Mike Versteegh [mailto:siletzfish@webtv.net] 
Sent: Saturday, April 30, 2016 2:10 PM 
To: Krisanna Clark; Krisanna Cla.rk (Contact); Jennifer Harris; Linda Henderson; Dan King; Sally Robinson; 
Jennifer Kuiper; Renee Brouse 
Subject: OPPOSITION TO CASE FILE NO. PA 16-02 

Dear Mayor & Council Members 

As long time residents of Old Town Sherwood my wife and I are very concerned about allowing 
a text amendment to conditionally allow public or commercial parking (non-accessory, stand
alone) provided the lot is within the Old Town Overlay District and the property is located on a 
collector or arterial street. This is• referenced as Case File No: PA 16-02. I see that many of you 
are members of th.e Sherwood Historical Society and I hope that demolishing residential homes 
in Old Town (many historic) to build parking lots "rings loudly" in a bad way with you. 

Unfortunately, my wife and I can not attend the May 3rd City Council, but we wanted to pass 
along our full opposition in the attached document. We hope you take the time to read it well 
before the May 3rd City Council meeting. 

Thank you 

If you have any questions for me please feel free to contact me at 503-625-7242 

Sincerely, 

Mike Versteegh 
22335 SW Washington St. 
Sherwood, OR 

Exhibit B 

Ordinance 2016-010, Attachment to Staff Report 
June 7, 2016, Page 7 of 7

298



DRAFT 

Ordinance 2016-010 
June 21, 2016 
Page 1 of 2, with Exhibit 1, Recommended Code Language (1 page) 
 

 
 

ORDINANCE 2016-010 
 

AMENDING SECTION 16.162.040 TO ALLOW PUBLIC AND PRIVATE PARKING LOTS ON A 
RESIDENTIALLY ZONED LOT WITHIN THE OLD TOWN OVERLAY 

 

WHEREAS, the City received an application on behalf of the Urban Renewal Agency for a text 
amendment to the Sherwood Zoning and Development Code amending the provisions of Chapter § 
16.162.040; and 
 
WHEREAS, the applicant proposed to conditionally permit public and private (non-accessory) parking on 
residentially zoned lots within the Old Town Overlay as long as they were located on a Collector or 
Arterial designated street, and vacant as of May 1, 2016 ; and 
   
WHEREAS, after testimony from the public, staff and the applicant, the Sherwood Planning Commission 
recommended to the City Council that the proposed amendment to Section 16.162.040 be approved; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the proposed amendment was reviewed for compliance and consistency with the 
Comprehensive Plan, regional and state regulations and found to be fully compliant; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed amendments were subject to full and proper notice and review and public 
hearings before the Planning Commission on April 12, 2016 and May 24, 2016; and 

 
WHEREAS, the analysis and findings to support the Planning Commission recommendation are 
identified in the City Council Staff Report; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on June 7, 2016, and determined that the proposed 
changes to the Development Code met the applicable Comprehensive Plan criteria and continued to be 
consistent with regional and state standards at a first reading on June 7 with an anticipated second 
reading on June 21, 2016. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:  
 
Section 1. Findings   After full and due consideration of the application, the Planning Commission 
recommendation, the record, findings, and evidence presented at the public hearing, the City Council 
adopts the findings of fact contained in the Planning Commission recommendation finding that the text of 
the SZCDC shall be amended as documented in attached Exhibit 1.  
 
Section 2. Approval  The proposed amendment for Plan Text Amendment (PA) 16-02 identified in 
Exhibit 1 is hereby APPROVED. 
 
Section 3. Manager Authorized   The Planning Department is hereby directed to take such action as 
may be necessary to document this amendment, including notice of adoption to DLCD and necessary 
updates to Chapter 16 of the Municipal Code in accordance with City ordinances and regulations. 
 

299



DRAFT 

Ordinance 2016-010 
June 21, 2016 
Page 2 of 2, with Exhibit 1, Recommended Code Language (1 page) 
 

Section 4. Applicability The amendments to the City of Sherwood Zoning and Community 
Development Code by Sections 1 to 3 of this Ordinance apply to all land use applications submitted after 
the effective date of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 5. Effective Date This ordinance shall become effective the 30th day after its enactment by 
the City Council and approval of the Mayor. 
 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 21st day of June 2016. 
 

  
        _________________________   
        Krisanna Clark, Mayor  Date 
 
 
Attest:   
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder      
 
           AYE NAY 

Brouse  ____ ____ 
Robinson ____ ____ 
Kuiper  ____ ____ 
King  ____ ____ 
Henderson ____ ____ 
Harris  ____ ____ 
Clark    

300



 

 

Ordinance 2016-010, Exhibit 1 
June 21, 2016, Page 1 of 1 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1 

 

16.162.040 - Conditional Uses  

The following uses are permitted as conditional uses, provided such uses meet the applicable 
environmental performance standards contained in Division VIII, and are approved in accordance with 
Chapter 16.82:  

A. Uses permitted as conditional uses in the RC zone, Section 16.28.020, HDR zone, Section 
16.20.020, and the MDRL zone, Section 16.16.020, provided that uses permitted as conditional 
uses on any given property are limited to those permitted in the underlying zoning district, 
unless otherwise specified by Section 16.162.030 and this Section.  

(Ord. 2002-1128 § 3; 94-990; 92-946; 87-859) 

B. Townhouses (shared wall single-family attached) subject to Chapter 16.44. In addition, any 
garages shall use alley access. RC zone setback standards may be used in lieu of other 
applicable standards.  

(Ord. 2006-009 § 2) 

C. Public and commercial (non-accessory) parking within residential zoning districts when both of 
the following apply: 

1. On May 1, 2016, no buildings existed on the property where the parking is to be located; 
and 

2. The property has street frontage on an arterial and/or collector street as identified within 
the Sherwood Transportation System Plan. 

301





Resolution 2016-038, Staff Report 
June 21, 2016 
Page 1 of 1 

City Council Meeting Date: June 21, 2016 
 

 Agenda Item: Public Hearing 
 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Cathy Brucker, Interim Finance Director 
Through: Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager  
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution 2016-038 - Declaring the City’s Election to Receive State 

Revenues 
 

 
Issue: 

Should the City of Sherwood inform the State of Oregon that the City is eligible for and 
elects to receive state revenues? 
 
Background: 

The State of Oregon shares certain revenue with municipalities that choose to accept it. 
The only qualifications to receive these funds are to (1) hold public hearings on the use of 
the money, and (2) have levied a property tax in the preceding year. The City levied a 
property tax last year; it also held one hearing on May 12, 2016 during the Budget 
Committee meeting and will hold the other required hearing at this Council meeting. 
 

Financials: 

The FY206-17 General Fund budget includes a revenue line item of $210,000 for this 
revenue source.  
 
Recommendation: 

Staff respectfully recommends City Council adoption of Resolution 2016-038 declaring the 
City’s election to receive state revenues.  
 
 
 

 

302



DRAFT 

Resolution 2016-038 
June 21, 2016 
Page 1 of 1 

      
 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2016-038  
 
DECLARING THE CITY OF SHERWOOD’S ELECTION TO RECEIVE STATE REVENUES 

 

WHEREAS, Oregon Revised Statute 221.770, provides for Oregon municipalities to receive 
state revenues should they elect to via resolution or ordinance; and 

 
WHEREAS, said statute also requires the electing municipality to hold two public hearings on 
the municipality’s use of the funds; and 

 
WHEREAS, on May 12, 2016, a public hearing on the use of state revenues was held by the 
City of Sherwood Budget Committee and on June 21, 2016, a public hearing on the use of 
state revenues was held by the Sherwood City Council. 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1:  Pursuant to ORS 221.770, the City of Sherwood hereby elects to receive state 

revenues for the Fiscal Year 2016-17. 
 
Section 2:   This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 21st day of June 2016. 
 

    
        ________________________ 
        Krisanna Clark, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
____________________________ 
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder 

303



 

Resolution 2016-039, Staff Report 
June 21, 2016 
Page 1 of 2 

Council Meeting Date: June 21, 2016 
 

Agenda Item: Public Hearing  
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Cathy Brucker, Interim Finance Director 
Through: Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution 2016-039 adopting a Schedule of Fees as authorized by the city 

zoning and community development code, establishing fees for 
miscellaneous city services and establishing an effective date 

 

 
Issue:  
Should the City of Sherwood adopt a new fee schedule, effective July 1, 2016? 
 
Background:  
The City of Sherwood has annually reviewed all fees and updated, if necessary. Below are the 
proposed changes to the fee schedule, effective July 1, 2016.  
 
Section 1 General Charges for Services 

 Staff Rates – This is a change in verbiage to allow assessing of staff’s fully loaded rates 
applicable at the time of service. 

 Liquor License – This decreases the temporary license fee to $35 – the previous fee of 
$100 was not in line with City Code or State Statute per the Police Chief. 

 Franchise Fees, Privilege Taxes, and Other Associated Fees – This adds additional 
fee sections to address utility operators that do not sell service within city limits, and 
utility operators that have facilities mounted to structures in the right-of-way. 

Section 5 Parks & Recreation 

 Athletic Field User Charges – This is a new fee for rental of the Snyder Park 
Concessions Stand. 

 Field House Fees – This is an increase to both Adult and Youth team fees, day time 
rental, adult open play fees and birthday party rentals. 

 Sherwood Center for the Arts – This is an increase in fees for Presentations, some 
equipment usage, Lobby rental and Lift usage. 

Section 6 Utility Rates 

 Water rates – A 2% increase in both the base and consumption water rates is 
recommended based on the updated Water Master Plan and Rate Study. 

 Sanitary and Storm rates - are increasing 3.9% and 2.7% respectively due to a rate 
increase from Clean Water Services. Staff is proposing a 2% increase to the City of 
Sherwood sewer surcharge rate. 

Section 7 System Development Charges (SDCs) 

 Sewer SDC’s - Clean Water Services is increasing the Sewer SDC 4.37%. 
 Storm SDC’s – Clean Water Services in increasing the Storm SDC 2%. 

 
Section 8 Engineering Charges for Service 

 Miscellaneous Fees – This clarifies the calculation of addressing fees for 11 to 20 
Suites and 21 and up Suites – no change in rates. 

 

304



 

Resolution 2016-039, Staff Report 
June 21, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 

Section 9 Planning Charges for Service 

 Appeals – This adds a fee for Expedited Land Division. 
 

 
Summary of Fee Schedule Changes for FY16-17 

Section Name of Fee Current Rate  Proposed Rate 

Section 1: General Charges for Services   

A) Staff Rates 1. For individuals listed on the salary schedule 200% x hrly rate  Fully loaded rate 
applicable at time 

of service 

C) Liquor License 
 

2. Temporary license $100 $35.00 

D.2.) Privilege 
Taxes and 
Associated Fees 

4. Utility Operators that do not provide service within 
the city 
 
 
5. Utility Operators limited to facilities mounted on 
structures in the Right of Way 

None 

2.90/Lineal ft or 
$4,000, 

whichever is 
greater 

$5,000 per 
structure 

Section 5: Parks & Recreation   

B) Athletic Field 
User Charges: 

Snyder Park Concessions Stand 
None 

$20/day or 
 $100 /month 

F)  Field House 
Fees 

Team Fees – Adult and Youth $450 $500 

J) Center for the 
Arts  

Facility Rentals – Presentation – with seating up to 400 $95-$165 $105-$175 

Facility Rentals -  Presentation – during business hours $80-$150 $90-$160 

Equipment – Pipe & Drape system None $175 

Equipment – Stage Riser None $100 

Equipment – Basic AV $40 $50 

Lobby Rental $50-$65/hr $60-$70/hr 

Amenities & Staffing – Lift Usage None 
$200 per 

production 

Section 6: Utility Charges for Service   

A & B) Water Rates 

Increase all base and consumption rates 2%  2% increase 

Irrigation Consumption Rate 
$0.83 per 100 

gallons  
$0.85 per 100 

gallons 

O) Sanitary Rates Sherwood sewer utility user base rate per EDU  $5.02 $5.89 

Sherwood sewer utility usage rate per CCF $0.29 $0.30 

P) Storm Rates Sherwood storm water rate per ESU $12.95 $13.32 

Section 7: SDC’s 
  

B) Sewer SDC’s CWS Regional Sewer Connection Charge $5,100 $5,300 

Storm SDC’s CWS Regional Storm Drainage Charge $500 $510 

Section 8: Engineering    

C) Miscellaneous 
Fees 

Addressing Fee – clarification only – no change in rates 
  

Section 9: Planning   

B) Appeals Expedited Land Division None $300 

 
Recommendation:  

Staff respectfully recommends City Council adoption of Resolution 2016-039 adopting a 
Schedule of Fees as authorized by the city zoning and community development code, 
establishing fees for miscellaneous city services and establishing an effective date. 

305



DRAFT 

Resolution 2016-039 
June 21, 2016 
Page 1 of 1 with Exhibit A (28 pgs) 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2016-039 
 

ADOPTING A SCHEDULE OF FEES AS AUTHORIZED BY THE CITY ZONING AND 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CODE, ESTABLISHING FEES FOR MISCELLANEOUS CITY 

SERVICES AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
WHEREAS, the Sherwood Municipal Code authorizes certain administrative fees and charges to be 
established by Resolution of the City Council; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City performs and offers certain services, the cost of which are most reasonably 
borne by the recipient, as opposed to paying for said services from general City funds; and  
 
WHEREAS the City Manager has developed a set of administrative fees and charges for the 
Council and City to use when assessing general fees for permits, applications, and services, and 
recovering general costs of performing actions requiring oversight and administration by City staff; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council believes it is most appropriate and fiscally responsible that fees and 
charges for all services be set by the City Council, and at a level whereby reasonable costs are 
recovered; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City has met the requirement for providing an opportunity for public comment prior 
to the adoption of this fee resolution as required by ORS 294.160. 
   
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  Adoption: The City of Sherwood Rates and Fees Schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit 
A, is hereby approved and adopted, and supersedes all prior development fee and charges 
schedules and miscellaneous fee schedules. 
 
Section 2.  Effective Date:  This Resolution shall become effective July 1, 2016. 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 21st day of June 2016. 
 
 
              
         Krisanna Clark, Mayor 
Attest:         
 

      
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder   
 

306



 Draft 
 05/26/2016 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 The City of Sherwood, Oregon 
Master Fees and Charges 

 
 
 

Exhibit A 
Resolution: 2016-039 

  
 Adopted: June 21, 2016 
 Effective: July 1, 2016 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Also available online at  
www.sherwoodoregon.gov  

307

http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/


TABLE OF CONTENTS  Draft  

Master Fees and Charges                         Draft  Page 2 of 28 

Table of Contents 
SECTION 1: GENERAL CHARGES FOR SERVICE ...................................................................................... 4 

A) STAFF RATES: ..................................................................................................................................... 4 
B) BUSINESS LICENSE: .............................................................................................................................. 4 
C) LIQUOR LICENSE: ................................................................................................................................. 4 
D) FRANCHISE FEES, PRIVILEGE TAXES, AND OTHER ASSOCIATED FEES ............................................................... 4 
E) PUBLIC RECORD FEES: .......................................................................................................................... 5 

SECTION 2: LIBRARY FINES AND FEES ................................................................................................... 6 
A) GENERAL FEES: ................................................................................................................................... 6 

SECTION 3: POLICE FINES AND FEES ..................................................................................................... 7 
(A) POLICE REPORTS: ................................................................................................................................ 7 
(B) VEHICLE IMPOUND: ............................................................................................................................. 7 
(C) PARKING VIOLATION FEES: .................................................................................................................... 7 
(D) MISCELLANEOUS POLICE FEES: ............................................................................................................... 7 

SECTION 4: MUNICIPAL COURT FINES AND FEES .................................................................................. 8 
A) COURT FEES: ...................................................................................................................................... 8 
B) DOG FEES: ......................................................................................................................................... 8 

SECTION 5: PARKS & RECREATION CHARGES FOR SERVICES ................................................................ 9 
A) PLAYER FEES:...................................................................................................................................... 9 
B) ATHLETIC FIELD USER CHARGES: ............................................................................................................ 9 
C) ROBIN HOOD THEATER SIGN: .............................................................................................................. 10 
D) PICNIC SHELTER: ............................................................................................................................... 10 
E) AMPHITHEATER RENTAL: .................................................................................................................... 10 
F) FIELD HOUSE FEES: ............................................................................................................................ 10 
G) SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT ...................................................................................................................... 10 
H) FILM PERMIT .................................................................................................................................... 10 
I) SHERWOOD CENTER FOR THE ARTS FEES ................................................................................................ 11 

SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE ....................................................................................... 13 
A) RESIDENTIAL AND MULTI-FAMILY RATES: .................................................... ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED. 
B) COMMERCIAL RATES: .............................................................................. ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED. 
C) FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE: ................................................................................................................. 14 
D) HYDRANT RENTALS: ........................................................................................................................... 14 
E) ACCOUNT ACTIVATION AND DE-ACTIVATION: ......................................................................................... 14 
F) ADDITIONAL CHARGES, IF NECESSARY, TO ENFORCE: ............................................................................... 15 
G) OTHER ADDITIONAL CHARGES: ............................................................................................................ 15 
H) TESTING WATER METERS AT CUSTOMER/OWNER’S REQUEST: ..................................................................... 15 
I) BACKFLOW PREVENTION DEVICE TEST FEE: ............................................................................................ 15 
J) WATER SERVICE/METER INSTALLATION SERVICES: ................................................................................... 15 
K) UN-AUTHORIZED WATER HOOK UP: ..................................................................................................... 15 
L) RE-INSPECTION FEES (SANITARY, STREET, STORM AND WATER): ................................................................ 16 
M) USAGE OF METER KEY ........................................................................................................................ 16 
N) WATER USE RESTRICTION – PENALTIES.................................................................................................. 16 
O) SANITARY RATES: .............................................................................................................................. 16 
P) STORM RATES: ................................................................................................................................. 16 
Q) STREET FEES: .................................................................................................................................... 16 
R) SIDEWALK REPAIR ASSISTANCE PROGRAM: ............................................................................................. 16 

SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES................................................................................... 17 
A) WATER SDC: ................................................................................................................................... 17 
B) SEWER SDC: .................................................................................................................................... 17 
C) STORM SDC: .................................................................................................................................... 17 
D) PARKS SDC: ..................................................................................................................................... 17 
E) STREET SDC: .................................................................................................................................... 17 

308



TABLE OF CONTENTS  Draft  

Master Fees and Charges                         Draft  Page 3 of 28 

CITY OF SHERWOOD STREET SDC: ................................................................................................................... 18 
THE FOLLOWING CHARGES ARE CALCULATED BY MULTIPLYING TRIP GENERATION BY THE FOLLOWING. ............................ 18 

SECTION 8: ENGINEERING CHARGES FOR SERVICE ............................................................................. 20 
A) PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT; SUBDIVISION PLAN REVIEWS AND INSPECTIONS: ..................................................... 20 
B) NO PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT; SUBDIVISION PLAN REVIEWS AND INSPECTIONS: ................................................ 20 
C) MISCELLANEOUS FEES: ....................................................................................................................... 20 
D) VACATIONS (PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY AND EASEMENTS): ............................................................................ 20 

SECTION 9:  PLANNING CHARGES FOR SERVICE .................................................................................. 21 
A) ANNEXATIONS: ................................................................................................................................. 21 
B) APPEALS: ......................................................................................................................................... 21 
C) CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT: ................................................................................................................. 21 
D) LAND DIVISIONS/ADJUSTMENTS: .......................................................................................................... 21 
E) OTHER FEES: .................................................................................................................................... 21 
F) TREES: ............................................................................................................................................ 22 
G) PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD): ................................................................................................. 22 
H) REFUNDS: ........................................................................................................................................ 22 
I) SIGNAGE: ......................................................................................................................................... 22 
J) SITE PLAN REVIEW:............................................................................................................................ 22 
K) TEMPORARY USES: ............................................................................................................................ 22 
L) TIME EXTENSION TO APPROVAL: .......................................................................................................... 22 
M)  VARIANCE: ....................................................................................................................................... 22 
N)  ZONE AMENDMENTS: ........................................................................................................................ 22 

SECTION 10:  BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE ................................................................................... 23 
A) BUILDING PERMITS ............................................................................................................................ 23 
B) PLAN REVIEW FEES – BUILDING PERMIT ................................................................................................ 23 
C) PHASED PERMIT - PLAN REVIEW (WHEN APPROVED BY THE BUILDING OFFICIAL) ........................................... 23 
D) DEFERRED SUBMITTALS (WHEN APPROVED BY THE BUILDING OFFICIAL) ....................................................... 24 
E) MECHANICAL PERMITS - RESIDENTIAL ................................................................................................... 24 
F) MECHANICAL PERMITS – COMMERCIAL, INDUSTRIAL, AND MULTI-FAMILY ................................................... 25 
G) PLUMBING PERMITS – NEW ONE AND TWO FAMILY DWELLINGS ................................................................ 25 
H) PLUMBING PERMITS – ONE AND TWO FAMILY AND MANUFACTURED DWELLING FOR ADDITIONS, ALTERATIONS 

AND REPAIRS ............................................................................................................................................... 25 
I) PLUMBING PERMITS – COMMERCIAL, INDUSTRIAL, AND MULTI-FAMILY ...................................................... 25 
J) RESIDENTIAL FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM FEES ............................................................................................. 25 
K) ELECTRICAL PERMITS – ISSUED AND INSPECTED BY WASHINGTON COUNTY (503) 846-3470 .......................... 26 
L) PRESCRIPTIVE SOLAR PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM INSTALLATION – STRUCTURAL ONLY ........................................ 26 
M) DEMOLITION PERMITS ........................................................................................................................ 26 
N) MEDICAL GAS PERMITS – COMMERCIAL ................................................................................................ 26 
O) GRADING AND EROSION CONTROL FEES (PRIVATE PROPERTY ONLY) ........................................................... 26 
P) OTHER INSPECTIONS AND FEES (BUILDING, MECHANICAL, PLUMBING, GRADING AND EROSION) ...................... 27 
Q) REFUNDS (BUILDING PERMIT, MECHANICAL, PLUMBING, GRADING/EROSION) ............................................. 27 
R) CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY  (AS  DETERMINED BY THE BUILDING OFFICIAL) ................................................. 27 
S) CHANGE OF USE/OCCUPANCY CERTIFICATE APPLICATION FEE  (AS  DETERMINED BY THE BUILDING OFFICIAL) ..... 27 

APPENDIX A: FEES CHARGED ON BEHALF OF OTHER AGENCIES.............................................................. 28 
A) CLEAN WATER SERVICES FEES .............................................................................................................. 28 
B) STATE OF OREGON – DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AND BUSINESS SERVICES ................................................ 28 
FEE CHARGED ON ALL BUILDING AND MECHANICAL PERMITS; AS WELL AS COMMERCIAL PLUMBING AND MEDICAL GAS 

PERMITS. ..................................................................................................................................................... 28 
C) SHERWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT ............................................................................................................. 28 
FEE CHARGED ON ALL BUILDING PERMITS. .......................................................................................................... 28 
D) METRO .......................................................................................................................................... 28

309



SECTION 1: GENERAL        Draft 

Master Fees and Charges                         Draft  Page 4 of 28 

 

SECTION 1: GENERAL CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

A) Staff Rates: 
 
The following fees shall be charged for the services of City Staff. 
 
1. For individuals listed on the salary schedule. 

 Fully loaded hourly rate applicable at time of service. 

B) Business License: 
 
Persons conducting business with the City of Sherwood and who are subject to being licensed under the 
provisions of sections 5.04 shall pay a business license fee. 

1. Business - Inside Sherwood $75 plus $6 per employee working more than 20 hours per week. 

2. Business - Outside Sherwood $107.50 plus $6 per employee working more than 20 hrs per week. 

3. Temporary license  Fee is the same as a regular business license. 

4. Late fee for renewals $5 per month or portion of a month late. 

5. Violation of  provision Up to $250 per violation. 

C) Liquor License: 
 
The Oregon Liquor Control Commission (OLCC) solicits the city’s recommendation on applications for new, 
renewed, or changed liquor licenses. (ORS 471.164- 471.168) 

1. Original application $100 

2. Temporary license $35 

3. Change in ownership, location, or privilege $75 

4. Renewal of license $35 

 
D) Franchise Fees, Privilege Taxes, and Other Associated Fees 
 

D.1. Franchise Fees (as set by franchise agreements): 
1.) Cable and Broadband Services 

Frontier 
5% of gross revenue 
Ordinance No. 2007-008  Exp. 8/21/15 

2.) Natural Gas 
Northwest Natural Gas 
5% of gross revenue collected 
Ordinance No. 2006-016  Exp. 11/16/16 

3.) Cable and Broadband Services 
Comcast 
5% of gross revenue 
Resolution No. 2000-857  Exp. 1/31/16 

4.) Garbage/Solid Waste 
Pride Disposal 
5% of gross revenue 
Ordinance No. 98-1049  Exp. 11/1/19 

 

D.2. Privilege Taxes and Associated Fees: 
Privilege tax payments shall be reduced by any franchise fee payments received by the City,  but in no case 
will be less than $0.00. 

1) License application fee $50  

2) 
Telecommunications Utilities (as defined in ORS 759.005)  
Privilege tax: 7% of gross revenues as defined in ORS 221.515. 

3) 
Utility Operators that provide service within the city (as defined in SMC 12.16.120.A.1) 
Not Listed Above 

310



SECTION 1: GENERAL        Draft 

Master Fees and Charges                         Draft  Page 5 of 28 

  Privilege tax: 5% of gross revenues. 

4) 
Utility Operators that do not provide service within the city 
(as defined in SMC 12.16.120.A.2) 

$2.90/Lineal foot or $4,000 
whichever is greater 

5) 
Utility Operators limited to facilities mounted on 
structures in the Right of Way (as defined in SMC 
12.16.120.A.3) 

$5,000 per structure  

 

E) Public Record Fees: 
1.)  Copies of Finance documents     

  Budget $40 per copy 

  Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) $25  per copy 

2.)  Copies of planning documents     

  Comprehensive plan $25 per copy 

  Local wetland inventory $25  per copy 

  Master plans  $25  per copy 

3.)  Copies of Maps     

  8 ½ x 11 black and white $3 per copy 

  8 ½ x 11 color $5 per copy 

  11 x 17 black and white $6 per copy 

  Small size color 11 x17 $10 per copy 

  Quarter section aerial $125  per copy 

  Full size color up to 36 x 48 $25 per copy 

4.)  General Service Copies     

  Copying $.15  per single side 

  Copying $.25  per double side 

  24 x 36 large format plotter $4  per sheet 

5.)  Audio and video tape copies     

 (City Council meeting tapes can be viewed onsite at no charge – contact City Recorder’s office) 

  Audio $25  each 

  Video $25   each 

  Data disk $25  each 

6.)  Document Research     

  Billed in 15 minute increments (see Section 1A)     

  Plus the cost of copying     

7.)  Faxing $2  plus $1 per page 

8.)  Lien search fee $10  per lot 

9.)  NSF check charges $25  per occurrence 

10.)  Notary fee $10 per signature 

  

   

   

   

311



SECTION 2: LIBRARY        Draft 

Master Fees and Charges                         Draft  Page 6 of 28 

SECTION 2: LIBRARY FINES AND FEES 

A) General Fees: 
1. Damaged/lost  material based on extent/$5 processing fee 
2. Overdue DVD/Blu-ray $1.00 per day 
3. All other materials $0.15 per day 
4. Lost cultural pass varies 
5. Non-resident card  $110.00 annually 
6. Overdue cultural pass $10.00 daily 
7. Internet printing $0.10 per page 
8. Replacement library card $1.00 per card 
9. General copies on the public copier $0.10 per page 
10 USB Drive $6.00 
11. Headphones $2.00 

 

312



SECTION 3: POLICE         Draft 

Master Fees and Charges                         Draft  Page 7 of 28 

SECTION 3: POLICE FINES AND FEES 

(A) Police Reports: 
1. Copies of report $20 per report 

2. Audio recordings $25  per disc 

(B) Vehicle Impound: 
Whereas, state law and Sherwood municipal codes, as defined in SMC 8.04.060, that authorizes police 
officers to impound an abandoned vehicle or a vehicle that is disabled, discarded, or hazardously located. 

1. Police impounded vehicle fees $125 per vehicle 

 
(C) Parking Violation Fees: 

1. No parking (anytime) zone $20 

2. Obstructing streets or sidewalks $20  

3. Double parking $20  

4. Blocking driveway $20 

5. Parking in bus zone $20 

6. Parking in loading zone $20 

7. Parking on wrong side of street $20 

8. Parking along yellow curb or in crosswalk $20 

9. Parking over space line $20 

10. Parking over time limit $20 

(D) Miscellaneous Police Fees: 

1. Copies of photographs (12 exposure) $15 plus processing costs 

2. Copies of digital photographs/photo files $25 per disc 

3. Fingerprinting $25 per card 

4. Records/Background checks $15 per request 

313



SECTION 4: MUNICIPAL COURT      Draft 

Master Fees and Charges                         Draft  Page 8 of 28 

SECTION 4: MUNICIPAL COURT FINES AND FEES 

A) Court Fees: 
1. Failure to appear – arraignments $50  

2.    Failure to appear – trials $150  

3.    Failure to comply $20  

4.    Turned over to collection agency (Not to exceed $250) 25% of the amount owed 

5.   Set-up fee for citation time payment plan (Not to exceed $250) 25% of the amount owed 

6.    Vehicle compliance program – administrative fee $35  

7.    License reinstatement fee $50  

8. Seatbelt Diversion Program $40  

9. Traffic School Diversion Programs  

  Class A $285  

  Class B $155  

  Class C $80  

  Class D $45  

10. Suspension fee $70  

11. Fireworks Diversion Program 

  Firework Diversion Fee  $100  

B) Dog Fees: 
1. Animal noise disturbance                 $250 

2. Animal waste on public or another’s private property                 $250 

314



SECTION 5: PARKS & RECREATION     Draft 

Master Fees and Charges                         Draft  Page 9 of 28 

SECTION 5: PARKS & RECREATION CHARGES FOR SERVICES 

The following fees shall be charged for the Parks & Recreation activities of the City: 
 

A) Player Fees: Resident Non-Resident 

 Sherwood youth  $15  $20 

 Adult leagues  $15  $20 

a) All fees are per player and per season 
b) Youth fees include SFPA, SJBO, SBO, SYSC, SVB, SYLC, SYTC, and SYFA 

 

B) Athletic Field User Charges:   

Natural Turf Non-Peak (8am -3pm)  Peak (3pm – dark) 

 Group reservations-Non profit $25/hour $45/hour 

 Group reservations-For profit $35/hour $55/hour 

 Private reservations-resident $15/hour $20/hour 

 Private reservations-non-resident $20/hour $25/hour 

 Light Fee $25/hour $25/hour 

Artificial Turf Non-Peak (8am -3pm) Peak (3pm – dark) 

 Commercial/for profit-Resident $65/hour $85/hour 

 Commercial/for profit-Non-resident $75/hour $100/hour 

 Non-profit-Resident $40/hour $65/hour 

 Non-profit-Non-Resident $45/hour $65/hour 

 Private reservation-Resident $50/hour  $65/hour  

 Private reservation-Non-Resident $65/hour  $80/hour  

 Light Fee $25/hour $25/hour 

High School Stadium/Turf Resident Non Resident  

 Practice time - youth $20/hour $40/hour 

 Practice time - all others $50/hour $75/hour 

 Games – youth $25/game $50/game 

 Games - all others $60/game $80/game 

 Light fee $25/hour $25/hour 

 Open/close facility $30/hour (1 hr. min) $30/hour (1 hr. min) 

Snyder Park Tennis Court – Camp/Tournament $25/hour $35/hour 

Snyder Park Concessions Stand       $20/day or $100/mth N/A 

   

Tournament fee  

 Resident Covered under per player/per season league fee 

 Non-resident $80/Hour 

 Sherwood youth league Covered under per player/per season league fee 

 Sherwood adult league Covered under per player/per season league fee 

 Light Fee $25/hour 

Gym Fees Resident Non Resident 

 Drop in gym programs $3/per person $6/per person 

 Commercial – for profit $60/hour $80/hour 

 Non-profit groups $30/hour $50/hour 

 Private reservations $40/hour $60/hour 

 Opening/Closing of Facility $30/Hour (1 hr. Min) $30/Hour (1 hr. Min) 

 

315



SECTION 5: PARKS & RECREATION     Draft 

Master Fees and Charges                         Draft  Page 10 of 28 

C) Robin Hood Theater Sign: $15/per day ($60 Minimum) 

 

D) Picnic Shelter: Resident Non Resident 

 Rentals $45/4 hour or $90 day $65/4hour or $135/day 

 

E) Amphitheater Rental: $75/4hour or $150/day $100/4hour or $200/day 

When reserving the Amphitheater you must also reserve the picnic shelter 

 

F) Field House Fees:   

Team Fees   

 Adult team $500 plus a $50 late fee if not paid by the due date 

 Youth team $500 plus a $25 late fee if not paid by the due date 

Player Cards   

 Adult player cards $10 

 Youth player cards $7 

Rental Fees   

 Day time fees (7 a.m. – 3 p.m.) $40/hour  

 Evening fees (3 p.m. – midnight) $75/hour  

Open Play Fees  

 Pre-school play fees $3/per child 

 10 play punch card $25 

 Adult open play fees $5/per person 

Birthday Parties $150 

Party Room Rental $25/hour 

Concessions and Merchandise Varies 

 

G) Special Event Permit Resident  Non Resident 

 Non-Profit Fee $75 $125 

 For-Profit Fee $150 $200 

 

H) Film Permit   
 Small productions (no street closures, staging, city services, or park closures) $250 per day 

 Large production (requires street closure, city services, staging, etc.) $1,000 per day 
  

316



SECTION 5: PARKS & RECREATION     Draft 

Master Fees and Charges                         Draft  Page 11 of 28 

I) Sherwood Center for the Arts Fees   

Facility Rentals   
Main Hall Rates:   Main Hall rentals include use of dressing room & lobby, all seating & tables, and 

require a 2 hour minimum rental 

 
Resident 

Non-Prof 

Non-Res 

Non-Prof Resident 

Non-

Resident 

 Presentation  - with seating for up to 400 $105/hr $125/hr $175/hr $195/hr 

 Presentation - during business hours $90/hr $110/hr $160/hr $180/hr 

 

 Empty Room -  with up to 10 chairs only  $95/hr $115/hr $165/hr $185/hr 

 Empty Room - during business hours $80/hr $100/hr $150/hr $170/hr 

     

 Small Banquet – for under 100 guests $105/hr $125/hr $175/hr $195/hr 

 Small Banquet - during business hours $90/hr $110/hr $160/hr $180/hr 

     

 Banquet – for 100+ people $115/hr $135/hr $185/hr $210/hr 

 Banquet – during business hours $100/hr $120/hr $170/hr $195/hr 

   

Equipment:  fees are one-time charges based on usage as listed    

 Kitchen   $50 

 Patio  (charged when furniture and/or accessories are used outside)  $125 

 Pipe & Drape system  $175 

 Stage Riser $100 

 Basic AV  (Sound & Lights controlled from floor, mic, screen, projector and       

podium) 

$50 

 Advanced Tech   (Main Hall only - Live musicians, additional mics, monitors, light 

refocus/ hang) Requires an AV Technician for the event 

$120 

 Portable Projector $30 

  

Staff Charges:     

 Facility Monitor    $15/hr 

 AV Technician    $30/hr 

 
Other areas to rent:     

 Classroom  $30/hr $35/hr $40/hr $45/hr 

 Classroom - during business hours $15/hr $20/hr $25/hr $30/hr 

Classroom rentals include use of classroom furniture & whiteboard, and can accommodate 25 in chair 

rows, or 16 at tables. Minimum 2 hour rental.  2 hour minimum rental required.  

 

 Lobby  $60/hr $65/hr $70/hr $75/hr 

Lobby rentals include tables and chairs. Minimum 2 hour rental required.  

 

  

A fully refundable deposit in the amount of $200 will be required for standard facility rentals and must be 
submitted to secure the facility rental. For rentals under $200 in total fees, a deposit of $50 must be 
submitted to secure the facility rental. For rentals under $50 in total fees, full payment must be submitted 
to secure the facility rental 

Events may require additional Facility Monitors as determined by Manager.  

317



SECTION 5: PARKS & RECREATION     Draft 

Master Fees and Charges                         Draft  Page 12 of 28 

 

Production Rentals 

These rates are for a public presentation of a production which is theatrical, musical and/or artistic in nature. 

 

 Base Rates:  
Resident 

Non-Prof Resident 

Non-Resident 

Non Profit 

Non-

Resident 

 Performance $95/hr $105/hr $100/hr $110/hr 

Performance hours include one half hour before “house open” and one half hour after “final curtain.” 

Production rentals have a minimum requirement of 4 paid hours.  

 

All production rentals include: 

 Theater seating for up to 400 

 Dressing room 

 Lobby 

 2 hours of rehearsal and prep time on the day of the rental. 

 

Productions Rentals with 2 days or more of performances will additionally include:  

 12 hours of rehearsal time 

 6 designated hours of technical load-in time 

 

 

Additional Rehearsal & Prep Hours – any hours that the facility is being used in addition to included prep 

and rehearsal hours:  

 Rehearsal & Prep $55/hr $60/hr $58/hr $63/hr 

 Rehearsal & Prep - during business hours $40/hr $45/hr $43/hr $48/hr 

 

Amenities and Staffing:  

 Additional Facility Monitor $15/hr   

 Light and/or Sound Technician  $15-$30/hr* *Based on required skill level 

 Classroom(s)  $20/day  as additional dressing room 

      Tech Usage (lights and sound)  $100 Per day of use  

      Lift Usage 
$200** 

Per production  

**Must provide operator certification  

 
A fully refundable deposit in the amount of $500 will be required for production rentals and must be 
submitted to secure the facility rental. 
 
Events may require additional Facility Monitors as determined by Manager.  
 
Classes, Activities and Events 

 Fees for Events and Activities presented by the City of Sherwood will be designed to cover expenses 
associated with programs. Factors included in the base rate are: staff wages, facility operations, 
supplies & materials, advertising, and administration.  

 Contracted program and class fees will cover total expenses. Instructors are paid a negotiated sum 
based on a percentage of the program fee.  

 For programs and classes presented by the City of Sherwood, non-residents may be charged up to 1.5 
times the base rate. 

318



SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE   Draft 

Master Fees and Charges                         Draft  Page 13 of 28 

SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE 
 

Water Utility Rates 

RESIDENTIAL, MULTI-FAMILY, AND COMMERCIAL WATER SERVICE 

A residential customer is defined as a customer whose meter service serves only one-single family dwelling 
unit.  All dwelling units served by individual meters shall be charged the residential rate for service.  For 
example, the residential rate shall apply where separate water meters provide service to each side of the 
duplex. 

Multi-family customers are defined as customers whose meter services more than one dwelling unit.  For the 
purposes of this rate resolution, dwelling unit shall be defined as any place of human habitation designed for 
occupancy based upon separate leases, rental agreements, or other written instruments. 

Commercial customers are defined as customers whose meter is for any use other than residential and Multi-
family.  Some examples of commercial uses include, but are not limited to: schools, hospitals, restaurants,  and 
service stations. 

A)   Residential and Multi-Family Rates:       
Customer Class/ 
 Meter Size   Base Charge   

Consumption Rate ($/100 
gallons) 

    ($/Month)   First 21,000 
Over 
21,000 

5/8 - 3/4"   $19.88    $0.55    $0.85  
1"   $24.58    $0.55    $0.85  

1-1/2"   $43.69    $0.55    $0.85  
2"   $63.53    $0.55    $0.85  
3"   $127.82    $0.55    $0.85  
4"   $218.39    $0.55    $0.85  
6"   $453.37    $0.55    $0.85  
8"   $839.18    $0.55    $0.85  

10"   $1,211.85    $0.55    $0.85  
              

B)   Commercial Rates:         
Customer Class/ 
 Meter Size   Base Charge    

Consumption Rate ($/100 
gallons) 

    ($/Month)   First 21,000 
Over 

21,000 
5/8 - 3/4"   $20.55    $0.61    $0.61  

1"   $25.41    $0.61    $0.61  
1-1/2"   $45.17    $0.61    $0.61  

2"   $65.67    $0.61    $0.61  
3"   $132.13    $0.61    $0.61  
4"   $225.75    $0.61    $0.61  
6"   $468.63    $0.61    $0.61  
8"   $867.42    $0.61    $0.61  

10"   $1,252.63    $0.61    $0.61  

Irrigation   
Base Charge from 

 above   $0.85    $0.85  

 

319



SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE   Draft 

Master Fees and Charges                         Draft  Page 14 of 28 

C) Fire Protection Service: 
The following fees shall be charged for all applicable connections for automatic sprinklers, and fire hydrants 
service for private fire protection: 
 

Customer Class/Meter Size Base Charge  

 4" and under $31.89 

 6" $53.28 

 8" $75.66 

 10" $104.08 

 Water service connection in ROW Actual time and materials 

D) Hydrant Rentals: 

Fire hydrant permits - mandatory for fire hydrant use  

 Three month permit (plus water usage at current rate) $55 

 Six month permit (plus water usage at current rate) $80 

 Twelve month permit (plus water usage at current rate) $130 

 Penalty for unauthorized hydrant use $500 

 Penalty for using non-approved (un-inspected tank) $950 

 Failure to report water usage (per day for period not reported) $15 

 Hydrant meter - refundable deposit $745 

 Hydrant meter – daily rental (plus water usage at current rate) $20 

 Hydrant meter read – monthly reads $50 

 Hydrant meter setup – Initial setup of meter on hydrant $50 

 Flow testing of fire hydrants $160 

E) Account Activation and De-Activation: 
Water Service on or off water at customer’s request  

 Deposit for application of service (Prior Collection Customers) $100 

 New account fee  $15 

 First call – during office hours, Monday-Friday, except snowbird turnoffs No Charge  

 Activation after office hours and weekends $60 

 Leaks or emergencies beyond customer control anytime No Charge 

 Second call  $30 

 Non-leak or emergency turn offs after office hours or weekends $50 

 All snowbird/vacant turn offs $25 

Water Service off and on for non-payment/Non-Compliance  

 Turn on water during office hours, Monday through Friday  $60 

 After hours or weekends, an additional $100 

 Meter tampering and/or using water without authority $60 

 Broken promise turn off $60 

 Door hangers $10.00 per door hanger 

 

 

320



SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE   Draft 

Master Fees and Charges                         Draft  Page 15 of 28 

F) Additional Charges, If Necessary, To Enforce: 
 Removal of meter $80 

 Reinstallation of meter  No Charge  

 Installation or removal of locking device-first occurrence $50 

 Installation or removal of locking device-second occurrence $75 

 Installation or removal of locking device-third occurrence  $150 and meter pulled 

 Repair of breakage/damage to locking mechanism (curb stops, etc) parts and labor 

 Service off water at main or reinstating service parts and labor 

G) Other Additional Charges: 
 Decreasing or increasing size of meter parts and labor 

 Removal of meter during construction   $150 

 Loss of meter (replacement cost)   $230-710 

 Initial test fee per assembly – Sherwood will perform the initial test of all commercial 
premises assemblies, dedicated irrigation service assemblies and fire line services 
assemblies.  All subsequent tests are the responsibility of the owner, to be done annually 
be a State Certified Backflow Tester of their choice. 

  $100 

 Backflow assembly test/repair (Contract services) parts and labor 

 Damage or Repair to Water Utility actual time and material 

 Damage to AMI Radio $75 

 Damage to AMI Register $75 

 Damage to AMI Antenna $25 

H) Testing water meters at customer/owner’s request: 
 Testing on premises (5/8”x 3/4”, ¾”, 1") $80 

 Removal of meter for testing (5/8”x  3/4”, 1”) $250 

 Testing of meters larger than 1” parts and labor 

I) Backflow Prevention Device Test Fee: 
 Initial test fee per assembly – Sherwood will perform the initial test of all commercial 

premises assemblies, dedicated irrigation service assemblies and fire line services 
assemblies.  All subsequent tests are the responsibility of the owner, to be done annually by 
a State Certified Backflow Tester of their choice. (Service on and off for non-compliance of 
annual testing and reporting, see Section E.) 

                               
$100 

J) Water Service/Meter Installation Services: 
Meter Size Drop-In Service Dig-In Service 

5/8” – ¾” $360 $2,095 

1” $730 $2,465 

1.5” $1,830 $4,280 

2” $3,050 $5,500 

3” $6,100 n/a 

4” $7,930 n/a 

Drop-In 
Service 

An existing condition where developers of a residential subdivision or commercial complex has 
installed water service to each serviceable and buildable lot in accordance with City specifications. 

Dig-In 
Service 

Condition where the City or its contractor must physically tap into a mainline to extend water 
service to the property.  Meter installation over 2” will be installed at a time and materials rate by 
city staff or city authorized contractors. 

 

K) Un-Authorized Water Hook up: 
 Un-authorized water hook up $150  (Plus water use charges billed at current rate) 

 

321



SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE   Draft 

Master Fees and Charges                         Draft  Page 16 of 28 

L) Re-Inspection Fees (Sanitary, Street, Storm and Water): 
 First re-inspection $50/each 

 Re-inspection fee after the first $100/each 

 All subsequent re-inspection fees $150/each 

*Sanitary Sewer Interceptor Program – FOG*  

M) Usage of Meter Key 
 Deposit refundable with key return $25 

N) Water Use Restriction – Penalties 
 First notice of violation $100 

 Second notice of violation $300 

 Third notice of violation $500 

O) Sanitary Rates: 
The monthly sewer utility user charge for property within the City and served by Clean Water Services 
(CWS) of Washington County shall be established by CWS and adopted annually. 

See appendix A for fees collected on behalf of CWS   

 Sherwood sewer utility user base rate per EDU  $5. 18 

 Sherwood sewer utility usage rate per CCF $0.30 

 Damage or Repair to Sewer Utility actual time and material 

 Illegal Discharge to Sewer Utility actual time and material 

P) Storm Rates: 
The monthly storm utility user charge for property within the City and served by Clean Water Services 
(CWS) of Washington County shall be established by CWS and adopted annually. 
See appendix A for fees collected on behalf of CWS  

 Sherwood storm water utility user rate per ESU   $13.32 

 Damage or Repair to Storm Utility actual time and material 

Q) Street Fees: 
 Street 

Maintenance 
Street 
Light 

Sidewalk 
Repair 

Safe/New 
Sidewalks 

 Single family residential - Monthly per Account $2.00 $2.32 $0.52 $0.69 

 Multi Family - Monthly per EDU $2.00 $2.32 $0.52 $0.69 

 Non – residential/Commercial - Monthly per ESU $2.00 $0.67 $0.16  

R) Sidewalk Repair Assistance Program: 
 
The homeowner shall be responsible for: 

1.) Shaves (50% of total cost of the contractor’s invoice) 
2.) Full Panel Replacements (50% of the total cost of the work to be performed) 

 
Work may include any or all of the following: contractor’s cost to remove and replace the panel(s); arborists 
initial report of findings; tree removal; street tree permit fee.  
 
Payment arrangements will be made available to homeowners and must be paid within 12 months of the date 
of the first bill. Homeowner’s failure to pay their portion of the costs may result in a lien being placed on their 
property and all costs associated.

322



SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES   Draft 

Master Fees and Charges                         Draft  Page 17 of 28 

SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 

A) Water SDC: 

Meter Size  
Reimbursement 

Charge 
 

Improvement  
Charge 

 
Administrative Charge 

Per Meter 

5/8-3/4"  $1,801   $3,715   $76 
¾”  $2,701  $5,573  $113 
1"  $4,501   $9,289   $189 

1-1/2"  $9,003   $18,577   $378 
2"  $14,404   $29,724   $604 
3"  $31,509   $65,021   $1,322 
4"  $54,015   $111,465   $2,266 
6"  $112,532   $232,218   $4,721 
8"  $162,046   $334,395   $6,798 

Exception: There is no System Development Charge (reimbursement of improvement fee) to upgrade from 
5/8” – 3/4” to a  3/4” or 1” when the sole purpose is a residential fire sprinkler system. 

 Fire flow sprinkler buildings only $3,200.50 

B) Sewer SDC: 
Use Type Reimbursement  Improvement  Flow Count 

Single family residence $0.094  $0.27  535 gallons 
Two  family residence (duplex) $0.094 $0.27  535 gallons 
Manufactured home/ single lot $0.094 $0.27  535 gallons 
Manufactured home parks $0.094 $0.27  based on Engineer estimate 
Multi-family residential $0.094 $0.27  based on Engineer estimate 
Commercial $0.094 $0.27  based on Engineer estimate 
Industrial $0.094 $0.27  based on Engineer estimate 
Institutional uses $0.094 $0.27  based on Engineer estimate 
Regional connection charge (SDC set by CWS) $212.00 (Per dwelling unit or EDU) 
See appendix A for SDC’s collected on behalf of CWS   

 
C) Storm SDC: 

Storm   Regional Storm Drainage Improvement Charge 

A.) Water quantity per ESU (SDC set by CWS) $280.50 
B) Water quality per ESU (SDC set by CWS) $229.50 
One equivalent service unit (ESU) equals 2,640 square feet. 

 City storm drainage: per area of impervious surface $0.046per square foot 

D) Parks SDC: 
Parks and Recreation  Administration   Improvement   Total Fee 

Single family dwelling  $716.18  $6,952.60  $7,668.78 per dwelling unit 
Multi-family dwelling  $537.96  $5,216.94  $5,754.90 per dwelling unit 
Manufactured home  $967.10  $7,446.29  $8,413.39 per dwelling unit 

Non – residential  $6.64  $73.06  $79.70 per employee 

Filing fee to challenge expenditures of Parks SDC’s  (Refundable if challenge is successful) $50 

 

E) Street SDC: 

Washington County Transportation Development Tax (TDT) 
  Reference Washington County for fees - http://www.co.washington.or.us/ 

323

http://www.co.washington.or.us/


SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES   Draft 

Master Fees and Charges                         Draft  Page 18 of 28 

  

 City of Sherwood Street SDC:   
The following charges are calculated by multiplying trip generation by the following. 

 
Residential Transportation SDC Code Fee Type 

Single family – detached 210 $1,506  dwelling unit 
Apartment 220 $1,173  dwelling unit 
Residential condominium/townhouse 230 $955  dwelling unit 
Manufactured house  (In park) 240 $836  dwelling unit 
Assisted living 254 $491  bed 
Continuing care retirement 255 $397  unit 
Recreation home 260 $515  dwelling unit 
Recreational Transportation SDC    

City park 411 $390  acre 
County park 412 $662  acre 
Campground/RV park 416 $1,561  camp site 
Marina 420 $1,087  berth 
Golf course 430 $13,605  hole 
Golf driving range 430 $3,339  tee 
Multipurpose recreation/arcade 435 $9,742  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Bowling alley 437 $12,688  lane 
Movie theater w/o matinee 443 $65  screen 
Movie Theater with Matinee 444 $59,312  screen 
Multiplex movie theater (10+ screens) 445 $38,322  screen 
Casino/video poker/lottery 473 $37,652  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Amusement/theme park 480 $20,236 acre 
Soccer complex 488 $19,053  field 
Racquet/tennis club 492 $10,337  court 
Health fitness club 492 $8,796  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Recreation/community center 495 $8,710  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Institutional/Medical Transportation SDC    

Military base 501 $452  employee 
Elementary school (Public) 520 $95  student 
Middle/Junior high School (Public) 522 $114  student 
High School (Public) 530 $298  student 
Private School (K – 12) 536 $483  Student 
Junior/Community College 540 $178  employee 
University/College 550 $387  student 
Church 560 $1,416  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Day care center/preschool 565 $0.00  student 
Library 590 $4,150  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Hospital 610 $3,480  bed 
Nursing home 620 $595  bed 
Clinic 630 $8,826  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Commercial/Services SDC    

Hotel/Motel 310 $2,923  Room 
Building materials/lumber 812 $4,749  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Free standing discount Superstore w/groceries 813 $6,391  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Specialty retail center 814 $5,833  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Free standing discount center w/o groceries 815 $9,098  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Hardware/paint stores 816 $7,555  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Nursery/garden center 817 $4,652  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Shopping center 820 $3,907  
thousand square ft gross leasable 

area 

324



SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES   Draft 

Master Fees and Charges                         Draft  Page 19 of 28 

    

Commercial/Services SDC (continued) Code Fee Type 

Factory outlet 823 $2,986  thousand square ft gross floor area 
New car sales 841 $3,854  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Automobile parts sales 843 $7,302  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Tire superstore 849 $2,283  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Supermarket 850 $12,765  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Convenience market (24hr) 851 $31,936  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Convenience market w/fuel Pump 853 $19,338  vehicle fueling position 
Wholesale market 860 $76  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Discount club 861 $7,157  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Home improvement superstore 862 $2,487  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Electronics superstore 863 $5,291  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Office supply superstore 867 $4,176  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Pharmacy/drugstore w/o drive thru window 880 $9,014  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Pharmacy/drugstore with drive thru window 881 $9,655  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Furniture store 860 $441  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Video rental store 896 $35,284  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Bank/savings – walk in 911 $28,442  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Bank/savings – drive in 912 $28,628  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Quality restaurant (not a chain) 931 $11,537  thousand square ft gross floor area 
High turnover-sit down restaurant (chain/standalone) 932 $7,295  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Fast food restaurant (no drive- thru) 933 $48,465  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Fast food restaurant (with drive-thru) 934 $32,613  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Drinking place/bar 936 $5,020  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Quick lubrication vehicle Shop 941 $4,361  service stall 

Automobile care center 942 $4,375  
thousand square ft gross leasable 

area 
Gasoline/service station (no market/car wash) 944 $8,765  vehicle fueling position 
Gasoline/service station (with convenience market) 945 $5,578  vehicle fueling position 
Gasoline/service station (with market and car wash) 946 $5,044  vehicle fueling position 
Office SDC    

General office building 710 $2,250  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Corporate headquarters building 714 $1,633  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Single tenant office building 715 $2,730  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Medical/dental office building 720 $7,114  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Government office building 730 $13,141  thousand square ft gross floor area 
State Motor Vehicles Department 731 $48,833  thousand square ft gross floor area 
US Post Office 732 $17,467  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Office park 750 $2,375  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Research and development center 760 $1,778  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Business park 770 $2,472  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Port/Industrial    

Truck terminals 30 $1,819  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Park and ride lot with bus service 90 $551  parking space 
Light rail transit station w/parking 93 $313  parking space 
General light industrial 110 $1,288  thousand square ft gross floor area 
General heavy industrial 120 $277  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Industrial park 130 $1,285  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Manufacturing 140 $702  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Warehouse 150 $926  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Mini-warehouse 151 $449  thousand square ft gross floor area 
Utilities 170 $1,010  thousand square ft gross floor area 

  

325



SECTION 8: ENGINEERING CHARGES FOR SERVICE  Draft 

Master Fees and Charges                         Draft  Page 20 of 28 

SECTION 8: ENGINEERING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

A) Public Improvement; Subdivision Plan Reviews and Inspections: 
 
Plan Review – 4% of Construction Costs (Due at submittal. Fee based on engineer’s construction cost 
estimate. If estimate changes during the course of review, any balance or credit due will be payable 
at the time of the Compliance Agreement) includes review of the following: 

Water Street Grading 
Sewer Storm Erosion Control 
 

 Inspections – 5% of Construction Costs (payable at the time the Compliance Agreement is signed) 
Includes inspection of the following for which permits were obtained: 

Water Street Grading 
Sewer Storm Erosion Control 

B) No Public Improvement; Subdivision Plan Reviews and Inspections: 
 Plan Review Fee Time and Materials 

 Inspection Fee  Time and Materials 

 Television Line Service Review Time and Materials 

C) Miscellaneous Fees: 
1.  Addressing Fee  

  Single - five (5) digit address $65/lot 

  0 to 10 - Suite Numbers $25 per suite 

  11 to 20 -Suite Numbers $250 plus $15 per suite 

  21 and up Suite Numbers  $400 plus $10 per suite 

2.  Plans and Specifications for capital projects varies with project 

3.  Traffic and street signs (Includes post, sign, hardware, and labor to install) $250/per sign 

4.  Street Trees $200/per tree 

5.  Pre-submittal Consultation (consultation of projects prior to the submittal of a land use 
application, requiring more than 2 hours of staff time or on-call consultant services) 

(Applicant pays 100% of actual expenses including staff time, if an application is 
submitted these fees will be credited against the plan review fees) 

Deposit 
of $500 

6.  In-Lieu of Fee – Fiber Optic Conduit Installation $20 linear foot 

7.  Right of Way Permit  

  Performance bond on projects greater than or equal to $5,000 125% of estimated costs 

 
 Maintenance bond - $1000 or 50% of project estimate, whichever is greater. 

(A single bond may be provided for multiple projects of the same person provided the bond 
exceeds the aggregate project total) 

  Administration fee $150 per permit 

  Inspection fee  $150 or 4% of project estimate, whichever is greater 

8.  Design and construction standards $50 on paper 

9.  Design and construction standards $25 per CD 
10.  As-Built Requests $25 per subdivision 
11.  As-Built Requests electronic media $25 per CD 

D) Vacations (Public right-of-way and easements): 
 Deposit plus staff time (See Section 1) $4,000 

         (Applicant pays 100% of actual expenses including staff time)

326



SECTION 9: PLANNING CHARGES FOR SERVICE   Draft 

Master Fees and Charges                         Draft  Page 21 of 28 

SECTION 9:  PLANNING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

A) Annexations: 
 (Applicant pays 100% of actual expenses including staff time) $7,500 

  Any balance owing is due within 30 days from the final annexation invoice date.                                deposit 

B) Appeals: 
 Type I or II actions (ORS 227.175) 10 (b)  $250 

 Type III or IV actions 50% of original fee(s) 

 Expedited Land Division $300 

C) Conditional Use Permit: 
 Conditional use permit without concurrent type III or IV application $4,145 

 Conditional use permit with concurrent type III or IV application $2,072 

D) Land Divisions/Adjustments: 
 Lot line adjustment  $743 

 tMinor land partition  $2,488  

 Expedited minor partition (added to the cost of the partition application)  $550  

 Final plat processing (minor land partition)  $550 

 Subdivision $6,222 plus$20 per lot 

 Expedited subdivision   (Added to the cost of the subdivision application)  $2,205 

 Final plat processing (Subdivision)  $1,102 

E) Other Fees: 
 Consultant as needed actual costs 

 Community Development Code Plan Check (payable at time of building permit submittal 

1) Residential permits $105 

2) ADUs Accessory Dwelling Units $105  

3) Commercial, Industrial, Multi-Family Permits 
(Final Site Plan Review fee, if a final site plan review is not required this fee is not charged) 

$661  

 Design review team consultations/recommendations staff time (see section 1) 

 Detailed site analysis letter $150 

 Interpretive decisions by the Director $330  

 Medical Marijuana Facility Special Use Permit $276, plus notification fee 

 Non-conforming use modification $1,000 

 Modification to application in review $500 

(If modified after the application is deemed complete and the modification is needed to adequately review the app.) 

 Other land use action  

1) Administrative $276  
2) Hearing required and/or use of Hearings Officer $2,425  

 Planning Re-inspection fee $60 each after 1st 

 Postponement/continuance hearings $300 

(If applicant request is after notice has been published and/or staff report prepared) 

 Pre-application conference $400 

 Publication/distribution of Notice Type II $284 

 Publication/distribution of Notice Type III, IV and V $466 

 Home Occupation Review of initial application (Class A)  $50 

 Home Occupation Review of renewal application (Class A) $25 

 Zone verification letter $50 

327



SECTION 9: PLANNING CHARGES FOR SERVICE   Draft 

Master Fees and Charges                         Draft  Page 22 of 28 

F) Trees: 
 Tree mitigation inspection $60 each after 1st 

 Street Tree Removal Permit $25 - 1st tree, $10 each additional tree 

 Removal of more than 6 trees or 10% on private property $107 

G) Planned Unit Development (PUD): 
 Planned Unit Development (PUD)  Preliminary $2,205 

 Planned Unit Development (PUD)  - Final See Site Plan Review Fee 

    (Plus appropriate application fees (i.e. subdivisions, site plan, town-homes, etc.)  

H) Refunds: 
 75% refund if application is withdrawn prior to 30 day completeness 

 50% refund if withdrawn prior to public notice 

 25% refund if withdrawn prior to staff report 

I) Signage: 
 Permanent signs on private property -  (First 32 sq. ft. plus $1 each additional sq. ft, of sign face)  

(Excludes Home Occupation Signage) 
$150 

 Banner signs – one month period $150 

 Temporary portable sign violation   

1) First offense No fine; collected and marked 
2) Second offense $50 per sign 
3) Third offense $100 per sign 

J) Site Plan Review: 
 Type III and IV - (Additional $100 for every 10,000 sq. ft. or portion thereof over the first 

15,000 sq. ft. of building area)(Including Town-Homes, excluding projects in Old Town) 
$6,222  

 Final site plan review (Type III and IV)  (Due at the time of Building Permit Submittal) $661  

 Site plan review (Type II) $2,025  

 Minor modification to approved Site Plan $276 

 Major modification to approved Site Plan, Type II $1,010 

 Major modification to approved Site Plan, Type III or IV $2,425 

 Old Town overlay review $250 added to application 
 (All uses excluding Single-Family detached dwellings) (Application fee for Old Town projects is the application  fee based on  
size of the project plus the Old Town Overlay review fee.)   

K) Temporary Uses: 
 Administrative $335 

 
L) Time Extension to Approval: 

 No hearing required $150 

M)  Variance: 
 Adjustment - (Per lot and per standard to be varied)  $50 

 Class A Variance - (Per lot and per standard to be varied) $4,145 

 Class B Variance - (Per lot and per standard to be varied) $1,102 

 N)      Zone Amendments: 
 Text amendment $5,330 

 Map amendment $5,330 

328



SECTION 10: BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE   Draft 

Master Fees and Charges                         Draft  Page 23 of 28 

SECTION 10:  BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

A) Building Permits 
Values are determined by the applicants total estimated value of the work which includes labor and materials, 
and/or are based on the most current Building Valuation Data, without state-specific modifiers, as published by 
the International Code Council and in compliance with OAR 918-050-0100 to 918-050-0110. Final building permit 
valuation shall be set by the Building Official. 
 

1. Single Family and Two-Family Dwelling  
Total Valuation Amount  

1 - 500 $60 minimum fee 
501 – 2,000 $60 for the first $500 (Plus $1 for each additional $100 or fraction thereof, up to and including $2,000) 

2,001 – 25,000 
 

$75 for the first $2,000 (Plus $8 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof, up to and including 

$25,000) 

25,001 – 50,000 
 

$259 for the first $25,000 (Plus $6.25 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof, up to and 

including $50,000) 

50,001 – 100,000 $415.25 for the first $50,000 (Plus $4 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof, up to and 
including $100,000) 

100,001 and up $615.25 for the first $100,000 (plus $3.50 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof over $100,00) 
See appendix A for additional fees collected on behalf of the Sherwood School District, State of Oregon, and Metro. 

2. Manufactured Dwelling Installation Permits 
Includes prescriptive foundation system, plumbing and crossover connections, 30 lineal feet of sanitary sewer, storm 
and water lines.  

 Manufactured home set up and installation fee $322.66 

 Plan Review  $90/hour (Minimum Charge = 1/2/hour 

 Site Plan Review Residential Rate per Section 10.(F) 

See appendix A for additional fees collected on behalf of the Sherwood School District, State of Oregon, and Metro. 

3. Commercial, Industrial and Multi-Family  

Total Valuation Amount  

1 - 500 $60 minimum fee 

501 – 2,000 $60 for the first $500 ($1.50 for each additional $100 or fraction thereof up to and including $2,000) 
2,001 – 25,000 

 
$82.50 for the first $2,000 ($8 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof, up to and including 

$25,000) 

25,001 – 50,000 
 

$266.50 for the first $25,000 (Plus $6.75 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof, up to and 
including $50,000) 

50,001 – 100,000 $435.25 for the first $50,000 (plus $5 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof, up to and 

including $100,00) 
100,001 and up $685.25 for the first $100,000 (plus $3.50 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof over $100,00) 

See appendix A for additional fees collected on behalf of the Sherwood School District, State of Oregon, and Metro. 

B) Plan Review Fees – Building Permit 
 Plan review Fee 85% of building permit fee 

 Fire and life safety plan review fee (when required) 40% of building permit fee 

C) Phased Permit - Plan Review (When approved by the Building Official) 
The Plan review fee for a phased project is based on a minimum phasing fee, plus 10% of the total project 
building permit fee, not to exceed $1,500 for each phase pursuant to the authority of OAR 918-050-0160 

 Commercial, Industrial, Multi-Family $100 Minimum Fee  

 Residential and Manufactured Dwellings $50 Minimum Fee  

 

 

329



SECTION 10: BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE   Draft 

Master Fees and Charges                         Draft  Page 24 of 28 

 

D) Deferred Submittals (When approved by the Building Official) 
The fee for processing deferred submittals and reviewing deferred plan submittals shall be an amount equal to 
65% of the permit fee calculated according to OAR 918-050-0110(2) and (3) using the value of the particular 
deferred portion or portions of the project, with a set minimum fee.  This fee is in addition to the project plan 
review fee based on the total project value. 

 Commercial, Industrial, Multi-Family $150 Minimum Fee 

 Residential and Manufactured Dwellings $75 Minimum Fees  

E) Mechanical Permits - Residential 
Mechanical permits for Single Family Dwelling, Two-Family dwellings and Manufactured Dwellings for new 
construction, additions, alterations and repairs.  Fees are based on the number of appliances and related 
equipment with a set minimum fee. 
Minimum Fee $60 

  See appendix A for surcharge collected on behalf of the State. 
1. Air Handling 

 Air Handling Unit ≤ 10,000 CFMs $14.63 includes ductwork 

 Air Handling Unit >10,000 CFMs $24.68 includes ductwork 

 Air Conditioning Unit $19.50 Site Plan Required 

2. Boilers/Compressors 

 ≤100,000 BTUs or 3 HP $19.50 includes ductwork 

 >100,000 (3HP) to ≤ 500,000 BTUs (15HP) $35.75 includes ductwork 

 >500,000 (15HP) to ≤ 1,000,000 BTUs (30HP) $48.75 includes ductwork 

 >1,000,000 BTUs (30HP) ≤ 1,750,000 BTUs (50HP) $73.15 includes ductwork 

 >1,750,000 BTUs or 50HP $121.80 includes ductwork 

3. Fire/Smoke Dampers/Duct Smoke Detectors $14.65 
4. Heat Pump $19.50 Site plan required 
5. Install/Replace Furnace/Burner includes ductwork and vents 

 Furnace ≤ 100,000 BTUs $19.50  

 Furnace ≥ 100,000 BTUs $35.75 

 Install/Replace/Relocate Heaters  (Suspended, Wall, or Floor mounted) $19.50 

 Vent for appliance other than furnace $9.75 includes ductwork 

6. Refrigeration Units (includes installation of controls) 

 ≤ 100,000 BTUs or 3 HP $19.50  

 > 100,000 (3HP) to ≤ 500,000 BTUs (15HP) $35.75 

 > 500,000 (15HP) to ≤ 1,000,000 BTUs (30HP) $48.75  

 > 1,000,000 BTUs (30HP) ≤ 1,750,000 BTUs (50HP) $73.15 

 >  1,750,000 BTUs or 50HP $121.80 

7. Miscellaneous 

 Appliance vent $9.75 includes ductwork 

 Dryer exhaust $9.75 includes ductwork 

 Exhaust fan with single duct $9.75 includes ductwork 

 Hoods $14.65 includes ductwork 

 Exhaust system apart from heating or air conditioning $14.65 includes ductwork 

 Fuel piping and distribution (up to four outlets) $6.50 

 Fuel piping and distribution (over four outlets) $1.65 per outlet 

 Insert, decorative fireplace or wood/pellet stoves $19.50 includes vent 

 Gas fired water heater $19.50 includes ductwork and vent 

 Install/relocate domestic type incinerator $24.35 

 Install/relocate commercial type incinerator $97.50 

 

 

 

330



SECTION 10: BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE   Draft 

Master Fees and Charges                         Draft  Page 25 of 28 

 

F) Mechanical Permits – Commercial, Industrial, and Multi-Family 
Based on the total value of mechanical materials, equipment, installation, overhead and profit. 

 Plan review fee – Commercial 30% of Mechanical permit fee 

 Mechanical Permit Fee Based on total valuation Amount 

0 - 500 $60 minimum fee 
500.01 - 5,000 $60 plus $2.50 for each additional $100 or fraction thereof between $500.01 and $5,000 

5,000.01 - 10,000 $172.50 plus $3 for each additional $100 or fraction thereof, between $5,000.01 and  $10,000 
10,000.01 - 100,000 $322.50 plus $8 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof, between $10,000.01 and  $100,000 
100,000.01 and up $1,042.50 plus $4 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof over $100,000 

See appendix A for surcharge collected on behalf of the State. 

 

G) Plumbing Permits – New one and Two Family Dwellings 
 Includes one kitchen, 100 feet of sanitary sewer, storm and water lines, standard plumbing fixtures and 
appurtenances, and are based on the number of bathrooms, from one to three on a graduated scale. 

 One Bathroom $255 

 Two Bathrooms $315 

 Three Bathrooms $375 

 Additional Kitchen or Bathroom $155 each 

 Additional Fixture or Item $15 each 

 Additional 100 feet of each utility line $27.50 each 

H) Plumbing Permits – One and Two Family and Manufactured Dwelling for Additions, 
Alterations and Repairs 
 Minimum Fee $60 

 New and/or Additional fixture, item or appurtenance $15 each 

 Alteration of fixture, item or appurtenance $15 each 

 Manufactured Dwelling Utility Connection - Charged only when connections are not 
concurrent with new set-up and installation 

$30 each 

 
Water 
Lines 

Sanitary 
Sewer Lines 

Storm Sewer/ 
Footing Lines 

 For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 $50 $50 

 For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each $27.50 each $27.50 each 

 
I) Plumbing Permits – Commercial, Industrial, and Multi-Family 
  Based on the number of fixtures, appurtenances and piping with a set minimum fee. 

 Plan Review Fee – Commercial 30% of plumbing permit fee (when required) 

 Minimum fee $60 

 New and/or additional fixture, item $15 each 

 Alteration of fixture, item or appurtenance $15 each 

  See appendix A for surcharge collected on behalf of the State. 

 Water Lines 
Sanitary Sewer 

Lines 
Storm Sewer/ 
Footing Lines 

 For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 $50 $50 

 For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each $27.50 each $27.50 each 

J) Residential Fire Sprinkler System Fees 
 Total Square Footage (including Garage) 

0 to 2000 $100 includes plan review 
2,001 to 3,600 $150 includes plan review 
3,601 to 7,200 $250 includes plan review 
7,201 and greater $300 includes plan review 

331



SECTION 10: BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE   Draft 

Master Fees and Charges                         Draft  Page 26 of 28 

 

K) Electrical Permits – Issued and Inspected by Washington County (503) 846-3470 

L) Prescriptive Solar Photovoltaic System Installation – Structural Only 
*Electrical permits are also required through Washington County 

Fees for installation of Solar Photovoltaic (PV) system installation that comply with 
the prescriptive path described in the Oregon Structural Specialty Code. 

$122.79 

For Plans that do not meet the prescriptive path, typical structural fee calculations 
and processes will apply. 

Typical Structural Fees will 
apply 

M) Demolition Permits 
 Residential  $192.12 

 Commercial $282.12 

N) Medical Gas Permits – Commercial 
  Based on the total value of installation costs and system equipment as applied to the following fee matrix. 

 Plan Review Fee – Commercial 30% of Plumbing Permit Fee 

 Plumbing Permit Fee Based on valuation 

  See appendix A for surcharge collected on behalf of the State. 
0 - 500 $100 minimum fee 

500.01 - 5,000 $100 plus $2 for each additional $100 or fraction thereof between $500.01 and $5,000 
5,000.01 - 10,000 $190 plus $3 for each additional $100 or fraction thereof between $5000.01 and $10,000 

10,000.01 - 50,000 $340 plus $9.50 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof between $10,000.01 and $50,000 
50,000.01 - 100,000 $720 Plus $11 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof between $50,000.01 and $100,000 
100,000.01 and up $1,270 plus $7 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof over $100,000) 

O) Grading and Erosion Control Fees (Private Property Only) 
Permits issued by the City of Sherwood.  Grading is inspected by the Building Department and erosion control is 
inspected by Clean Water Services or the City of Sherwood. 

Erosion Control Fees 
Activities which require a grading and/or erosion control permit and are not included in a building permit.  Permit 
is based upon the total acreage of the site. 

 Erosion Control Plan Review Fee 65% of the erosion control inspection fee  

 Erosion Control Inspection Fee Based on Total Area 

0 to 1 Acre $200 
1 Acre and up $200 (plus $50 per acre or fraction thereof over 1 acre) 

For projects greater than or equal to 5 acres see appendix A for additional fees collected on behalf of CWS. 

Grading Fees 
Cubic Yards  
0 to 100  $60 minimum fee  
101 to 1,000  $60 first 100 yards (plus $11 for each additional 100 yards or fraction thereof) 
1,001 to 10,000  $159 first 1,000 yard (plus $15 for each additional 1,000 yards or fraction thereof) 
10,001 to 100,000  $294 first 10,000 yards (plus $75 for each additional 10,000 yards or fraction thereof) 
100,001  +  $969 first 100,000 (plus $36.50 for each additional 10,000 yards or fraction thereof) 
Grading plan review fee 85% of the grading permit fee 

 

 

 

 

 

332



SECTION 10: BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE   Draft 

Master Fees and Charges                         Draft  Page 27 of 28 

 

P) Other Inspections and Fees (Building, Mechanical, Plumbing, Grading and Erosion) 
 

 Re-inspection fee (Minimum charge = 1 hour) $90 per hour plus State surcharge 

 Inspections outside normal business hours 
(when approved by the Building Official) 

$90 per hour plus State surcharge (Minimum charge = 2 
hours)  

 Inspection for which no fee is specifically 
indicated 

$70 per hour plus State surcharge(Minimum charge = ½ 
hour)  

 Investigative fee for working without a permit $70 per hour to enforce the code, $70 minimum. 

 Additional plan review required 
$90 per hour or actual time (For changes, additions or 
revisions) (Minimum charge = ½ hour) 

 Re-stamp of lost, stolen or damaged plans $55 per plan set 

 Application/Permit extensions   $50 

(Renewal of an application or permit where an extension has been requested in writing, and approval granted by 
the Building Official, prior to the original expiration date, provided no changes have been made in the original 
plans and specifications for such work) 

 Permit reinstatement fee 
50% of amount required for a new permit or a percentage as determined 
by the Building Official based on the remaining inspections required. 

(This fee is for reinstatement of a permit, where a reinstatement request has been made in writing, and approval 
granted by the Building Official, provided no changes have been made in the original plans and specifications for 
such work.) 

Q) Refunds (Building Permit, Mechanical, Plumbing, Grading/Erosion) 
 Permit refunds 75% of original permit Fee; Provided the permit is still valid 

 Plan review refunds 75% of original plan review fee provided no plan review was started  

R) Certificate of Occupancy  (As  determined by the Building Official) 
 Temporary residential $50 per request 

 Temporary commercial $300 maximum per request 

S) Change of Use/Occupancy Certificate Application Fee  (As  determined by the Building Official) 
 Similar use (Minor code review) $60  

 Dissimilar Use, or Change in 
Occupancy (Extensive Code Review) 

$125 minimum fee (Includes 1 hour code review time, review 
time greater than 1 hour will be charged at the hourly rate of $90 

333



APPENDIX A: FEES CHARGED ON BEHALF OF OTHER AGENCIES 

Master Fees and Charges                         Draft  Page 28 of 28 

APPENDIX A: FEES CHARGED ON BEHALF OF OTHER AGENCIES 

Note: The fees in this section are set by other jurisdictions and the City has agreed to collect the fee on their 
behalf. The fees listed are provided as a courtesy and are based on the fee set at the time this fee schedule was 
adopted. Any changes to the fees imposed by the other jurisdictions may not be reflected in this section. 
 

A) Clean Water Services Fees 
 

1. Sewer Utility Charges 

The monthly sewer utility user charge for property within the City and served by Clean Water Services 
(CWS) of Washington County shall be established by CWS and adopted annually. 

 CWS regional sewer utility user base rate per EDU  $22.91 

 CWS regional sewer utility usage rate per CCF $1.52 

2. Sewer SDC  

 CWS regional connection charge $5088 

3. Erosion Control Fees - For projects greater than or equal to 5 acres  

 Clean Water Services 1200-C administration fee $150 per application 

 Clean Water Services 1200-C plan review fee $350 per application 

 

B) State of Oregon – Department of Consumer and Business Services 
Fee charged on all building and mechanical permits; as well as commercial plumbing and medical gas permits. 

 
1. State Surcharge 12% of Building Permit fee 
2. Manufactured Dwelling or Cabana Installation $30 

 

C) Sherwood School District 
 Fee charged on all building permits. 

 
1. Residential CET $1.04 per square foot of dwelling 
2. Non-Residential CET Non-residential $0.52 per square foot maximum of $25,925  

 

D) METRO 
 Fee charged on building permits. 

 
1. METRO CET 0.12% of the total value of the improvement when it exceeds $100,000 valuation 

 

334





 

Resolution 2016-040, Staff Report 
June 21, 2016 
Page 1 of 1 

City Council Meeting Date: June 21, 2016 
 

 Agenda Item: Public Hearing 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Cathy Brucker, Interim Finance Director 
Through: Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:   Resolution 2016-040, adopting the FY2016-17 budget of the City of 

Sherwood, making appropriations, imposing and categorizing taxes, 
and authorizing the City Manager to take such action necessary to 
carry out the adopted budget 

 

 

Issue: 
Shall the Sherwood City Council adopt the FY2016-17 City of Sherwood Budget as 
approved by the Sherwood Budget Committee? 
 
Background: 
On May 12 and May 19, 2016 the Sherwood Budget Committee received the budget 
message and heard public comment. Then, on May 26, 2016 the Budget Committee 
approved the proposed budget with the following changes, resulting in the Approved 
Budget for FY2016-17. The changes consisted of:  
 

 Increase City Manager Department by $10,000 for the Robin Hood Festival 
contribution, 

 Add a Code Compliance position (0.50 FTE) to the Planning Department and re-
allocate the Code Enforcement Officer from 0.50 to 1.00 FTE in the Police 
Department - $31,352 net cost, and 

 Reduce Water Operations by $75,000 with removal of a duplicated project. 
 
Notice of the approved budget has been published in accordance with Oregon Local 
Budget Law. The final steps of the budget process are for City Council to hold a public 
hearing per ORS 294.453 and then adopt the FY2016-17 budget. 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff respectfully requests City Council adoption of Resolution 2016-040 adopting the 
FY2016-17 budget of the City of Sherwood, making appropriations, imposing and 
categorizing taxes, and authorizing the City Manager to take such action necessary to 
carry out the adopted budget. 

335



DRAFT 

Resolution 2016-040 
June 21, 2016 
Page 1 of 3, Exhibit A (107 pgs) 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2016-040 
 

ADOPTING THE FY2016-17 BUDGET OF THE CITY OF SHERWOOD, MAKING 
APPROPRIATIONS, IMPOSING AND CATEGORIZING TAXES, AND AUTHORIZING THE 

CITY MANAGER TO TAKE SUCH ACTION NECESSARY TO CARRY OUT THE 
ADOPTED BUDGET 

 
WHEREAS, the Sherwood Budget Committee has reviewed and acted on the proposed City 
budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sherwood Budget Committee approved and recommended a balanced 
budget to the City Council on May 26, 2016; and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with State law, the Sherwood City Council has held a public 
hearing on the budget as approved and recommended by the Sherwood Budget Committee; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sherwood Budget Committee approved the budget to be presented to the 
City Council for adoption; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to adopt the approved budget attached as Exhibit A and 
carry out the programs identified in the budget. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1: Adoption of the FY2016-17 Budget.  The City Council of the City of Sherwood, 
Oregon hereby adopts the budget for FY2016-17 in the sum of $46,912,434, now on file at 
City Hall. 

336



DRAFT 

Resolution 2016-040 
June 21, 2016 
Page 2 of 3, Exhibit A (107 pgs) 

Section 2: Making Appropriations.  The amounts for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2016 and for the purposes shown 
below are hereby appropriated as follows: 

 
  General Debt Street Street     

 General Construction Service Operations Capital Water Sanitary Storm Telecom 

          
Administration 2,564,209         
Comm. Development 1,485,054         
Public Safety 3,622,901         
Community Services 1,872,563         
PW Operations 2,426,605         
Operations Department    2,038,812  3,240,494 624,082 1,394,067 403,729 
Capital Department  1,531,805   1,771,933 25,033 336,824 329,673  
Debt Service 136,796 47,983 891,300   1,836,468    
Transfers Out    72,597 165,371 32,259 19,831 435,597  
Contingency 578,701   86,753  424,525 32,526 179,952 23,503 
Reserved for Future Years 1,862,827 230,223 3,458 1,255,102 1,937,304 8,514,401 3,092,928 2,297,012 248,125 
 14,549,656 1,810,011 894,758 3,453,264 2,713,718 14,073,180 4,106,191 4,636,301 675,357 
          

Total Budget for FY2016-17     $46,912,434 

337



DRAFT 

Resolution 2016-040 
June 21, 2016 
Page 3 of 3, Exhibit A (107 pgs) 

Section 3: Imposing and Categorizing Taxes.  The City Council of the City of 
Sherwood hereby imposes the taxes provided for in the adopted budget at the 
City’s permanent rate of $3.2975 per thousand of assessed value for operations 
and in the amount of $935,865 for bonded debt; and that these taxes are hereby 
imposed for tax year 2016-17 upon the assessed value of all taxable property 
within the district. 
The City of Sherwood hereby categorizes the taxes as follows: 
 

 General Government Excluded from Limitation 
General Fund $3.2975 per $1,000  
Debt Service Fund  $     935,865 

 

Section 4: Filing. The Budget Officer shall certify to the County Clerk and 
County Assessor of Washington County and the Oregon State Department of 
Revenue the tax levy made by this resolution and shall file with them a copy of 
the budget as finally adopted. 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 21st day of June 2016. 
 
 
 
 _____________________ 
 Krisanna Clark, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
       
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 

338



2011 -  

www.sherwoodoregon.gov 

IT2012 -  

 

2016-2017 
APPROVED 

BUDGET 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 1 of 107 339



READER’S GUIDE 

1 GFOA Distinguished Budget 

Presentation Award 

2 How to Make the Most of the Budget 

3 Budget Message 

10  About Sherwood 

13  Principal Property Taxpayers 

14  Maps 

15  City Council Mission and Values 

16  City Council Goals 

17  Organizational Chart  

18    Budget Process 

20  Basis of Budgeting 

22  Fund Structure 

REVENUE & EXPENDITURES 

Revenue 

23  Revenue Summary by Source 

24  Where the Money Comes From 

25  Overview of Major Revenue 

Sources 

Expenditures 

29  Expense Summary by Category 

30  Where the Money Goes 

31  Overview of Major Categories of 

Expense   

DEBT SERVICE & (CIP) CAPITAL 

IMPROVEMENT PLAN  

Debt Service 

33  Overview of Long‐Term Debt 

Capital Improvement Plan 

35  Overview of 5 Year CIP 

36  Current Year Capital Projects 

BUDGET DETAIL 

  39  City in Total 

  40  City by Fund 

General Government  

  41  General Fund in Total 

  42  General Fund by Division 

  45  General Fund – Administration 

Division 

  53  General Fund – Community 

Development Division 

  58  General Fund – Police Services 

  60  General Fund – Community Services 

Division 

  65  General Fund – Public Works Division 

  69  Debt Service Fund 

  70  General Construction Fund 

  71  Street Operations Fund 

  73  Street Capital Fund 

Enterprise Funds 

  74  Water Fund in Total 

  75  Water Operations  

  77  Water Capital 

  78  Sanitary Fund in Total 

  79  Sanitary Operations 

  81  Sanitary Capital 

  82  Storm Fund in Total 

  83  Storm Operations 

  85  Storm Capital 

  86  Telecommunications Fund 

APPENDIX 

89  FTE Schedule 

90  Salary Schedule 

92  Financial Policies 

     101  Glossary and Acronyms 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 2 of 107 340



1  

 

 

 

The   Government   Finance  Officers  Association   of   the  United   States   and   Canada   (GFOA) 

presented a Distinguished Budget Presentation Award  to  the City of  Sherwood, Oregon  for  its 

annual budget for the Fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015. 
 

In order to receive this award, a governmental unit must publish a budget document that meets 

program  criteria  as  a  policy  document, as  an  operations  guide  as  a  financial  plan,  and  as  a 

communication device. 
 

This award  is valid  for a period of one year only.  We believe our current budget continues  to 

conform to program requirements, and we are submitting  it to GFOA to determine its eligibility 

for another award.  
 
 
 
 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 3 of 107 341



2  

Reader's Guide   How to Make the Most of the Budget Document 
 

 
 

How  to Make the Most  of the 
Budget Document 

 

This budget document serves to: 

  Present    the   City   Council   and    the 

public  with  a  clear  picture    of  the 

services the city provides. 

 Provide    city    management  with    a 

financial  and  operating  plan  that 

adheres  to  the  city's  financial policies. 

  C ommunicate   the  vision  of  the  City 

Council  and  Leadership  Team for  the 

City of Sherwood. 

 Present              the              financial              and 

organizational  operations  for  each of 

the city's departments. 
 

Reader's Guide 
 
The  reader’s  guide  provides  a  variety  of 

information about the city. 

  Awards 

  Budget Message 

  Sherwood’s unique history 

  Demographic information 

  Council Mission, Values, and Goals 

  City organization chart 

 Oregon  budget  process,  including  an 

explanation of funds 
 

Revenues & Expenditures 
 
This  section  includes  current  revenue  by 

source  and  current  expenses  by  major 

category.  This  section  also  includes  an 

overview of the main sources of revenue for 

the  City,   including  a   review  of  Oregon’s 

property tax system; as well as an overview 

of  the  major  categories  of  expenses; 

personal services, materials and services, and 

capital outlay. 

 

Debt Service & (CIP) Capital 

Improvement Plan 
 
This  section  includes  information  on  our 

General Obligation Bonds, Water Bonds and 

URA Bonds. 

 
The CIP establishes, prioritizes, and ensures 

funding for projects to  improve existing and 

develop  new  infrastructure  and  facilities. 

While the CIP serves as a  long‐range plan,  it 

is reviewed and revised annually. 

 

Budget Detail 
 
This section includes the detailed budgets 

for the City as a whole, each fund, division, 

and program in the City. 

 

Appendix 
 
The  Appendix  includes  the  FTE  schedules, 

salary  schedules,  financial  policies,  and  a 

glossary with acronyms. 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 4 of 107 342



3 

Reader's Guide  About Sherwood 

 

 

 

Fiscal Year 2016‐17 
City Manager’s Budget Message 
May 12, 2016 
The Honorable Mayor Krisanna Clark  
Members of the Sherwood City Council 
Members of the Sherwood Budget Committee 

 

 

As City Manager for the City of Sherwood, it is my pleasure to present the proposed Fiscal Year 
2016‐17 budget for the City of Sherwood.   This proposed budget  is submitted as required by 
Chapter 294 of the Oregon Revised Statutes and Chapter VIII, Section 33.e.6 of the Sherwood 
Municipal Code.    As an important reminder to citizens reviewing this proposed budget, state 
budget  law provides for three  levels of review and scrutiny of this budget: the City Manager, 
the Budget Committee, and the City Council. At any step in this process, the reviewing body can 
alter the proposed budget if they believe it is in the best interests of the City of Sherwood.  We 
are pleased to be able to maintain a fiscally responsible budget, while continuing to provide the 
quality of public services our citizens have come to enjoy and expect from the City. 

 

Budget Overview 
In many ways, the proposed budget for next fiscal year is a status quo budget with few 
significant changes.  As we near the end of the current fiscal year, the overall city finances are 
stronger than anticipated a year ago.  For example, we projected an ending fund balance in the 
General Fund to be $2.69 million (or 22.8% of total operating revenues).  The projected ending 
fund balance for the current year is estimated to be $2.82 million (or 23.9% of total operating 
revenues).  This is well above our overall fiscal policy of ending fund balance of 20% of total 
operating revenues.  

This is a summary of the 
proposed budget by fund in 
comparison to the current 
adopted budget.  This table 
indicates that for the vast 
majority of funds, this 
proposed budget is a 
reduction from the current 
adopted budget. 
 
Total Budget (All Funds) 
The proposed total budget 
for FY2016‐17 for all funds 
is $26.1 million. This 
represents a decrease of 
$2.2 million or 7.9% from 
the current adopted 
FY2015‐16 budget.  
 
 

2015‐16 2016‐17

Expenditures Budget Proposed Variance % Change

General Fund

Administration 2,970,384$    2,691,005$    (279,379)$     ‐9.4%

Community Development 1,539,441      1,493,906      (45,535)         ‐3.0%

Police Sevices 3,687,830      3,582,698      (105,132)       ‐2.9%

Community Services 1,717,367      1,872,563      155,196         9.0%

Public Works 2,304,981      2,426,605      121,624         5.3%

Subtotal General Fund 12,220,003    12,066,777    (153,226)       ‐1%

Debt Service Fund 899,219         891,300         (7,919)           ‐0.9%

General Construction Fund 2,330,898      1,579,788      (751,110)       ‐32.2%

Street Operations Fund 2,228,538      2,111,409      (117,129)       ‐5.3%

Street Capital Fund 1,135,515      776,414         (359,101)       ‐31.6%

Subtotal General Govt. Funds 18,814,173    17,425,688    (1,388,485)    ‐7.4%

Water Enterprise Fund 5,825,766      5,134,254      (691,512)       ‐11.9%

Sanitary Enterprise Fund 1,056,531      980,737         (75,794)         ‐7.2%

Storm Enterprise Fund 2,152,248      2,159,337      7,089             0.3%

Telecommunications Fund 491,406         403,729         (87,677)         ‐17.8%

Subtotal Enterprise Funds 9,525,951      8,678,057      (847,894)       ‐8.9%

Total All Funds 28,340,124$  26,103,745$  (2,236,379)$  ‐7.9%

Budget in Brief

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 5 of 107 343



4 

Reader's Guide  About Sherwood 

 

 
Within this total budget, Personal Services accounts for $11.0 million. This figure is 1.9% higher 
than the current FY2015‐16 budget.  Personal Services includes all salaries and wages, payroll 
taxes and employee benefits. Materials and Services (M&S) expenses are operating expenses 
incurred during the normal course of business including professional services, supplies, utilities, 
and property and  liability  insurance.   The total M&S expenses for the proposed budget are 
$8.5 million, a 10% decrease from the current fiscal year budget.  Capital Outlay is also projected 
to decrease by 27.4% in this proposed budget adding to the overall total reduction.  Capital 
Outlay consists of infrastructure improvements such as water lines, street improvements and 
facility enhancements. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

General Fund 

The City’s General Fund is the primary operating fund of the city including administration, police 
services, community development, community services and a portion of public works.  Since 
General Fund revenues are unrestricted in use, citizens usually focus a great deal of attention on 
this particular fund in reviewing the budget.  Revenues for this fund largely consist of property 
taxes, franchise fees, licenses, permits and court fines. 

 
Within the General Fund budget, Personal Services accounts for $9.0 million. This figure is 2% 
higher than the current FY2015‐16 budget. The total M&S expenses for the proposed budget  is 
$2.7 million, a 2.4% decrease from the current fiscal year budget.  Capital Outlay is also 
projected to decrease by 16% in this proposed budget adding to the overall reduction.   

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

 $30,000,000

Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget

FY12‐13 FY13‐14 FY14‐15 FY15‐16 FY16‐17

Total City Expenditures  FY 13‐17

$7,000,000

$9,000,000

$11,000,000

$13,000,000

Actual
FY12‐13

Actual
FY13‐14

Actual
FY14‐15

Budget
FY15‐16

Budget
FY16‐17

Total General Fund Operating Expenditures
FY 13‐17

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 6 of 107 344



5 

Reader's Guide  About Sherwood 

 

 
As in the past few years, I am again recommending the use of a portion of the General Fund 
ending fund balance ($379,663)  to  fund one‐time expenditures  that could not be 
accomplished  in prior years due  to stricter budget constraints. 
 
Strategic Goals and Strategies 
This proposed budget  reflects the economic and political environment  in which we operate 
and more importantly, anticipates that this environment will continue for the foreseeable 
future. Before describing  them  in detail,  I want  to enumerate the key principles used to 
develop this proposed budget. 
 
Continued Focus upon Core, Essential Services – As the management team tackled budget 
preparation  this year, we continually asked ourselves whether  the  service or program under 
consideration could be categorized as a Core, Essential Service. Core, Essential Services include 
local government services such as public safety services (police and emergency management), 
utilities (water and sewer), and infrastructure (roads). 
 
Invest  in  Infrastructure Maintenance – As much as  this budget  is  for one year,  it was created 
with the idea that our normal operational costs do not exceed our normal operational revenues. 
We were able to incorporate the costs for infrastructure maintenance and fund many of the 
maintenance items that were identified in the new long‐term Parks, Facilities, and 
Fleet/Equipment plans for FY2016‐17.   
 
Aligns with City Financial Policies, especially  in terms of using fund balance – The City Council 
has adopted financial policies to guide management in making sound budgetary and financial 
decisions. Two key financial policies, strictly adhered to in this proposed budget, are: 
 
‐  The  City  of  Sherwood will  identify  sustainable  revenue  levels and,  to  the  extent possible, 

current operations will be funded by current sustainable revenues. 
 

- One‐time  revenues will be used  for one‐time expenditures or as  contributions  to  reserves 
and will not be used to pay for established services. 

 

 

Short‐term Economic Factors 
Within our Sherwood community, signs of a strong economy are clearly evident in a variety of 
key areas. Development activity  continues  to  rebound  strongly. New homes are being built, 
especially near the Ridges school’s campus in northwestern Sherwood. Commercial growth is 
centered near Langer Farms Parkway and Tualatin‐Sherwood Road. Our community continues 
to receive national accolades for its strong quality of life, excellent schools, access to wonderful 
parks, and low crime rate. 
 
While this was certainly a less difficult budgeting process than previous years due to our 
financial strength, there are some key concerns that need to be highlighted for the immediate 
short‐term horizon. 
 
The first is that we are anticipating significant PERS increases for the next biennium (FY2017‐
19) due to an adverse court ruling, improvements in retiree longevity and the lowering of  

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 7 of 107 345



6 

Reader's Guide  About Sherwood 

 

 
the assumed earnings rate by the PERS Board.  The City of Sherwood is not alone in dealing 
with such increases starting next year as cities, counties and school districts across Oregon 
will be affected (as well as the State of Oregon). 
 
The second is that there is likely to be a cooling‐off in the regional economy after several years 
of economic growth.  Our financial revenues have strengthened over the past few years of 
economic growth, however we are projecting a relatively static growth for next fiscal year within 
the General Fund.    With dwindling residential properties within the current city boundaries, 
growth in residential property taxes will lessen in future years. 
 
The proposed budget funds a total workforce of 114 Full Time Equivalent (FTE) positions, an 
increase of 1.7 FTE positions from the current workforce. The following is a summary of these 
personnel changes: 
 

 Reduction of an Associate Planner in Community Development in a limited duration 
(temporary) due to completion of Sherwood West project 

 Addition of a Senior Planner in Community Development in a limited duration 
(temporary) position to assist with the long overdue update to the Comprehensive Plan 

 Addition of a half time Youth Services Librarian I 

 Additional hours (from 32 to 40 hours per week) for a Library Assistant II 

 Addition of a Senior Network Engineer within the Telecom Fund. 
 

Total Personal Services costs are budgeted to increase minimally by 1.1% between the current 
year budget and  the proposed FY2016‐17 budget. Key personal  services cost  increases  in  this 
proposed budget are as follows: 
 

 Insurance costs are budgeted to increase by only 2.4% over the previous fiscal year due 
to much lower rate increases than experienced in the past. 

 PERS rates maintained for  FY2016‐17 with an increase of $18,576. This results in a 
small average increase from 20% of salary in FY2015‐16 to 22% of salary FY2016‐17. 

 This proposed budget includes a modest 0.7% cost of living increase for all employees. 

 
Priorities and Issues 
This  proposed  budget  provides  funding  for  a  number  of significant  projects  and 
programs within our community that are important to highlight in this budget message 
including: 
 

 With the completion of the Sherwood West Pre‐Concept Plan and various 
infrastructure master  plans,  planning  efforts will shift to completing  a  long‐
overdue update to the City’s Comprehensive Plan.  The current Comprehensive Plan 
for Sherwood was approved in 1991 with a 20 to 25 year time horizon.  It is critical 
that we develop an updated road map to ensure that our community retains the 
high quality of life over the next 20 to 25 year period. 

 Completion of a feasibility study for the City to operate the existing recreational facility 

that has been operated by the regional YMCA organization.  This analysis is critical for the 

City to make a decision regarding the current long‐term agreement that expires in 2018. 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 8 of 107 346



7 

Reader's Guide  About Sherwood 

 

 

 Completion of an update to the City’s financial software that will assist in both efficiency 
and transparency of financial management for city operations. 

 
Capital and Enterprise Funds 
 
Street Operations and Street Capital Projects Funds 
During FY2013‐14 the City completed a process to update the Transportation System Master 
Plan and a new SDC methodology was completed in FY2015‐16. Based on the outcome of the 
new methodology, changes to the SDC’s and street fees may be required to assure adequate 
funding for future Street maintenance and capital projects. 
 
General Construction Fund 
This fund is used to manage capital projects related to parks, the senior center, and other city 
facilities. The FY2016‐17 budget includes funds to update the Parks Master Plan and SDC 
Methodology and based on those reports, fees and SDC’s may need to be changed to 
accommodate the needs of the community. 
 
Water Fund 
During FY2014‐15, the City updated the Water Master Plan along with rates and the SDC 
Methodology. This process resulted in a 20 year plan for the City’s water system. A water rate 
increase of 2%  i s   inc luded   in this proposed budget. 
 
Sanitary and Storm Funds 
The FY2016‐17  proposed budget includes  funding to complete the updates of both the 
Sanitary and Storm Master Plans as well as the rate and SDC Methodologies. Based on the 
findings from these reports, the rates and SDC’s may be updated to support the new Master 
Plans. A city sewer rate increase of 2% is included in this proposed budget. 
 
Telecommunications Fund 
This fund has become self‐sustaining over the past few years. The final payment on the General 
Fund interfund loan was made in FY2015‐16. With the loan paid in full, the business plan will 
need to be updated to determine the long‐term plans for this fund. Until the Business Plan is 
updated, operations will continue at current levels and the revenue is projected to cover 
expenses each year. 
 
Fund Balances 
Below is a chart showing the proposed change in fund balances for FY2016‐17: 
 

 

General Debt Street Street

General Construction Service Operations Capital Water Sanitary Storm Telecom

Change in Fund Balance Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

Beginning Fund Balance 2,815,353      1,153,758       1,708      1,718,199    1,995,933  8,471,183    3,349,537  2,292,843  205,297  

Increase in Fund Balance ‐                 ‐                  1,750      ‐               ‐             467,743       ‐             184,121     66,331    

Decrease in Fund Balance (332,474)        (923,535)         ‐          (376,344)      (58,629)      ‐               (224,083)    ‐             ‐          

Ending Fund Balance 2,482,879      230,223          3,458      1,341,855    1,937,304  8,938,926    3,125,454  2,476,964  271,628  

Percent Change in Fund Balance 12% 80% 102% 22% 3% 6% 7% 8% 32%

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 9 of 107 347



8 

Reader's Guide  About Sherwood 

 

 
The changes in fund balances related to Capital and Enterprise are due to capital improvements or annual 
infrastructure repairs. 

 

 
It is important to note two major aspects related to our General Fund fund balance: 

 Unlike many Oregon cities during the great recession, our fund balance actually 
increased. In FY2015‐16, City Council decided to use some of the General Fund fund 
balance towards one time deferred maintenance expenditures. This proposed budget 
again contemplates using some of the ending fund balance for one‐time expenditures. 

 Our financial policies require an unrestricted fund balance of at least 10% of fund 
revenue with a goal of 20%. Our ending fund balance is at 21.3% which exceeds our 
financial goal. 

 
The change in the General Fund fund balance is broken down as follows: 

Operating Revenue  $11,644,303 
Operating Expense   ($11,597,114)
Net Normal Operations                                            $47,189
Less One Time Expenses Net   ($379,663)

Change in Fund Balance ($332,474) 
 

Conclusion 
Sherwood continues to be a financially sound organization. We rely on diverse revenue sources, 
and have equally diverse expenditure patterns and healthy fund balances.  Our Senior 
Leadership team and staff do an outstanding job in handling their respective departmental 
budgets and expenditures and I applaud them for their efforts.  Our challenge remains the same 
‐ keep our priorities balanced in the face of rising costs and uncertain revenues.  
 
This proposed budget presents a spending plan for FY2016‐17 that reflects the priorities, 
policies and goals of the Sherwood City Council and the citizens it represents. I would like to  

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 10 of 107 348



9 

Reader's Guide  About Sherwood 

 

 
acknowledge and thank all involved for their efforts in developing the budget and contributing 
to the process, especially the Senior Leadership team for their input and support.  In particular, I 
want to thank Cathy Brucker, our interim Finance Director who came on board early in our 
budget development process and did an amazing job of working with us in putting the pieces of 
this proposed budget together. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Joseph P. Gall, ICMA‐CM 
City Manager 

 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 11 of 107 349



Reader's Guide                     About Sherwood 
 

10 
 

History 
The  first wagon  train  arrived  in Oregon  in 

1843,  and  by  1853  Sherwood  was  being 

settled by farmers. They built their houses of 

the  logs  taken  from  the  forest which once 

covered  the  area.  They  grew  nearly 

everything they needed. 

By 1870, many families had moved into the 

area we  now  call  Sherwood.    In  1885,  J.C 

Smock granted the railroad the right‐of‐way 

through  his  property.  In  1889,  he  and  his 

wife,  Mary  Ellen  Sebastion,  then  planned 

and  named  the  streets  surrounding  the 

railroad  tracks.  The  town  which  emerged 

was known as Smockville;  later renamed to 

Sherwood and incorporated in 1893. 

In  the  early  1890's,  Sherwood's  main 

industry  was  a  brickyard  that  supplied 

building bricks for most of Portland's growth. 

Most  of  Sherwood's  commercial  buildings 

were built at  this  time,  including  the nine‐

block area known as Old Town. The original 

home  of  J.  C.  Smock  and  Mary  Ellen 

Sebastion still stands on Park Street next to 

the Morback House as a component of the 

Sherwood Heritage Center. 

When  the  brickyard  closed  in  1895,  the 

economy  diversified  to  include  a  fruit  and 

vegetable  cannery  and  a  tannery,  which 

supported Sherwood until 1971.  

In  1911,  Sherwood's  City  limits  were  one 

square mile, and had a population of 350. As 

of 2016, the City is 4.5 square miles and has 

a population of 19,080. 

Authority 
The City of Sherwood has all powers granted 

to municipal corporations by State statutes, 

including the power to issue debt, levy taxes 

on real property within  its boundaries, and 

to extend its corporate limits by annexation. 

 

Services 
The  City  provides  a  full  range  of  services: 

public  safety;  library;  construction  and 

maintenance  of  streets,  parks,  and  utility 

infrastructure;  recreational  activities  and 

cultural  events;  current  and  long‐range 

planning;  development  review;  building 

permits; and construction inspection.   

Sherwood  owns  and  operates  a  water 

system  and,  jointly  with  the  City  of 

Wilsonville,  a  water  treatment  plant.  The 

City  also  owns  and  operates  the  sanitary 

sewer  and  storm water  collection  facilities 

with  treatment  provided  by  Clean  Water 

Services, a regional authority.  

 

Senior services are provided by a non‐profit 

organization,  housed  in  the  City‐owned 

Marjorie  Stewart Center.  Fire protection  is 

provided  by  TVF&R,  a  regional  entity. 

ElectriCity,  phone,  and  trash  disposal  are 

provided by private businesses.  Sherwood is 

part of School District 88J. 

Sherwood  has  an  Urban  Renewal  Agency 

(URA)  which  undertakes  projects  in  the 

designated Urban Renewal District.  The URA 

is  a  distinct municipal  corporation  and  its 

budget is separate from the City.  

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 12 of 107 350



Reader's Guide                     About Sherwood 
 

11 

Location 
Sherwood’s City limits span four and a half 
square miles along Hwy 99 via Interstate 5. 
This rapidly growing City is part of the 
Willamette Valley located in southwest 
Washington County. Sherwood is the home 
of the Tualatin River National Wildlife 
Refuge to the north, and bordered by 
Yamhill County to the south, and the City of 
Tualatin to the east. 

 

DISTANCE FROM SHERWOOD 

Destination  Miles

Cities 
Portland, OR  17
Salem, OR  36
Eugene, OR  100
Seattle, WA  190
Boise, ID  445
San Francisco, CA  625

Airports, Rail Stations 
Portland International Airport  30
Hillsboro Airport  17
Portland Union Station  18

Recreational Areas 
Oregon Coast  80
Mt. Hood Ski Areas  70
Central Oregon  165

Public Universities 
Portland State University  16
Oregon State University  75
University of Oregon  102

Economy 
Sherwood has a diverse economy with  the 

manufacturing sector accounting for 25% of 

its  jobs.  70%  of  employed  residents 

commute outside of  the City  for work. The 

City has  completed  a  concept plan  for  the 

Tonquin Employment Area  to help  remedy 

this imbalance. 

The City’s economy is linked with that of the 

Portland/Vancouver  Metro  Region,  but  is 

more  insulated  from  economic  downturns 

due to the high education and skill level of its 

population. 

Despite  record  growth,  the  City  has 

managed  to maintain a  first  rate quality of 

life  for  its  residents  through a unique park 

and  recreation  system,  a  great  school 

system,  and  a  revived  central  business 

district in Old Town. 

 

Single‐
Family 

Residential
75%

Multi‐
Family 

Residential
4%

Industrial
1%

Commercial
15%

Utility 2%

Personal 
Property

2%

Land Value Breakdown
2015‐16 Assessed Value

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 13 of 107 351



Reader's Guide                     About Sherwood 
 

12 

Demographics 
Over  the  last  two  decades,  Sherwood  has 

been  one  of  the  fastest  growing 

communities in the State. Between 2000 and 

2015,  the  population  has  grown  63%. 

Sherwood  has  an  average  of  three  people 

per household as compared to 2.5 in Oregon 

as a whole. 51.1% of Sherwood’s population 

is female, compared to Oregon at 50.5%. 

AGE DISTRIBUTION 

Age  Total  Percent 

0‐19  6,438  35% 
20‐39  4,741  26% 
40‐59  5,124  28% 
60+  1,891  11% 

 

 
 

 

 

 

86% of the homes in Sherwood are less than 

25  years  old.  Owner‐occupied  homes 

represent 80% of the community as opposed 

to 66% of Oregon as a whole. 

 

JOB TYPES HELD BY SHERWOOD 
CITIZENS 

Job Type  Percent 

Private For‐Profit  74% 
Government  11% 
Self‐Employed  10% 
Private Not‐For‐Profit  5% 

 

 

 

 

93%

43%
74%

29%
0%

25%

50%

75%

100%

High School Grad Bachelor's or Higher

Population Age 25 and Over

Sherwood Oregon

<$10
1%

$10‐$25
9%

$25‐$50
16%

$50‐$75
19%

$75‐
$100
18%

>$100
37%

Household Income 
Distribution
($'s in thousands)

 10,000

 15,000

 20,000

City of Sherwood Population

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 14 of 107 352



Reader's Guide           Principal Property Taxpayers & Employers 
 

13 

CITY OF SHERWOOD 
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 

   

  2016 

Employer  Employees 
% of Total City 
Employment 

Sherwood School District  551  12% 
Allied Systems Co.  258  6% 
WalMart Stores, Inc.  240  5% 
Target Corporation  133  3% 
Home Depot   125  3% 
Kohl’s  112  3% 
City of Sherwood  112  3% 
Treske Precision Machining, Inc.  104  2% 
Fettig Commercial Construction  95  2% 
Showplace Landscape Services   85  2% 
The Springs at Sherwood  75  2% 
     
Source: 2016 Business License data provided to the City 

 

 

CITY OF SHERWOOD 
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS TO DATE 

  2016   

Taxpayer  Assessed Value      
Rank 

% of Total City 
Taxable 

Assessed Value   
 

 

WalMart Stores, Inc   $23,215,190  1  1.3%       
Portland General Electric   21,080,000  2  1.1%       
MGP X Properties, LLC   20,112,220  3  1.1%       
Target Corporation   16,583,761  4  0.9%       
BIR Sunfield, LLC   16,699,870  5  0.8%       
Creekview Crossing SPE, LLC   13,985,810  6  0.7%       
Allied Systems Company  12,048,930  7  0.7%       
Juniper Ridge Investments   11,231,700  8  0.6%       
Home Depot USA, Inc.  10,146,597  9  0.6%       
Comcast Corp                  9,833,100        10            0.6%       
             

             

                                                  $154,937,178         9.0%       

             
Source: Washington County Assessor’s records  
(FY 2007 Numbers Not Available) 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 15 of 107 353



Reader's Guide                         Maps 
 

14 

Sherwood, Oregon and the South Metro Region 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 16 of 107 354



Reader's Guide            Mission and Value Statement 
 

15 

 

Mission Statement 
 

The City of Sherwood will provide services and infrastructure to support the 
highest quality of life for our residents, businesses and visitors in a fiscally 

responsible manner. 

 

Values 
 

The City of Sherwood Values and Promotes: 

 

Quality Services 

Fiscal Responsibility 

Citizen Participation 

Community Pride 

Community Partnerships 

Community Livability 

 

   

 

 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 17 of 107 355



Reader's Guide                  Council Goals 
 

16 

Goals 

 

Public Safety 

“The City of Sherwood will provide for the safety and security of the community 

and its citizens.” 

 

Infrastructure 

“The City of Sherwood will provide and maintain infrastructure for its citizens to 

live, work and play.” 

 

Livability 

“The City of Sherwood will provide opportunity for responsible community 

development and growth.” 

 

Resident Well Being 

“The City of Sherwood will facilitate the provision of services to encourage a 

balanced quality of life for its citizens.” 

 

Economic Development 

“The City of Sherwood will promote responsible economic development which 

benefits the community.” 

 

 

 

 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 18 of 107 356



Reader's Guide                       Organizational Chart 
 

17 

 

 

 

A comprehensive list of positions is included in the Appendix. 

 

Sherwood Citizens

19,080

City Manager

Joe Gall

Mayor and City Council

Krisanna Clark, Mayor

Jennifer Harris

Renee Brouse

Linda Henderson

Dan King

Jennifer Kuiper

Sally Robinson

Administration 

and Support

Brad Crawford

IT

Sherwood Broadband

Interim

Finance Director

Finance

Municipal Court

Community Services

Kristen Switzer

Library

Senior Center

Events and Volunteer

Recreation and Sports

Fieldhouse

Center for the Arts

Police

Jeff Groth

Police Services

Emergency 

Management

Public Works

Craig Sheldon

Utilities

Streets

Park

Maintenance

Facilities

Fleet and Equipment

Executive 

Assistant

Tina Ouellette

Assistant City Manager

Tom Pessemier

Human Resources

Economic Development

Urban Renewal Agency

Community 
Development

Julia Hajduk

Building

Planning

Engineering

Municipal Court Judge

Jack Morris
Boards, Commissions, and 

Committees

City Attorney

Josh Soper
City Recorder

Sylvia Murphy

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 19 of 107 357



Reader's Guide                                      Budget Process 
 

18 

Budget Process 
 
The  annual  budget  is  one  of  the  most 

important  and  informative  documents  City 

officials will  use.  In  simple  terms,  the  City’s 

budget  is a  financial plan  for one  fiscal year. 

The  budget  shows  the  estimated  costs  of 

expenditures  (items  or  services  the  City 

wishes   to   purchase   in   the   coming   fiscal 

year)  and  other  budget  requirements  that 

must  be  planned  for,  but won’t  actually  be 

spent. It also shows the resources that will be 

available to pay for those expenditures. 
 

The  budget  authorizes  the  City  to  spend 

money  and  limits  how much money  can  be 

spent.  It  also  justifies  the  levy  of  property 

taxes.  In  order  to  levy  taxes  through  the 

county assessor, cities must prepare a budget 

following Oregon local budget law. 
 

The City’s fiscal year begins July 1 and ends 

June 30. 
 

Phase   1:   Establish   Priorities   and 

Goals for the Next Fiscal Year 
 
The  strategic  planning  process  begins  anew 

each  year  as  the  City  Manager  and  Senior 

Management  Team  collaborate  to  identify 

needs and assumptions for the short and long 

term and update objectives. 
 

Work  on  the  annual  budget  begins  in 

December, when  forecasts  for  revenues and 

expenditures are updated. 
 

In  January  the  City  Council  has  planning 

meetings  to  decide  Council  goals,  priorities, 

and policies. 

Phase  2:  Prepare  Proposed  Budget 

for Budget Committee 
 

Below is an outline of the steps required by 

the  Oregon  Department  of  Revenue  for 

budget preparation and adoption. 
 

Appoint Budget Officer: 

Every local government is required to have a 

Budget  Officer,  either  appointed  by  the 

governing body or designated in its charter. 
 

Prepare a Proposed Budget: 

The  Budget  Officer  is  responsible  for  the 

preparing  of  the  proposed  budget 

presentation to the Budget Committee. The 

Capital Improvement Plan is also updated for 

the next five years. 
 

Publish Public Notices: 

Upon  completion  of  the  budget  a “Notice 

of Budget Committee Meeting”  is published 

in  a newspaper and posted prominently on 

the City’s website. 
 

Budget Committee Meets: 

The  budget message  and  proposed budget 

document  is  presented  to  the  Budget 

Committee for review. 
 

Committee Approves the Budget: 

When the Budget Committee is satisfied that 

the proposed budget will meet the needs of 

the  citizens  of  Sherwood  they will  forward 

it  to  the City Council  for adoption. 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 20 of 107 358



Reader's Guide                                      Budget Process 
 

19 

 

 

Phase  3:  Adopt  Budget  and  Certify 

Property Taxes 
 
Publish Notice of Public Hearing: 

After  the  budget  is  approved,  a  budget 

hearing must  be  held.      The  Budget Officer 

must publish a “Notice of Budget Hearing” in a 

newspaper or by mail or hand delivery. 
 

Hold the Budget Hearing: 

The  budget  hearing  must  be  held  by  the 

governing body on  the date specified on the 

public  notice  and  must  allow  for  public 

testimony. 
 

Adopt  Budget,  Make  Appropriations,  and 

Levy Taxes: 

An  appropriation  transfer  decreases  an 

existing    appropriation  and    increases 

another by the same amount. Supplemental 

budgets    typically    create  new 

appropriations,  funded  by  increased 

revenues. Supplemental budgets are used for 

occurrences  or  conditions  which  were  not 

known at the time the budget was prepared. 

Directors  and  managers  may  amend  their 

budgets  for  individual  accounts  without 

Council approval so long as appropriations at 

the legal level of control are not changed. 
 

 
 

Budget Calendar 

The  governing body  adopts  the budget prior 

to  June  30th.  The  budget  and  tax  levy 

certification  is  then  filed  with  the  County 

Assessor. 
 

Phase    4:    Budget    Changes    After 

Adoption 
 
Oregon budget  law  requires all City  funds  to 

be  appropriated.  Appropriations,  the  legal 

authority to spend, are by division in all funds. 
 

Appropriations  may  be  changed  during  the 

fiscal  year,  within  the  limitations  imposed 

by  budget  law.  City  staff  monitors  actual 

events  and  recommends  changes  as needed. 

The City Council makes changes by resolution. 

Changes  are  categorized  as  appropriation 

transfers or supplemental budgets. 

Budget 
Preparation 

(Nov‐Jan) 
 

Budget 
Requests 

(Jan‐Feb) 
 
 

Proposed 
Budget 

(Mar‐Apr) 
 
 

Budget 
Committee 

(May) 
 
 

Adopted 
Budget 

(June) 

 

•Forecasts Updated 

•Assumptions Developed 

•Budget Calendar Prepared 
 
 
•Departments Prepare and 
Submit Budgets to the 
Budget Officer 
 
 
•Department Budget 
Meetings with City 
Manager and Budget 
Officer 

 
•Submit Proposed Budget 

•Committee Deliberates 

•Committee Approves 
Budget 
 
 
•Budget Hearing 

•Budget Adopted by City 
Council 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 21 of 107 359



Reader's Guide                               Basis of Budgeting 
 

20 

Basis of Budgeting 
 

All  of  the  funds  are  budgeted  using  the 

modified  accrual  basis  of  accounting  in 

accordance  with  budgetary  accounting 

practices.  In modified  accrual,  revenues are 

recognized when  they  become measurable 

and  available.  Revenues  are  considered  to 

be   available   when   they   are   collectible 

within  the  current  period  or  soon  enough 

thereafter  to  pay  liabilities  of  the  current 

period. For  this purpose,  the City  considers 

revenues    to    be    available    if    they    are 

collected within  60  days of  the  end  of  the 

current fiscal period. Expenditures generally 

are  recorded when a  liability  is  incurred, as 

under  accrual  accounting.  However,  long‐ 

term  compensated  absences  are  recorded 

only when payment is due. 
 

Basis of Auditing 
 
The       audit,       as       reported       in       the 

Comprehensive   Annual   Financial   Report 

(CAFR),  accounts  for  the  City’s  finances  on 

the  basis  of  generally  accepted  accounting 

principles  (GAAP).  GAAP  is  defined  as 

conventions,  rules,  and  procedures 

necessary  to  describe  accepted  accounting 

practice  at  a  particular  time.  The modified 

accrual basis of accounting, a GAAP approved 

method, is also used in the audit for all funds 

except  for  the Proprietary Fund  types.   The  

audit    uses    the    full‐accrual  method  of 

accounting  for  the  Proprietary  Funds.    The  

CAFR  shows  all  of  the  City’s funds on both 

a budgetary and GAAP basis for comparison. 
 

Budgetary Basis of Accounting 
 
There  is  no  appreciable  difference  in  the 

basis  of  accounting  used  for  financial 

statements   and   the   accounting   method 

used  for budgeting. The budgetary basis  of 

accounting  for  budgeting  purposes  is  also 

modified accrual. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The City of Sherwood uses a modified accrual basis of 

accounting for budgeting purposes. This means 

revenues are recognized when they become measurable 

and available. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 22 of 107 360



Reader's Guide                                   Fund Structure 
 

21 

Fund Structure and Description 
 
The City of Sherwood uses various funds to 

account for its revenue and expenditures. A 

fund  is  defined  as  a  fiscal  and  accounting 

entity with a self‐balancing set of accounts. 

Also, funds are categorized by fund type as 

defined  by  generally  accepted  accounting 

principles (GAAP) and Oregon Budget Law. 
 

The  revenues  in  each  fund may  be  spent 

only for the purpose specified by the fund. 
 

General 

General  Fund  –  Accounts  for  the  financial 

operations    of    the    City    that    are    not 

accounted  for  in  any  other  fund.  Principal 

sources  of  revenue  are  property  taxes, 

franchise  fees,  court  fines,  and  state  and 

county  shared  revenue.  Primary 

expenditures are  for public  safety, general 

government,  parks  and  recreation,  and 

library services. 
 

Special Revenue 

Street Operations Fund – Accounts  for  the 

repair  and  maintenance  of  City  streets. 

Principal   sources   of   revenue   are   street 

utility  fees,  gas  taxes  received  from 

Washington County, and vehicle taxes from 

the Oregon Department of Transportation. 
 

Debt Service 

Debt Service Fund – Accounts  for  the pay‐ 

ment  of  principal  and  interest  on  general 

obligation  bonds.  Resources  are  provided 

by property taxes. 

Capital Projects 

General Construction Fund – Accounts for 

the acquisition and construction of capital 

assets not related to the Enterprise Funds. 

This includes City buildings, parks and trails, 

sports fields, and recreational facilities. 
 

Street Capital Fund – Accounts for funds re‐ 

ceived  from  system development  charges 

and   are   restricted   for   construction   and 

major improvements of City streets. 
 

Enterprise 

Water  Fund  ‐  Accounts  for  the  operation 

and maintenance of water facilities and for 

major  expansions  of  the  water  system. 

Primary    sources  of    revenue    consist    of 

charges  for  use  of  the water  system  and 

SDC’s charged on new construction. 
 

Sanitary Fund – Accounts for the operation 

and maintenance of the sewer system and 

for major expansions of the sewer system. 

Primary  sources  of  revenue  consist  of 

charges  for  sewer  services,  and  SDC’s 

charged on new construction. 
 

Storm  Fund  ‐  Accounts  for  storm  drain 

services and for the expansion of the storm 

water system. Primary sources of  revenue 

consist of  charges  for  services,  and  SDC’s 

charged on new construction. 
 

Telecommunications Fund – Accounts for 

communication services provided to 

customers. Services within this utility are 

primarily sold and managed through third‐ 

party service providers.

 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 23 of 107 361



Reader's Guide                                   Fund Structure 
 

22 

Fund Structure, Appropriation Level, and Major/Non‐Major Fund Designation 
 

General Government
 
 
 

Appropriation Level 

General
Fund 
(Major)

General 
Construction 

(Major)

Debt 
Service 

(Non‐Major)

Street 
Operations 
(Major) 

Street
Capital
(Major)

Administration 
City Council 
City  Recorder 
City Manager 
City Attorney 
Information Technology  
Human Resources 
Finance/Court 

X         

Community Development 
Planning 
Building 
Engineering 

X         

Police Services  X         

Community Services 
Library 
Events & Volunteers 
Fieldhouse/Sports 
Recreation Center for the 
Arts 

X         

Public Works 
Facilities 
Fleet & Equipment 
Parks Maintenance 

X         

General Construction    X      

Debt Service      X    

Street Operations        X   

Street Capital          X
Debt Service  X  X X X  X

Transfers Out  X  X X X  X
Contingency/Reserve  X  X X X  X

Enterprise
 

Appropriation Level 
Water 
(Major)

Sanitary 
(Major)

Storm 
(Major)

Telecommunication
s

Operations  X  X X  

Capital  X  X X  

Telecommunications       X 
Debt Service  X  X X X 
Transfers Out  X  X X X 
Contingency/Reserve  X  X X X 
All   funds   are   appropriated  at   the  division   level,  with  debt   service,   transfers  out,  
and contingency/reserves being appropriated separately from the individual divisions. 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 24 of 107 362



Revenue & Expenditures            Revenue Summary by Source 

23 
 

City‐Wide Revenue Summary by Source 

Summary of Resources by Source 

 
 

Detail of Transfers between funds: 

Transfer From:

Fund

General 

Construction General Fund

1 Street Capital Fund 165,371              ‐                    

2 Water Fund ‐                     32,259              

2 Sanitary Fund ‐                     19,831              

2 Storm Fund ‐                     35,597              

2 Street Operations Fund ‐                     72,597              

3 Storm Operations Fund ‐                     ‐                    

Total 165,371$            160,284$          

Purpose:

1

2 Transfer to the Fleet dept for fuel and equipment replacement

3 Transfer operational revenues for capital use

Transfer To:

Transfer for Cedar Creek Trail Construction

 

Adopted Approved

Actual Actual Budget Budget

2013‐14 2014‐15 2015‐16 2016‐17

Utility Fees 7,614,312$    8,275,244$    7,648,238$    8,714,774$   

Taxes 5,479,058      5,680,787      6,208,282      6,167,807     

Infrastructure Fees 3,772,275      732,522         4,355,175      1,635,409     

Franchise Fees 1,592,483      1,544,203      1,851,200      1,938,000     

State Shared Revenue 1,512,951      1,582,817      1,571,200      1,588,050     

Intergovernmental 3,061,760      1,287,769      1,494,716      1,627,024     

Fines and Forfeitures 1,029,052      1,047,358      1,100,000      1,091,778     

Charges for services 1,142,660      789,708         875,733         1,021,241     

Interest and Other Revenue 399,746         362,500         361,514         398,887        

Transfers In 106,239         163,299         877,870         725,655        

Sale of Fixed Assets ‐                     22,436           ‐                     ‐                    

Inter fund Loan Payments 147,431         148,359         179,874         ‐                    

Total Current Resources 25,857,969$  21,637,002$  26,523,802$  24,908,625$ 

Beginning fund balance  18,983,499    24,105,236    21,522,829    22,003,809   

Total Resources 44,841,468$  45,742,238$  48,046,631$  46,912,434$ 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 25 of 107 363



Revenue & Expenditures        Where the Money Comes From 

24 
 

 

 
 

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

$8,000,000

$9,000,000

2015‐16 Budget 2016‐17 Budget

35% 25% 8% 7% 7% 6% 4% 4% 3%

All Revenue for all Funds as a Percent

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 26 of 107 364



Revenue & Expenditures                Overview of Major Revenue Sources 

25 

 

Beginning and Ending Fund Balance 

Beginning  fund  balance  is  equal  to  the  prior 

year’s ending fund balance.  

Ending  fund balance  is the difference between 

total  estimated  sources  and  total  estimated 

uses. Ending fund balance  is budgeted  in three 

categories: 

1. Operating Contingency is budgeted at 5% of 

operational revenue in the operating funds. 

Contingency  funds  can  be  spent  once 

authorized  by  a  supplemental  budget  or 

transfer appropriation. 

2. Un‐appropriated  ending  fund  balance  can 

only be  spent  in  an emergency  created by 

civil disturbance or natural disaster. 

3. Reserved  for  future years are  total  sources 

less  total  expenses,  contingency,  and  un‐

appropriated  ending  balance. Reserved  for 

future  years  funds  can  only  be  spent  if 

authorized by a supplemental budget. 

Utility Fees 

The  City  charges  utility  fees  for  the  water, 

sanitary, storm, and street systems. The fees are 

charged  to  customers  based  on  usage  of  the 

systems. The rates collected  for each  fund can 

only be used  to  support  that  individual  fund’s 

operational and capital needs. Annual  revenue 

projections  are  based  on  historical  average 

increases, while taking into account any planned 

rate increases. 

 

 

 

 

Property taxes 

There are  three  types of property  tax  levies  in 

Oregon. The permanent rate levy funds general 

City operations. The debt service levy is used for 

principal  and  interest  payments  on  general 

obligation bonds approved by the voters. Local 

option  levies  are  voter‐approved,  time‐limited 

levies for specified purposes. 

The  Washington  County  Department  of 

Assessment and Taxation determines assessed 

values  and  collects  taxes. Property  is  assessed 

January  1  for  the  fiscal  year  beginning  July  1.  

Taxes  are  due  beginning  November  15,  and 

discounts  are  allowed  for  taxes paid  in  full by 

November 15. 

Assessed Value 

Each  local  government’s  tax  rate  was 

determined by  the  state  in 1997.    Sherwood’s 

permanent  rate  is  $3.2975  per  $1,000  of 

assessed  value.      No  action  of  the  City  can 

increase the permanent tax rate. 

Ballot Measure 50, implemented in the 1997‐98 

tax year,  limits assessed value  to  the  lower of 

Maximum Assessed Value (MAV) or Real Market 

Value  (RMV).    Maximum  Assessed  Value 

increases by 3% annually.   

There are exceptions to the 3% annual increase.  

Maximum Assessed Value may increase by more 

than 3% if: 

 There is new construction or improvements 

 The property is partitioned or subdivided 

 Rezoning  occurs  and  the  property  is  used 

consistent with rezoning 

 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 27 of 107 365



Revenue & Expenditures                Overview of Major Revenue Sources 

26 

 

Limits and Compression 

The  total  tax  on  a  given  piece  of  property  is 

limited as follows: 

 General Govt: $10 per $1,000 of RMV 

 Schools: $5 per $1,000 of RMV 

 Unlimited debt service:  levies to pay bonds 

for  capital  construction  projects  are  not 

subject to limitation 

If the total tax bill exceeds the  limits, taxes are 

reduced in a process called compression. 

 

Effect of the Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency 

The  Urban  Renewal  District  (URD)  is  a 

geographic  area within  the  City  of  Sherwood, 

defined in the Urban Renewal Plan.  The purpose 

of the district is to eliminate blight and create an 

environment  in which  the  private  sector may 

develop  uses  consistent with  the  goals  of  the 

Urban  Renewal  Plan.    The  District  borrows 

money  to  fund  infrastructure  and  other 

improvements,  receives  property  taxes 

calculated on the increased assessed values, and 

uses  the  taxes  to  pay  debt  service  on  the 

borrowings. 

The Urban Renewal Agency began operations in 

2001‐02.  The assessed value in the district was 

determined at that date and became the frozen 

base.    In  subsequent  years,  the  incremental 

assessed  value  is  the  difference  between  the 

assessed  value  in  the  district  and  the  frozen 

base.  Each year, the URA receives property tax 

attributable to the  incremental assessed value; 

the  City’s  general  fund  receives  property  tax 

attributable to the City’s assessed value less the 

URA incremental value. 

 

 

Property  tax  for  the  URA  is  a  portion  of  the 

permanent  rate  levy  for  the  City  and  each 

overlapping  tax  district,  not  an  addition  to  it.  

The amount of tax for the URA is determined by 

the  incremental  assessed  value  in  the  Urban 

Renewal  District,  but  the  tax  is  collected  by 

dividing  the  City’s  (and  each  taxing  entity’s) 

permanent  rate  levy.    Thus,  tax  for  the  URA 

appears on each  tax bill  in Sherwood, not  just 

those in the URD.  Absent the URA, the tax would 

go  to  the City and other  taxing districts  ‐‐ but 

without  urban  renewal  efforts  and 

expenditures,  the  assessed  values  presumably 

would not have increased. 

The URD will cease to exist after it has incurred 

and repaid the maximum indebtedness specified 

in the plan; $ 45,133,469. 

 

$1,518
$1,546

$1,618
$1,685

$1,780

$1,000

$1,500

$2,000

Total Tax Assessed Values in Sherwood 
(shown in $millions)

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 28 of 107 366



Revenue & Expenditures                Overview of Major Revenue Sources 

27 

 

 

Local Governments include: 

  City of Sherwood  

Washington County 

Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency 

  Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue 

  Metro 

Port of Portland 

School Districts include: 

  Sherwood School District 

  Portland Community College 

  ESD – NW Regional 

 

 
Property taxes represent approximately 46% of General Fund revenue. 

 

Unlimited 
Debt Service

$1,385 
25%

Local 
Government

$2,619 
48%

School 
Districts
$1,450 
27%

Average Annual Property Tax on a 
$300,000 Home in Sherwood

Unlimited debt service
25%

School Dist
25%

City of Sherwood
17%

Washington Cnty
14% Sherwood URA

5%

TVFR
10%

Other
3%

Property Tax Allocation

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

2013‐14 Actual 2014‐15 Actual 2015‐16 Budget 2016‐17 Budget

Property Tax Revenue

General Fund Debt Service Fund Urban Renewal Agency

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 29 of 107 367



Revenue & Expenditures         Overview of Major Revenue Sources 

28 

Infrastructure Development Fees 

These are fees for private development plan 

review  and  inspection  and  system 

development  charges  (SDC’s)  on  new 

construction. SDC’s are restricted for Capital 

Improvement Projects that support capacity 

for  growth.  Development  fee  revenue  is 

projected  annually  based  on  the  known 

development activity, as well as projections 

of projects that are likely to be submitted. 

Franchise Fees/Privilege Taxes 

Fees  are  collected  from  utilities  as 

compensation for use of the City’s rights of 

way.    These  fees  are  based  on  utility 

revenue,  so  they  generally  increase  with 

population growth. Franchise fee revenue is 

estimated based on prior year actuals plus 

an inflationary increase. 

 

Fines and Forfeitures 

These  fines  are  for  traffic  infractions, 

municipal code violations, and  library fines. 

Revenue  estimates  are  based  on  the  prior 

year actuals. 

Intergovernmental Revenue 

These  include  fees  and  taxes  that  are 

collected by other government agencies and 

passed  through  to  the City  as well  as  fees 

collected  from  other  governments  for 

services the City provides to them. 

 State  shared  revenue,  liquor  and 

cigarette  tax and vehicle  fees Revenue 

estimates are provided by the State 

 County support to the library as part of 

the  Washington  County  Cooperative 

Library  Service  Revenue  estimates  are 

provided by the County 

 County distribution of gas tax 

 Sherwood  School  District  for  shared 

services Revenue based on IGA 

 Clean Water Services for shared services 

Revenue based on IGA 

 Federal, State, and Local grants 

Charges for services 

 Building,  Planning,  and  Engineering 

permits, revenue estimates are based on 

projected development activity 

 Recreation  fees,  revenue  estimates  are 

based  on  the  number  of  registered 

leagues 

 Advertising and sponsor fees 

 Business  and  liquor  licenses,  revenue 

estimates are based on prior year actuals 

plus an inflationary increase 

Transfers and Other Revenue 

 Transfers in from other funds 

 Interest earned on bank accounts 

 Sale of fixed assets 

 Proceeds from the issuance of debt 

$0

$500

$1,000

$1,500

$2,000

Franchise Fees/Privilege Taxes
(shown in $1,000's)

Telephone Natural gas Cable TV

Waste disposal Electricity City utility

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 30 of 107 368



Revenue & Expenditures        Expense Summary by Category 

29 

City‐Wide Expenses by Category 

 

Summary of Expenditures by Category 

 
 

 

City‐wide operating costs are budgeted to decrease 3.0% in FY2016‐17. Population increased by 

385 people resulting in a decrease in cost per capita for our citizens. 

 
 
 

Adopted Approved

Actual Actual Budget Budget

2013‐14 2014‐15 2015‐16 2016‐17

Personal Services 9,014,929      9,322,134      10,848,261    10,992,657   

Materials and Services 6,466,012      7,233,883      9,433,801      8,553,580     

Capital Outlay 1,621,181      3,837,350      4,076,281      2,885,657     

Debt Service 3,068,987      3,070,174      3,103,911      2,912,547     

Transfers  Out 286,225         163,299         877,870         725,655        

Total Current Expenses 20,457,332$  23,626,839$  28,340,124$  26,070,096$ 

Ending fund balance  24,384,136    22,115,399    19,706,507    20,842,338   

Total Uses 44,841,468$  45,742,238$  48,046,631$  46,912,434$ 

$997 $1,088
$1,206 $1,146

$0

$300

$600

$900

$1,200

$1,500

$1,800

2013-14 Actual 2014-15 Actual 2015-16 Budget 2016-17 Budget

Operating Expenditures per Capita

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 31 of 107 369



Revenue & Expenditures             Where the Money Goes 

30 

 

 
 

 

 

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

All Expenses for all Funds

2015‐16 Budget 2016‐17 Budget

Personal services
41%

Materials & services
33%

Capital outlay
11%

Debt service
11%

All Expenses for all Funds as a Percent

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 32 of 107 370



Revenue & Expenditures     Overview of Major Categories of Expense 

31 

Personal Services 

Full‐Time Equivalent (FTE) 

The  following  compares  City  staffing  to 

population growth. 

 

Positions added in this budget are below: 

 1 Telecom Senior Network Engineer 

 .5 Youth Services Librarian 

 .2 Librarian Assistant II 
 

 Wages 
The budget includes a 0.7% cost of living 

increase as of July 1 for all employees.     

Benefits 

The major benefits are health insurance and 

PERS.  Employee  insurance  costs  are 

budgeted to increase an average of 5.7% in 

2016‐17. 

Overall benefit costs continue to increase; 

the average cost of benefits per employee 

follows: 

 

The most  recently  adopted  PERS  rates  for 

the City of Sherwood and the prior two fiscal 

years are: 

FY14‐15  FY15‐16 FY16‐17

Tier 1 & 2  16.01  17.15 17.15

OPSRP  10.81  10.81 10.81

OPSRP Police  13.54  14.92 14.92

 

Materials and Services 

Materials and services include costs for: 

 Utilities 

 Training 

 Professional services 

 Insurance 

 Software maintenance 

 Uniforms 

 Office supplies 

 Book stock 

The  change  in materials  and  services  from 

FY15 to FY16 are mainly due to work related 

to  the  new  Parks,  Facilities,  and 

Fleet/Equipment  Replacement  plans. 

Materials  and  services  costs  are  relatively 

consistent from FY16 to FY17. 

5.21 
5.42 

5.82 
6.03 

5.00

5.50

6.00

6.50

2013‐14
Actual

2014‐15
Actual

2015‐16
Budget

2016‐17
Budget

FTEs per 1,000 Citizens

$20,000

$25,000

$30,000

2013‐14
Actual

2014‐15
Actual

2015‐16
Budget

2016‐17
Budget

Annual Benefit Costs per FTE

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 33 of 107 371



Revenue & Expenditures     Overview of Major Categories of Expense 

32 

 

Capital Outlay 

Capital outlay has two components: Operations and capital projects. This section will cover the 

capital outlay for operational purposes only.  The capital project plan can be found on page 35. 

Capital outlays  for operations are  single purchases  that are budgeted within  the operational 

budgets of the City whose value exceeds $5,000. The significant FY16 capital outlay expenditures 

are: 

 Program  Purchase Cost 

Fleet  Replace Two Police Cars 81,000

Fleet  Replace Two Vehicles (Storm, Streets, Water) 48,000

Fleet  Replace Parks/Streets Equipment 36,800

IT  Storage for Security Video 35,000

Finance  Finish Implementation of New Finance System 56,500

Water Operations  Fire Flow @ Senior Center 36,000

Water Operations  Routine Water Line Replacement 50,000

Water Operations  Upgrade to SCADA System 75,000

Storm Operations  Pipeline Repairs on Paving Projects 284,000

Storm Operations  Culvert/Ditch Lines Catch Basins 46,000

Telecom  Fiber Construction 50,000

   

Total Capital Outlay  $798,300

 

 ‐

 500

 1,000

 1,500

 2,000

 2,500

 3,000

 3,500

General Water Sanitary Storm Street Telecom

Th
o
u
sa
n
d
s

Materials and Services

2014‐15 Actual 2015‐16 Budget 2016‐17 Budget

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 34 of 107 372



Debt Service & CIP                                          Overview of Long Term Debt 

33 
 

Description of Long‐Term Debt 

The City’s debt is separated into two 

categories: governmental activities and 

enterprise activities. 

Governmental activities include the 

following: 

 General Obligation Bonds for the 

construction of the Recreational 

Center and Police Station. 

 Long‐term loan for the expansion of 

the Recreational Center and Snyder 

Park. 

 Four long term loans on behalf of 

the Sherwood URA for capital 

projects 

There are intergovernmental agreements 

for the URA to make the debt service 

payments on the four URA loans used to 

construct Capital assets.

 

Enterprise activities include three loans for 

the water project to provide a long‐term 

water solution for the City. 

Sherwood’s Aa3 rating for General 

Obligation Debt was affirmed by Moody’s in 

September 2012 in anticipation of a new 

bond issue. At the same time Moody’s 

affirmed the City’s Full Faith and Credit 

obligations at A1. No “outlook" 

General Obligation Bond Limitations 

 

Description of Long‐Term Debt 

 

Total assessed value on January 1, 2016: 1,683,945,099$ 

Debt limitation: 3% of total assessed value 50,518,353        

Debt outstanding at June 30, 2016:

General obligation bonds outstanding 1,835,000          

Less amount available for repayment of GO bonds (1,708)                

Net debt outstanding that is subject to limitation 1,833,292          

Amount of GO bonds that could be issued 48,685,061$      

Original Outstanding Principal Pmt

Amount June 30, 2016 FY 2016/17

Governmental activities

General Obligation Bonds

2004 A&B Refunding (interest 1‐3.8%) $6,045,000  600,000$      600,000$        

2011 Police Refunding (interest 2‐4.04%)   2,305,000  1,235,000    230,000          

Long‐term Loans: 

2001 Teen Ctr. Expansion (interest 2.76‐5.4%)   1,970,000  180,000       180,000          

Long‐term Loans URA:

2006 URA Streets #2 (3.66% ‐4.45%)   6,400,000  4,170,133    307,325          

2010 URA Cannery & Streets (interest 4.65%)   7,065,000  5,580,000    285,000          

2010 URA Cannery Projects (interest 0.55‐2.0%)   5,898,888  5,898,888    1,133,521       

2012 Civic bldg & Street Refunding (interest 3.0%)   5,245,000  3,585,000    455,000          

Enterprise activities

Long‐term Obligations for Enterprise activities

2008 SDW Water Reservoir (interest 3.55%)   6,000,000  4,615,665    260,223          

2009 SDW Water Pipeline (interest 3.83%)   6,000,000  4,887,905    247,663          

2011 Water Projects (interest 2‐5%) 14,165,000  12,575,000  415,000          

Total 43,327,591$  4,113,732$     

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 35 of 107 373



34

 
 

  Debt Service & CIP                                          Current Year Capital Projects 
                                                                            

 

 

Long‐Term Debt Principal and Interest Schedule 

 
 

 

 

2004 A&B 

Refunding

2011 Police 

Facility 

Refunding 

2008 SDW Water 

Reservoir

2009 SDW 

Water 

Pipeline

2011 Bonds for 

Water

Original Amount  $ 6,045,000   $  2,305,000  $       1,461,740  $    508,260  $          6,000,000   $ 6,000,000   $    14,165,000 
Balance at 6/30/16        600,000       1,235,000              133,200          46,800              4,615,665      4,887,905         12,575,000 

Payment Source Rent of Building  Parks SDC's  Water Rates Water Rates Water Rates 

Paying Fund General 

 General 

Construction  Water Water Water 

Year Ending June 30

2017 622,500       268,800         136,796              47,983         424,079                434,870       977,519           

2018 ‐                   271,750         ‐                          ‐                   424,079                434,870       980,069           
2019 ‐                   269,475         ‐                          ‐                   424,079                434,870       977,169           

2020 ‐                   270,700         ‐                          ‐                   424,079                434,870       979,569           
2021 ‐                   270,300         ‐                          ‐                   424,079                434,870       981,169           

2022‐2026 ‐                   ‐                     ‐                          ‐                   2,120,395             2,174,350    4,907,294        

2027‐2031 ‐                   ‐                     ‐                          ‐                   1,696,316             2,165,326    4,896,494        
2032‐2036 ‐                   ‐                     ‐                          ‐                   ‐                            ‐                   4,897,250        

622,500$     1,351,025$    136,796$            47,983$       5,937,106$           6,514,026$         19,596,532 

 Debt Service 

General Obligation Bonds

2001 YMCA

 Property taxes 

City Loans

City Loans for Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency Projects

2006 

Downtown 

Streets

2010 Streets & 

Cannery 2010 Cannery

2012 City 

Hall/Street 

Refinancing

Total Debt on 

behalf of URA

Total Debt to 

Outside Parties

Original Amount  $  6,400,000   $     7,065,000  $      5,898,888  $  5,245,000  $    24,608,888   $    61,093,888 
Balance at 6/30/16      4,170,133          5,580,000          5,898,888      3,585,000        19,234,021         43,327,591 

Payment Source

Paying Fund

Year Ending June 30

2017 483,419         551,580 1,251,499 552,356         2,838,854           5,751,401 
2018 483,220         552,045 1,251,498 553,481         2,840,244           4,951,012 

2019 482,619         551,745 1,251,499 554,156         2,840,019           4,945,612 

2020 481,619         555,680 1,251,498 549,456         2,838,253           4,947,471 
2021 484,863         553,595 1,251,499 554,306         2,844,263           4,954,681 

2022‐2026 2,417,626      2,764,581         ‐                        1,208,403      6,390,610         15,592,649 
2027‐2031 484,156         2,215,523         ‐                        ‐                     2,699,679         11,457,815 

2032‐2036 ‐                     ‐                        ‐                        ‐                     ‐                                 4,897,250 

5,317,522$    7,744,749$       6,257,493$       3,972,158$    23,291,922$     57,497,890$     

Tax Increment

URA Operations

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 36 of 107 374



35

 
 

  Debt Service & CIP                                          Current Year Capital Projects 
                                                                            

 

 

Capital Improvement Plan 

A  portion  of  the  total  City  budget  is  for  capital  projects  for  building  or  improving  the  City 
infrastructure  to  handle  growth.    The  projects  and  their  total  costs  are  detailed  below.  
Expenditures  for  capital  projects  may  vary  dramatically  between  years,  depending  on  the 
particular projects in process. 
   

 

Transportation  Estimated Cost 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21

Langer Farms Parkway pedestrian crossing (construction) 135,500            89,737       -             -             -              -              

Oregon St. sidewalk infill 225,000            -             225,000      -             -              -              

Meinecke Road/Hwy 99W intersection improvements 5,000                5,000         -             -             -              -              

Edy Road/Borchers Road intersection (pre-design) 50,000              50,000       -             -             -              -              

Edy Road/Borchers Road intersection (construction) 2,000,000         -             -             -             500,000       1,500,000     

Oregon St. improvements (pre-design) 50,000              50,000       -             -             -              -              

Oregon St. improvements (construction) 6,155,000         -             -             500,000      5,655,000     -              

Sunset Boulevard/Pine St. intersection improvements 6,000                6,000         -             -             -              -              

City Transportation SDC and Rate Study 150,000            5,609         -             -             -              -              

Demolition of derelict house on City property 15,000              15,000       

Oregon St/Tonquin Rd intermediate improvements 42,000              42,000       -             -             -              -              

Oregon St @ Tonquin & Murdock improvements 2,624,000         -             500,000      -             2,124,000     -              

11,457,500$      263,346$    725,000$    500,000$    8,279,000$   1,500,000$   

Storm  Estimated Cost 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21

Columbia Street Water Quality Facility Phase II Const. 550,000            228,963      -             -             -              -              

Storm System Master Plan update 160,017            6,000         -             -             -              -              

Oregon St Regional Stormwater Facility (pre-design) 35,000              35,000       -             -             -              -              

2nd & Park St. Stormwater Facility rehab (design) 35,000              35,000       -             -             -              -              

Gleneagle Drive Storm Water Facility 120,000            -             120,000      -             -              -              

Gleneagle Village Storm Water Facility 120,000            -             120,000      -             -              -              

Glencoe Storm Water Facility 500,000            -             -             100,000      -              -              

Edy Road Storm Water Facility 285,000            -             -             -             285,000       -              

Saint Charles (North) Storm Water Facility 85,000              -             -             -             85,000         -              

Saint Charles (south) Storm Water Facility 95,000              -             -             -             95,000         -              

Murdock Road (South) Storm Water Facility 240,000            -             -             -             -              240,000       

West Division Storm Water Facility 150,000            -             -             -             -              150,000       

2,375,017$        304,963$    240,000$    100,000$    465,000$      390,000$      

Sanitary  Estimated Cost 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21

Sunset Blvd & Pine St. sewer extension 252,260            239,260      -             -             -              -              

Sanitary Sewer Master Plan update and SDC rate study 185,712            14,130       -             -             -              -              

Old Town mid-block sewer point repair 20,000              20,000       -             -             -              -              

Old Town laterals 40,000              -             -             -             -              40,000         

Washington Street sewer rehabilitation 52,750              -             -             52,750       -              -              

Gleneagle Drive sanitary sewer rehabilitation 49,850              -             49,850       -             -              -              

SW Schaumburg Dr/Division sanitary sewer rehabilitation 388,298            -             -             -             388,298       -              

Rock Creek Trunk Capacity upgrade Phase 1 and 2 1,200,000         -             -             -             -              1,200,000     

2,188,870$        273,390$    49,850$      52,750$      388,298$      1,240,000$   

Water  Estimated Cost 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21

Brookman expansion - SW Sherwood to Hwy 99 68,000              -             68,000       -             -              -              

WTP Master Plan with TVWD 70,000              15,000       

Update Resiliency plan 150,000            -             150,000      -             -              -              

Brookman expansion - Segment B 204,000            -             -             204,000      -              -              

Brookman expansion - Segment C 239,000            -             -             239,000      -              -              

TEA expansion-loop with Oregon St/Main - Segment A 154,000            -             -             154,000      -              -              

SW Sherwood PRV 150,000            -             -             150,000      -              -              

Upgrade water management and conservation plan 150,000            -             -             150,000      -              -              

TEA expansion-loop with Oregon St/Main - Segment B&C 702,000            -             -             -             702,000       -              

TEA expansion-loop with Oregon St/Main - Segment D-F 607,000            -             -             -             -              607,000       

2,494,000$        15,000$      218,000$    897,000$    702,000$      607,000$      

General Construction  Estimated Cost 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21

Cedar Creek Trail-Segment 8 & 9 design and construction 1,070,371         165,371      572,162      -             -              -              

Woodhaven Park construction 954,025            766,974      -             -             -              -              

Parks Master Plan and SDC Update 175,000            175,000      -             -             -              -              

Cedar Creek Trail - Segment 11 design and construction 2,738,000         -             -             500,000      -              -              

Cannery Square restroom installation 130,000            130,000      -             -             -              -              

Dog Park design - North of Hwy 99 12,000              12,000       -             -             -              -              

Skate Park design 12,000              12,000       -             -             -              -              

5,091,396$        1,261,345$ 572,162$    500,000$    -$             -$             

Total Annual Expenditures $     23,606,783 $2,118,044 $1,805,012 $2,049,750  $  9,834,298  $  3,737,000 

City of Sherwood Five Year Capital Improvement Plan (FY17 Through FY21) 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 37 of 107 375



36

Debt Service & CIP  Current Year Capital Projects
 

 

                                                                                                

Water Capital Projects 

The Water  Fund  collects  SDC’s  and  user  charges  for water  infrastructure expansion  and  capital 

construction. 
 

Water Treatment Plant Master Plan:  This  is a  joint project with other  jurisdictions to update the 

Wilsonville Water Treatment Plant Master Plan. This project  is being managed by Tualatin Valley 

Water District (TVWD) with input from partners and will identify long term needs of the treatment 

plant. No staffing needed. No reduction in maintenance costs. 
 

Sanitary Capital Projects 
 

The Sanitary Fund collects SDC’s for sanitary infrastructure expansion. 

 

Sunset Boulevard Sanitary Sewer Extension Project:    This project consists of extending existing 

City  sanitary  sewer mainline  to  provide  access  to  existing  development  properties which  are 

currently on sanitary septic tank systems. No additional staffing required. $110 every six (6) years 

to  TV  the  line  and  $100  every  four  (4)  years  to  clean  the  line. $100 every  two  (2)  years  for 

manhole inspections. 

 

Sherwood Sanitary Sewer SDC and Rate Study:  This  project  consists  of  using updated sanitary 

sewer system master plan to  perform  a  needs  analysis  in  reviewing and updating the sanitary 

sewer  system  SDC’s  and  Rates. No  additional  staffing  required.  This will  identify maintenance 

projects that will need to be completed in a 20 year timeframe. 

 

Old  Town mid‐block  sewer  point  repair:  This  project  consists  of  designing  and  constructing  a 

point  repair  to overcome an obstruction  that  impedes correct operation of  the  sanitary  sewer 

conveyance system. This obstruction creates a health and safety issue for the local residents and 

businesses who must rely on the system for sanitary waste disposal. 

 

Storm Capital Projects 
 

The Storm Fund  collects SDC’s  for  storm  infrastructure expansion and  reserves a portion of user 

charges for capital construction. 
 

Columbia  Street  Regional  Storm Water  Quality  Facility:  This  project  consists  of  constructing  a 

downstream  improvement  required  from  the  Phase  1  permitting  process.    Project  includes 

installation  of  an  improved  bore  pipe  undercrossing  of  a  Portland  and Western  Railroad  track 

right‐ of‐way.  This project will remove an Oregon Fish and Wildlife (ODFW) identified fish habitat 

stream restriction. No additional staffing needed.    Grate cleaning during winter storm events.  

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 38 of 107 376



37

Debt Service & CIP  Current Year Capital Projects
 

 

 

Cost will  depend on number  of  events per  year. $100  for  inspection  of  the  culvert  each  year. 

Future repair costs are unknown at this time. 

 

Stormwater Master  Plan:  This  project  consists  of  reviewing  updated  storm  water master  plan 

and  identifying projects needs list.   From the needs analysis, the existing storm water System  

Development Charges (SDC) and Rates will be reviewed and modified as needed. No additional 

staffing required. This will identify maintenance projects that will need to be completed in a 20‐

year timeframe. 

Oregon Street Regional Storm Water Quality Facility: This project consists of developing planning 

level  engineering  design  documents  for  identifying  feasibility,  costs,  and  systems  requirements.  

This  project  is  needed  to  initiate  full  project  design  and  construction  in  future  fiscal  years. No 

additional staffing needed.  Project is identified in the City’s storm water master plan (RC‐2). 

 

2nd &  Park  Street  Regional  Storm Water Quality  Facility  Rehabilitation:  This  project  consists  of 

conducting  design  analysis  and  providing  engineering  design  solution  to  existing  regional water 

quality  facility  which  is  not  meeting  operational  and  regulatory  requirements.    No  additional 

staffing needed.  Reconstruction of facility anticipated to be conducted in future fiscal year. 

 

General Construction Projects 
 
The  General  Construction  Fund  collects  system  development  charges  for  park  infrastructure 

expansion. 
 

Cedar  Creek  Trail  Segment  8:  This  project  consists  of  developing  construction  level  plans, 

specifications, and construction cost estimates.       Project  funding  from Regional Flexible Funds. 

Staffing needed to maintain new trail system. 

 
Woodhaven  Park  Phase  2  Construction:  This  project  consists  of  construction  of  the 

improvements developed from the Phase 2 design efforts for Woodhaven Park. Staffing could be 

needed depending on final design. 

 

Parks Master Plan Update: This project consists  of  updating  the  existing  Park master  plan  and  

creating  a  needs  list  of parks projects, which will be used to update the parks SDC’s and Rates. 

No additional staffing   needed   at   this   time.   This   will identify   projects   over   the   next   

several years. 

 
Cannery  Square  Restroom  Installation:    This  project  consists  of  design  and  construction  of 

restroom  facilities  at Cannery  Square.   Additional  cost  for maintenance will only happen  if  the 

restroom facilities are built. 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 39 of 107 377



38

Debt Service & CIP  Current Year Capital Projects
 

 

 

Dog Park Design:  This project consists of identifying property on the north side of Highway 99 and 

completing the design. Additional cost for maintenance will only happen if the park is built. These 

costs will include 300 hours of labor, additional cost for doggie bags, trash removal, and bark chips 

depending on the use. 

Skate Park Design:  This project consists of completing design of a skate park. Additional cost for 

maintenance will only happen if the park is built.  

 

Street Capital Projects 

The Street Capital Fund  relies on County  traffic  improvement  fees and City  system development 

charges. 

Langer Farms Parkway Pedestrian Crossing:  This project consists of developing engineering design 

plans  and  specification  for  use  in  constructing  a  Rectangular  Rapid  Flashing  Beacon  (RRFB) 

pedestrian crossing near the entrance drives of the Target site and Wal‐Mart site.  The project was 

not identified in the City’s TSP, but by City Council as a community health and safety need. 

Meinecke  Road/Highway  99W  Intersection  Improvements:  This  project  consists  of  intersection 

signal  phasing  changes.    Signal phasing changes  include  the eastbound and westbound  left‐turn 

phasing on Meinecke Road to Highway 99W, from permitted to permitted/protected. Additionally, 

the existing green  timing of northbound and  southbound  through movements on Highway 99W 

will remain unchanged. No ongoing maintenance costs are needed. 

Edy  Road/Borchers  Road  Right‐In/Right‐Out  and  Eastbound  Lanes:    This  project  consists  of 

conducting pre‐design engineering  to determine  feasibility, costs, potential  impacts, and private 

development coordination.   The project  is needed to  initiate full project design and construction 

efforts in future fiscal years. 

Oregon  Street  Improvements:  This  project  consists  of  conducting  pre‐design  engineering  to 

determine feasibility, costs, and potential impacts to private development.  The project is needed 

to initiate full project design and construction efforts in future fiscal years. 

Sunset Boulevard/Pine Street Intersection Improvements: This project consists of restriping Sunset 

Boulevard at the Pine Street intersection to add eastbound and westbound left turn lanes. 

Sherwood Transportation  SDC,  and Rate  Study Project:  From  the  TSP,  the  System Development 

Charges  (SDC)  and Rates will be reviewed and modified as needed. This will  identify maintenance 

projects  that will need to be completed in a 20‐year timeframe. 

Oregon  Street  and  Oregon  Street/Tonquin  Road  Project:    This  project  consists  of  performing 

preliminary design work to establish preferred  improvements and planning  level cost estimates 

for budgeting purposes. 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 40 of 107 378



Budget Detail                        City in Total 

39 
 

Actual Actual Budget Proposed Approved Adopted

2013‐14 2014‐15 2015‐16 2016‐17 2016‐17 2016‐17

(restated) RESOURCES

18,983,499$  24,105,236$  21,522,829$  Beginning fund balance  22,003,809$  22,003,809$ 

Revenue

5,479,058      5,680,787      6,208,282      Taxes 6,167,807      6,167,807     

1,592,483      1,544,203      1,851,200      Franchise Fees 1,938,000      1,938,000     

79,979           81,573           65,000           Licenses and permits 77,000           77,000          

4,574,712      2,870,586      3,065,916      Intergovernmental 3,215,074      3,215,074     

8,676,993      8,983,379      8,458,971      Charges for services 9,659,015      9,659,015     

3,772,275      732,522         4,355,175      Infrastructure development  1,635,409      1,635,409     

1,428,799      1,409,858      1,461,514      Fines, interest and other 1,490,665      1,490,665     

25,604,299    21,302,908    25,466,058    Total revenue 24,182,970    24,182,970   

Other sources

106,239         163,299         877,870         Transfers in 725,655         725,655        

147,431         148,359         179,874         Interfund loan payments ‐                     ‐                    

253,670         334,094         1,057,744      Total other sources 725,655         725,655        

44,841,468    45,742,238    48,046,631    Total resources 46,912,434    46,912,434   

REQUIREMENTS

Expenditures

Personal services

6,073,481      6,287,540      7,126,182      Salaries and wages 7,216,684      7,238,750     

595,970         632,929         757,254         Payroll taxes  726,862         728,784        

2,345,478      2,401,664      2,964,825      Benefits 3,017,760      3,025,123     

9,014,929      9,322,134      10,848,261    Total personal services 10,961,306    10,992,657   

Materials and services

2,545,309      2,931,709      3,762,941      Professional & technical  3,416,881      3,416,881     

1,674,015      1,247,426      2,443,984      Facility and equipment 2,367,955      2,367,955     

1,321,446      1,479,997      1,609,673      Other purchased services 1,714,671      1,714,671     

766,960         1,072,760      1,239,217      Supplies 716,425         716,425        

29,141           35,034           38,850           Community activities 28,612           38,612          

221,582         514,344         385,006         Minor equipment  354,840         354,840        

(92,442)          (47,385)          (45,870)          Other materials & services (55,804)          (55,804)         

6,466,012      7,233,883      9,433,801      Total materials & services 8,543,580      8,553,580     

Capital outlay

‐                     907,615         ‐                     Land ‐                     ‐                    

1,182,814      2,149,119      3,671,273      Infrastructure 2,728,357      2,653,357     

‐                     ‐                     ‐                     Buildings ‐                     ‐                    

223,923         324,604         ‐                     Other improvements ‐                     ‐                    

70,936           166,571         104,000         Vehicles 129,000         129,000        

143,508         289,441         301,008         Furniture and equipment 103,300         103,300        

1,621,181      3,837,350      4,076,281      Total capital outlay 2,960,657      2,885,657     

17,102,121    20,393,367    24,358,343    Total expenditures 22,465,543    22,431,894   

Debt service

1,908,052      1,965,774      2,059,703      Principal 1,932,886      1,932,886     

1,160,935      1,104,399      1,044,208      Interest 979,661         979,661        

3,068,987      3,070,174      3,103,911      Total debt service 2,912,547      2,912,547     

Other uses

286,225         163,299         877,870         Transfers out 725,655         725,655        

286,225         163,299         877,870         Total other uses 725,655         725,655        

24,384,136    22,115,399    ‐                     Ending Fund Balance ‐                     ‐                    

‐                     ‐                     998,777         Contingency 1,325,960      1,325,960     

‐                     ‐                     18,707,730    Reserved for Future Years 19,482,729    19,516,378   

44,841,468    45,742,238    48,046,631    Total requirements 46,912,434    46,912,434   

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 41 of 107 379



Budget Detail                       City by Fund 

40 
 

General Debt Street Street Approved

General Construction Service Operations Capital Water Sanitary Storm Telecom 2016‐17

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Budget

RESOURCES

Beginning fund balance 2,815,353      1,153,758       1,708      1,718,199    1,995,933  8,471,183    3,349,537  2,292,843  205,297   22,003,809      

Revenue

Taxes 5,276,507      ‐                  891,300  ‐               ‐             ‐               ‐             ‐             ‐           6,167,807        

Francise Fees 1,898,000      40,000            ‐          ‐               ‐             ‐               ‐             ‐             ‐           1,938,000        

Licenses and permits 77,000           ‐                  ‐          ‐               ‐             ‐               ‐             ‐             ‐           77,000             

Intergovernmental 1,797,656      81,418            ‐          1,138,000    158,000     ‐               40,000       ‐             ‐           3,215,074        

Charges for services 922,641         16,000            ‐          586,240       50,000       5,102,300    644,520     1,868,454  468,860   9,659,015        

Infrastructure development  219,825         347,464          ‐          500              496,785     453,697       53,134       64,004       ‐           1,635,409        

Fines, interest and other 1,382,390      6,000              1,750      10,325         13,000       46,000         19,000       11,000       1,200       1,490,665        

Total revenue 11,574,019    490,882          893,050  1,735,065    717,785     5,601,997    756,654     1,943,458  470,060   24,182,970      

Other sources

Transfers in 160,284         165,371          ‐          ‐               ‐             ‐               ‐             400,000     ‐           725,655           

Total other sources 160,284         165,371          ‐          ‐               ‐             ‐               ‐             400,000     ‐           725,655           

Total resources 14,549,656    1,810,011       894,758  3,453,264    2,713,718  14,073,180  4,106,191  4,636,301  675,357   46,912,434      

REQUIREMENTS

Expenditures

Personal services

Salaries and wages 5,960,331      38,701            ‐          246,517       52,434       407,471       183,104     272,621     77,571     7,238,750        

Payroll taxes  594,034         3,791              ‐          28,611         5,058         42,078         18,803       29,475       6,934       728,784           

Benefits 2,503,210      14,810            ‐          95,335         21,110       172,627       81,999       109,859     26,173     3,025,123        

Total personal services 9,057,575      57,302            ‐          370,463       78,602       622,176       283,906     411,955     110,678   10,992,657      

Materials and services

Professional & technical  1,030,542      187,000          ‐          202,500       5,609         1,512,300    127,555     336,375     15,000     3,416,881        

Facility and equipment 1,124,435      ‐                  ‐          1,148,970    15,000       44,000         1,500         5,000         29,050     2,367,955        

Other purchased services 958,032         38                   ‐          30,955         221            400,398       100,651     130,624     93,752     1,714,671        

Supplies 384,775         60,000            ‐          59,200         ‐             116,400       15,150       60,900       20,000     716,425           

Community activities 38,612           ‐                  ‐          ‐               ‐             ‐               ‐             ‐             ‐           38,612             

Minor equipment  202,540         90,000            ‐          14,550         ‐             9,750           10,250       12,750       15,000     354,840           

Other materials & services (1,047,479)     45,120            ‐          187,174       49,822       279,503       162,634     207,173     60,249     (55,804)           

Total materials & services 2,691,457      382,158          ‐          1,643,349    70,652       2,362,351    417,740     752,822     233,051   8,553,580        

Capital outlay

Infrastructure ‐                 1,092,345       ‐          25,000         461,789     206,000       259,260     558,963     50,000     2,653,357        

Vehicles 129,000         ‐                  ‐          ‐               ‐             ‐               ‐             ‐             ‐           129,000           

Furniture and equipment 93,300           ‐                  ‐          ‐               ‐             ‐               ‐             ‐             10,000     103,300           

Total capital outlay 222,300         1,092,345       ‐          25,000         461,789     206,000       259,260     558,963     60,000     2,885,657        

Total expenditures 11,971,332    1,531,805       ‐          2,038,812    611,043     3,190,527    960,906     1,723,740  403,729   22,431,894      

Debt service

Principal 133,200         46,800            830,000  ‐               ‐             922,886       ‐             ‐             ‐           1,932,886        

Interest 3,596             1,183              61,300    ‐               ‐             913,582       ‐             ‐             ‐           979,661           

Total debt service 136,796         47,983            891,300  ‐               ‐             1,836,468    ‐             ‐             ‐           2,912,547        

Other uses

Transfers out ‐                 ‐                  ‐          72,597         165,371     32,259         19,831       435,597     ‐           725,655           

Total other uses ‐                 ‐                  ‐          72,597         165,371     32,259         19,831       435,597     ‐           725,655           

Contingency 578,701         ‐                  ‐          86,753         ‐             424,525       32,526       179,952     23,503     1,325,960        

Reserved for Future Years 1,862,827      230,223          3,458      1,255,102    1,937,304  8,589,401    3,092,928  2,297,012  248,125   19,516,378      

Total requirements 14,549,656    1,810,011       894,758  3,453,264    2,713,718  14,073,180  4,106,191  4,636,301  675,357   46,912,434      

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 42 of 107 380



Budget Detail                      General Fund in Total 

41 
 

2013‐14 2014‐15 2015‐16 2016‐17 2016‐17 2016‐17

Actual Actual Budget Proposed Approved Adopted

(restated) RESOURCES

2,964,868$   3,285,398$   3,109,754$   Beginning fund balance 2,815,353$     2,815,353$    

Revenue

4,587,058     4,808,642     5,310,700     Taxes 5,276,507       5,276,507      

1,592,483     1,544,203     1,851,200     Franchise Fees 1,898,000       1,898,000      

79,979          81,573          65,000          Licenses and permits 77,000            77,000           

1,537,048     1,712,510     1,815,916     Intergovernmental 1,797,656       1,797,656      

1,024,657     652,763        789,933        Charges for services 922,641          922,641         

270,878        157,697        335,575        Infrastructure development  219,825          219,825         

1,259,076     1,292,763     1,368,614     Fines, interest and other 1,382,390       1,382,390      

10,351,180   10,250,152   11,536,938   Total revenue 11,574,019     11,574,019    

Other sources

‐                    ‐                    84,870          Transfers in 160,284          160,284         

‐                    19,936          ‐                    Sale of fixed assets ‐                     ‐                     

147,431        148,359        179,874        Interfund loan payments ‐                     ‐                     

147,431        168,295        264,744        Total other sources 160,284          160,284         

13,463,479   13,703,845   14,911,436   Total resources 14,549,656     14,549,656    

REQUIREMENTS

Expenditures

Personal services

5,028,685     5,280,692     5,863,281     Salaries and wages 5,938,265       5,960,331      

485,122        525,983        616,597        Payroll taxes  592,112          594,034         

1,911,961     1,991,683     2,447,255     Benefits 2,495,847       2,503,210      

7,425,767     7,798,357     8,927,133     Total personal services 9,026,224       9,057,575      

Materials and services

1,188,563     1,166,861     1,144,174     Professional & technical  1,030,542       1,030,542      

673,218        724,711        1,019,647     Facility and equipment 1,124,435       1,124,435      

684,545        762,380        896,882        Other purchased services 958,032          958,032         

252,729        320,098        339,067        Supplies 384,775          384,775         

29,141          35,034          38,850          Community activities 28,612            38,612           

168,306        336,561        312,306        Minor equipment  202,540          202,540         

(851,386)       (820,700)       (1,002,270)    Other materials & services (1,047,479)     (1,047,479)     

2,145,117     2,524,944     2,748,656     Total materials & services 2,681,457       2,691,457      

Capital outlay

15,192          200,387        25,000          Infrastructure ‐                     ‐                     

40,980          126,608        104,000        Vehicles 129,000          129,000         

74,706          136,451        135,500        Furniture and equipment 93,300            93,300           

130,878        463,446        264,500        Total capital outlay 222,300          222,300         

9,701,762     10,786,747   11,940,289   Total expenditures 11,929,981     11,971,332    

Debt service

115,010        122,430        126,140        Principal 133,200          133,200         

23,336          17,149          10,574          Interest 3,596              3,596             

138,346        139,579        136,714        Total debt service 136,796          136,796         

Other uses

70,026          ‐                    143,000        Transfers out ‐                     ‐                     

70,026          ‐                    143,000        Total other uses ‐                     ‐                     

3,553,345     2,777,517     ‐                    Ending Fund Balance ‐                     ‐                     

‐                    ‐                    533,049        Contingency 578,701          578,701         

‐                    ‐                    350,000        Reserved for Future Years ‐ Maint. 239,427          239,427         

‐                    ‐                    1,808,384     Reserved for Future Years 1,664,751       1,623,400      

13,463,479   13,703,843   14,911,436   Total requirements 14,549,656     14,549,656    

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 43 of 107 381



Budget Detail               General Fund by Division 

42 
 

 

General Fund 2016‐17 2016‐17 2016‐17

2013‐14 2014‐15 2015‐16 Resources Proposed Approved Adopted

Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget

(restated)

2,964,868    3,285,398    3,109,754    Beginning fund balance 2,815,353      2,815,353     

Revenue

4,587,058    4,808,642    5,310,700    Taxes 5,276,507      5,276,507     

1,592,483    1,544,203    1,851,200    Franchise Fees 1,898,000      1,898,000     

79,979         81,573         65,000         Licenses and permits 77,000           77,000          

1,537,048    1,712,510    1,815,916    Intergovernmental 1,797,656      1,797,656     

1,024,657    652,763       789,933       Charges for services 922,641         922,641        

270,878       157,697       335,575       Infrastructure development  219,825         219,825        

1,259,076    1,292,763    1,368,614    Fines, interest and other 1,382,390      1,382,390     

10,351,180  10,250,152  11,536,938  Total revenue 11,574,019    11,574,019   

Other sources

‐                   ‐                   84,870         Transfers in 160,284         160,284        

‐                   19,936         ‐                   Sale of fixed assets ‐                 ‐                

147,431       148,359       179,874       Interfund loan payments ‐                 ‐                

147,431       168,295       264,744       Total other sources 160,284         160,284        

13,463,479  13,703,845  14,911,436  Total resources 14,549,656    14,549,656   

Requirements

Administration Division

Personal services

1,133,222    1,141,201    1,366,214    Salaries and wages 1,343,095      1,343,095     

93,340         107,857       125,593       Payroll taxes  117,076         117,076        

409,194       437,926       597,485       Benefits 583,848         583,848        

1,635,755    1,686,983    2,089,292    Total personal services 2,044,019      2,044,019     

16.5             16.2             20.0             FTE 19.9               19.9              

Materials and services

537,436       475,362       465,000       Professional & technical  375,750         375,750        

251,898       219,242       81,800         Facility and equipment 85,800           85,800          

490,531       566,601       609,530       Other purchased services 643,853         643,853        

10,811         9,333           15,850         Supplies 28,550           28,550          

24,150         16,746         15,300         Community activities 10,300           20,300          

149,353       242,782       163,500       Minor equipment  141,000         141,000        

(862,307)      (751,199)      (832,602)      Other materials & services (831,563)        (831,563)       

601,872       778,866       518,378       Total materials & services 453,690         463,690        

Capital outlay

63,350         108,059       101,000       Furniture and equipment 56,500           56,500          

63,350         108,059       101,000       Total capital outlay 56,500           56,500          

2,300,977    2,573,909    2,708,670    Total Administration Expenditures 2,554,209      2,564,209     

Community Development

Personal services

650,442       834,492       819,392       Salaries and wages 888,610         882,300        

57,348         74,865         79,440         Payroll taxes  83,074           81,795          

260,586       311,585       312,063       Benefits 352,126         350,863        

968,376       1,220,942    1,210,895    Total personal services 1,323,810      1,314,958     

9.7               12.9             15.5             FTE 16.0               16.0              

Materials and services

187,424       224,859       279,242       Professional & technical  182,500         182,500        

‐                   16                ‐                   Facility and equipment 4,300             4,300            

66,617         55,879         67,817         Other purchased services 69,504           69,504          

3,205           4,895           6,070           Supplies 7,800             7,800            

10                80                50                Community activities 50                  50                 

‐                   199              17,500         Minor equipment  3,500             3,500            

(99,079)        (81,941)        (42,133)        Other materials & services (97,558)          (97,558)         

158,177       203,987       328,546       Total materials & services 170,096         170,096        

1,126,553    1,424,929    1,539,441    Total Community Dev. Expenditures 1,493,906      1,485,054     

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 44 of 107 382



Budget Detail               General Fund by Division 

43 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

General Fund 2016‐17 2016‐17 2016‐17

2013‐14 2014‐15 2015‐16 Requirements Continued Proposed Approved Adopted

Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget

Police Sevices

Personal services

1,951,114    1,924,474    2,052,509    Salaries and wages 2,025,129      2,053,505     

213,664       211,414       242,218       Payroll taxes  226,381         229,582        

786,560       765,715       897,001       Benefits 904,316         912,942        

2,951,338    2,901,602    3,191,728    Total personal services 3,155,826      3,196,029     

26.6             25.3             26.0             FTE 25.5               26.0              

Materials and services

228,587       245,442       222,000       Professional & technical  202,225         202,225        

76,904         71,460         18,000         Facility and equipment 21,000           21,000          

77,380         86,778         113,152       Other purchased services 127,722         127,722        

35,415         35,030         42,950         Supplies 64,425           64,425          

1,908           3,186           3,000           Community activities 4,500             4,500            

1,748           35,601         87,000         Minor equipment  7,000             7,000            

71,511         ‐                   ‐                   Other materials & services ‐                 ‐                

493,454       477,497       486,102       Total materials & services 426,872         426,872        

40,980         120,105       ‐                   Vehicles ‐                 ‐                

11,356         ‐                   10,000         Furniture and equipment ‐                 ‐                

52,336         120,105       10,000         Total capital outlay ‐                 ‐                

3,497,128    3,499,205    3,687,830    Total Police Expenditures 3,582,698      3,622,901     

Community Services

Personal services

730,767       805,418       956,224       Salaries and wages 1,016,510      1,016,510     

62,016         70,870         89,410         Payroll taxes  90,477           90,477          

233,848       256,597       369,855       Benefits 393,304         393,304        

1,026,631    1,132,885    1,415,489    Total personal services 1,500,291      1,500,291     

13.8             15.9             18.3             FTE 19.4               19.4              

Materials and services

46,965         72,436         65,800         Professional & technical  111,200         111,200        

‐                   ‐                   2,500           Facility and equipment 1,750             1,750            

21,228         28,839         66,778         Other purchased services 75,820           75,820          

118,243       144,277       148,150       Supplies 165,450         165,450        

2,932           11,362         18,650         Community activities 11,912           11,912          

940              39,820         ‐                   Minor equipment  6,140             6,140            

23,002         12,215         ‐                   Other materials & services ‐                 ‐                

213,310       308,949       301,878       Total materials & services 372,272         372,272        

1,239,941    1,441,834    1,717,367    Total Community Services Expenditures 1,872,563      1,872,563     

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 45 of 107 383



Budget Detail               General Fund by Division 

44 
 

 

 

General Fund 2016‐17 2016‐17 2016‐17

2013‐14 2014‐15 2015‐16 Requirements Continued Proposed Approved Adopted

Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget

Public Works

Personal services

563,140       575,107       668,942       Salaries and wages 664,921         664,921        

58,754         60,977         79,936         Payroll taxes  75,104           75,104          

221,773       219,861       270,851       Benefits 262,253         262,253        

843,667       855,945       1,019,729    Total personal services 1,002,278      1,002,278     

11.9             13.8             23.5             FTE 23.2               23.2              

Materials and services

188,150       148,763       112,132       Professional & technical  158,867         158,867        

344,417       433,993       917,347       Facility and equipment 1,011,585      1,011,585     

28,789         24,283         39,605         Other purchased services 41,133           41,133          

85,055         126,562       126,047       Supplies 118,550         118,550        

141              3,658           1,850           Community activities 1,850             1,850            

16,265         18,159         44,306         Minor equipment  44,900           44,900          

15,487         225              (127,535)      Other materials & services (118,358)        (118,358)       

678,303       755,644       1,113,752    Total materials & services 1,258,527      1,258,527     

Capital outlay

15,192         200,387       25,000         Infrastructure ‐                 ‐                

‐                   6,503           104,000       Vehicles 129,000         129,000        

‐                   28,392         24,500         Furniture and equipment 36,800           36,800          

15,192         235,281       153,500       Total capital outlay 165,800         165,800        

1,537,162    1,846,871    2,286,981    Total Public Works Expenditures 2,426,605      2,426,605     

Unallocated Expenditures

Debt service

115,010       122,430       126,140       Principal 133,200         133,200        

23,336         17,149         10,574         Interest 3,596             3,596            

138,346       139,579       136,714       Total debt service 136,796         136,796        

Transfers out

70,026         ‐                   143,000       Transfers to General Const. ‐                 ‐                

70,026         ‐                   143,000       Total Transfers Out ‐                 ‐                

3,553,345    2,777,519    Ending Fund Balance

533,049       Contingency 578,701         578,701        

350,000       Reserved for Future Years ‐ Maint. 239,427         239,427        

1,808,384    Reserved for Future Years 1,664,751      1,623,400     

13,463,479  13,703,845  14,911,436  Total requirements 14,549,656    14,549,656   

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 46 of 107 384



Budget Detail                General Fund Administration 

45 
 

Administration 

The Administration Division provides leadership and support for all City functions. Administration 

includes  the City Council, City Recorder, City Manager, Assistant City Manager, City Attorney, 

Information Technology, Human Resources, Finance and Municipal Court. 

 

2016‐17 2016‐17 2016‐17

2013‐14 2014‐15 2015‐16 Proposed Approved Adopted

Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget

Revenue

4,587,058  4,808,642  5,310,700     Taxes 5,276,507      5,276,507     

1,592,483  1,544,203  1,851,200     Franchise Fees 1,898,000      1,898,000     

68,754       (75)             ‐                    Licenses and Permits ‐                     ‐                    

481,780     521,871     528,000        Intergovernmental 544,700         544,700        

53,951       51,611       57,500          Charges for Services 65,800           65,800          

1,058,482  1,368,940  1,234,514     Fines, Interest, and Other 1,265,500      1,265,500     

147,431     148,359     179,874        Transfers in & Other Sources ‐                     ‐                    

7,989,940  8,529,036  9,161,788     Total revenue 9,050,507      9,050,507     

Expenditures

1,635,755  1,686,983  2,089,292     Personal services 2,044,019      2,044,019     

601,872     778,866     518,378        Materials and services 453,690         463,690        

63,350       108,059     101,000        Capital outlay 56,500           56,500          

138,346     139,579     136,714        Debt service 136,796         136,796        

70,026       ‐                 125,000        Transfers out & Other Sources ‐                     ‐                    

2,509,349  2,713,488  2,970,384     Total expenditures 2,691,005      2,701,005     

16.5 16.2 20.0 FTE 19.9 19.9

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 47 of 107 385



Budget Detail                General Fund Administration 

46 
 

City Council 
The seven‐member City Council is composed of an elected Mayor and six elected Councilors.  The 
Council members serve a four year term and the Mayor serves two years. The City Council is the 
legislative  branch  of  our  local  government which  is  responsible  for  setting  policies.    This  is 
accomplished through the adoption of ordinances and resolutions.   The City Council meets  in 
regular monthly meetings  and  occasional  executive  sessions.  In  addition  City  Council  work 
sessions  are held  to  study upcoming  issues. The City Council  also  serves  as  the City’s Urban 
Renewal District Board, and similar to the City Council, holds regular business meetings. 
 

2015‐16 Highlights 

 City Council Grand Opening of Sherwood Center for the Arts 

 City Council 1st Annual participation in Portland Grand Floral Parade, 1st Place Mini Float 
Award 

 City Council hiring of in‐house City Attorney 

 City Council creation of Police Advisory Board 
 
Performance Measures 

Strategy  Measures 
FY15 
Actual 

FY16 
Projected 

FY17 
Projected 

Increase transparency  

Council meetings   24+  24  24 

Work sessions   20+  20  20 

Executive sessions  10+  10  10 

Training for Council 
members & Regional 
Meeting participation  

Conferences: 
Oregon Mayor’s Assoc. Conf. (2) 
Or. League of Cities Annual Conf. 
NLC National League of Cities Conf. 
New Partners for Smart Growth 7  10  10 

Regional meetings: 
Regional Mayor’s Meetings (12) 
Wa. Co. Coordinating Committee (12) 
Willamette River Water Coalition (4) 
Regional Water Providers Consortium 
(4) 
Southwest Corridor Steering Comm. (12)
R1Act (6) 
Westside Transportation Alliance (12) 
Note: Meetings held monthly or 
quarterly 62  62  62 

 
   

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 48 of 107 386



Budget Detail                General Fund Administration 

47 
 

City Recorder 
The City Recorder is the custodian of records and responsible for the management of City records 
and provides administrative support to the City Council and URA Board.  The City Recorder also 
serves as the City’s Elections official.  
 
2015‐16 Highlights 

 Managed separate budgets for the departments of the City Council and City Recorder 

 Elections ‐ Managed 1 Initiative Petition for proposed Charter Amendment 

 Elections ‐ Managed Annexation Proposal 

 Managed 10+ Municipal Code amendments 

 Coordinated Records Management Day at City Offices 

 Supported  Boy  Scouts  of  America  in  earning  merit  badges  by  providing  tours  of 
government facilities and educating on government practices 

 Supported City Council participation in Portland Rose Festival Parade 

 Purge City records per State Records Retention Schedule 
 

2016‐17 Goals 

 Conduct Review of current City Records Management System 

 Make recommendation for implementation of City Wide Records Management System 

 Draft City Records Management Policies, initiate implementation 

 Purge City records per State Records Retention Schedule 
 

Performance Measures 

Strategy  Measures  FY15 
Actual 

FY16  
Projected 

FY17 
Projected

Adhere to public 
records law and 
respond to public 
records requests 

Public records requests  21+  30  30 

Responded within 5 business 
days 

21+  30  30 

Develop and 
implement a Records 
Management program 

Staff training on records 
management 

2  2  2 

Coordinate records 
management days for all City 
offices 

1  2  2 

Municipal Code updates  12  15  15 

Process Election Candidate 
fillings 

2  4  4 

 

 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 49 of 107 387



Budget Detail                General Fund Administration 

48 
 

City Manager 
The City Manager’s office provides leadership, coordination and management for the City and is 
responsible for establishing general administrative policies that govern the operations of the City.  
The  City Manager,  along  with  the  Assistant  City Manager  and  with  input  from  the  Senior 
Management  team, also  supports and assists  the Mayor and City Councilors  in  their  roles as 
policy makers by providing accurate and timely information and appropriate policy alternatives.   
 
2015‐16 Highlights 

 Completed construction of Snyder Dog Park 

 Completed construction of phase one of the Community Garden 

 Implemented live broadcasts of City Council and Planning Commission meetings 

 Completed Police Staffing & Operations Study  
 

2016‐17 Goals 

 Complete Feasibility Study to operate City‐owned Recreational Center (City‐wide 
Value – Quality Services) 

 Complete a Compensation Study for all positions within organization (City‐wide Value 
– Quality Services) 

 Complete Phase Two improvements to Woodhaven Park (City‐owned Value – 
Community Livability) 

 Conduct two sessions of the Sherwood Citizens University program to increase citizen 
understanding of City government (City‐wide Value – Citizen Participation) 

 Continue to support enhanced programs and activities to engage the public on issues 
facing the community (City‐wide Value – Citizen Participation) 

 Continue to implement enhancements to City intranet to ensure efficient sharing of 
important information to employees (City‐wide Value – Quality Services) 
 

Performance Measures 

Strategy  Measures 
FY15 
Actual 

FY16 
Actual 

FY17 
Projected

Increase 
communication with 
the public 

Newsletter Frequency  Quarterly 
Every Two 
Months 

Every 
Two 

Months 

Number of Facebook Friends  N/A  1,077  1,500 

Number of Twitter Followers  N/A  210  350 
 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 50 of 107 388



Budget Detail                General Fund Administration 

49 
 

Human Resources & Risk Management  
The Human  Resources  department  provides  personnel  support  for  all  City  employees.    This 
department also  includes recruitment,  training and development, benefit, compensation, and 
salary  classifications,  and  is  responsible  for  managing  and  updating  the  City  of  Sherwood 
Employee Manual and Employee Policies.   Manages  two union contracts and  leads employee 
relations.  Risk Management is responsible for managing the policies and processing claims for 
workers’ compensation, property, auto, equipment and liability insurance.  This department also 
reviews and manages the City’s benefit package to insure the best possible rates and protection 
for employees at a reasonable rate.   
 
2015‐16 Highlights 

 Retained, recruited and trained a top quality work force 

 Managed all lines of insurance coverage for the City   

 Lead in Employee Relations 

 Managed Union Contracts 
 
2016‐17 Goals 

 Implement recruitment program to assist managers and hire new employees (City‐wide 
Value – Fiscal Responsibility) 

 Perform  compensation  study  for  all  classes  of  employees  (City‐wide  Value  –  Fiscal 
Responsibility) 

 
Performance Measures 

Strategy  Measures 
FY15 
Actual 

FY16 
Actual 

FY17 
Projected

Provide efficient 
external recruitment 
service  

Number of applicants for all 
positions 

785  808  750 

Working days for external 
recruitments 

67.6 
days 

56 days  60 days 

Perform facility 
inspections by Safety 
Committee to minimize 
unsafe conditions 

Number of identified unsafe 
practices eliminated 

1  0  2 

Reduce the number and 
the cost of worker 
compensation claims 

Number of accidents  3  4  2 

Time loss (days)  2  2  0 

Annual cost of worker 
compensation claims  $300  $0 

 
      $0 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 51 of 107 389



Budget Detail                General Fund Administration 

50 
 

Information Technologies 
The  Information  Technologies  department  provides  technical  support,  troubleshooting  and 
maintenance of computer hardware and software used by the City.  The department operates 
and maintains the network, servers, phone systems, Sherwood Broadband, and Sherwood public 
access  channel.    This  department  also  manages  software  licensing,  assists  departments  in 
improving service through effective use of technology and provides training to staff. 
 
2015‐16 Highlights 

 Began broadcasting and streaming live City Council and Planning Commission meetings 

 Replaced the remaining Audio/Video equipment in the Council chambers 

 Upgraded the cable access playout server to support high definition 

 Completed several computer security projects and performed a security audit 

 Upgraded all Police mobile computers and implemented new remote access 

 Upgraded the City’s entire GIS and Infor infrastructure (systems and applications)  

 Made significant enhancements to the IT Service Management application 
 
2016‐17 Goals 

 Move all staff to Office 365 

 Implement Change Management within our IT operations 

 Add cameras and A/V support to the City Hall and Police conference rooms 

 Implement new end user security software 

 Replace remaining Public Works field laptops 

 Acquire part‐time video producer services to improve cable access content 

 Continue work on security related projects and policies 

 Evaluate moving some City infrastructure to a cloud hosting provider 
 
Performance Measures 

Strategy  Measures 
FY15 
Actual 

FY16 
Projected 

FY17 
Projected

Effectively maintain 
and 
support computer 
and 
informational 
systems 
throughout the City 

Major Software Applications 
Supported  

65  67  67 

Computer Systems Supported  230  250  250 

Network Systems Supported  50  52  52 

General Fund FTE  3.5  3.85  4 

Terabytes of data maintained 
and protected 

5.5 TB  29 TB  32 TB 

Productivity Through 
IT Service 
Management process 
improvement 

Help desk tickets submitted  900  1,200  1200 

Help desk tickets resolved within 
30 min. 

No Data  10%  10% 

Satisfaction Rate: Good or better  No Data  98%  95% 

Training Hours  No Data  24  40 
 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 52 of 107 390



Budget Detail                General Fund Administration 

51 
 

Finance 
The Finance department provides financial information, oversight and management.  Finance is 
responsible for the annual budget, annual audit, debt management, payroll, cash management, 
accounts receivable, and accounts payable. The Finance department prepares a wide range of 
internal and external financial reports. 
 
2015‐16 Highlights 

 Received the GFOA Budget Award for the Fiscal Year 2015‐16 budget document 

 Submitted for the GFOA Award for Excellence in Financial Reporting for FY2014‐15 

 Managed finances as to keep the General Fund ending fund balance above the 20% goal 
for the seventh consecutive year. 

 
2016‐17 Goals 

 Complete the implementation of the new Finance Software System (City‐wide Value – 
Fiscal Responsibility) 

 Begin the creation of a new Contracting and Procurement process (City‐wide Value – 
Fiscal Responsibility) 

 
Performance Measures 

Strategy  Measures 
FY15 
Actual  

FY16 
Projected 

FY17 
Projected 

Maintain high levels 
of financial integrity  

Independent auditor 
opinion  

Unqualified Unqualified  Unqualified

Number of GFOA reviewer 
comments on the CAFR 

2  1  1 

Deliver efficient, 
effective financial 
services 

Credit rating  A1  A1  A1 

Actual cost to deliver 
financial services 

$495,000  $538,700  $571,900 

Cost to deliver financial 
services as a % of total City 
budget 

2%  1.9%  2.1% 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 53 of 107 391



Budget Detail                General Fund Administration 

52 
 

Municipal Court 
Municipal Court is responsible for processing all traffic violations and non‐felony offenses within 
the City. The goal of the Municipal Court is to promote compliance with laws and regulations by 
processing citations for violations equitably and timely. 
 
2015‐16 Highlights 

 Provide  an  Amnesty  opportunity  (City‐wide  Value  –  Fiscal  Responsibility  and  Quality 
Services)  

2016‐17 Goals   

 Continue to improve efficiencies and provide the best possible customer service.  
 
Performance Measures 

Strategy  Measures 
FY15 
Actual 

FY16 
Projected 

FY17 
Projected

Manage an 
efficient and 
effective 
Municipal 
Court 

Traffic violations   8,162  9,500  10,000 

Parking violations  296  225  250 

City Ordinance violations  33  40  40 

Total violations processed  9,080  11,125  9,600 

Number of court staff  3.5  3.5  3.5 

Number of violations processed 
annually per clerk  2,752  3,179  2,742 

Operating expenses  $556,953  $593,811  595,311 

Operating expenses per processed 
violation 

$61.34  $53.38  $62.01 

 

 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 54 of 107 392



Budget Detail             General Fund Community Development 

53 
 

Community Development 

The Community Development Division provides overall management and administrative support 

for the City’s planning, engineering, and building departments.  Community Development strives 

to provide efficient, consistent, and seamless private and public development services. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2013‐14 2014‐15 2015‐16 2016‐17 2016‐17 2016‐17

Actual Actual Budget Proposed Approved Adopted

Revenue

‐                 79,008       63,000         Licenses and Permits 75,000           75,000          

16,453       105,121     202,147       Intergovernmental 95,100           95,100          

686,630     312,805     424,373       Charges for Services 517,011         517,011        

270,878     157,697     335,575       Infrastructure & Development fees 219,825         219,825        

‐                 2,724         800              Other Revenue 2,300             2,300            

973,961     592,448     1,025,895    Total revenue 909,236         909,236        

Expenditures

968,376     1,220,942  1,210,895    Personal services 1,323,810      1,314,958     

158,177     203,987     328,546       Materials and services 170,096         170,096        

1,126,553  1,424,929  1,539,441    Total expenditures 1,493,906      1,485,054     

9.7             12.9           15.5             FTE 16.0               16.0              

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 55 of 107 393



Budget Detail             General Fund Community Development 

54 
 

Planning 
The Planning department plays an  integral role  in shaping the  long term character of the City 
through the development and implementation of the Sherwood Comprehensive Plan and other 
long range planning documents.  The plans are intended to protect the personal, environmental, 
and economic health of the community.  

2015‐16 Highlights 

 Completed the Sherwood West Preliminary Concept Plan 

 Completed collection of the base data for the Draft Sherwood Housing Needs Analysis 

 Participated in the Southwest Corridor Planning process 

 Researched and put together a Recreational Marijuana regulation work program 

 Shepherded proposed chicken regulations through a public process  

 Improved public participation through the incorporation of social media and a series of 
community events 

 Coordinated and participated with regional partners on issues of importance to the City 
of Sherwood 

2016‐2017 Goals 

 Formalize a work plan and begin an update of the City of Sherwood Comprehensive Plan 
(City‐wide Goal – Livability) 

 Design,  engineer,  and  permit  phase  1  of  the  Cedar  Creek  Trail  (City‐wide  Goal  – 
Infrastructure) 

 Complete and have ready regulations for recreational marijuana facilities  in case a ban 
fails the November election (City‐wide Goal – Policy) 

 Continue managing  the  environmental  review  of  the  Tannery  site  (City‐wide  Goal  – 
Infrastructure) 

Performance Measures 

Strategy  Measures 
FY15 
Actual 

FY16 
Projected 

FY17 
Projected

Meet State 
mandated 
deadlines for 
land use 
decisions 
and produce 
sound 
decisions 

Perform completeness review within 30 days of 
submittal 

100%  100%  100% 

Produce decisions within 120 days unless an 
extension was granted 

100%  100%  100% 

Total number of site plan review applications  4  8  5 

Land use decisions made by City staff  9  10  8 

Land use decisions made by Planning Commission  3  8  4 

Land use decisions made by City Council  4  3  3 

Number of land use appeals  0  0  1 

% of staff recommendations upheld on appeal  N/A  N/A  100% 

Improve 
clarity and 
effectiveness 
of Code  

Major code amendment projects undertaken  3  2  1 

Routine code update/refinement projects  1  1 
 
0 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 56 of 107 394



Budget Detail             General Fund Community Development 

55 
 

Building 
The Building Department’s responsibilities are to review and approve plans, issue permits, and 
perform  inspections  for new  construction  in  compliance with  the State of Oregon’s building, 
plumbing, mechanical, solar, manufactured dwelling, and energy codes.  The Department assists 
the public and professionals with  information relevant to the City’s building and development 
codes.  Staff  works  with  local  jurisdictions,  agencies  and  builders  in  order  to  improve  the 
construction standards in the City and ensure the public’s health and safety.  
 
2015‐16 Highlights 

 Issued permits, completed required inspections, and granted occupancy approval for 9 
new restaurant/eating/drinking establishments   

 Permitted and approved 12 new residential roof‐top solar panel arrays, and a solar 
panel array that covers the entire roof area of Wal‐Mart    

 Completed occupancy approval for the Main Street residential sub‐division   
 
2016‐17 Goals 

 Complete re‐organization of permit files, archiving, and document retention/destruction  

 Complete annual state mandated training for staff    
 

 
Performance Measures 

Strategy  Measures 

FY15 
Actual 

FY16 
Projected 

FY17 
Projected 

Provide timely 
service 
 

Building inspection performed 
same day 

100%        100%  100% 

Plan review turnaround within 2 
weeks’ time for single family 
homes 

100%  100%  100% 

Plan review turnaround within 2 
weeks’ time for commercial 
improvements 

100%  98%  100% 

Plan review turnaround within 4 
weeks’ time for new commercial 
buildings 

100%  100%  100% 

Permits: Identify 
and track workload 
measures to enable 
appropriate staffing 

Total number of permits  591  620  560 

New single‐family homes  28  70  50 

New Multi‐family homes  0  14 Units  82 Units 

Residential remodel/additions  36  15  15 

New commercial buildings  0  5  5 

Commercial tenant imprvmnts   61  40  20 

Miscellaneous (Mech, Plumb, AS)  466  520  500 

Number of inspections  2240  2400  2200 

 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 57 of 107 395



Budget Detail             General Fund Community Development 

56 
 

Engineering 
The  Engineering  department  plans,  designs,  and  oversees  construction  of  the  City’s  Capital 
Improvement  Projects  (CIP’s),  which  include  streets,  storm  water  systems,  sanitary  sewer 
systems, water systems, and park facilities.  The department is also responsible for review and 
approval of all private development projects that include installation of public infrastructure as 
part of the development.   The department conducts  inspections on the construction of public 
infrastructure projects to ensure that these facilities meet the City’s standards for materials and 
installation.   Engineering  issues right‐of‐way permits  for all work performed within  the public 
right‐of‐way,  and  oversees  erosion  and  sediment  runoff  control  on  any  construction  activity 
within the City.  The department also provides estimates and final SDC fee assessments on private 
development projects. 

2015‐16 Highlights 

 Commenced updating of the City’s Stormwater Master Plan and Sanitary Sewer Master 
Plan and related SDC fees 

 Commenced updating of the City’s Transportation SDC and street fees 

 Commenced engineering design work for removal of the downtown monuments 

 Commenced  engineering  design work  for  the  construction  of  a mid‐block  pedestrian 
crossing of Langer Farms Parkway 

 Commenced  engineering  design work  for  construction  of  a  public  parking  lot within 
downtown Sherwood 

 Commenced  engineering  feasibility  study  for  the  Oregon  Street/Tonquin  Road 
intersection 

 Completed engineering design for construction of sanitary sewer mainline extension  in 
Pine Street and Sunset Boulevard 

 Continued coordination of engineering design efforts for the Cedar Creek Trail project 

 Completed construction of the Columbia Street Regional Stormwater Treatment Facility 
and related mitigation improvements 

 Provided engineering design and construction contract oversight for the construction of 
the City Attorney’s office within City Hall 

  
2016‐17 Goals 

 Complete the Sanitary and Storm Master Plan updates (City‐wide Goal – Infrastructure) 

 Complete an SDC and rate study for transportation, sanitary, and storm (City‐wide Value 
– Fiscal Responsibility) 

 Create a traffic calming program to respond to citizen transportation concerns (City‐wide 
Goal – Public Safety) 

 Complete construction of the public parking  lot within downtown Sherwood (City‐wide 
Goal – Community Livability) 

 Complete construction of the Pine Street & Sunset Boulevard sanitary sewer extension 
(City‐wide Goal – Infrastructure) 

 Complete construction of the Langer Farms Parkway Pedestrian Crossing (City‐wide Goal 
– Public Safety) 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 58 of 107 396



Budget Detail             General Fund Community Development 

57 
 

 Complete removal of the downtown monuments (City‐wide Goal – Public Safety) 

 Construct  improvements  recommended  in  the Oregon Street/Tonquin Road  feasibility 
study (City‐wide Goal – Public Safety) 

 Conduct  preliminary  design  and  feasibility  study  of  the  Edy Road  and Borchers Drive 
intersection improvements transportation project (City wide Goal – Infrastructure). 

 Commence design of the Rock Creek Sanitary Sewer Trunk Line CapaCity Upgrade Phase 
2 project (City wide Goal – Infrastructure) 

 Initiate  City‐wide  traffic  count  database  of  all  collector  and  arterial  streets  within 
Sherwood City limits. (City‐wide Goal – Livability) 

 Continue with design of the Ice Age Tonquin Trail project (City wide Goal – Livability) 

 Commence preliminary design and  feasibility analysis of  the Edy Road/Borchers Drive 
Intersection Improvement project (City wide Goal – Public Safety) 

 
Performance Measures 

Strategy  Measures 
FY15 
Actual 

FY16 
Actual 

FY17 
Projected

Provide professional 
infrastructure design 
and management 
services 

Capital projects designed, managed, and/or 
inspected 

12  11  11 

Public improvement projects managed & 
inspected 

6  3  15 

Private development pre‐applications 
reviewed 

12  5  10 

Private development applications reviewed 
for final approval 

10  5  10 

Protect infrastructure 
and right‐of‐ways.  
Enforce engineering 
design and 
construction standards 

Right‐of‐way permits issued  55  53  65 

SFR lot ESC plan reviews performed  25  23  30 

SFR lot ESC inspections performed  50  250  275 

ESC inspections performed under 
Compliance Agreement projects 

100  272  300 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 59 of 107 397



Budget Detail                     General Fund Police 

58 
 

Police 

The Sherwood Police department’s primary purpose is to serve the community. The Police 

department exists for the community and believes in the philosophy that the police are the 

public and the public are the police. We believe that law enforcement is a fundamental and 

critical service to the community and must be maintained as a priority. 

 

 

 

 

 

2013‐14 2014‐15 2015‐16 2016‐17 2016‐17 2016‐17

Actual Actual Budget Proposed Approved Adopted

Revenue

11,225       2,640         2,000            Licenses and Permits 2,000             2,000            

64,172       86,020       67,012          Intergovernmental 67,832           67,832          

7,216         14,022       7,500            Charges for Services 5,500             5,500            

1,375         875            6,000            Other Revenue 2,750             2,750            

‐                 7,691         ‐                    Transfers in & Other Sources ‐                     ‐                    

83,988       (64,352)      82,512          Total revenue 78,082           78,082          

Expenditures

2,951,338  2,901,602  3,191,728     Personal services 3,155,826      3,196,029     

493,454     477,497     486,102        Materials and services 426,872         426,872        

52,336       120,105     10,000          Capital outlay ‐                     ‐                    

3,497,128  3,499,205  3,687,830     Total expenditures 3,582,698      3,622,901     

26.6           25.3           26.0              FTE 25.5               26.0              

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Police Activities

Public Demand Officer Initiated Total Activities

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 60 of 107 398



Budget Detail                     General Fund Police 

59 
 

Police 

2015‐16 Highlights 

 Continued high level of service to community through child safety seat clinics, emergency 
preparedness training and programs like Secret Santa 

 Maintained community engagement at community events and through social media 

 Completed conversion to RegJIN and continued working on transition 

 Activated the Youth Substance Abuse Team through partnership with Sherwood School 
District and Washington County Juvenile Department 

 Began work to enhance volunteer programs through police department 
 
2016‐17 Goals 

 Work with City Council and Police Advisory Board  to determine  future police  staffing  
(City‐wide Goal – Public Safety) 

 Continue to enhance volunteer opportunities through reserve program re‐start and newly 
formed community support team (City‐wide Value – Citizen Participation) 

 Continue  to  enhance  community  engagement  by  enhancing  social media  efforts  and 
increasing shared public safety information (City‐wide Value – Citizen Participation) 

 Continue  and  enhance  existing  and  successful  programs  like  child  safety  clinics  & 
emergency preparedness trainings/videos  

 Look to increase crime/drug prevention opportunities in Sherwood schools 
 
 
Performance Measures 

Strategy  Measures 
2015 
Actual 

 2016 
Projected 

Maintain response 
time goal of less 
than 5 minutes; 
P1 @ 75% 
P2 @ 60% 
P3‐5 @ 50% 

Number of Priority‐1 calls  94  90 

Response goal percentage  62%  65% 

Number of Priority‐2 calls  1,063  1,060 

Response time goal percentage  57%  60% 

Number of Priority‐3 calls  1,225  1,250 

Response time goal percentage  50%  50% 

Number of sworn officers  23  23 

Population served  19,080  19,250 

Maintain safety 
through proactive 
activities 

Number of proactive activities  19,713  19,000 

Total all calls & activities  24,831  24,000 

 

 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 61 of 107 399



Budget Detail               General Fund Community Services 

60 
 

Community Services 

The Community Services Division encompasses Library services, the Sherwood Old Town Field 

House  operations,  the  Sherwood  Center  for  the  Arts,  volunteer  services,  field  and  gym 

scheduling,  and  the  coordinating  and planning of  various events. As part of  the Washington 

County Cooperative Library Services (WCCLS), the Sherwood Library provides access to resources 

from all 13 County libraries as well as regional, national, and international sources. The Sherwood 

Old Town Field House is an indoor soccer facility that offers soccer leagues, facility rentals and 

field time for a variety of sports and activities. The Center for the Arts opened in February 2015 

and features a 393 seat theater/multi‐purpose space, visual arts gallery and two classrooms. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

2013‐14 2014‐15 2015‐16 2016‐17 2016‐17 2016‐17

Actual Actual Budget Proposed Approved Adopted

Revenue

741,151     768,507     778,757        Intergovernmental 850,024         850,024        

269,190     259,829     286,060        Charges for Services 321,930         321,930        

35,517       32,717       106,800        Fines, Interest, and Other 93,340           93,340          

1,045,858  1,004,257  1,171,617     Total revenue 1,265,294      1,265,294     

Expenditures

1,026,631  1,132,885  1,415,489     Personal services 1,500,291      1,500,291     

213,310     308,949     301,878        Materials and services 372,272         372,272        

1,239,941  1,441,834  1,717,367     Total expenditures 1,872,563      1,872,563     

13.8           15.9           18.3              FTE 19.4               19.4              

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 62 of 107 400



Budget Detail               General Fund Community Services 

61 
 

Library 
The mission of Sherwood Public Library is to inspire discovery, enrich lives and build community through 

equitable access to life‐long learning. The Library serves the greater Sherwood area of 22,500 people. As 

a member of Washington County Cooperative Library Services, Sherwood Public Library provides access 

to 1.7 million items, e‐books and digital audiobooks, and databases. The local collection includes nearly 

50,000 books, Blu‐Rays, DVDs, CDs, books on CD, magazines and newspapers, in addition to Internet 

access at 13 public computers and via Sherwood Broadband, and areas for children to play. 

2015 Highlights 

 The Library welcomed 21,000 visits per month 

 The Library opened to the public seven days a week, 60 hours a week, 354 days 

 Total annual circulation of library materials was over 367,000 checkouts, including digital 

 Sherwood patrons checked out an average of 32 items per year 

 Added 6,800 items to the local collection 

 Received nearly 2,300 hours of volunteer support  

 Offered 467 programs for patrons of all ages, with 16,645 people in attendance 

 Developed new partnerships with Sherwood School District Family Resources, National 
Art Honors Society at SHS, Robin Hood Festival, and Robin Hood Garden Club 

 
2016‐17 Goals 

 Increase programming attendance for school‐aged children, teens and adults (City‐wide 
Goal – Resident Well Being) 

 Promote discovery and usability of our existing collections with  improved signage and 
user experience (City‐wide Value – Quality Services) 

 Increase volunteer opportunities (City‐wide Value – Citizen Participation) 

 Continue to increase partnerships, outreach and involvement in community events (City‐
wide Value – Community Partnerships)  

 
Performance Measures 

   

Strategy  Measures 

FY15 
Actual 

FY16 
Projected 

FY17 
Projected 

Increase 
programming 
attendance 

Number of programs for school‐aged 
children and teens 

74  100  105 

School‐aged program attendance  515  775  850 

Number of programs for adults  29  35  40 

Adult program attendance  1,260  1,325  1,600 

Increase 
volunteer 
opportunities 

Number of volunteer hours  2,100  2,200  2,400 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 63 of 107 401



Budget Detail               General Fund Community Services 

62 
 

Events and Volunteers 
The  Events  and  Volunteers  department  is  responsible  for  planning  and  implementing  the 
volunteer  program,  issuing  Special  Event  Permits,  coordinating  events  such  as Music  on  the 
Green, Movies in the Park, the Community Services Fair and the Veterans Day Ceremony. This 
department  serves  as  a  liaison  to  the Marjorie  Stewart  Center, Historical  Society  and  other 
community groups.   

2015‐16 Highlights 

 Coordinated  volunteer  program.  Volunteers  contributed  a  total  of  5,240  hours, 
equivalent to 2.52 FTE 

 Coordinated and offered 7 weeks of Music on the Green concerts at Stella Olsen Park 
to approximately 1,300 people each week 

 Coordinated annual Veterans Day Ceremony 

 Managed, developed and  implemented City‐wide special events  including the, Music 
on the Green, Movies in the Park and the Community Services Fair  

 Processed and  issued 27 Special Event Permit applications, 108 monument requests, 
and 93 reader board requests and 8 Block Party Permits 

 Acted as liaison to community groups such as Saturday Market, the Historical Society, 
Friends of the Senior Center, Meals on Wheels and the Robin Hood Festival Association 

 Secured presenting sponsor for Music on the Green  

 Coordinated various Eagle Scout projects, Adopt a Road Clean‐Ups, Arbor Day   and 
Trashapalooza 
 

2016‐17 Goals 

 Develop Adopt A Trail program for Cedar Creek Trail (City‐wide Value – Community 

Pride) 

 Develop and implement program for newly opened Community Garden (City‐wide Value 

– Community Livability) 

 Secure presenting sponsors for Music on the Green and Movies in the Park (City‐wide 

Value – Quality Services) 

 Design and Implement Cultural Walking Tour 
 

Performance Measures 

Strategy  Measures 
FY15 
Actual 

FY16 
Projected 

FY17 
Projected

Increase City‐wide 
volunteer opportunities 

Volunteer Hours  5240  5415  5600 

Accommodate special 
events and festivals 

Special Event Permits 
Issued 

27  30  32 

Increase  attendance at 
City sponsored events 

Attendance at Music on the 
Green 

9,100  9,500  9700 

Attendance at Movies in 
the Park 

1,800  2,000  2200 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 64 of 107 402



Budget Detail               General Fund Community Services 

63 
 

Field House and Sports Recreation  
The Sherwood Old Town Field House offers a  large  indoor arena  featuring "FieldTurf"(new  in 
2015). The Field House hosts a wide array of activities including adult and youth soccer, softball, 
baseball and lacrosse. The Field House is also available for private rentals, birthday parties, pre‐
school play and sports clinics.  The Recreation department is responsible for scheduling the use 
of all City and school district owned fields and gyms.  The fields and gyms are primarily used by 
the youth sports leagues and are occasionally used for private rentals. 
  
2015‐16 Highlights 

 Replaced the turf in the Field House and repainted the Floors 

 Managed three nights a week of adult leagues and over 600 hours of rentals. 

 Offered 2 sessions of youth soccer with over 20 teams each session 

 Coordinated practice and game space for 13 different youth clubs    

 Managed the sports and gyms IGA between the City and the school district 
 
2016‐17 Goals 

 Increase service to 22,000 people (City‐wide Goal – Resident Well Being) 

 Add a fourth night of adult leagues (City‐wide Goal – Resident Well Being) 

 Maximize the use of field and gym space beyond the youth sports leagues (City‐wide 
Goal – Resident Well Being) 

 
Performance Measures 

Strategy  Measures 
FY15 
Actual 

FY16 
Projected 

FY17 
Projected 

Provide quality 
recreational 
opportunities 
for Sherwood 
citizens. 

Number people served in the 
Fieldhouse  20,000  22,000 

 
23,000 

 

Number of leagues per year in the 
Fieldhouse 

22  24  24 

Number of sports leagues served  13  13  13 

Number of children participating in 
sports practice and games  4,400  4,400 

 
4,600 

 

 
   

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 65 of 107 403



Budget Detail               General Fund Community Services 

64 
 

Sherwood Center for the Arts 

The Sherwood Center for the Arts is a 393 seat theater/multi‐purpose space with two classrooms 

and serves as a home for multiple artistic disciplines to work, perform, exhibit, and gather. The 

mission of  the Sherwood Center  for  the Arts  is  to  inspire, educate, and enrich  the Sherwood 

community through diverse activities that enhance the quality of life. 

2015‐16 Highlights 

 The Center for the Arts launched new programming including the Family Matinee Series, 
Classic Film Series, Gallery Program, Education Program & arts outreach programming  

 Developed Partnerships with local and regional Arts Organizations to provide expanded 
opportunities and support for the arts: Sherwood Main Street, Makers5 Artists Collective, 
Tears  of  Joy  Theater,  Sherwood  High  School,  Sherwood  Public  Library,  Sherwood 
Foundation for the Arts, Voices for the Performing Arts, and many local businesses  

 Lead the launch of a new Old Town Sherwood Art Walk which saw over 500 participants 
interacting and throughout Old Town  

 Assisted in initial development of the Friends of the Sherwood Center for the Arts – a non‐
profit fundraising arm to directly and solely support programs at the Center  

 5,419  community members  visited  the Center  for  the Arts  in  FY  2015‐16  for  classes, 
events rentals and other activities  

 
2016‐17 Goals 

 Expand Arts Education Program at the Center (City‐wide Value – Community Livability) 

 Increase participation  in  ticketed and  free arts programming at  the Center  (City‐wide 
Value – Citizen Participation) 

 Increase production  and  facility  rentals  at  the Center  and  improve  infrastructure  and 
policies to help support the expanded use (City‐wide Value – Community Livability) 

 Continue  to  utilize  and  stabilize  community  partnerships  for  arts  outreach  and 
programming. (City‐wide Value – Community Partnerships) 

Performance Measures 

Strategy  Measures  FY15 
Actual 

FY16 
Projected 

FY17 
Projected 

Increase 
participation and 
utilization of the 
Center for the Arts 
facility and 
programs 

Number of registrations for 
classes, workshops or camps 

65  275  300 

Number of production rentals  2  10  15 

Number of facility rentals  12  60  75 

Number of tickets sold to 
Center for the Arts programs & 
events 

300  1,600  1,800 

Number of attendees for free 
arts events  

2,950  1,100  1,500 

Number of attendees for visiting 
events & rentals  

2,090  5,500  6,000 

 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 66 of 107 404



Budget Detail                   General Fund Public Works 

65 
 

Public Works 

The Public Works Division  is responsible for operation and maintenance activities of the City’s 

infrastructure. Maintenance includes: water, sewer, storm, streets, parks, sport fields, facilities 

and fleet. 

 

 

 
 

2013‐14 2014‐15 2015‐16 2016‐17 2016‐17 2016‐17

Actual Actual Budget Proposed Approved Adopted

Revenue

233,492     230,991     240,000        Intergovernmental 240,000         240,000        

7,670         14,496       14,500          Charges for Services 12,400           12,400          

23,702       27,507       20,500          Other Revenue 18,500           18,500          

‐                 12,245       84,870          Transfers in & Other Sources 160,284         160,284        

264,864     229,110     359,870        Total revenue 431,184         431,184        

Expenditures

843,667     855,945     1,019,729     Personal services 1,002,278      1,002,278     

678,303     755,644     1,113,752     Materials and services 1,258,527      1,258,527     

15,192       235,281     153,500        Capital outlay 165,800         165,800        

‐                 ‐                 18,000          Transfers out & Other Sources ‐                     ‐                    

1,537,162  1,846,871  2,304,981     Total expenditures 2,426,605      2,426,605     

11.9           13.8           23.5              FTE 23.2 23.2

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 67 of 107 405



Budget Detail                   General Fund Public Works 

66 
 

Facilities 
The  Facilities  department  is  responsible  for  environmental  health,  safety,  operations, 
maintenance, and repair of all City facilities.    
 
2015‐16 Highlights 

 Completed annual reporting requirements to the State 

 Completed set up and take down for Kids Reading, City Council, Planning Commission, 
Court and other Library events 259 times during the year  

 Completed weekly inspections of all City facilities (City‐wide Goal – Infrastructure) 

 Completed inspections of all contracted work (City‐wide Goal – Infrastructure) 

 Removed/replaced 25 trees in poor condition at the Recreational Center (City‐wide Goal 
– Infrastructure) 

 Replaced two HVAC units at Senior Center (City‐wide Goal – Infrastructure) 

 Replaced back patio at Senior Center (City‐wide Goal – Infrastructure) 

 Replaced artificial turf at Fieldhouse (City‐wide Goal – Infrastructure) 

 Replaced carpet at Public Works (City‐wide Goal – Infrastructure) 
 
2016‐17 Goals 

 Preventative Maintenance of HVAC Systems for all City facilities 

 Repairs to Firing Range at Police Department 

 Replace roof at Recreational Center/Teen Center  

 Seal building exterior at Recreational Center/Teen Center  

 Complete energy audit at the Police Department and City Hall 

 Replace Variable Frequency Drive (VFD) at City Hall for HVAC System 

 Interior painting at Police Department 

 Lighting upgrade to bookshelves in Library 
 
Performance Measures 

Strategy  Measures 
FY15 
Actual 

FY16 
Projected 

FY17 
Projected 

Provide 
attractive, 
clean, safe, 
and well 
maintained 
facilities for 
the public and 
City employees 

Number of facility inspections per 
month 

5  5  5 

Number of OSHA or safety violations 
reported 

0  0  0 

Met requirements for meeting set‐
up and tear‐down as requested 

100%  100%  100% 

Number of insurance claims 
involving City facilities 

1  0  0 

 
   

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 68 of 107 406



Budget Detail                   General Fund Public Works 

67 
 

Parks Maintenance 

The Parks department maintains the parks, trail systems, School District property, athletic fields 
and open spaces. 

2015‐16 Highlights 

 Completed weekly playground inspections 

 Completed trash pickup three times a week during peak usage 

 Maintained 8,137 irrigation heads 

 Completed striping and prep of athletic fields for schools and leagues 

 Completed 155 park reservations 

 Provided 7‐day/week staffing coverage during peak season 

 Worked with independent contractors to ensure contract agreements are followed and 
work progresses smoothly 

 Completed weekly mowing for parks and athletic fields for 39 weeks out of the year 

 Maintained 2 water features 

 Completed construction of Dog Park at Snyder Park (City‐wide Goal – Infrastructure) 

 Replaced turf around pitcher’s mound at Snyder Park 

 Completed Recycling Program in identified parks throughout City. 
 
2016‐17 Goals 

 Maintain Dog Park at Snyder Park 

 Maintain Phase II of Woodhaven Park 

 Infill high school football field 

 Provide uniform park signage throughout City parks 

 Complete implementation of Phase I of Community Garden 

 Community Garden Phase II   

 Develop plan for Skate Park facility  

 Develop plan for restrooms at Cannery Square 

 Identify second dog park location north of Highway 99 

 Provide weekly playground inspections (City‐wide Goal – Infrastructure) 

 Provide weekly mowing at parks and athletic fields (City‐wide Goal – Infrastructure) 

 Provide 7‐day/week staffing during peak season (City‐wide Goal – Infrastructure) 
 
Performance Measures 

Strategy  Measures 
FY15 
Actual 

FY16 
Projected 

FY17 
Projected

Support and 
maintain parks, 
recreation land, 
and natural 
areas 

Developed park acres  56.61  56.61  56.61 

Restrooms cleaned daily  7  7  7 

Number of park reservations  155  160  160 

Number of sports fields 
maintained (multi use)  24  24  24 

Number of playgrounds inspected 
weekly 

9  9  9 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 69 of 107 407



Budget Detail                   General Fund Public Works 

68 
 

Fleet and Equipment 
The Fleet Maintenance department maintains and repairs City vehicles and equipment with an 
emphasis on safety, cost effectiveness and dependability.    
 
2015‐16 Highlights 

 Completed annual reporting requirements to the State 

 Purchased 100% of budgeted equipment  

 Outfitted two (2) police vehicles and one (1) public works vehicle 

 Surplus vehicles and equipment scheduled in 2015/16 

 Maintained three (3) Chargepoint Stations throughout City  
 
2016‐17 Goals 

 Meet annual State requirements  (City‐wide Goal – Infrastructure) 

 Produce detailed cost reports to each division for fleet costs (City‐wide Value – Fiscal 
Responsibility) 

 Look at ways to improve sustainable practices (City‐wide Value – Community Livability) 

 Minimize percentage of fleet vehicles or equipment that are out of service at any time 
(City‐wide Goal – Infrastructure) 

 Purchase and outfit two (2) police vehicles; spec and purchase 100% of budgeted 
equipment 

 
Performance Measures 

Strategy  Measures 
FY15 
Actual 

FY16 
Projected 

FY17 
Projected

Maintain 
City’s fleet of 
vehicles and 
equipment at 
a high level of 
quality with 
minimal cost 

Number of scheduled vehicle 
maintenance work orders 

57  085  100 

Number of scheduled equipment 
maintenance work orders 

22  40  60 

Total number of equipment work 
orders 

241  260  275 

Total number of vehicle work orders  339  360  380 

Maximum percentage of fleet 
vehicles that are out of service at any 
given time (Goal: %5 or less) 

Not 
available 

5%  5% 

 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 70 of 107 408



Budget Detail                                      Debt Service 

69 
 

Debt Service 

The  Debt  Service  fund  accounts  for  property  tax  revenues  levied  for  payment  of  general 

obligation bonds.  Payment of long‐term debt other than general obligation bonds is accounted 

for in the funds responsible for paying the debt. 

 

2013‐14 2014‐15 2015‐16 2016‐17 2016‐17 2016‐17

Actual Actual Budget Proposed Approved Adopted

RESOURCES

8,432$      10,101$    8,464$         Beginning fund balance  1,708$           1,708$          

Revenue

892,000    872,145    897,582       Taxes 891,300         891,300        

1,638        1,532        ‐                  Fines, interest and other 1,750             1,750            

893,638    873,677    897,582       Total revenue 893,050         893,050        

902,070    883,778    906,046       Total resources 894,758         894,758        

UNALLOCATED REQUIREMENTS

Debt service

540,000    560,000    585,000       Principal ‐ 2004 A&B refunding 600,000         600,000        

215,000    220,000    225,000       Principal ‐ 2011 Police Ref GO 230,000         230,000        

81,419      63,194      43,594         Interest ‐ 2004 A&B refunding 22,500           22,500          

55,550      51,200      45,625         Interest ‐ 2011 Police Ref GO 38,800           38,800          

891,969    894,394    899,219       Total debt service 891,300         891,300        

10,101      (10,615)    ‐                  Ending Fund Balance ‐                     ‐                    

‐               ‐               6,827           Reserved for Future Years 3,458             3,458            

902,070    883,778    906,046       Total requirements 894,758         894,758        

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 71 of 107 409



Budget Detail            General Construction Fund 

70 
 

FY2016‐17 General Construction Projects 

 Cedar Creek Trail Segment 8 & 9  
 Woodhaven Park Construction  

 Parks Master Plan Update  

 Cannery Square Restrooms 

 Dog Park Design 

 Skate Park Design
For a complete description of these projects refer to Debt Service & CIP section. 

 

2013‐14 2014‐15 2015‐16 2016‐17 2016‐17 2016‐17

Actual Actual Budget Proposed Approved Adopted

RESOURCES

722,727$   1,557,749$  1,142,410$  Beginning fund balance  1,153,758$    1,153,758$   

Revenue

‐                 ‐                   ‐                   Franchise Fees 40,000           40,000          

105,659     ‐                   70,000         Intergovernmental 81,418           81,418          

4,440         21,037         16,000         Charges for services 16,000           16,000          

985,839     179,552       785,000       Infrastructure development  347,464         347,464        

76,513       7,180           8,000           Fines, interest and other 6,000             6,000            

1,172,450  207,769       879,000       Total revenue 490,882         490,882        

Other sources

106,239     163,299       793,000       Transfers in 165,371         165,371        

106,239     163,299       793,000       Total other sources 165,371         165,371        

2,001,416  1,928,816    2,814,410    Total resources 1,810,011      1,810,011     

REQUIREMENTS

Expenditures

Personal services

24,601       21,989         60,317         Salaries and wages 38,701           38,701          

2,049         1,908           6,225           Payroll taxes  3,791             3,791            

9,191         7,716           24,077         Benefits 14,810           14,810          

35,842       31,613         90,619         Total personal services 57,302           57,302          

Materials and services

360            11,566         175,000       Professional & technical  187,000         187,000        

54              163              125              Other purchased services 38                  38                 

‐                 1,079           70,000         Supplies 60,000           60,000          

‐                 120,268       40,000         Minor equipment  90,000           90,000          

21,688       28,583         48,086         Other materials & services 45,120           45,120          

22,102       161,658       333,211       Total materials & services 382,158         382,158        

Capital outlay

113,697     205,194       1,739,023    Infrastructure 1,092,345      1,092,345     

‐                 ‐                   ‐                   Buildings ‐                     ‐                    

223,923     320,004       ‐                   Other improvements ‐                     ‐                    

‐                 ‐                   120,508       Furniture and equipment ‐                     ‐                    

337,620     525,198       1,859,531    Total capital outlay 1,092,345      1,092,345     

395,563     718,468       2,283,361    Total expenditures 1,531,805      1,531,805     

Debt service

39,990       42,570         43,860         Principal 46,800           46,800          

8,114         5,963           3,677           Interest 1,183             1,183            

48,104       48,533         47,537         Total debt service 47,983           47,983          

1,557,749  1,160,829    ‐                   Ending Fund Balance ‐                     ‐                    

‐                 ‐                   483,512       Reserved for Future Years 230,223         230,223        

2,001,416  1,927,829    2,814,410    Total requirements 1,810,011      1,810,011     

0.3             0.3               ‐               FTE ‐                 ‐                

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 72 of 107 410



Budget Detail                   Street Operations Fund 

71 
 

Street Operations 

 
 

 

 

2013‐14 2014‐15 2015‐16 2016‐17 2016‐17 2016‐17

Actual Actual Budget Proposed Approved Adopted

RESOURCES

1,284,920$  1,548,453$  1,141,998$  Beginning fund balance  1,718,199$    1,718,199$   

Revenue

1,125,439    1,154,815    1,140,000    Intergovernmental 1,138,000      1,138,000     

578,413       602,113       576,000       Charges for services 586,240         586,240        

17,673         5,970           ‐                   Infrastructure development  500                500               

6,760           13,931         8,000           Fines, interest and other 10,325           10,325          

1,728,285    1,776,829    1,724,000    Total revenue 1,735,065      1,735,065     

Other sources

‐                   2,500           ‐                   Sale of fixed assets ‐                     ‐                    

‐                   2,500           ‐                   Total other sources ‐                     ‐                    

3,013,205    3,327,782    2,865,998    Total resources 3,453,264      3,453,264     

REQUIREMENTS

Expenditures

Personal services

198,214       188,703       254,196       Salaries and wages 246,517         246,517        

22,939         21,079         30,647         Payroll taxes  28,611           28,611          

84,942         76,112         99,762         Benefits 95,335           95,335          

306,095       285,894       384,605       Total personal services 370,463         370,463        

Materials and services

108,265       98,712         115,250       Professional & technical  202,500         202,500        

848,056       414,239       1,351,037    Facility and equipment 1,148,970      1,148,970     

19,830         32,121         30,015         Other purchased services 30,955           30,955          

35,812         36,110         67,700         Supplies 59,200           59,200          

2,031           9,978           5,000           Minor equipment  14,550           14,550          

138,665       130,994       191,072       Other materials & services 187,174         187,174        

1,152,658    722,153       1,760,074    Total materials & services 1,643,349      1,643,349     

Capital outlay

‐                   610,804       65,000         Infrastructure 25,000           25,000          

5,999           36,950         ‐                   Furniture and equipment ‐                     ‐                    

5,999           647,754       65,000         Total capital outlay 25,000           25,000          

1,464,752    1,655,802    2,209,679    Total expenditures 2,038,812      2,038,812     

Other uses

‐                   ‐                   18,859         Transfers out 72,597           72,597          

‐                   ‐                   18,859         Total other uses 72,597           72,597          

1,548,453    1,744,507    ‐                   Ending Fund Balance ‐                     ‐                    

‐                   ‐                   86,200         Contingency 86,753           86,753          

‐                   ‐                   25,000         Reserved for Future Years ‐ Maint. 25,000           25,000          

‐                   ‐                   526,260       Reserved for Future Years 1,230,102      1,230,102     

3,013,205    3,400,309    2,865,998    Total requirements 3,453,264      3,453,264     

3.5               3.1               1.0               FTE 1.0 1.0

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 73 of 107 411



Budget Detail                   Street Operations Fund 

72 
 

 

Street Operations 

The Street Operations  fund  is responsible  for the repair and maintenance of over 55 miles of 
transportation system which  includes paved streets, sidewalks, signals, street  lights, signs and 
markings. 
 
2015‐16 Highlights 

 Responded to all storm events 

 Replaced 173 Street Name Signs 

 Paved Tualatin Street and Highland Street 

 Completed 105,771 feet of crack sealing   

 Completed landscape right‐of‐way maintenance 

 Completed inspection of all contract work 

 Continued the Sidewalk program; completed 787 sidewalk deficiencies, 552 shaves and 
235 replacements 

 Continued Tree Trimming program 
 
2016‐17 Goals 

 Continue wooden light pole program (City‐wide Goal – Infrastructure) 

 Pavement Management Program projects/slurry seal (City‐wide Goal – Infrastructure) 

 Replace 1/4 of City’s street name signs (City‐wide Goal – Infrastructure) 

 Sidewalk Replacement Program (City‐wide Goal – Infrastructure) 

 Continue implementation of ADA ramp program 

 Re‐rate road conditions for Pavement Management Index 
 
Performance Measures 

Strategy  Measures  FY15 Actual 
FY16 

Projected 
FY17 

Projected

Maintain roads 
and right‐of‐
way to the 
highest quality 
standard 

City‐wide average PCI rating  80  80  80 

Number of streets reconstructed  3  3  3 

Number of street segments 
slurry sealed 

46  68  55 

Feet of cracks  sealed  105771  70,000  70,000 

Maintain street 
signage and 
striping for 
safety 

Number of signs updated  30  40  35 

Number of street miles restriped  15.37  15.37  15.37 

Number of thermo‐plastic street 
legends installed or replaced 

39  45  35 

 

   

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 74 of 107 412



Budget Detail                  Street Capital Fund 

73 
 

FY 2016‐17 Street Capital Projects 

 Sherwood TSP Implementation Refinement, SDC, and Rate Study Project 

 Meinecke/Hwy 99W Intersection Improvements 

 Sunset/Pine St Intersection Improvements 

 Oregon St/Tonquin Rd Predesign Project 

 Langer Farms Parkway Ped. Crossing 

 Edy Road/Borchers Road Intersection  

 Demolition of Derelict House on City Property 
For a complete description of these projects refer to the Debt Service & CIP Section 

 

2013‐14 2014‐15 2015‐16 2016‐17 2016‐17 2016‐17

Actual Actual Budget Proposed Approved Adopted

(restated) RESOURCES

2,195,410$  3,195,894$  2,984,122$  Beginning fund balance  1,995,933$    1,995,933$   

Revenue

‐                   3,261           ‐                   Intergovernmental 158,000         158,000        

53,091         54,195         50,000         Charges for services 50,000           50,000          

1,561,856    201,507       1,794,000    Infrastructure development  496,785         496,785        

14,858         16,242         10,000         Fines, interest and other 13,000           13,000          

1,629,805    275,204       1,854,000    Total revenue 717,785         717,785        

3,825,215    3,471,098    4,838,122    Total resources 2,713,718      2,713,718     

REQUIREMENTS

Expenditures

Personal services

45,677         15,564         6,053           Salaries and wages 52,434           52,434          

3,809           1,360           587              Payroll taxes  5,058             5,058            

17,097         5,402           2,274           Benefits 21,110           21,110          

66,583         22,325         8,914           Total personal services 78,602           78,602          

Materials and services

2,887           46,176         76,580         Professional & technical  5,609             5,609            

‐                   ‐                   ‐                   Facility and equipment 15,000           15,000          

324              388              48                Other purchased services 221                221               

‐                   419              ‐                   Supplies ‐                     ‐                    

44,782         20,247         4,473           Other materials & services 49,822           49,822          

47,993         67,230         81,101         Total materials & services 70,652           70,652          

Capital outlay

‐                   907,615       ‐                   Land ‐                     ‐                    

293,058       13,688         395,500       Infrastructure 461,789         461,789        

293,058       921,303       395,500       Total capital outlay 461,789         461,789        

407,633       1,010,859    485,515       Total expenditures 611,043         611,043        

Other uses

216,198       163,299       650,000       Transfers out 165,371         165,371        

216,198       163,299       650,000       Total other uses 165,371         165,371        

3,201,383    2,296,941    ‐                   Ending Fund Balance ‐                     ‐                    

‐                   ‐                   3,702,607    Reserved for Future Years 1,937,304      1,937,304     

3,825,215    3,471,098    4,838,122    Total requirements 2,713,718      2,713,718     

0.7               0.4               ‐               FTE ‐                 ‐                

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 75 of 107 413



Budget Detail                 Water Fund in Total 

74 
 

Water Fund in Total 

The Water fund consists of two programs: operations and capital. The operations program is 

responsible for ongoing maintenance of the water utility. The capital program is responsible for 

construction of water infrastructure.  

2013‐14 2014‐15 2015‐16 2016‐17 2016‐17 2016‐17

Actual Actual Budget Proposed Approved Adopted

(restated) RESOURCES

6,320,588$   8,386,176$   7,918,805$   Beginning fund balance  8,471,183$     8,471,183$    

Revenue

1,390,365     ‐                    ‐                    Intergovernmental ‐                     ‐                     

4,436,294     4,839,176     4,304,000     Charges for services 5,102,300       5,102,300      

713,041        163,508        1,014,300     Infrastructure development  453,697          453,697         

36,829          44,020          40,000          Fines, interest and other 46,000            46,000           

6,576,529     5,046,704     5,358,300     Total revenue 5,601,997       5,601,997      

12,897,117   13,432,880   13,277,105   Total resources 14,073,180     14,073,180    

REQUIREMENTS

Expenditures

Personal services

367,133        386,100        429,534        Salaries and wages 407,471          407,471         

36,693          39,284          46,763          Payroll taxes  42,078            42,078           

158,520        158,614        184,211        Benefits 172,627          172,627         

562,346        583,998        660,508        Total personal services 622,176          622,176         

Materials and services

976,594        1,399,724     1,590,675     Professional & technical  1,512,300       1,512,300      

83,214          65,261          48,400          Facility and equipment 44,000            44,000           

336,811        361,727        375,910        Other purchased services 400,398          400,398         

382,598        658,728        696,900        Supplies 116,400          116,400         

19,900          5,699            5,000            Minor equipment  9,750              9,750             

251,656        273,281        305,731        Other materials & services 279,503          279,503         

2,050,773     2,764,421     3,022,616     Total materials & services 2,362,351       2,362,351      

Capital outlay

‐                    55,333          282,000        Infrastructure 281,000          206,000         

9,985            ‐                    ‐                    Vehicles ‐                     ‐                     

12,264          65,045          ‐                    Furniture and equipment ‐                     ‐                     

22,249          120,378        282,000        Total capital outlay 281,000          206,000         

2,635,368     3,468,797     3,965,124     Total expenditures 3,265,527       3,190,527      

Debt service

850,621        872,415        899,829        Principal 922,886          922,886         

989,946        965,252        939,838        Interest 913,582          913,582         

1,840,568     1,837,668     1,839,667     Total debt service 1,836,468       1,836,468      

Other uses

‐                    ‐                    20,975          Transfers out 32,259            32,259           

‐                    ‐                    20,975          Total other uses 32,259            32,259           

8,421,181     8,126,416     ‐                    Ending Fund Balance ‐                     ‐                     

‐                    ‐                    218,722        Contingency 424,525          424,525         

‐                    ‐                    130,000        Reserved for Future Years ‐ Maint 30,000            30,000           

‐                    ‐                    1,474,094     Reserved for Future Years ‐ Ops 2,926,748       3,001,748      

‐                    ‐                    5,628,523     Reserved for Future Years ‐ Cap 5,557,653       5,557,653      

12,897,117   13,432,880   13,277,105   Total requirements 14,073,180     14,073,180    

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 76 of 107 414



Budget Detail                     Water Operations 

75 
 

Water Operations 

 
 

 

2013‐14 2014‐15 2015‐16 2016‐17 2016‐17 2016‐17

Actual Actual Budget Proposed Approved Adopted

(restated) RESOURCES

4,100,333$  4,174,976$  3,050,177$  Beginning fund balance  3,354,194$    3,354,194$   

Revenue

4,436,294    4,439,176    4,304,000    Charges for services 5,102,300      5,102,300     

85,030         23,426         9,000           Infrastructure development  9,000             9,000            

23,771         20,614         20,000         Fines, interest and other 25,000           25,000          

4,545,095    4,483,216    4,333,000    Total revenue 5,136,300      5,136,300     

8,645,428    8,658,192    7,383,177    Total resources 8,490,494      8,490,494     

REQUIREMENTS

Expenditures

Personal services

367,039       386,030       426,052       Salaries and wages 402,694         402,694        

36,685         39,278         46,414         Payroll taxes  41,659           41,659          

158,495       158,602       182,665       Benefits 170,682         170,682        

562,300       583,910       655,131       Total personal services 615,035         615,035        

Materials and services

936,151       1,341,042    1,590,675    Professional & technical  1,497,300      1,497,300     

83,214         65,261         48,400         Facility and equipment 44,000           44,000          

336,811       361,727       375,900       Other purchased services 400,360         400,360        

382,598       658,728       696,900       Supplies 116,400         116,400        

19,900         5,699           5,000           Minor equipment  9,750             9,750            

251,656       273,192       302,713       Other materials & services 276,649         276,649        

2,010,330    2,705,650    3,019,588    Total materials & services 2,344,459      2,344,459     

Capital outlay

‐                   55,333         25,000         Infrastructure 281,000         206,000        

9,985           ‐                   ‐                   Vehicles ‐                     ‐                    

12,264         ‐                   ‐                   Furniture and equipment ‐                     ‐                    

22,249         55,333         25,000         Total capital outlay 281,000         206,000        

2,594,879    3,344,893    3,699,719    Total expenditures 3,240,494      3,165,494     

Debt service

850,621       872,415       899,829       Principal 922,886         922,886        

989,946       965,252       939,838       Interest 913,582         913,582        

1,840,568    1,837,668    1,839,667    Total debt service 1,836,468      1,836,468     

Other uses

‐                   ‐                   20,975         Transfers out 32,259           32,259          

‐                   ‐                   20,975         Total other uses 32,259           32,259          

4,209,980    3,475,632    ‐                   Ending Fund Balance ‐                     ‐                    

‐                   ‐                   218,722       Contingency 424,525         424,525        

‐                   ‐                   130,000       Reserved for Future Years ‐ Maint 30,000           30,000          

‐                   ‐                   1,474,094    Reserved for Future Years 2,926,748      3,001,748     

8,645,428    8,658,192    7,383,177    Total requirements 8,490,494      8,490,494     

6.6               6.9               3.0               FTE 3.0                 3.0                

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 77 of 107 415



Budget Detail                     Water Operations 

76 
 

Water Operations  
The Water Operation program’s primary  responsibility  is  to  repair, maintain and expand  the 
water system while providing a high quality, dependable water supply to its customers. 
 
2015‐16 Highlights 

 Completed annual reporting requirements to the State 

 Completed Water Master Plan 

 Completed Water Rate and SDC Study   

 Completed AMI System Installation 

 Coordinate and managed testing of all 2,781 active backflow assemblies 
 
2016‐17 Goals 

 Integrate AMI System efficiency into daily operations (leak detection, customer service, 
etc) (City wide goal – infrastructure) 

 Implement on‐line backflow test reporting for efficient reporting (City wide goal – 
infrastructure) 

 Implement recommended CIP Program (City wide goal – infrastructure) 

 Upgrade Supervisory Control Acquisition Data Advisory (SCADA) System (City wide goal 
– infrastructure) 

 Upgrade fire line to Sherwood Senior Center (City wide goal – infrastructure) 

 Complete IGA for Willamette Governance Group (City wide goal – infrastructure) 

 Perform preventative maintenance on half of public fire hydrants (City wide goal – 
infrastructure) 

 Provide Uni‐Directional flushing program (City wide goal – infrastructure) 

 All Backflow Assemblies tested annually (City wide goal – infrastructure) 
 

  Performance Measures 

Strategy  Measures 
FY15 
Actual 

FY16 
Projected 

FY17 
Projected

Provide clean and 
safe water via an 
efficiently 
maintained and 
operated water 
system 

Million gallons of water used City‐wide 
annually 

689  720  705 

Million gallons of water flushed to 
maintain water quality 

2.5  2.5  2.5 

Number of reservoirs maintained  3  3  3 

Number of pump stations maintained  2  2  2 

Miles of water lines maintained  81  82.3  83 

Active service connections  5,707  5800  5850 

Number of water quality samples taken 
annually 

340  370  370 

Assure back flow 
prevention program 
is current and meets 
all requirements 

Number of backflow systems installed 
within City limits 

2,725  2,800  2,900 

Percentage of backflow systems tested  99.3%  100%  100% 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 78 of 107 416



Budget Detail                    Water Capital 

77 
 

FY 2016‐17 Water Capital Projects  

 Water Treatment Plant Master Plan with TVWD 
For a complete description of these projects refer to Debt Service & CIP section. 

 

2013‐14 2014‐15 2015‐16 2016‐17 2016‐17 2016‐17

Actual Actual Budget Proposed Approved Adopted

RESOURCES

2,220,255$  4,211,200$  4,868,628$  Beginning fund balance  5,116,989$    5,116,989$   

Revenue

1,390,365    ‐                   ‐                   Intergovernmental ‐                     ‐                    

‐                   400,000       ‐                   Charges for services ‐                     ‐                    

628,011       140,082       1,005,300    Infrastructure development  444,697         444,697        

13,058         23,406         20,000         Fines, interest and other 21,000           21,000          

2,031,434    563,488       1,025,300    Total revenue 465,697         465,697        

4,251,689    4,774,688    5,893,928    Total resources 5,582,686      5,582,686     

REQUIREMENTS

Expenditures

Personal services

37                70                3,482           Salaries and wages 4,777             4,777            

3                  6                  349              Payroll taxes  419                419               

6                  12                1,546           Benefits 1,945             1,945            

47                87                5,377           Total personal services 7,141             7,141            

Materials and services

40,443         58,682         ‐                   Professional & technical  15,000           15,000          

‐                   ‐                   10                Other purchased services 38                  38                 

‐                   89                3,018           Other materials & services 2,854             2,854            

40,443         58,771         3,028           Total materials & services 17,892           17,892          

Capital outlay

‐                   ‐                   257,000       Infrastructure ‐                     ‐                    

‐                   65,045         ‐                   Furniture and equipment ‐                     ‐                    

‐                   65,045         257,000       Total capital outlay ‐                     ‐                    

40,489         123,904       265,405       Total expenditures 25,033           25,033          

4,211,200    4,650,784    ‐                   Ending Fund Balance ‐                     ‐                    

‐                   ‐                   5,628,523    Reserved for Future Years 5,557,653      5,557,653     

4,251,689    4,774,688    5,893,928    Total requirements 5,582,686      5,582,686     

‐               ‐               ‐               FTE ‐                 ‐                

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 79 of 107 417



Budget Detail                     Sanitary Fund in Total 

78 
 

Sanitary Fund in Total 

The Sanitary fund consists of two programs: operations and capital. The operations program is 

responsible for ongoing maintenance of the sanitary utility. The capital program is responsible 

for construction of sanitary infrastructure. 

 

2013‐14 2014‐15 2015‐16 2016‐17 2016‐17 2016‐17

Actual Actual Budget Proposed Approved Adopted

(restated) RESOURCES

3,474,815$   3,358,045$   3,128,675$   Beginning fund balance  3,349,537$     3,349,537$    

Revenue

416,201        ‐                    40,000          Intergovernmental 40,000            40,000           

575,710        599,113        590,800        Charges for services 644,520          644,520         

59,565          16,636          334,200        Infrastructure development  53,134            53,134           

20,487          20,450          14,000          Fines, interest and other 19,000            19,000           

1,071,963     636,199        979,000        Total revenue 756,654          756,654         

4,546,778     3,994,244     4,107,675     Total resources 4,106,191       4,106,191      

REQUIREMENTS

Expenditures

Personal services

157,977        165,158        188,765        Salaries and wages 183,104          183,104         

17,141          17,610          20,405          Payroll taxes  18,803            18,803           

62,927          67,740          83,159          Benefits 81,999            81,999           

238,046        250,507        292,329        Total personal services 283,906          283,906         

Materials and services

19,354          42,995          213,537        Professional & technical  127,555          127,555         

15,016          12,844          1,500            Facility and equipment 1,500              1,500             

79,355          85,737          91,327          Other purchased services 100,651          100,651         

42,187          33,663          15,150          Supplies 15,150            15,150           

3,180            2,993            4,100            Minor equipment  10,250            10,250           

120,481        117,452        161,570        Other materials & services 162,634          162,634         

279,572        295,685        487,184        Total materials & services 417,740          417,740         

Capital outlay

638,954        240,617        254,750        Infrastructure 259,260          259,260         

9,985            19,982          ‐                    Vehicles ‐                     ‐                     

9,999            269               ‐                    Furniture and equipment ‐                     ‐                     

658,938        260,868        254,750        Total capital outlay 259,260          259,260         

1,176,556     807,060        1,034,263     Total expenditures 960,906          960,906         

Other uses

‐                    ‐                    22,268          Transfers out 19,831            19,831           

‐                    ‐                    22,268          Total other uses 19,831            19,831           

3,370,222     3,187,183     ‐                    Ending Fund Balance ‐                     ‐                     

‐                    ‐                    29,815          Contingency 32,526            32,526           

‐                    ‐                    30,000          Reserved for Future Years ‐ Maint 30,000            30,000           

‐                    ‐                    313,236        Reserved for Future Years ‐ Ops 439,191          439,191         

‐                    ‐                    2,678,093     Reserved for Future Years ‐ Cap 2,623,737       2,623,737      

4,546,778     3,994,244     4,107,675     Total requirements 4,106,191       4,106,191      

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 80 of 107 418



Budget Detail                 Sanitary Operations 

79 
 

Sanitary Operations 

 

2013‐14 2014‐15 2015‐16 2016‐17 2016‐17 2016‐17

Actual Actual Budget Proposed Approved Adopted

(restated) RESOURCES

379,502$  492,620$   389,450$     Beginning fund balance  495,110$       495,110$      

Revenue

575,710    599,113     590,800       Charges for services 644,520         644,520        

17,179      5,795         1,500           Infrastructure development  1,000             1,000            

5,693        5,606         4,000           Fines, interest and other 5,000             5,000            

598,582    610,514     596,300       Total revenue 650,520         650,520        

978,084    1,103,134  985,750       Total resources 1,145,630      1,145,630     

REQUIREMENTS

Expenditures

Personal services

136,623    154,444     161,610       Salaries and wages 158,396         158,396        

15,380      16,684       17,659         Payroll taxes  16,374           16,374          

53,667      63,565       72,027         Benefits 71,531           71,531          

205,669    234,692     251,296       Total personal services 246,301         246,301        

Materials and services

17,758      41,338       87,825         Professional & technical  113,425         113,425        

15,016      12,844       1,500           Facility and equipment 1,500             1,500            

79,312      85,693       91,193         Other purchased services 100,555         100,555        

42,187      33,663       15,150         Supplies 15,150           15,150          

3,180        2,993         4,100           Minor equipment  10,250           10,250          

90,181      101,669     139,367       Other materials & services 136,901         136,901        

247,634    278,200     339,135       Total materials & services 377,781         377,781        

Capital outlay

‐                146,861     ‐                  Infrastructure ‐                     ‐                    

9,985        19,982       ‐                  Vehicles ‐                     ‐                    

9,999        ‐                 ‐                  Furniture and equipment ‐                     ‐                    

19,984      166,843     ‐                  Total capital outlay ‐                     ‐                    

473,287    679,735     590,431       Total expenditures 624,082         624,082        

Other uses

‐                ‐                 22,268         Transfers out 19,831           19,831          

‐                ‐                 22,268         Total other uses 19,831           19,831          

504,797    423,399     ‐                  Ending Fund Balance ‐                     ‐                    

‐                ‐                 29,815         Contingency 32,526           32,526          

‐                ‐                 30,000         Reserved for Future Years ‐ Maint 30,000           30,000          

‐                ‐                 313,236       Reserved for Future Years 439,191         439,191        

978,084    1,103,134  985,750       Total requirements 1,145,630      1,145,630     

2.5            2.6             3.0               FTE 3.0                 3.0                

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 81 of 107 419



Budget Detail                 Sanitary Operations 

80 
 

Sanitary Operations  

The Sanitary Operations program manages and operates over 63 miles of pipe ranging  in size 
from 6”‐21”  in  the wastewater collection system  in  the City  limits of Sherwood. The Sanitary 
Operations program maintains and operates a safe and reliable wastewater collection system 
that  protects  public  health,  protects  the  environment,  and meets  or  exceeds  all  regulatory 
standards. 
 
2015‐16 Highlights 

 Met all required CWS performance measures 

 Cleaned 125,000 feet of sanitary main lines, 1/4 of our Sanitary System 

 Videoed 40,000 feet of sanitary main lines, 1/8 of our Sanitary System 

 Completed brushing and posting program 

 Completed annual inspections at City businesses to ensure Fat Oil and Grease (FOG) 
compliance 

 Provide semi‐annual cleaning of sanitary sewer mainlines which are inherent to FOG 
from our food establishments 

 
2016‐17 Goals 

 Meet CWS performance measures (City‐wide Value – Community Partnerships) 

 1/2 of the sanitary collections system to be NASSCO rated (City‐wide Goal – 
Infrastructure) 

 Continue to increase public awareness of FOG (City‐wide Goal – Infrastructure) 

 No sanitary sewer overflows (City‐wide Goal – Infrastructure) 
 
Performance Measures 

Strategy  Measures 
FY15 
Actual 

FY16 
Projected 

FY17 
Projected

Scheduled 
maintenance of 
wastewater 
infrastructure 

Total feet of sanitary lines  316,433  319,000  320,000 

Percentage of lines cleaned   39%  34%  37% 

Percentage of lines video 
inspected 

13%  25%  15% 

Number of overflows or backups  0  0  0 

Percentage of businesses 
inspected and in compliance 
with City’s FOG Program 

100%  100%  100% 

Percentage of manholes 
inspected 

50%  50%  50% 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 82 of 107 420



Budget Detail                 Sanitary Capital 

81 
 

FY 2016‐17 Sanitary Capital Projects  

 Old Town Mid‐block Sewer Repair 

 Sherwood Sanitary Sewer SDC and Rate Study 

 Sunset Boulevard Sanitary Sewer Extension Project 
For a complete description of these projects refer to Debt Service & CIP section.  

 

2013‐14 2014‐15 2015‐16 2016‐17 2016‐17 2016‐17

Actual Actual Budget Proposed Approved Adopted

RESOURCES

3,095,313$  2,865,425$  2,739,225$  Beginning fund balance  2,854,427$    2,854,427$   

Revenue

416,201       ‐                   40,000         Intergovernmental 40,000           40,000          

42,386         10,841         332,700       Infrastructure development  52,134           52,134          

14,794         14,844         10,000         Fines, interest and other 14,000           14,000          

473,381       25,685         382,700       Total revenue 106,134         106,134        

3,568,694    2,891,110    3,121,925    Total resources 2,960,561      2,960,561     

REQUIREMENTS

Expenditures

Personal services

21,355         10,714         27,155         Salaries and wages 24,708           24,708          

1,761           926              2,746           Payroll taxes  2,429             2,429            

9,260           4,175           11,132         Benefits 10,468           10,468          

32,376         15,815         41,033         Total personal services 37,605           37,605          

Materials and services

1,596           1,658           125,712       Professional & technical  14,130           14,130          

42                44                134              Other purchased services 96                  96                 

‐                   ‐                   ‐                   Supplies ‐                     ‐                    

30,300         15,783         22,203         Other materials & services 25,733           25,733          

31,938         17,484         148,049       Total materials & services 39,959           39,959          

Capital outlay

638,954       93,756         254,750       Infrastructure 259,260         259,260        

‐                   269              ‐                   Furniture and equipment ‐                     ‐                    

638,954       94,025         254,750       Total capital outlay 259,260         259,260        

703,269       127,325       443,832       Total expenditures 336,824         336,824        

2,865,425    2,763,785    ‐                   Ending Fund Balance ‐                     ‐                    

‐                   ‐                   2,678,093    Reserved for Future Years 2,623,737      2,623,737     

3,568,694    2,891,110    3,121,925    Total requirements 2,960,561      2,960,561     

0.3               0.2               ‐               FTE ‐                 ‐                

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 83 of 107 421



Budget Detail                 Storm Fund in Total 

82 
 

Storm Fund in Total 

The Storm fund consists of two programs: operations and capital. The operations program is 

responsible for ongoing maintenance of the stormwater utility. The capital program is 

responsible for construction of stormwater infrastructure.  

2013‐14 2014‐15 2015‐16 2016‐17 2016‐17 2016‐17

Actual Actual Budget Proposed Approved Adopted

(restated) RESOURCES

1,948,537$   2,624,791$   1,992,830$   Beginning fund balance  2,292,843$     2,292,843$    

Revenue

1,619,100     1,727,594     1,662,000     Charges for services 1,868,454       1,868,454      

163,421        7,652            92,100          Infrastructure development  64,004            64,004           

12,292          13,243          12,500          Fines, interest and other 11,000            11,000           

1,794,813     1,748,489     1,766,600     Total revenue 1,943,458       1,943,458      

Other sources

‐                    ‐                    ‐                    Transfers in 400,000          400,000         

‐                    ‐                    ‐                    Total other sources 400,000          400,000         

3,743,350     4,373,280     3,759,430     Total resources 4,636,301       4,636,301      

REQUIREMENTS

Expenditures

Personal services

223,069        209,175        290,233        Salaries and wages 272,621          272,621         

25,827          23,898          32,783          Payroll taxes  29,475            29,475           

89,640          86,534          115,768        Benefits 109,859          109,859         

338,536        319,607        438,784        Total personal services 411,955          411,955         

Materials and services

236,881        142,956        401,725        Professional & technical  336,375          336,375         

12,065          13,717          5,000            Facility and equipment 5,000              5,000             

115,556        116,696        123,162        Other purchased services 130,624          130,624         

47,367          13,620          30,400          Supplies 60,900            60,900           

7,271            10,978          3,600            Minor equipment  12,750            12,750           

162,784        188,137        226,809        Other materials & services 207,173          207,173         

581,924        486,103        790,696        Total materials & services 752,822          752,822         

Capital outlay

121,913        823,097        900,000        Infrastructure 558,963          558,963         

‐                    4,600            ‐                    Other improvements ‐                     ‐                     

9,985            19,982          ‐                    Vehicles ‐                     ‐                     

40,540          50,725          ‐                    Furniture and equipment ‐                     ‐                     

172,438        898,404        900,000        Total capital outlay 558,963          558,963         

1,092,898     1,704,114     2,129,480     Total expenditures 1,723,740       1,723,740      

Other uses

‐                    ‐                    22,768          Transfers out 435,597          435,597         

‐                    ‐                    22,768          Total other uses 435,597          435,597         

2,650,452     2,669,166     ‐                    Ending Fund Balance ‐                     ‐                     

‐                    ‐                    112,903        Contingency 179,952          179,952         

‐                    ‐                    40,000          Reserved for Future Years ‐ Maint 40,000            40,000           

‐                    ‐                    819,039        Reserved for Future Years ‐ Ops 1,549,421       1,549,421      

‐                    ‐                    635,240        Reserved for Future Years ‐ Cap 707,592          707,592         

3,743,350     4,373,280     3,759,430     Total requirements 4,636,301       4,636,301      

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 84 of 107 422



Budget Detail                     Storm Operations 

83 
 

Storm Operations 

 

2013‐14 2014‐15 2015‐16 2016‐17 2016‐17 2016‐17

Actual Actual Budget Proposed Approved Adopted

(restated) RESOURCES

693,747$   1,344,905$  988,561$     Beginning fund balance  1,719,082$    1,719,082$   

Revenue

1,619,100  1,327,534    1,262,000    Charges for services 1,868,454      1,868,454     

17,153       5,795           500              Infrastructure development  500                500               

5,332         7,301           7,000           Fines, interest and other 11,000           11,000          

1,641,585  1,340,630    1,269,500    Total revenue 1,879,954      1,879,954     

2,335,332  2,685,535    2,258,061    Total resources 3,599,036      3,599,036     

REQUIREMENTS

Expenditures

Personal services

211,029     183,957       241,233       Salaries and wages 261,750         261,750        

24,831       21,727         27,755         Payroll taxes  28,414           28,414          

84,650       76,076         95,262         Benefits 105,667         105,667        

320,510     281,760       364,250       Total personal services 395,831         395,831        

Materials and services

236,813     142,671       301,725       Professional & technical  260,375         260,375        

12,065       13,717         5,000           Facility and equipment 5,000             5,000            

113,461     116,635       123,037       Other purchased services 130,557         130,557        

47,367       13,620         30,400         Supplies 60,900           60,900          

7,271         10,978         3,600           Minor equipment  12,750           12,750          

144,333     148,060       185,339       Other materials & services 198,654         198,654        

561,311     445,680       649,101       Total materials & services 668,236         668,236        

Capital outlay

32,421       244,895       250,000       Infrastructure 330,000         330,000        

9,985         19,982         ‐                  Vehicles ‐                     ‐                    

40,540       50,725         ‐                  Furniture and equipment ‐                     ‐                    

82,946       315,602       250,000       Total capital outlay 330,000         330,000        

964,766     1,043,042    1,263,351    Total expenditures 1,394,067      1,394,067     

Other uses

‐                 ‐                   22,768         Transfers out 435,597         435,597        

‐                 ‐                   22,768         Total other uses 435,597         435,597        

1,370,566  1,642,492    ‐                  Ending Fund Balance ‐                     ‐                    

‐                 ‐                   112,903       Contingency 179,952         179,952        

‐                 ‐                   40,000         Reserved for Future Years ‐ Maint 40,000           40,000          

‐                 ‐                   819,039       Reserved for Future Years 1,549,421      1,549,421     

2,335,332  2,685,535    2,258,061    Total requirements 3,599,036      3,599,036     

4.1             3.5               2.0               FTE 2.0                 2.0                

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 85 of 107 423



Budget Detail                     Storm Operations 

84 
 

Storm Operations  

The Storm Operations program provides a safe and reliable storm water system and implements 
watershed protection and restoration actions that consistently promote surface water quality 
and stream health. 
 
2015‐16 Highlights 

 Cleaned 61,000 feet of storm water main lines 

 Completed signage of Storm Water Quality Facilities 

 Cleaned/inspected 1,946 catch basins 

 Cleaned 82 water quality manholes semi‐annually 

 Treated 1,708 catch basins for prevention of West Nile Virus 

 Completed leaf curbside pickup for all public City streets and held 1 leaf drop off date at 
public works facility; collecting 1,200 yards of leaves and 40 lbs. of canned food 

 Planted 3,300 trees in compliance with Healthy Streams program 

 Completed monthly street sweeping 
 
2016‐17 Goals 

 Meet CWS Performance Standards (City‐wide Value – Community Partnerships) 

 All private Water Quality Facilities (WQF) are operational (City‐wide Goal – 
Infrastructure) 

 Perform monthly street sweeping (City‐wide Goal – Infrastructure), increase sweeping 
schedule to Tualatin‐Sherwood Rd and downtown streets 

 Retro‐fit four (4) unsumped catch basins to sumped (City‐wide Goal – Infrastructure) 

 Rehabilitate four (4) public WQF’s, continue to increase % of functional facilities (City‐
wide Goal – Infrastructure) 

 
Performance Measures 

Strategy  Measures 
FY15 
Actual 

FY16 
Projected 

FY17 
Projected

Scheduled 
maintenance of 
stormwater 
infrastructure 

Total feet of storm lines  323,989  334,000  336,000 

Percentage of system videoed  13%  13%  13% 

Percentage of storm lines cleaned  18%  16%  16% 

Total number of sumped catch 
basins 

1,648  1,708  1730 

Percentage of catch basins 
cleaned  

100  100  100 

Number of WQFs 
rehabilitated/enhanced  

2  4  4 

 

 

 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 86 of 107 424



Budget Detail                                         Storm Capital 

85 
 

 

FY2016‐17 Storm Capital Projects 

 Stormwater Master Plan 

 Columbia Street Regional Storm Water Quality Facility 

 Oregon St. Regional Storm Water Facility 

 2nd & Park St. Stormwater Facility Rehabilitation 
For a complete description of these projects refer to Debt Service & CIP section. 

 

   

2013‐14 2014‐15 2015‐16 2016‐17 2016‐17 2016‐17

Actual Actual Budget Proposed Approved Adopted

RESOURCES

1,254,790$  1,279,886$  1,004,269$  Beginning fund balance  573,761$       573,761$      

Revenue

‐                   400,060       400,000       Charges for services ‐                     ‐                    

146,268       1,857           91,600         Infrastructure development  63,504           63,504          

6,960           5,942           5,500           Fines, interest and other ‐                     ‐                    

153,228       407,859       497,100       Total revenue 63,504           63,504          

Other sources

‐                   ‐                   ‐                   Transfers in 400,000         400,000        

‐                   ‐                   ‐                   Total other sources 400,000         400,000        

1,408,018    1,687,745    1,501,369    Total resources 1,037,265      1,037,265     

REQUIREMENTS

Expenditures

Personal services

12,040         25,218         49,000         Salaries and wages 10,871           10,871          

997              2,171           5,028           Payroll taxes  1,061             1,061            

4,990           10,458         20,506         Benefits 4,192             4,192            

18,026         37,847         74,534         Total personal services 16,124           16,124          

Materials and services

68                285              100,000       Professional & technical  76,000           76,000          

2,095           61                125              Other purchased services 67                  67                 

‐                   ‐                   ‐                   Supplies ‐                     ‐                    

18,451         40,077         41,470         Other materials & services 8,519             8,519            

20,613         40,423         141,595       Total materials & services 84,586           84,586          

Capital outlay

89,492         578,202       650,000       Infrastructure 228,963         228,963        

‐                   4,600           ‐                   Other improvements ‐                     ‐                    

89,492         582,802       650,000       Total capital outlay 228,963         228,963        

128,132       661,072       866,129       Total expenditures 329,673         329,673        

1,279,886    1,026,674    ‐                   Ending Fund Balance ‐                     ‐                    

‐                   ‐                   635,240       Reserved for Future Years 707,592         707,592        

1,408,018    1,687,745    1,501,369    Total requirements 1,037,265      1,037,265     

0.2               0.4               ‐               FTE ‐                 ‐                

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 87 of 107 425



Budget Detail                           Telecommunications 

86 

Telecommunications Fund 

 
 

 

 

 

 

2013‐14 2014‐15 2015‐16 2016‐17 2016‐17 2016‐17

Actual Actual Budget Proposed Approved Adopted

(restated) RESOURCES

63,204$    67,091$    102,598$     Beginning fund balance  205,297$       205,297$      

Revenue

385,288    487,387    470,238       Charges for services 468,860         468,860        

346           498           400              Fines, interest and other 1,200             1,200            

385,634    487,885    470,638       Total revenue 470,060         470,060        

448,838    554,976    573,236       Total resources 675,357         675,357        

REQUIREMENTS

Expenditures

Personal services

28,125      20,160      33,803         Salaries and wages 77,571           77,571          

2,389        1,807        3,247           Payroll taxes  6,934             6,934            

11,201      7,864        8,319           Benefits 26,173           26,173          

41,715      29,832      45,369         Total personal services 110,678         110,678        

Materials and services

12,405      22,718      46,000         Professional & technical  15,000           15,000          

42,446      16,654      18,400         Facility and equipment 29,050           29,050          

84,973      120,784    92,204         Other purchased services 93,752           93,752          

6,268        9,044        20,000         Supplies 20,000           20,000          

20,893      27,868      15,000         Minor equipment  15,000           15,000          

18,888      14,621      18,659         Other materials & services 60,249           60,249          

185,873    211,688    210,263       Total materials & services 233,051         233,051        

Capital outlay

‐               ‐               10,000         Infrastructure 50,000           50,000          

‐               ‐               45,000         Furniture and equipment 10,000           10,000          

‐               ‐               55,000         Total capital outlay 60,000           60,000          

227,588    241,520    310,632       Total expenditures 403,729         403,729        

Debt service

147,431    148,359    179,874       Principal ‐                     ‐                    

2,569        1,641        900              Interest ‐                     ‐                    

150,000    150,000    180,774       Total debt service ‐                     ‐                    

71,250      163,456    ‐                  Ending Fund Balance ‐                     ‐                    

‐               ‐               18,088         Contingency 23,503           23,503          

‐               ‐               63,742         Reserved for Future Years 248,125         248,125        

448,838    554,976    573,236       Total requirements 675,357         675,357        

0.4            0.3            ‐              FTE 1.0                 1.0                

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 88 of 107 426



Budget Detail                           Telecommunications 

87 

Telecommunications 

The Telecommunications fund supports the communication needs of the City, local businesses, 
school district, and residents. Services within this utility are primarily sold and managed through 
third party service providers. Currently there are over 70 sites within this network and over 100 
miles of fiber optic cable. 
 
Telecommunications also support economic development within Sherwood and the surrounding 
area. 
 
2015‐16 Highlights 

 Utility is debt free, all General Fund debt has been paid back 

 Revised the Sherwood Broadband Business Plan (expected in June ’16) 

 Renewed customer contracts at 3 and 5 year terms 

 Added a few new customers and added new services to some existing customers 

 Purchased a fiber optic splicer so staff can do some its own fiber maintenance 

 Increased revenue over FY 15/16 projections 

 Purchased fiber management software to better manage the utility’s assets 

 Constructed fiber to the Historical Society and provided free wired and wireless access 
2016‐17 Goals 

 Maintain current customers and total revenue stream  

 Purchase a fiber splicing trailer to increase fiber maintenance abilities 

 Re‐Inventory and document all utility assets and integrate them into the fiber            
management software 

 Construct fiber to a few business districts in Sherwood that are currently not served 

 Evaluate and implement a residential service pilot project, if approved by Council 
 
Performance Measures 

Strategy  Measures 
FY15 
Actual 

FY16 
Projected

FY17 
Projected

Provide quality 
broadband 
services to the 
business 
community 

Total number of customers (SBB & 
Partner) 

63  63  63 

Number of new customers (SBB & Partner)  22  1  0 

Number of customers lost (SBB & Partner)  1  1  0 

Total operating revenue  $479,000  $505,000  $470,000 

 

 

 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 89 of 107 427



 

88 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 90 of 107 428



Appendix                                    FTE Schedule 

89 
 

Personnel FTE Comparison to Prior Years 

 

 

Adopted Proposed Approved

2012‐13 2013‐14 2014‐15 2015‐16 2016‐17 2016‐17

Actual Actual Actual Budget* Budget* Budget*

Administration 15.6             16.5             16.2             20.0             19.9             19.9            

Community Development 8.6               9.7               12.9             15.5             16.0             16.0            

Public Safety 25.6             26.6             25.3             26.0             25.5             26.0            

Community Services 13.4             13.8             15.9             18.3             19.4             19.4            

Public Works Operations 10.9             11.9             13.8             23.5             23.2             23.2            

General Fund Total 74.1             78.4             84.1             103.3           104.0           104.5          

Water Operations 7.3               6.6               6.9               3.0               3.0               3.0              

Water Capital 0.05             ‐               ‐               ‐               ‐               ‐              

Water Fund Total 7.4               6.6               6.9               3.0               3.0               3.0              

Sanitary Operations 2.9               2.5               2.6               3.0               3.0               3.0              

Sanitary Capital 0.3               0.3               0.2               ‐               ‐               ‐              

Sanitary Fund Total 3.2               2.8               2.8               3.0               3.0               3.0              

Storm Operations 4.4               4.1               3.5               2.0               2.0               2.0              

Storm Capital 0.1               0.2               0.4               ‐               ‐               ‐              

Storm Fund Total 4.5               4.2               3.9               2.0               2.0               2.0              

Street Operations 3.8               3.5               3.1               1.0               1.0               1.0              

Street Capital 0.9               0.7               0.4               ‐               ‐               ‐              

General Construction 0.2               0.3               0.3               ‐               ‐               ‐              

Telecom 0.1               0.4               0.3               ‐               1.0               1.0              

URA Operations 0.5               0.3               0.3               ‐               ‐               ‐              

URA Capital 0.9               0.7               0.7               ‐               ‐               ‐              

Total 96.5             97.9             102.8           112.3           114.0           114.5          

Planning

Code Compliance (0.5 FTE) 0.5              

Community Services

Youth Services Librarian I (0.5 FTE) 0.5              

Library Assistant II  (0.20 FTE) 0.2              

Telecom

Senior Network Engineer 1.0              

2.2              

*  This table reflects a change of FTE count allocated based on home department of the employee,

    rather than based on time worked allocation.

Changes to personnel for Approved FY2016‐17

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 91 of 107 429



Appendix                           Salary Schedules 

90 

Management/Supervisory/Confidential (Effective July 1, 2016) 

  Group  Minimum  Maximum  Minimum  Maximum 
Position  Range  Hourly  Hourly  Monthly  Monthly 

Admin Asst III ‐ Confidential  A1  19.93  25.51  3,454  4,422 

Payroll Finance Tech  A2  21.92  28.06  3,799  4,864 

Program/Project Supervisor II 
Legal Assistant 

B  24.11  30.86  4,179  5,350 

Program Project Manager I  
PW Operations Supervisor 
Program Analyst 
Supervising Librarian 
Recreation Supervisor 
Human Resource Analyst 
Court Supervisor 

C  26.51  33.93  4,595  5,882 

PW Operations Supervisor II 
Engineering Associate II 
System Administrator 
Senior IT Analyst 
Cultural Arts Center Manager 

D  28.91  29.63  5,011  6,414 

Civil Engineer 
Police Sgt (non‐exempt) 
Planning Manager 
Utility Manager 

E  31.52  40.34  5,463  6,993 

Building Official 
Library Manager 

F  34.03  43.56  5,899  7,551 

Police Captain  
Senior Network Engineer 

G  36.75  47.05  6,370  8,154 

City Engineer  H  39.32  50.33  6,815  8,724 

IT Director 
Community Develop Director 
Finance Director 
Public Works Director  
Community Services Director 

I  42.07  53.86  7,293  9,335 

Police Chief 
Assistant City Manager 

J  45.02  57.64  7,804  9,990 

City Manager 
City Recorder 
Municipal Judge 
City Attorney 

Contract Employees     

 

 

 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 92 of 107 430



Appendix                           Salary Schedules 

91 

 

SPOA/AFSCME (Effective July 1, 2016) 

 

SPOA Represented  Group  Minimum Maximum Minimum  Maximum 
  Range  Hourly  Hourly  Monthly  Monthly 

Police Officer    26.06  33.25  4,516  5,764 

AFSCME Represented           

Library Page I 
Recreational Assistant 

1  11.51  14.74  1,996  2,555 

Library Page II  2  13.47  17.24  2,334  2,988 

Library Asst. I 
Admin Asst. I 
Recreation Specialist 

3  15.49  19.83  2,686  3,438 

Admin Asst II 
Library Asst II 
Maintenance Worker I 

4  17.50  22.40  3,033  3,883 

Maintenance Worker II 
Billing Tech 
Admin Asst. III 
Engineering Tech I 

5  19.43  24.87  3,367  4,311 

Finance Tech 
Code Compliance 
Evidence Tech 
Department/Program Coord 
Lead Utility Billing Tech 
Maintenance Worker III 
Permit Specialist 
Public Works Tech 
Mechanic 
Events & Volunteer Coordinator 
Engineering Tech II 
Librarian 

6  21.37  27.35  3,704  4,741 

Youth Services Librarian 
Maintenance Worker Lead 
Accountant 
Assistant Planner 

7  23.28  29.81  4,036  5,166 

Associate Planner 
Engineering Associate I 
Inspector I 

8  25.39  32.50  4,401  5,633 

Inspector II  9  27.43  35.11  4,7544,721  6,086 

Senior Planner  10  29.34  37.56  5,086  6,511 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 93 of 107 431



Appendix                           Financial Policies 

92 

Overview of Financial Policies 

Purpose 

In order to carry out the mission of the City of Sherwood and support the City's values, this set of 

financial policies has been created by the City of Sherwood. 

The purpose of these financial policies is to provide a cohesive long term approach to financial 

management  of  the  City  of  Sherwood.  These  policies  establish  a means  for  guiding  today's 

financial decisions  in order  to achieve  the mission of  the City of Sherwood  in a manner  that 

reflects the City's values. 

Goal 

The  goal  of  these  policies  is  to  provide  the  financial  stability  needed  to  navigate  through 

economic changes, adjust to changes in the service requirements of the community and respond 

to other changes as they affect the City's residents. 

Responsibilities 

1. Stewardship:  The  City  of  Sherwood  is  a  steward  of  public  funds.  These  funds  are 
entrusted to the City through the payment of taxes, fees, and fund transfers from other 
governments.  The  City  of  Sherwood  is  responsible  for  using  all  funds  efficiently  and 
effectively and for the purposes for which they were intended.  

2. Asset Protection: The assets of the City of Sherwood exist in a variety of forms. All these 
assets must be protected through an effective accounting and  internal control System. 
The System must track assets and document the costs of acquisition, maintenance, and 
replacement. 

3. Legal Conformance: The City of Sherwood is subject to federal, state, and local statutes 
and rules regarding purchasing, entering into debt, budgeting, accounting, and auditing: 
regulations that govern virtually all financial transactions. The City also voluntarily enters 
into contracts which include significant financial and operational covenants. The City of 
Sherwood  is  responsible  for  conforming  to  laws,  rules,  and  covenants  to which  it  is 
subject. 

4. Standards: The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) and the Governmental 
Accounting  Standards  Board  (GASB)  set  polices  and  guidelines  for  public  sector 
accounting and financial reporting. The City of Sherwood  is responsible for adhering to 
the  requirements  of  these  organizations  and  for  seeking  guidance  from  policies, 
standards and best practices set forth by these organizations. 

5. Authority: The Sherwood City Council  is  the  sole authority  for deleting, modifying, or 
adding to these policies. Every two years, the Council shall engage the Budget Committee 
to review and update these policies' 
 

 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 94 of 107 432



Appendix                           Financial Policies 

93 

Policy 1 ‐ Funds 

1. The City of Sherwood will maintain an orderly and  logical fund structure that provides 
stakeholders with ready access to financial information. 

2. The City of Sherwood will conform to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) 
and  the Government Finance Officers Association’s best practices  for establishing and 
maintaining funds. 

3. The City of Sherwood will establish and maintain those funds required by law and sound 
financial  administration.  Acknowledging  that  unnecessary  funds  result  in  inflexibility, 
complexity, and inefficient financial administration, only the minimum number of funds 
consistent with legal and operating requirements will be established.  

4. The criteria for establishing a new fund are variable, but include triggers such as; 

a. Inauguration of a new dedicated revenue stream and a concurrent service. 
b. The need for increased clarity of financial information. 
c. The establishment of a new enterprise. 
d. Covenants embodied in financing agreements. 
e. Changes in state law or financial management/accounting standards. 

5. Only the Sherwood City Council has the authority to create or delete funds. The Council 
shall create or delete funds by resolution.  

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 95 of 107 433



Appendix                           Financial Policies 

94 

Policy 2 ‐ Budgeting 

1. The  City  of  Sherwood  budget  process  shall  consist  of  activities  that  encompass  the 
development, implementation, and evaluation of a plan for the provision of services and 
capital assets. 

2. The purpose of  the budget process  is  to help decision makers make  informed choices 
about  the  provision  of  services  and  capital  assets  and  to  promote  stakeholder 
participation in the process.  

3. The City of Sherwood budget process shall: 

a. Incorporate a long term perspective (minimum three fiscal years) 
b. Establish linkages to broad organizational goals 
c. Focus budget decisions on results and outcomes 
d. Involve and promote effective communication with stakeholders 

4. All budgetary procedures will  conform  to existing  state  and  local  regulations. Oregon 
budget  law requires each  local government to prepare a balanced budget and Oregon 
Administrative Rules state:  

a. The budget must be constructed  in such a manner that the total resources  in a 
fund equal the total of expenditures and requirements for that fund, and  

b. The  total  of  all  resources  of  the  municipality  must  equal  the  total  of  all 
expenditures and all requirements for the municipality.  

5. A  cost  allocation  plan will  be  developed  and  incorporated  into  the City  of  Sherwood 
budget. The cost allocation plan will be the basis for distribution of general government 
and internal service costs to other funds, divisions, and capital projects.  

6. The Sherwood City Council shall adopt the budget at the fund, division, or program level 
(as  appropriate  to  each  fund)  as  a  total  dollar  amount  for  all  appropriations  except 
contingency, unappropriated ending  fund balance and  reserves, which  shall be  stated 
separately.  

7. Inter‐fund Transfers shall be kept to a minimum. Inter‐fund loans shall be documented in 
a resolution that cites the terms of the loan. 

8. As part of the annual budget process, the City of Sherwood will maintain a three‐year 
revenue  and  expenditure  forecast.  This  forecast  will  be  created  using  an  objective, 
analytical process incorporating applicable projections from the State of Oregon’s latest 
Economic  Forecast  and  conservative  assumptions where  State  developed  data  is  not 
available. Revenues will be estimated realistically and prudently using best practices as 
defined by the Government Finance Officers Association. Revenues shall be forecasted 
conservatively. 

 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 96 of 107 434



Appendix                           Financial Policies 

95 

Policy 2 – Budgeting (Continued) 

9. Oregon budget law provides a means to adjust the budget for emergency expenditures 
or unforeseen circumstances. All resolutions adjusting the budget will be prepared by the 
Finance department for City Council approval to ensure compliance with budget laws.  

10. Prior to submittal to City Council, the Budget Officer will convene the Budget Committee 
to review supplemental budget resolutions. If time does not allow for this action, Budget 
Committee members  shall be  informed of  the City Council’s  action on  the  resolution 
promptly.  

11. A mid‐year review process will be conducted by the City Manager and Finance Director in 
order to make any necessary adjustments to the Proposed budget.  

12. In the City’s effort to strive for excellence, the City of Sherwood will make every effort to 
obtain the Award for Distinguished Budget Presentation from the Government Finance 
Officers Association (GFOA).  

13. Reports comparing actual  to budgeted expenditures will be prepared quarterly by  the 
Finance Department and distributed to the City Council, City Manager and Department 
Directors.   

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 97 of 107 435



Appendix                           Financial Policies 

96 

Policy 3 ‐ Revenue  

1. City of Sherwood revenues are either unrestricted or dedicated. Unrestricted revenues 
can be used for any purpose. Dedicated revenues are restricted in the ways they can be 
used by federal or state regulations, contractual obligations, or by City Council action. The 
City of Sherwood will adhere to the restrictions applied to dedicated revenues. 

2. The  City  of  Sherwood  will  maintain  a  diversified  revenue  stream  that  is  managed 
strategically to mitigate the impact of short term fluctuations in any revenue source. 

3. The City of Sherwood will identify sustainable revenue levels and, to the extent possible, 
current operations will be funded by current sustainable revenues.  

4. One‐time revenues will be used for one‐time expenditures or as contributions to reserves 
and will not be used to pay for established services.  

5. The  City  of  Sherwood  will  not  respond  to  long‐term  revenue  shortfalls  with  deficit 
financing and borrowing to support established services. Expenses will be reduced and/or 
revenues will be increased to conform to the long‐term revenue forecasts. 

6. During the budget process, the Sherwood City Council will identify those programs which 
are to be supported in whole by cost recovery and ensure that revenue collections reflect 
the cost of providing associated services by adjusting fees accordingly. 

7. The City of Sherwood will charge fees for services where such an approach is permissible, 
and where  a  limited  and  specific  group of beneficiaries who  can pay  such  charges  is 
identifiable. 

8. New or expanded unrestricted revenue streams should first be applied to support existing 
programs. When existing programs are adequately funded, such revenue may be used as 
contributions to reserves or to fund new or expanded programs. 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 98 of 107 436



Appendix                           Financial Policies 

97 

Policy 4 ‐ Expenditures 

Controls 

1. By resolutions, the City Council will establish a purchasing policy that conforms to state 
statutory requirements for purchasing and contracting and invests the City Manager with 
purchasing and contracting authority. 

2. By Budget and Supplemental Budget Resolutions, the City Council shall establish and limit 
expenditure  appropriations  by  statutory  categories.  The  City  Manager  shall  be 
responsible for limiting expenditures to those appropriation levels.  

Specific Expenditures 

1. Personal  Services.  Pursuant  to  the  City  Charter,  the  City  Manager  or  designee  is 
responsible  for  the  management  of  employee  staffing  and  compensation.  The  City 
Manager  or  designee  shall  negotiate  salaries  and  benefits  for  represented  employee 
groups in conformance with the Oregon Public Employees Collective Bargaining Act and 
the Employee Relations Board decisions and arbitration decisions that emanate from the 
Act.  

2. Capital Improvement Impacts. Whenever Capital Improvement expenditures will result 
in increases to future operating expenses or asset replacement contributions, estimates 
of those impacts shall be incorporated into the long term financial plan. 

3. Capital Outlay. By resolution, the City Council shall define the characteristics of a capital 
asset by specifying the minimum purchase price and minimum term of service. The City 
will provide for adequate maintenance of Capital Assets.   

4. Capital Improvement Plan. The City Manager or designee will prepare a five‐year Capital 
Improvement  Plan  (CIP)  annually  and  submit  it  to  the  City  Council  for  approval  via 
resolution.  

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 99 of 107 437



Appendix                           Financial Policies 

98 

Policy 5 ‐ Revenue Constraints and Fund Balance  

Nature of Constraints 

The  City  of  Sherwood  will  maintain  the  following  categories  of  revenue  constraints  in 

conformance  with  GASB  54.  Fund  Balances  shall  be  accounted  for  on  the  basis  of  these 

categories.  

1. Non‐spendable.  Assets that are not in a spendable form or are required to be maintained 
intact.  

2. Restricted. Cash that can be spent only for specific purposes stipulated by third parties 
or by statutes. Only the constraining party can lift constraints on Restricted funds. 

3. Committed.   Cash  that can be used only as directed by  formal action of City Council. 
Council action may be in the form of a motion or resolution. Only the City Council can lift 
constraints on committed funds. Such a change must be made using the same action that 
established the constraint. 

4. Assigned. Cash the City intends to use for specific purposes. The City Council delegates 
the  authority  to  create  this  constraint  to  the City Manager.  In  addition,  for  all  funds 
except  the  general  fund,  all  cash  not  in  one  of  the  Non‐spendable,  Restricted,  or 
Committed categories, or  specifically assigned under  this category will, by default, be 
assigned to this category. 

5. Unassigned. General Fund  cash  that  is not otherwise  categorized  fund balance  is  the 
residual classification for the general fund and includes all amounts not contained in the 
other classifications. 

Other Considerations 

1. Stabilization. The purpose of stabilization arrangements is to provide a revenue source 
to maintain service delivery during periods of diminished revenues. The City may choose 
to create stabilization arrangements either by creating new funds or dedicating revenues 
within existing funds. Stabilization arranges will be created by the City Council and the 
authorizing  legislation  shall  include  the  policies  on  funding  and  accessing  the 
arrangement. 

2. Order of Use. If multiple categories of fund balance are applicable to an expenditure, the 
City  shall  access  funds  in  the  following  order:  Restricted,  Committed,  Assigned, 
Unassigned.  

3. Purpose of Special Revenue Funds. Special Revenue funds are general government funds 
created  to  track  the use of dedicated  revenues. The City  legislation creating a  special 
revenue fund will specify which specific revenues and other resources are authorized to 
be reported in the fund.  

4. Fund  Balance.    Unrestricted  fund  balance  is  the  sum  of  Committed,  Assigned  and 
Unassigned fund balance in any individual fund. In the General Fund, the City will maintain 
an Unrestricted fund balance of at  least ten percent of fund revenue and will strive to 
increase that amount by 1.5% annually to a goal of 20%.  

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 100 of 107 438



Appendix                           Financial Policies 

99 

Policy 6 ‐ Continuing Disclosure  

Continuing Disclosure In General 

Issuers of municipal securities and entities working on their behalf disclose material information 

to the marketplace such as annual financial information and material event notices. In December 

2008,  the  Securities and Exchange Commission directed  the Municipal  Securities Rulemaking 

Board  to establish a continuing disclosure  service of  the MSRB’s Electronic Municipal Market 

Access (EMMA) system effective July 1, 2009. The continuing disclosure service of EMMA collects 

continuing disclosure documents from the  issuer community and makes them available to the 

public for free through EMMA. 

In conformance with the “Continuing Disclosure Certificate” entered into by the City of Sherwood 

in bond issuances, the City shall comply with Rule 15c2‐12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 

(Exchange Act).   As noted above, these disclosures generally are divided between submissions 

made to update financial or operating information about the issuer and notices that disclose the 

occurrence of  specific  events  that may  have  an  impact  on  the  bonds.  These  disclosures  are 

described below.  

City Responsibility 

The  Finance  Director  shall  be  responsible  for  adhering  to  the  City’s  Continuing  Disclosure 

Obligations. 

Debt  

The  City will  borrow  only  to  finance  capital  assets.    The  City will  not  borrow  for  operating 

purposes. 

No bonds will mature more than 20 years from the date of issuance.  No debt will be issued with 

a life exceeding the estimated useful life of the capital assets being financed.  The City will limit 

bonded debt  to 3% or  less of  total assessed value, as  required by ORS 287.004.   Repayment 

sources are identified for every debt prior to issuance.   

 

 

 

 

 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 101 of 107 439



Appendix                           Financial Policies 

100 

Policy 6 ‐ Continuing Disclosure (continued) 

Rule 15c2‐12 Disclosures 

Rule 15c2‐12  rule  requires,  for most new offerings of municipal securities,  that  the  following 

types of information be provided to the MSRB’s EMMA system:  

1. Financial or operational information  

a. Annual financial information concerning issuers or other obligated persons, or other 

financial  information  and  operating  data  provided  by  issuers  or  other  obligated 

persons  

b. Audited financial statements for issuers or other obligated persons, if available 

 

2. Event Notices 

a. Principal and interest payment delinquencies 

b. Non‐payment related defaults, if material 

c. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties 

d. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties 

e. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform 

f. Adverse  tax  opinions,  Internal  Revenue  Service  (IRS)  notices  or  material  events 

affecting the tax status of the security 

g. Modifications to rights of security holders, if material 

h. Bond calls, if material 

i. Tender offers 

j. Defeasances,  release,  substitution,  or  sale  of  property  securing  repayment  of  the 

securities, if material 

k. Rating changes 

l. Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event; 

m. Merger, consolidation, or acquisition, if material; and appointment of a successor or 

additional trustee, or the change of name of a trustee, if material 

n. Notices  of  failures  to  provide  annual  financial  information  on  or  before  the  date 

specified in the written agreement 

 

 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 102 of 107 440



Appendix                     Glossary and Acronyms 

101 

Proposed Budget ‐ The final budget appropriations approved by the City Council, which becomes 

the budget of the City. 

AFSCME ‐ American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees.   One of the union 

organizations representing the bargaining employees of the City. 

Accrual basis  ‐ A method of  timing  in  the recognition of  transactions and events.   Please see 

modified accrual basis for the alternative method.  Accrual basis records revenue when earned 

and expenses as soon as a liability is incurred. 

Approved Budget – The budget recommended by the Budget Committee for adoption by the City 

Council. 

Appropriation  ‐ Authorization  to  spend  a  specific  amount of money.    The City Council  gives 

appropriation authority by adopting the budget. 

Assessed  value  ‐ The  value  set on  real  and personal property  as  a basis  for  imposing  taxes.  

Assessed values are determined by Washington County.   

Budget – A plan of financial operation embodying an estimate of proposed expenditures for a 

given purpose and/or period.   The budget  is  the  financial plan of  the City’s allocations of  the 

resources to provide services, and to accomplish the City’s objectives. 

Budget Calendar  – Key dates or  events which  a  government  follows  in  the preparation  and 

adoption of the budget. 

Budget Committee ‐ A committee required by Oregon Local Budget Law (ORS 294.305) which 

must recommend a budget and approve the maximum tax levy. 

Budget  Message  –  A  written  explanation  of  the  budget  and  the  City’s  financial  priorities 

presented  to  the Budget Committee by  the City Manager which  is  required by Oregon  Local 

Budget Law, ORS 294. 

Budget Officer ‐ The Finance Director or other person appointed by the City Council to prepare 

the proposed budget.  This designation is required by Oregon Local Budget Law (ORS 294.305) 

CAFR ‐ The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, the audited report of the City’s finances for 
the fiscal year. 

Capital Lease ‐ Lease of a capital asset.  The lease may or may not result in the City’s ownership 

of the item at the end of the lease term. 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 103 of 107 441



Appendix                     Glossary and Acronyms 

102 

Capital Assets ‐ Items which have a useful life of two or more years and a cost of $5,000 or more. 

These include land, infrastructure, buildings, improvements other than buildings, vehicles, and 

certain furniture and equipment. 

Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) ‐ A schedule of planned capital projects and their costs, for three 

or more years. 

Capital  Outlay  ‐  Expenditures  for  capital  assets.    Includes  all  purchased  capital  assets.  

Expenditures for constructed capital projects appear in capital outlay, materials and services, and 

reimbursements, depending on the nature of the expenditure. 

Capital Projects – Projects which purchase or construct capital assets.  Typically a capital project 

encompasses a purchase of land and/or the construction of a building or facility.    

COLA ‐ Cost of living.  A COLA increases all salaries at all classes and steps by the same percentage. 

Contingency – An amount appropriated  in anticipation that some operating expenditures will 

become necessary which cannot be foreseen and planned in the budget.     

CWS  ‐ Clean Water  Services,  the  regional  sewer  treatment  entity.   CWS  is  a County  Service 

District, defined by ORS 451. The City of Sherwood owns and operates sewer and storm water 

pumping and transmission facilities; CWS receives and treats the wastewater.   

Debt Service ‐ Principal and interest payments on long‐term debt.  

Division ‐ An organizational unit with a distinct budget. 

Department – Units within a division consisting of one or more. 

Enterprise  Funds  ‐ A  fund  that  accounts  for operations  that  are  financed  and operated  in  a 

manner  similar  to private business enterprises.    They  are usually  self‐supporting.    The City’s 

enterprise funds are the Water, Sanitary, Storm, and Telecommunications funds.   

ESC – Erosion and Sediment Control. 

Fiscal Year ‐ The twelve month period to which the operating budget applies.  The City’s fiscal 

year is July 1 through June 30. 

Franchise Fee – Fees charged to utilities for the use of public right‐of‐way. 

FTE ‐ Full‐Time Equivalent ‐ A part‐time position converted to the decimal equivalent of a full‐

time position based on 2,080 hours per year. 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 104 of 107 442



Appendix                     Glossary and Acronyms 

103 

Fund ‐ A fiscal and accounting entity, segregating resources for the purpose of carrying on specific 

activities in accordance with legal restrictions. 

Fund Balance ‐ The amount of available, spendable, financial resources  in any given fund at a 

specified date. 

GASB ‐ The Governmental Accounting Standards Board, the body that defines generally accepted 

accounting principles for governments. 

General Fund – The City’s primary operating fund.  There are no restrictions as to the purpose in 

which the revenues in this fund can be used. 

General Obligation Bond  (G. O. Bond) – A government pledge of  full  faith and  credit  to  the 

repayment of the bonds issued by the government.  They are usually issued to pay for general 

capital improvements. 

GFOA – Government Finance Officers Association. 

Goal  –  A  statement  of  direction,  purpose  or  intent  based  on  the  needs  of  the  community, 

generally to be completed in a specified amount of time. 

Grant – A donation or contribution by one government unit or organization to another.  This is 

usually made to aid a specified purpose. 

Infrastructure  ‐  Infrastructure are assets that are  immovable and of value only to the City.    It 

includes  roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, sidewalks, drainage systems,  lighting systems, and 

water and sewer systems.   

Interfund Loan ‐ A loan made by one fund to another and authorized by the City Council. 

Levy ‐ The amount of property tax certified by the City Council.   

Materials and Services – Expendable  items purchased  for delivery of  services.   This  includes 

supplies, repairs, maintenance and replacement parts that are not of capital nature. 

Mission – Defines the primary purpose of the City.  

Modified Accrual ‐ A method of timing in the recognition of transactions and events.  Please see 

Accrual basis for the alternative method.  Modified accrual basis records revenue when earned, 

if they are collectible within the period or soon enough afterwards to be used to pay liabilities of 

the  period.    Expenditures  are  recorded when  a  liability  is  incurred  except  that  debt  service 

payments and other specific accrued liabilities are recognized only when payment is due. 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 105 of 107 443



Appendix                     Glossary and Acronyms 

104 

Objective ‐ What we want to accomplish.  City‐wide objectives are longer term than one year, 

cross departments, and/or are comprehensive in scope.   

Operating Budget ‐ Sources and uses necessary for day‐to‐day operations.    

Ordinance – A formal legislative enactment by the governing body of a municipality.  If it is not 

in conflict with any higher form of law, such as a state statute or constitutional provision, it as 

the full force and effect of law within the boundaries of the municipality to which it applies.  

ORS ‐ Oregon Revised Statutes, laws of the State of Oregon. 

PEG  ‐ Public, Educational and Governmental Access Channel designations  for cable television.  

Certain franchise fee revenue from cable providers  is restricted to the costs of providing such 

access. 

Performance Measure – Data collected to determine how effective or efficient a program is in 

achieving its objectives. 

PERS ‐ Public Employees Retirement System.  A State of Oregon defined benefit pension plan to 

which both employees and employer contribute. 

Personal Services ‐ Expenditures for payroll, payroll taxes, and employee benefits. 

Project ‐ Projects are distinct, with a definable result, process, and beginning and end.  Projects 

are capital or operating.   

Property Tax Levy – Based upon  the assessed value of property and  is used as  the source of 

monies to pay general obligation debts and to support the general fund. 

PSU ‐ Portland State University.  The University prepares populations estimates each July 1 for all 

Oregon Municipalities.  

Reserved for Future Years – An amount budgeted, but not appropriated, that is not anticipated 

to be spent in the fiscal year, but rather carried forward into future fiscal years. 

Resolution – An action by the governing body which requires less formality and has a lower legal 

status than an ordinance. 

Resources ‐ Financial resources that are or will be available for expenditure during the fiscal year. 

Restricted Revenue – Financial resources that are subject to some level of restriction based on 

statutory, legislative or council action. 

 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 106 of 107 444



Appendix                     Glossary and Acronyms 

105 

Revenue  –  The  gross  receipts  and  receivables  that  the  City  receives  such  as:  tax  payments, 
licenses, fines and forfeitures, grants and interest income.   

SFR – Single Family Residential. 

System Development Charges (SDC) ‐ Fees charged upon issuance of building permits to offset 
the cost of infrastructure improvements that are or will be required to provide capacity to serve 
the development.  SDC’s are charged for parks, water, sanitary, storm, and streets.   

SPOA ‐ Sherwood Police Officers’ Association union. 

Supplemental Budget – Appropriations established to meet the needs not anticipated at the time 
the budget was Proposed.   

Transfers  ‐  Amounts moved  from  one  fund  to  finance  activities  in  another  fund,  with  no 
requirement of repayment.   

TRNWR ‐ Tualatin River National Wildlife Refuge.  The Refuge lies in and outside the northwest 
edge of Sherwood.   

TSP ‐ Transportation System Plan.  A long‐range plan for transportation needs and facilities. 

TVWD ‐ Tualatin Valley Water District, a regional water supplier.   

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance – An amount set aside in the budget to be used as a cash 
carryover to the next year’s budget; providing the local government with operating cash until tax 
money is received in November. 

Unrestricted Revenue ‐ Revenue that may be used for any legitimate City purpose.  Please refer 
to “restricted revenue”. 

URA  ‐ The City of Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency.   The Agency  is a municipal  corporation 
distinct from the City.  The Sherwood City Council serves as the Board of Directors for the URA, 
and its budget may be obtained from the City of Sherwood. 

URD  ‐ The urban renewal district, the geographic area encompassed by the City of Sherwood 
Urban Renewal Agency.   

User Charges ‐ A fee charged for services to a person who directly benefits from the service.   

Uses ‐ The ways in which financial resources will be used during the fiscal year.  

WCCLS ‐ Washington County Cooperative Library Services.  This regional entity receives property 
taxes from each city in the consortium.  The money is used to fund county‐wide services such as 
the  circulation  software and  interlibrary  loan.   A portion  is  returned  to each  city based on a 
formula that includes circulation, open hours, and other service‐related measures. 

 

Resolution 2016-040, Exhibit A 
June 21, 2016, Page 107 of 107 445





Community Development Department – 
Monthly update 

June 10, 2016 
The City of Sherwood Community Development Division consists of three departments which, 
provides quality current and long range planning, building and engineering services to support the 
infrastructure, livability, well-being and economic development of the community.  The following is 
a summary of the key projects or tasks each department routinely does for the community and an 
update on current projects or status.  

Planning: 
Current Planning- Projects in Review  
 Claus Property Rezone (22211 SW Pacific Highway) – Proposal to rezone 2.66 acres of a 5.86 acre site 

from General Commercial to Medium Density Residential Low. Planning Commission Hearing 
scheduled for 6/14/2016. Tentatively scheduled for Council on 7/19/2016. 

 Parkway Court Zone Change (corner of SW Parkway Ct and Meinecke Parkway) – Proposal to rezone 
approximately 1 acre from General Commercial to Medium Density Residential Low.  On hold at 
Applicant’s request. 

 Revised Old Town Parking Lot code amendment (Old Town Overly) Proposal to allow stand-alone 
parking in residential zones with the Old Town Overlay District as a conditional use, when the property 
is vacant as of May 1, 2016; and it fronts parking fronts an Arterial or Collector Street. City Council 2nd 
reading scheduled for 6/21/16 

 Zenport Industrial – (15104 SW Oregon Street) Proposal to construct an approximately 9,800 square 
foot flex industrial building and associated site improvements. Approved 

 Sherwood Plaza Apartments – (16380 SW Langer Drive) Proposal by Mercury Development to 
construct 82-apartment units. Planning Commission hearing scheduled for 6/28/16. 

 FEMA Floodplain Amendments – (Applies Citywide) These will be proposed amendments to the 
development regulations to ensure that the City regulations are current as they pertain to recent 
updated floodplain map amendments.  Currently staff is auditing the development code to understand 
the scope and magnitude of proposed amendments. Public work session with affected property 
owners and the Planning Commission tentatively scheduled for July 12, 2016 

 Industrial Uses (PA 16-04) – This is a project to review and amend the allowed uses within the 
Industrial Districts to ensure that they are flexible and up to date. City Council 2nd reading scheduled 
for 6/21/16 

 Brookman Annexation – Proposal to annex six tax lots and the adjacent Brookman Road right-of-way 
totaling approximately 72.06 acres into the City of Sherwood. Incomplete 

 Olds Place Truck Repair – (2S129A02100) Proposal to construct an approximately 6,175 square foot 
semi-truck repair shop on 1.09 acres near the intersection of SW Olds Place and SW Arrow Street. 
Hearings Officer hearing scheduled for 6/13/16. 

 The Springs Living – (15607, 15677, 15667, 15704, 15699, and 15685 SW Oregon Street) Proposal to 
demolish 3 homes in Old Town, consolidate the three lots into a single lot, and construct two additions 
that would add 20 assisted living units, and 73 independent living units for a total of 150 units for 
senior living on 5.11 acres. Incomplete 
 

For approved projects or more detail, check out “projects” under “more resources” on the website at 
http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/projects, or contact Brad Kilby at (503)625-4206.  
 

 
 

446



Long Range Planning  
• SW Corridor Plan – The primary focus lately has been on evaluating High Capacity Transit choices from 

Portland to Tualatin.  The Steering Committee voted at their May meeting that light rail would be their 
mode choice and removed a direct tunnel connection to PCC Sylvania campus from the alignment 
option.  A final preferred package to move into the next stage in project development is anticipated at 
their June 13, 2016 meeting.  

• Tri-Met Local Service - Tri-met has added into their budget the addition of a new line between 
Sherwood and Tualatin. The new line, line 97, began operation in June 6th!  

• Cedar Creek Trail (Regional Flexible Fund grant) – The engineering design work continues on the 
Oregon St-99W segment with a pending submittal to Oregon Department of Transportation within the 
next three weeks.  The Consultant and staff will update the Board in June on this segment and review 
the alignment for the segment north of 99W to Roy Rogers. In December, the Parks Board endorsed 
studying a preferred alignment for the segment north of 99W to Roy Rogers.  The survey crew has 
completed their field work, and the Consultant team is finalizing their analysis of the preferred 
alignment. The LTAC and TAC meetings will be held May 25, 2016 to review the results. An Open 
House is scheduled for June 1, 2016 to get feedback on the preferred alignment for this segment and 
update the community on the design of the Oregon St. - 99W segment. We are preparing a Metro 
grant application for environmental enhancement to the Cedar Creek corridor. 

• Washington County Transportation Study – No new information for this report.  Staff is continuing to 
actively monitor and participate in the study to evaluate the long-term transportation strategies and 
investments needed to sustain the county's economic health and quality of life in the coming decades. 
The study results will provide a better understanding of long-term transportation needs, tradeoffs 
between alternative transportation investments, and inform future choices and decisions.  

• Tannery Site Assessment (EPA grant funded) – The City is doing an environmental site assessment on a 
portion of the former Frontier Leather Tannery site to help the City identify issues, risks and costs 
associated with acquiring the property from Washington County and potentially developing it. Field 
work to collect soil samples was completed in November and samples were sent to the lab for 
analysis. The consultant has reviewed the results and submitted a draft report for staff review.  
Additional field work was conducted a few weeks ago to examine the wetland areas.  A public meeting 
is planned for July 13th to discuss the preliminary assessment findings.  

• City of Sherwood Comprehensive Plan Update – Staff is beginning to gear up for a multi-year effort to 
update the City’s Comprehensive Plan. The last major update of the plan was in 1991 when the City’s 
population was under 4,000 people. Council approved a resolution September 15, 2015 supporting 
the project and authorizing staff to seek state funding for the effort.  Staff is continuing to work on 
finding potential sources of funding for elements of the comprehensive plan update to offset general 
fund costs.  Staff will be identifying how to break the project up into phases that will allow the project 
to move forward in a timely manner. The comprehensive plan update project is expected to take 2-3 
years to fully complete due to the extensive community outreach and engagement required. 

• Tualatin-Sherwood Road widening project – Staff met with County staff and representatives for the 
owners of the Haggen property (MGP) on October 16th. County staff reiterated that there is no option 
on the table that includes the light staying. County staff did express a willingness to continue exploring 
maintaining a left in, however they were skeptical that it would be able to work.  The representative 
indicated they would speak to their client.  The County had a meeting with representatives from MGP 
on 12/8.  The meeting went generally well but the County made it clear that the signal remaining was 
not an option. The property owners continue to express concerns. The County indicated that they are 
willing to continue discussions to address concerns with the understanding that the light was going to 
be removed. The County is moving forward on the right of way process and is expected to be 
addressing the land use process issues in the next few months.   

• Recreational Marijuana Facilities - Staff initiated the discussion with Planning Commission and the 
Police Advisory Board. The recreational marijuana facilities online survey generated 280 responses and 
asked for input on where recreational marijuana facilities should be located in the City as well as any 
additional restrictions beyond the state regulations. The Planning Commission and Police Advisory 
Board held a second public work session on April 26, 2016 to discuss the online survey results and get 

447



feedback on several options for locating the five different license types for recreational marijuana 
facilities. Staff is collecting public comment on the draft language for and plans to have the first Public 
Hearing with the Planning Commission on July 26, 2016. 

• Code updates to reflect FEMA map changes – FEMA map updates have been on-hold due to changes 
and appeals since 2007 but we have recently received word that they are expecting to send a “Letter 
of Final Map Determination” within the next month.  Once the letter is received, the city has only 6 
months to update the development code to formally adopt the new maps as well as making any 
amendments needed to be in compliance.  Failure to complete the update process within the 6 month 
period will automatically kick any Sherwood residents with flood insurance out of the flood insurance 
program.  Work session with Planning Commission and affected property owners scheduled for July 
12, 2016. 

 

Other 
• Street Tree Permits - 8 permits issued in 2016.  
• Pre-application Conferences- Below is a list of pre-application meetings held. If an application is 

submitted they will be taken off the list. In addition, if additional activity occurs (that staff knows of) 
this will be reported in this section as well. 
o Proposal to construct a 66,000 square foot flexible industrial building on Galbreath Drive, just west 

of the intersection with Cipole Road. 
o Sentinel storage expansion – proposal to do a two lot partition on the property fronting Langer 

Farms Parkway south of Century drive and do an expansion of the existing facility on 5.89 acres on 
the southern portion of the site. 

o Proposal for approximately 18-20 single family homes on Pacific Highway just west of SW 
Meinecke Road. 

o Sherwood Elks Lodge (22770 SW Elwert Road) to discuss various development options.   
o Sherwood Patel Hotel (21930/21970 SW Alexander Lane near the corner of SW Meinecke Pkwy 

and 99W) Proposal for a hotel with approximately 80 rooms and associated parking.   Meeting was 
held on September 14, 2015. Engineering is providing Traffic Impact Study (TIS) requirements and 
information on required infrastructure. 

o Mixed use development including senior housing and retail on the Pfeiffer/Providence properties 
located at the Northwest intersection of SW Edy Road and SW Highway 99W 

o Proposal to construct a multi-family development at the property located at 21949 Sherwood 
Blvd.  

Engineering: 
Capital (City or URA) projects  
 Columbia Street Water Quality Facility Phase 2 - Project main construction has been completed.  The 

project is now constructing the mitigation portion with an improvement of a pedestrian crossing of a 
downstream corridor.  This mitigation portion of the project replaces an undersized culvert with a 
larger culvert.  Construction bid opening occurred 02/04/16.   This project is slated to be constructed 
starting mid-July when in-water work is allowed by the DEQ permit issued for the project. Craig 
Christensen is the project manager for the City.  

 Tonquin Employment Area Sanitary Sewer upgrade-Project is generally complete, however there 
were some issues in one segment when the pipe bursting was done causing a “belly” in the pipe.  The 
City is working to remedy pipe bursting issue.  Additionally, the contractor defaulted on their contract 
and the City is trying to negotiate a resolution with the bonding company.  The City Attorney is leading 
the negotiations efforts. Craig Christensen is the project manager. 

 Stormwater Master Plan Update and rate study –Master plan update is in process.  MSA contracted 
with to perform MP update. Project schedule spans two fiscal years (FY14/15 and Fy15/16).  The 
modeling process is complete, and a full CIP project listing has been developed and estimated 
design/construction costs generated for use in SDC rate analysis.  City review of technical information 
completed. Consultant now working on draft of report and analysis of SDC rate methodology.  

448



Anticipate presentation to City Council in late July or early August.  Working towards adoption of MP 
and SDC rates and methodology between September and November.  Bob Galati is the project 
manager 

 Sanitary Sewer Master Plan Update and rate study – Master plan update is in process.  MSA 
contracted with to perform MP update. Project schedule spans two fiscal years (FY14/15 and 
Fy15/16).  The modeling process is complete, and a full CIP project listing has been developed and 
estimated design/construction costs generated for use in SDC rate analysis.  City review of technical 
information completed. Consultant now working on draft of report and analysis of SDC rate 
methodology.  Anticipate presentation to City Council in late July or early August.  Working towards 
adoption of MP and SDC rates and methodology between September and November.  Bob Galati is 
the project manager 

 Woodhaven Park Phase 2 (Design) – Planning has approved the project. It is finishing design and will 
go out for bid in the near future.  Project consists of development of planning approval process 
documents for park development, and full bid set containing design plans, specifications, and cost 
estimates. Project has been released for bidding.  Bid opening occurred on Thursday June 2nd.  The 
apparent low bidder is Paul Brothers with a bid of $848,310.00; the City is working on reducing the 
costs to get the construction cost within the budgeted amount available.  Council will be asked to 
authorize the City Manager to sign a contract at the June 21, 2016 meeting.  Kristen Switzer is project 
manager, with Bob Galati providing support and coordination with civil engineering firm (HHPR) 
performing design and planning approval, and project budget oversight. 

 Downtown Parking Lot Development – Project consists of constructing public parking lot of City 
owned lots located on north side of 1st Street between Pine and Oak Streets.  The project will require 
Land Use application and approval.  Project scheduled to be complete by June 2016, however, it is 
anticipated that the project design and construction will be completed within the current Fiscal Year 
15/16.  Survey for the project has been completed and engineering design for land use action is 
underway.  .  Text amendment required to allow a stand along public parking lot in a residential zone.  
Text Amendment application was submitted on 2/8/16.  Application was revised and will go back to 
the Planning Commission before going to City Council.  Planning Commission agreed with revised text 
amendment and endorsed submittal to City Council with a positive recommendation for approval.  
Council held a hearing and 1st reading on June 7, 2016 and a 2nd reading is scheduled for June 21, 
2016.  Bob Galati is the project manager. 

 Downtown Streetscapes Monument Removal – Project consists of removing concrete pylons located 
at the intersections of 1st Street with Pine, Washington and Main Streets.  The first phase of the 
project is a feasibility study to determine the requirements and impacts associated with removal.  The 
second phase will include design and construction of the pylon removal and replacement structures (if 
any).  The first phase has been budgeted in the current Fiscal Year 15/16, phase 2 will be discussed 
further upon the completion of Phase1.  Wallace Engineering was selected as consultant and is 
actively at work.  Jason Waters is the project manager. 

 Transportation SDC and Rate Study – Project consists of performing an SDC and Rate study associated 
with the projects identified in the TSP and refined in the TSP Construction Cost Refinement Project.  It 
is anticipated that this project will be completed within the current Fiscal Year 15/16.  Consultant, FCS 
Group is in process.  Currently working on refining project list to establish construction cost basis and 
working through policy discussion issues. Discussion of refined project listing and costs to occur with 
staff on June 21st.  Presentation to City Council in Work Session to follow in July.  Bob Galati is the 
project manager. 

 Langer Farms Parkway Pedestrian Crossing – DKS was contracted to perform an analysis and provide 
a recommendation on whether a pedestrian crossing on Langer Farms Parkway between the Parkway 
Village site and the Target site was warranted and whether a safe crossing could be provided if 
warranted.  The report has been prepared confirming it is warranted and recommendations made. 
Funding options are being identified and may require supplemental budget item approval action.  DKS 
has submitted a Scope of Work and Fee proposal for performing design on the pedestrian crossing 
project.  Proposal is being reviewed and if acceptable a Resolution will be forwarded to the City 
Council to authorize the City Manager to enter into a professional services contract.  The contract 

449



authorization was approved at the April 5th City Council meeting.  Notice to proceed with design will 
occur as soon as signatures on the contract are completed.  Construction is anticipated to occur early 
in the upcoming fiscal year.  Contract for design completed and NTP issued to DKS.  Anticipate initial 
project design review in June.  Jason Waters is the project manager.  

 Oregon Street -Tonquin Road Intersection Feasibility Study – DKS has been contracted with to 
conduct feasibility analysis on possible interim solutions for the intersection of Oregon Street and 
Tonquin Road.  The intent is to develop 2 to 3 options analysis for providing a technical solution to the 
traffic congestion and turning safety issues that would have a functional lifespan of 5 to 10 years.  The 
intent is to provide an interim solution to the intersection in lieu of a full build out design which could 
not be funded at this time.  The intermediate solution would cost significantly less and allow time to 
raise the capital funds in order to construct the full build out condition solution. Initial alternatives 
analysis presented to City staff.  Refinements are being analyzed to focus on viable alternative.  Jason 
Waters is the project manager. 

 Sunset and Pine Sanitary Sewer Extension Project – In house design of sanitary sewer mainline 
extension along Sunset Boulevard and Pine Street to provide sanitary sewer service to lots which are 
currently serviced by septic tanks and older combined sanitary service laterals is complete.  Project 
being issued for construction bid submittals through the DJC on Wednesday, June 10th, and Friday 
June 12th.  Bid opening is set for Thursday June 30th.  Construction is anticipated to be completed no 
later than October 1st.  Budget amendment is anticipated since original scope of project was only for 
Sunset Boulevard section.  Addition of Pine Street section significantly increased project length and 
associated costs.  Bob Galati is the project manager. 

  
 

Private Development:  
 In process of releasing Request for Proposal (RFP) for City On-Call Traffic Engineering Services.  On-Call 

Traffic Engineering Services used primarily for scoping and review of private development 
transportation related issues.  Release of RFP in DJC set for the week of June 6th.  Review and selection 
of consultant engineering firm anticipated to be completed by mid-July.  Contract for On-Call Traffic 
engineering Services to be presented to City Council by late July or early August. Jason Waters is the 
project manager. 

 Cedar Creek PUD – D.R. Horton development of multi-family residential units on lot adjacent to Cedar 
Creek Condos and bounded by Cedar Brook Way street extension.  Design review and approval 
completed.  Construction of public improvements completed.  Construction of buildings in process.  
Waterline construction in Meinecke Road during the later half of June and early July will necessitate 
the closure of Meincke Road between Highway 99W and Cedar Brook Way.  This work being done 
during this timeframe to eliminate impact to school student busing.  Advance notification of road 
closure has been made (see Right-of-Way Permits below).  Craig Christensen is project manager. 

 Roshun Village Development – Project public improvements have been completed.  On-site building 
construction is nearing completion. The public improvements constructed with the project are in the 
2-year warranty period.  Craig Christensen is project manager. 

 Mandel property development submittal review, comment and discussion with developers 
engineering firm is resolving several technical issues related to the proposed development.  Final 
approval of changes pending submittal of Design Variation Requests. Planning approval for the 
subdivision received.  Phase 1 and Phase 2 site development plans have been submitted and are under 
review.  Once the review process is completed a compliance agreement will be signed and the projects 
may commence construction.  Craig Christensen is the project manager. 

 Sherwood Plaza 82-Unit Apartment Site Development – Review and comment of TIA ongoing.  
Planning Department land-use process continuing, with TIA review issues being resolved before 
submittal to PC. 

 Pfeifer Property Site Development – (not submitted for land use review yet) Discussion of TIA and 
traffic impact mitigation requirements ongoing.  Submittal to Planning Department land use process 

450



dependent on positive TIA discussions outcome.  .  Applicant meeting with ODOT representatives on 
June 1st to discuss intersection (Edy/Borchers) options.  Results of discussion with ODOT pending. 

 Several private development meetings on potential development sites within the City have taken 
place.  Discussions of transportation requirements and SDC impacts/fees estimates have been 
performed.  Ongoing communications regarding these developments are looking positive. 

 

Other: 
 Right of Way permits:  21 ROW permits issued from 01/01/16 to date. $3502 revenue generated from 

permits.  0 permits under review, 14 permits are currently active. 9 permits have been completed and 
closed YTD.  

o The engineering department is working closely with the DR Horton developers on Cedar 
Brook/Meinecke to facilitate their ability to construct necessary water line and other 
infrastructure improvements in Meinecke; however partial closures will be necessary. The 
City is requiring significant coordination with the School District and emergency service 
providers, advance notice to property owners and public notice via our traditional 
methods. After coordination and additional input from the School District, the 
construction schedule has been modified by breaking it up into two different phases. A 
shorter, 3 day closure of the westbound lane (off 99W onto Meinecke) will occur late 
October and will avoid closure during the morning drop off period. A longer closure will be 
needed to install a water line in the street but will be scheduled once the Cedar Brook 
extension is complete to Meinecke (which will allow for a shorter detour option) and for a 
period when school is not in session. More information on the longer closure will be 
provided as that time approaches. 

 Addressing:    10 address corrections resolved in the month of April.  2 new addressed issued in the 
month of April.  Total addressing fees collected to date: $4,770.  Addressing map for US Postal Service 
has been completed. 

 Erosion control inspections:  Staff has 4 active/open erosion control permits which require inspections 
weekly and monthly reports to Clean Water Services.  2 inactive sites requiring bi-weekly inspections.  
29 active SFR and/or ground disturbing activity permits issued by Building Department.  6 inactively 
SFR and/or ground disturbing activity permits on file.  Conducted 15 private site development ESC 
inspections and 64 single family residential inspections in the month of April. 

 Traffic Control Management Planning:  In response to numerous requests from residents CDD staff is 
in the process of developing guidance policy draft for future traffic calming requests.  This will be an 
on-going discussion and no formal action will be taken until conversations with Council are held. 

 Kruger/Elwert Intersection Improvements – The County will begin design of the intersection 
improvement (which includes a roundabout on the City owned property). An IGA with Washington 
County has been signed by City Manager.  The 30% design level work by County has begun. It is 
anticipated that a 30% design will be complete within 1 year and then will be put on standby until 
2018. If development is planned prior to 2018 which necessitates its construction sooner, the County 
will be able to move up the timeline. Initial conference call meeting regarding design parameters held 
on 02/04/16.  Discussion on traffic density and freight vehicle types used for design.  Further 
discussion pending analysis of existing traffic data.  Date for public presentation of initial design plan 
has been set for May 12th at Middleton Elementary School.  Presentation made to City Council at April 
21st Work Session.  Will refine once schematic plans developed. Bob Galati is coordinating with WACO 
on this project. 

 CWS MS4 NPDES – Clean Water Services (CWS) has completed their audit and are in process of 
updating their Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems (MS4) Nation Pollution Discharge Elimination 
System (NPDES) permit which will include new EPA requirements that City’s will need to incorporate 
into engineering and development standards.  The impacts to the City of Sherwood’s engineering and 
development standards appear to be relatively small as the City’s stormwater facilities and natural 
drainage ways are in good condition.  One item that will impact the City and development within the 
City is the hydro-modification requirement (detention on-site to mitigate stream corridor impacts such 

451



as erosion).  This item is currently being discussed in depth by CWS with EPA as other municipalities 
within the CWS service area may be impacted to a larger extent which would result in jurisdictions like 
Sherwood to mitigate more than actually necessary. 

 
CWS has submitted a draft of the permit to EPA for initial review and discussion. It is anticipated that 
CWS will be obtaining their permit within the next 6-months.  Implementation of the conditions of the 
Phase I Permit will occur over an estimated 5-year timeline, with full implementation occurring in year 
5.  

Building: 
Permits issued and under construction  
 New DR Horton sub-division (Cedar Brook). 8 houses completed, 41 in construction. 

 Sherwood industrial Park-New Building #3-14944 SW Century Dr- Finish work 

 Sherwood industrial Park-New Building #4-15028 SW Century Dr- Finish work  

 JB Insulation Office Addition-14175 SW Galbreath-Completed 

 Roshun Village Apartments BLD C- -17167 SW Terrapin Dr.  Sheetrock 

 56 Single Family Homes Issued and/or in construction 

 19 Structural Residential Additions/Remodels/Misc. 

 Multiple plumbing/mechanical/misc. permits issued 

 Roshun Village Apartments BLD B 17175 SW Terrapin Dr. -Framing 

 Roshun Village BLD A- 17193 SW Terrapin Dr Framing  

 100 Fold commercial T/I-Caretakers Quarters-14145 SW Galbreath Dr.- Finish work 

 St. Paul Church school remodel-17500 SW Cedarview way-Finish work 

 Endurance Products Warehouse- 13990 SW GalbreathDr.-Issued 

 Dr. Bittner office T/I-17680 SW Handley St.-Issued 

  
 

Permits in review 
 0 Single Family Homes in review, 2 other ready to issue.  

 Screen Magic-(screen printing)-21655 SW Pacific Hwy (The abandoned tractor rental bld) 

 Horizon Church, enclose front entry-22240 SW Washington St. 

452



May-16 May-16 YTD May-15

Usage People People People 

Count Served* Count Served* Served*

Leagues 3 360 23 4707 392

Rentals 83 1245 807 12075 525

Other (Classes)

[1]  Day Use 5 48 101 1125 99

Total Usage 1653 17907 1016

Income FY 15 16 May-16 YTD

Rentals $5,698 $56,342

League fees (indoor) $3,399 $72,089

Card fees (indoor) $437 $3,503

Day Use $122 $3,188

Advertising

Snacks $386 $5,348

Classes

Total $10,042 $140,470

FY 14 15

Income May-15 YTD

Rentals $2,500 $51,809

League fees (indoor) $4,920 $72,734

Card fees (indoor) $120 $3,510

Day Use $238 $2,015

Advertising

Snacks $225 $5,356

Classes

Total $8,003 $135,424

*Estimated number of people served.

Sherwood Field House Monthly Report May 2016 

453



 

Fields and Gyms 

 Youth soccer held classic tryouts in May and are practicing anywhere there is an open field. 

 Youth baseball held 48 tee-ball games at LRMS, 48 minor games at Archer Glen and Middleton, 

and 75 games for the older kids at various felids in town. For a total of 176 baseball games in 

town during the month of May. 

 Youth softball held 22 games during the month at mostly the high school. The tournament that 

they had scheduled for May 7th and 8th was rained out.  

 Youth Lacrosse held 27 games at Snyder Park, the high school and SMS during the month. 

 The greater Portland Soccer District rented Snyder Park 14 hours for some of their adult games 

during the month of May. 

 May had basketball and volleyball in the gyms. 

Field House 

 Running three adult leagues. 

 Women’s open play on Tuesdays had no participants.  The night will change to Tuesday in hopes 

of getting more participants.   

 We have ordered and received our new 48 cubic foot cooler for soda and water sales. 

 

Respectfully Submitted  

Lance Gilgan 

May 31, 2016 

 

 

454


	01 City Council Packet Cover 06.21.16
	02  City Council Agenda 06.21.16
	03  06.07.16 City Council Minutes-DRAFT
	04  Resolution 2016-033 Canvass May 2016 Election results-STAFF REPORT
	05  Resolution 2016-033 Canvass May 2016 Election results-DRAFT
	06  Resolution 2016-033 Canvass May 17, 2016 Election results-EXH A
	07  Resolution 2016-034 Auth Contract, Blackline Inc 2016 Slurry Seal Prog-STAFF REPORT
	08  Resolution 2016-034 Auth Contract, Blackline Inc 2016 Slurry Seal Prog-DRAFT
	09  Resolution 2016-034 Auth Contract, Blackline Inc 2016 Slurry Seal Prog-EXH A
	10  Resolution 2016-035 Certification of Provisions of Services FY2016-17-STAFF REPORT
	11  Resolution 2016-035 Certification of Provisions of Services FY2016-17-DRAFT
	11.1 Resolution 2016-036 Auth contract Woodhave Park construction-STAFF REPORT
	11.2 Resolution 2016-036 Auth contract Woodhaven Park construction-DRAFT
	12  Resolution 2016-037 Adopt FY2016-17 Five-Year CIP-STAFF REPORT
	13  Resolution 2016-037 Adopt FY2016-17 Five-Year CIP 06.21.16-DRAFT
	14  Resolution 2016-037 Adopt FY2016-17 Five-Year CIP-EXH A
	01 Front Page and Table of Contents - DO NOT DELETE
	02 CIP Executive Summary Draft - DO NOT DELETE
	03 One-Year Project Plan Summary Draft - DO NOT DELETE
	04 Five-Year Project Plan Summary Draft - DO NOT DELETE
	4A CIP Working Draft - Complete Tabs 3 DO NOT DELETE - Copy (2)
	05 CIP Plan Working Draft -Transportation DO NOT DELETE
	06 CIP Plan Working Draft - Pedestrian DO NOT DELETE
	07 CIP Plan Working Draft - Stormwater DO NOT DELETE
	08 CIP Plan Working Draft - Sanitary DO NOT DELETE
	09 CIP Plan Working Draft - Water DO NOT DELETE
	10 CIP Plan Working Draft - Parks DO NOT DELETE
	11 CIP Working Draft - URA DO NOT DELETE

	15  Ordinance 2016-008 Code Amend Chap 16.31, Industrial Uses-STAFF REPORT
	16  Ord. 2016-008 Code Amend Chap 16.31-PC recomm, Attach 1 to STAFF REPORT
	17  Ord. 2016-008 Code Amend Chap 16.31-PC recomm,Clean EXH 1 to STAFF REPORT
	18  Ord. 2016-008 Code Amend Chap 16.31-PC recomm, track changes-EXH 2 to STAFF REPORT
	19  Ord. 2016-008 Code Amend Chap 16.31-Summary proposed changes-PC recomm-EXH 3
	20 Ordinance 2016-008 Code Amend Chap 16.31, Industrial Uses-DRAFT
	21 Ordinance 2016-008 Code Amend Chap 16.31, Industrial Uses, EXH A
	22  Ordinance 2016-010 Amend Code 16.162 Nonaccessory Parking in Old Town-STAFF REPORT
	23  Ordinance 2016-010 Amend Code 16.162 Nonaccessory Parking in Old Town-PC Recomm
	24  Ordinance 2016-010 Amend Code 16.162 Nonaccessory Parking in Old Town-DRAFT
	25  Ordinance 2016-010 Amend Code 16.162 Nonaccessory Parking in Old Town-EXH 1
	26  Resolution 2016-038 Election to receive State Shared Revenue FY16-17-STAFF REPORT
	27  Resolution 2016-038 Election to receive State Shared Revenue FY16-17-DRAFT
	29  Resolution 2016-039 Adopting FY2016-17 Fee Schedule-STAFF REPORT
	30  Resolution 2016-039 Adopting FY2016-17 Fee Schedule-DRAFT
	31  Resolution 2016-039 Adopting FY2016-17 Fee Schedule-EXH A
	32  Resolution 2016-040 Adopt FY2016-17 Approved Budget-STAFF REPORT
	33  Resolution 2016-040 Adopt FY2016-17 Approved Budget-DRAFT
	34  Resolution 2016-040 Adopt FY2016-17 Approved Budget-EXH 
	2016-2017  Approved Budget Cover
	Section 1
	Readers Guide Part 1
	Readers Guide Part 2
	Revenue & Expense
	Debt & CIP
	Budget Detail
	2016-2017 Appendix

	35  Comm Dev Report May 2016
	36  Field House Report May 2016
	37  Recreation Report May 2016
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



